
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

September 10, 2024
Mark W. McBrayer, Mayor
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Mayor Pro Tem, District 1
Gordon Harris, Councilman, District 2
David Glasheen, Councilman, District 3
Brayden Rose, Councilman, District 4
Dr. Jennifer Wilson, Councilwoman, District 5
Tim Collins, Councilman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Matt Wade, City Attorney

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at (806)775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48
hours in advance of the meeting.

Executive Session Disclosure Statement: The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time during
the course of the meeting to discuss any item listed on this agenda as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code,
including but not necessarily limited to §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberations regarding Real
Property), §551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts and Donations), §551.074 (Personnel Matters), §551.076 (Deliberations
regarding Security Devices), §551.086 (Public Power Utilities: Competitive Matters), §551.087 (Deliberations regarding
Economic Development Negotiations). 

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order. 

12:30 p.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers and immediately recesses into
Executive Session.
           
1. Executive Session   

 

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,
with legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
agreement and on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

1. 1. 1. North Park Tax Increment Financing District   

 

1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section
551.074, to discuss personnel matters, the appointment, employment, evaluation or
reassignment of the following: 

  

 

1. 2. 1. City Attorney   

 

1. 2. 2. City Manager   

http://www.mylubbock.us


 

1. 2. 3. City Secretary   

 

1. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to
the Electric Utility Board, Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation Board,
Lubbock Emergency Communications District Board of Managers, Planning & Zoning
Commission, and Zoning Board of Adjustment.

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

2:00 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 

2. Ceremonial Items   

 

2. 1. Invocation   

 

2. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

Call to Order
 

3. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided
at the meeting, no later than 2:00 p.m. on September 10, 2024. Citizen Comments
provide an opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on
agenda items. 

  

 

4. Minutes   

 

4. 1. August 5, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session 1
August 6, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session 2
August 7, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session 3
August 13, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting 

 

5. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 



5. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
No. 2024-O0111, Amendment 44, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal
purposes respecting the Community Development Fund; providing for filing; and
providing for a savings clause.

 

5. 1. 1. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Community Development Funding Contract 18278, and all related documents,
with the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs, for the Comprehensive
Energy Assistance Program to assist low income households in meeting their immediate
energy needs.

 

5. 2. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Commercial Real Estate Sales Contract, by and between the City of Lubbock and Lone
Star Suds - 19th Ltd., for the sale of real property located within Lots 1 and 2, Block 1,
Elwood Place Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County.

 

5. 3. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed,
and all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Lot 6, Block
13, Phyllis Wheatley Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

 

5. 4. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement Contract 17778, with Freese and
Nichols, Inc., for design and bid phase professional services for the Water System
Electrical Improvements Project at the North Water Treatment Plant's Terminal Storage
Reservoir.

 

5. 5. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Professional Services Agreement Contract 18273, with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.,
for construction phase services for Upland Avenue, Segment 1, 66th Street to 82nd Street.

 

5. 6. Resolution - Water System Operations: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 18255, with the United States Geological Survey, Oklahoma-Texas
Water Science Center, for monitoring and analyzing storm water discharging into both
Lake Alan Henry and the future Lake 7.

 

5. 7. Resolution - Public Works Traffic Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the
Mayor to execute Purchase Order 10027686, with Mobotrex, Inc., for the purchase of
traffic signal components for various intersections under construction by the Texas
Department of Transportation along 19th Street (SH114), and the intersection at Interstate
27 and Regis Street (FM2641).

 

5. 8. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to



5. 8. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 1 to the HOME Investment Partnership Program Funding
Agreement 16771, and all related documents, with the City of Lubbock Housing Initiative,
to provide rehabilitation of affordable rental housing.

 

5. 9. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0112,
approving the seventeenth supplemental ordinance updating the Vintage Township Public
Improvement District Service and Assessment Plan and Assessment Roll.

 

5. 10. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0118,
reviewing classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and
improvements of property in the Bell Farms Public Improvement District; approving,
adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments
for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided in the district during FY
2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and against the owners
thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment. 

 

5. 11. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0119,
reviewing classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and
improvements of property in the Northwest Passage Public Improvement District;
approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying the
2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided in the
district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and
the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessments. 

 

5. 12. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0120,
reviewing classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and
improvements of property in the Upland Crossing Public Improvement District; approving,
adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments
for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided in the district during FY
2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and against the owners
thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

 

5. 13. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0121,
reviewing classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and
improvements of property in the Upland Crossing 2 Public Improvement District;
approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024
assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided in the district
during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and against
the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

 

5. 14. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No.
2024-O0122, reviewing classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the
services and improvements of property in the Upland Crossing 3 Public Improvement
District; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll;
levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided
in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the property in the



district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.
 

5. 15. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0123,
reviewing classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and
improvements of property in the North Overton Public Improvement District; approving,
adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments
for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided in the district during FY
2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and against the owners
thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

 

5. 16. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0124,
reviewing classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and
improvements of property in the Quincy Park Public Improvement District; approving,
adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments
for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided in the district during FY
2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and against the owners
thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

 

5. 17. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0125,
reviewing classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and
improvements of property in the Valencia Public Improvement District; approving,
adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments
for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided in the district during FY
2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and against the owners
thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

 

5. 18. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0126,
reviewing classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and
improvements of property in the North Point Public Improvement District; approving,
adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments
for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided in the district during FY
2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and against the owners
thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

 

5. 19. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0127,
reviewing classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and
improvements of property in the Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District;
approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024
assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided in the district
during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and against
the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

 

5. 20. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Downtown
Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to the
YWCA of Lubbock, located at 1500 14th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

 



 

5. 21. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Downtown
Grant Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to
YWCA of Lubbock, located at 1500 14th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

 

5. 22. Resolution - Municipal Court: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to the Interlocal Agreement with Lubbock County, for Juvenile Case
Manager Services. 

 

5. 23. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the renewal of
the Interlocal Agreement between the City of Lubbock and Lubbock County, Texas, as
constituent agencies of the Lubbock Metropolitan Special Crimes Unit, to identify,
investigate, and deter violent criminal activity in Lubbock County.

 

5. 24. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager to establish a
program to transfer ownership of service duty weapons to retired Lubbock Police
Department officers.

 

5. 25. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0113,
for Zone Case 1067-G, a request of Helmos Interests LTD, for a zone change from
Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC)
Specific Use for a smoke shop, at 6909, 6911, 6913, 6917, 6923, 6925, 6931, and 6951
Indiana Avenue, located east of Indiana Avenue and north of 70th Street, Liberty Village
Addition, Lots 1-55 of Tract A.

 

5. 26. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0114,
for Zone Case 3303-D, a request of Steen Realty Group of Keller Williams for SE4NS
Properties, LLC, for a zone change from Industrial Park District (IP) to Auto-Urban
Commercial District (AC), at 11919 and 11923 Frankford Avenue, located east of
Frankford Avenue and south of 119th Street, Stonewood Industrial Park Addition, Tracts
B-1 and B-2.

 

5. 27. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0115,
for Zone Case 3506, a request of Brian and Chad Carter, for a zone change from Low
Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 5834 and
5836 146th Street, west of Frankford Avenue and north of 146th Street, on approximately
4.978 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 9.

 

5. 28. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0116,
for Zone Case 3507, a request of Mountain Top Engineering for CTJ Diamond
Investments, LLC, for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to
Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 7108 82nd Street, located north of 82nd Street
and east of Upland Avenue, on 1.01 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 30.

 



5. 29. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0117,
for Zone Case 3505, a request of Seventeen Services, LLC for Scarlet River, LLC, for a
zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial
District (HC), at 2909 and 2911 North Frankford Avenue, located west of North Frankford
Avenue and north of Ursuline Street, on 5.023 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS,
Section 12.

 

5. 30. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution approving American Rescue Plan
Act Agreement No. 18314, by and between the City of Lubbock and Armstrong
Mechanical Co., Inc., for workforce training grants.

 

5. 31. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution approving American Rescue Plan Act
Agreement No. 18315, by and between the City of Lubbock and Dale Bolles Plumbing,
Inc., for workforce training grants.

 

5. 32. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution approving American Rescue Plan Act
Agreement No. 18316, by and between the City of Lubbock and Precision Pros Plumbing,
for workforce training grants.

 

5. 33. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution approving American Rescue Plan Act
Agreement No. 18317, by and between the City of Lubbock and Larcon Electric, L.C., for
workforce training grants.

 

5. 34. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution approving American Rescue Plan Act
Agreement No. 18318, by and between the City of Lubbock and Bruce Thornton Air
Conditioning, for workforce training grants.

 

5. 35. Resolution - City Council: Consider a resolution approving a contract amendment
to American Rescue Plan Act Agreement No. 16663, by and between the City of Lubbock
and the East Lubbock Resident Owned Business Initiative, for job training services.  

 

5. 36. Resolution - City Secretary: Consider a resolution confirming the appointment by City
Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson, of Jimmy Lee Tillinghast as a member of the Civil Service
Commission of the City of Lubbock.

 

6. Regular Agenda   

 

6. 1. Resolution - City Manager: Consider and take action to ratify and confirm the
appointment of Richard M. Stewart as Fire Chief for the City of Lubbock.

 

6. 2. Ordinance 1st Reading - Planning:



6. 2. Ordinance 1st Reading - Planning:
Consider and take action on the City of Lubbock Planning and Zoning Commission's final
report of September 5, 2024, to the Lubbock City Council on proposed amendments to the
Unified Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054) recommended for adoption,
limited to the following: 

Table 39.03.023-2 (related to Base Public and Nonresidential Districts Sign Standards)1.
Section 39.02.004.a.7, Section 39.02.004.b.7, Section 39.02.004.c.7, Section
39.02.004.d.7, Section 39.02.004.e.7 (related to Signs in Residential Districts for
Non-Residential Uses)

2.

Section 39.03.023.b.8 (related to Monument Signs)3.
 

6. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0128, approving and
adopting a budget for Fiscal Year 2024-25; approving summary of estimated and
forecasted revenues, appropriations, and use of excess reserves for all funds of the city;
providing for necessary transfers of funds between accounts and departments, if required;
authorizing reduction of spending by City Manager if necessary; re-appropriation of
balances which support authorized obligations or encumbrances; providing for filing of
Adopted Budget; establishing civil service classifications and positions; appropriating
funds for the Fiscal Year 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program of the City of
Lubbock; providing for continuation of appropriations for projects in capital program;
approving all permit, license, fees, and charges for service recommended to be adjusted;
approving the pay plan and positions; approving personnel; amending subsections (a), (b),
(c), and (d) of section 4.02.041 of the Code of Ordinances by revising animal service fees
as contained therein; amending subsection (a) of section 22.04.041 of the Code of
Ordinances by revising the wastewater base charge as contained therein; amending
subsection (a) of section 22.04.133 of the Code of Ordinances by revising the sewage
disposal permit fee as contained therein; amending subsections (h), (i), (j), and (k) of
section 22.04.174 of the Code of Ordinances by revising the septic load fees as contained
therein; amending subsections (b) and (c) of section 22.06.051 of the Code of Ordinances
of the City of Lubbock by revising the solid waste landfill service fees as contained
therein; amending subsection (a) of section 22.06.185 of the Code of Ordinances of the
City of Lubbock by revising the solid waste collections service fees as contained therein;
providing for the reconciliation of the transfer of funds from the General Fund to
Enterprise Funds; accepting the budgets for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance,
Market Lubbock, Inc., Civic Lubbock, Inc., and Vintage Township Public Facilities
Corporation;  finding that proper notice of meeting provided by law and ratifying such;
providing for publication; and providing for a savings clause.

 

6. 4. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution ratifying the adoption of the FY 2024-25
Budget that will require raising more revenue from property taxes than in the previous year.

 

6. 5. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0129, setting the tax
rate and levying a tax upon all property subject to taxation within the City of Lubbock for
2024; apportioning said levy among the various funds and items for which revenue must be
raised; fixing the times in which said taxes shall be paid and assessing penalty and interest
for nonpayment of such taxes within the time provided.

 

6. 6. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution amending the allocation of the Hotel



6. 6. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution amending the allocation of the Hotel
Occupancy Tax Revenues for FY 2024-25 and distributing receipts, net of collection
expenses, as authorized in Subsection 18.03.001(b)(2) of the Code of Ordinances of the
City of Lubbock.

 

6. 7. Resolution - Lubbock Power and Light: Consider a resolution adopting the Delivery
System Electric Rate/Tariff Schedule (Tariff) of Lubbock Power & Light (LP&L), the City
of Lubbock's municipally owned electric utility, applicable to all rate classes, effective
November 1, 2024.

 



 AI# 12821 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 1. 3. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to discuss
personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Electric Utility
Board, Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation Board, Lubbock Emergency
Communications District Board of Managers, Planning & Zoning Commission, and Zoning Board of
Adjustment.

Item Summary
Discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Electric
Utility Board, Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation Board, Lubbock Emergency
Communications District Board of Managers, Planning & Zoning Commission, and Zoning Board of
Adjustment.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 12823 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 4. 1. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
August 5, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session 1
August 6, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session 2
August 7, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session 3
August 13, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting 

Item Summary
August 5, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session 1
August 6, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session 2
August 7, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session 3
August 13, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting 

Fiscal Impact
None 

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

Attachments
8.5.2024 S Budget Work 1 
8.6.2024 S Budget Work 2 
8.7.2024 S Budget Work 3 
8.13.2024 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

August 5, 2024
2:00 P.M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 5th of August, 2024, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 2:00 p.m.

  
2:00 P.M. 
            

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer; Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Tim
Collins; Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member Gordon Harris; Council Member
Brayden Rose; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City
Secretary Courtney Paz; City Attorney Matt Wade 

 

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
1.1

               
1. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as appropriate.
 
1. 1. Presentation and discussion of the Proposed FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program, and

discuss all funds of the City, including but not limited to General Fund, Debt Service Fund, Internal
Services, Enterprise Funds, Special Revenue Funds, Component Units, Related Entities, Debt and
Debt Obligations, Capital Improvement Program, current and proposed American Rescue Plan Act
Funds and uses, and related and associated items and use of such funds; and provide direction to the
City Manager to make changes to said Budget.
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, recognized the finance team, including Cheryl Brock, interim chief
financial officer, and Melissa Trevino, assistant director of financial planning. Mr. Atkinson gave a
presentation on the Proposed FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program and answered
questions from City Council. Discussion included, but was not limited to: FY 2023-24
report, FY 2024-25 executive overview, investments in employees and workforce, FY 2024-25 all
funding and all expenses summary, excess reserves, property tax, sales tax, debt and investments, a
general fund overview for the City Attorney, City Council, City Manager, City Secretary, Facilities,
Finance, Human Resources, Internal Audit, Non-Departmental, Communications & Public
Engagement, Building Safety, Code Enforcement, Environmental Health & Vector, Planning,
Libraries, Museums, Parks & Recreation, Engineering, Solid Waste, Streets, Traffic, Animal Services,
Emergency Management, Lubbock Fire Rescue, Municipal Court, Lubbock Police, and Public
Health, and general fund capital projects including American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) project
tracking, administrative services, culture and recreation, public safety, streets, traffic, and solid waste. 
 
Cheryl Brock, interim chief financial officer; Colby VanGundy, director of parks and recreation; Joe
Moudy, director of emergency management; Robert Keinast, interim fire chief; Joseph Wallace,



Moudy, director of emergency management; Robert Keinast, interim fire chief; Joseph Wallace,
president of the Lubbock Professional Firefighters Association; Jorge Hernandez, municipal court
judge; Seth Herman, chief of police; and Katherine Wells, director of public health, gave comments
and answered questions from City Council. 

Discussion ensued among City Council regarding the presentation, requests for additional information
on various topics, and further direction to the City Manager, as it relates to the proposed budget. 

6:47 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor McBrayer adjourned the meeting.

The August 5, 2024 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 10th day
of September, 2024.

____________________________________
MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR

ATTEST:

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Special City Council Meeting 
August 5, 2024 Page 2 of 2



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

August 6, 2024
2:00 P.M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 6th of August, 2024, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 2:00 p.m.

  
2:00 P.M. 
            

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer; Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Tim
Collins; Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member Gordon Harris; Council Member
Brayden Rose; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City
Secretary Courtney Paz; City Attorney Matt Wade 

 

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
1; and 2.1.

               
1. Presentation of Special Recognition to Barbara "Mother" Hubbard

 
Paul Bean; Greg McCalister, chair of the 2025 Lubbock Music Festival; Gary Boren; and Kent
Meredith, executive director of United Supermarkets Arena, gave remarks.
 
Mayor Mark W. McBrayer presented a special recognition to Barbara "Mother" Hubbard, recognizing
her accomplishments and contributions in the music and entertainment industry. Barbara Hubbard
gave remarks. 
 
Mayor Mark W. McBrayer presented a special recognition to Holly Fields, previous director and
regional director of marketing and sales for the Buddy Holly Hall of Performing Arts and Sciences,
recognizing her service in the City of Lubbock towards art and culture. 

 
2. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as

appropriate.
 
2. 1. Presentation and discussion of the Proposed FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program, and

discuss all funds of the City, including but not limited to General Fund, Debt Service Fund, Internal
Services, Enterprise Funds, Special Revenue Funds, Component Units, Related Entities, Debt and
Debt Obligations, Capital Improvement Program, current and proposed American Rescue Plan Act
Funds and uses, and related and associated items and use of such funds; and provide direction to the
City Manager to make changes to said Budget.
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave a presentation on the Proposed FY 2024-25 Operating Budget



and Capital Program and answered questions from City Council. Discussion included, but was not
limited to: Enterprise Funds, including water and wastewater revenue and expense summary, rate
model, capital improvement program, and fee changes. 

Joe Jimenez, financial planning & analysis manager for LP&L, gave a presentation on the Proposed
FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program for Lubbock Power & Light and answered
questions from City Council. Discussion included, but was not limited to, the LP&L revenue and
expense summary and the rate model. Harvey Hall, chief financial officer for LP&L; and Joel Ivy,
director of electric utilities for LP&L, gave comments and answered questions from City Council. 

Mr. Atkinson continued presenting on Enterprise Funds, including Stormwater, Lake Alan Henry,
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport, Citibus, Lubbock Cemetery, Lubbock Memorial Civic
Center, and Meadowbrook Golf Course; Internal Service Funds, including fleet services, health
benefits, information technology, GIS & data services, telecommunications, radio shop, investment
pool, print shop, warehouse, risk management, and internal service capital improvement program; and
Special Revenue Funds, including tax increment financing zones, community development, economic
development, gateway streets, hotel occupancy tax, and non-major special revenue funds. Cheryl
Brock, interim chief financial officer; Kelly Campbell, executive director of aviation; Chris Mandrell,
general manager of Citibus; Karen Murfee, director of community development; and Matt Wade, city
attorney, gave comments and answered questions from City Council. 

John Osborne, president and chief executive officer for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance
(LEDA) and Market Lubbock, Inc., gave a presentation on the Proposed FY 2024-25 Operating
Budget and Capital Program for Visit Lubbock, Lubbock Sports Authority, Lubbock Economic
Development Alliance, and Market Lubbock, Inc., and answered questions from City Council. 

7:07 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor McBrayer adjourned the meeting.

The August 6, 2024 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 10th day
of September, 2024.

____________________________________
MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR

ATTEST:

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Special City Council Meeting 
August 6, 2024 Page 2 of 2



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

August 7, 2024
2:00 P.M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 7th of August, 2024, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 2:00 p.m.

2:00 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer; Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Tim
Collins; Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member Gordon Harris; Council Member
Brayden Rose; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City
Secretary Courtney Paz; City Attorney Matt Wade 

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
Citizen Comments 1; 2.1; and 3.1.

1. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before this meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter posted on
the Regular Agenda, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no later
than 2:00 p.m. on August 7, 2024. Citizen Comments provide an opportunity for citizens to
make comments and express a position on agenda items.

Sign ups:

Stephen Faulk; Robert Henry; Cindy Martin; Mary Crites; and Adam Hernandez,
communications chair of Lubbock Compact, appeared before City Council to speak on item
2.1 (a resolution receiving the report and recommendation from the 2024 Citizens
Advisory Committee).

2. Regular Agenda

2. 1. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2024-R0339 receiving the report and
recommendation from the 2024 Citizens Advisory Committee related to street needs within the
City of Lubbock.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, introduced Heather Keister, chair of the Citizens Advisory
Committee, gave comments, and answered questions from City Council. Heather Keister
presented the 2024 Citizens Advisory Committee report and recommendations from the
Committee and answered questions from City Council. Wood Franklin, division director of
public works, gave comments and answered questions from City Council. 



Motion by Council Member Tim Collins, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy
Martinez-Garcia, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0339.  

Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

Immediately following the Regular Session, the City Council will continue into Work Session
regarding items for presentation and discussion on such issues that may require in-depth
consideration by the City Council.

3. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as
appropriate.

3. 1. Presentation and discussion of the Proposed FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital
Program, and discuss all funds of the City, including but not limited to General Fund, Debt
Service Fund, Internal Services, Enterprise Funds, Special Revenue Funds, Component Units,
Related Entities, Debt and Debt Obligations, Capital Improvement Program, current and
proposed American Rescue Plan Act Funds and uses, and related and associated items and use of
such funds; and provide direction to the City Manager to make changes to said Budget.

Roger Karr, secretary/treasurer of Civic Lubbock, Inc., gave a presentation on the Proposed FY
2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program for Civic Lubbock, Inc. and answered questions
from City Council. Vicki Key, project coordinator for Civic Lubbock, Inc.; and Brooke Witcher,
assistant city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council. 

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave a presentation on the Proposed FY 2024-25 Operating
Budget and Capital Program and answered questions from City Council. Discussion included,
but was not limited to: Non-Major Special Revenue Funds, including a revenue and expense
summary. 

Wood Franklin, division director of public works, gave a presentation on the 2025 proposed
street maintenance program, including a report on the 2024 street maintenance program, and
answered questions from City Council. 

Discussion ensued among City Council regarding the presentation, requests for additional
information on various topics, and further direction to the City Manager, as it relates to the
proposed budget. 

4:25 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor McBrayer adjourned the meeting.

The August 7, 2024 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 10th day

Special City Council Meeting 
August 7, 2024 Page 2 of 3



The August 7, 2024 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 10th day
of September, 2024.

  
  ____________________________________

MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

 

Special City Council Meeting 
August 7, 2024 Page 3 of 3



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

August 13, 2024
1:00 P. M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 13th of August, 2024, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 1:00 p.m.

  
1:00 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer; Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Tim
Collins; Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member Gordon Harris; Council Member
Brayden Rose; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City
Secretary Courtney Paz; City Attorney Matt Wade 

 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Executive Session; 2.1; 3.1-3.2; Citizen Comments 4; 5.1; 7.4; 6.1-6.15.1; 6.25-6.32; 6.16-6.24;
7.5-7.6; 7.1-7.3; 7.11; 7.12; 7.8-7.9; 7.10; and 7.7. 
Item No.'s 7.5, 7.6, 7.10, and 7.12 were amended. 
Item No. 7.10, Section A, Items 4, 12, and 23 were postponed to the September 10, 2024 Regular
City Council Meeting. 
Item No. 7.10, Section A, Item 15 failed. 

               
1. Executive Session

 
The meeting recessed at 1:01 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 1:40 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 3:10 p.m.

 
1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with

legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and on
matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

 
1. 1. 1. Article 22.03 of the Lubbock City Code and Chapter 13 of the Texas Water Code
 
1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072, to

deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.
 
1. 2. 1. Commercial Lease Amendment for property located at 5034 Frankford Avenue, Lubbock,

Texas, 79424
 



 
 
Immediately following Executive Session, the City Council reconvenes in Work Session in City
Council Chambers.
 
City Council reconvened at 1:40 p.m.
 
2. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as

appropriate.
 
2. 1. Presentation and discussion of the Proposed FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program,

and discuss all funds of the City, including but not limited to General Fund, Debt Service Fund,
Internal Services, Enterprise Funds, Special Revenue Funds, Component Units, Related Entities,
Debt and Debt Obligations, Capital Improvement Program, current and proposed American
Rescue Plan Act Funds and uses, and related and associated items and use of such funds; and
take action to direct the City Manager to make changes to said Budget.
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave a presentation on the Proposed FY 2024-25 Operating
Budget and Capital Program and answered questions from City Council. Discussion included,
but was not limited to: water/wastewater debt service profile, general fund debt service profile,
solid waste debt profile, Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson's budget proposal for additional
positions in the Fire Marshal's Office, Council Member David Glasheen's budget proposal for
additional positions in the Lubbock Police Department, and Mayor Mark W. McBrayer's budget
proposal for additional positions in Lubbock Fire Rescue and Lubbock Police Department, and a
tier-structured raise system. 
 
Discussion ensued among City Council regarding the proposed budget changes and the private
sewer lateral capital improvement program. 
 
There was a consensus among City Council to move forward with a standardized charge-back
model for private sewer lateral repairs and to create a low income assistance program for private
sewer lateral repairs. 

 
3:08 p.m. - The City Council continues in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 
3. Ceremonial Items
 
3. 1. Invocation

 
Reverend Tim Lyles, Second Baptist Church, led the invocation. 

 
3. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

 
Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem
Christy Martinez-Garcia.

 
Call to Order

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 2 of 21



Call to Order
 
The meeting was called to order at 3:10 p.m.
 
4. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 2:00 p.m. on August 13, 2024. Citizen Comments provide an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. 
 
Sign ups:

David Puga appeared before City Council to speak on items 7.5 (an ordinance calling a
Bond Election); 7.11 (a resolution for a Lease Agreement for the Godeke Branch Library);
and 7.12 (a resolution to fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday
Art Trail). 
Theresa Drewell appeared before City Council to speak on items 7.4 (a report of the 2022
Street Bond progress) and 7.5 (an ordinance calling a Bond Election).
Adam Hernandez, communications chair for Lubbock Compact, appeared before City
Council to speak in opposition of item 7.5 (an ordinance calling a Bond Election) (also
spoke in opposition of item 7.6 (a resolution declaring the intent of the City Council to
create a contract with the voters for the Bond Election)).
Cindy Martin appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.6 (a resolution declaring the
intent of the City Council to create a contract with the voters for the Bond Election).
Luke Steinmetz, with Lubbock Citizens for Change, appeared before City Council to speak
on item 7.6 (a resolution declaring the intent of the City Council to create a contract with
the voters for the Bond Election). 
Stephen Faulk appeared before City Council to speak in opposition of item 7.6 (a resolution
declaring the intent of the City Council to create a contract with the voters for the Bond
Election). 
Mary Crites appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.6 (a resolution declaring the
intent of the City Council to create a contract with the voters for the Bond Election) (also
spoke in favor of items 7.11 (a resolution for a Lease Agreement for the Godeke Branch
Library) and 7.12 (a resolution to fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of the
First Friday Art Trail)).  
Deanne Clark appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.7 (a resolution adopting a
proposed maximum tax rate). 
Betsy Bloechl appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.7 (a resolution adopting a
proposed maximum tax rate) (also spoke in opposition of items 7.5 (an ordinance calling a
Bond Election) and 7.6 (a resolution declaring the intent of the City Council to create a
contract with the voters for the Bond Election)). 
Gayle Modrall appeared before City Council to speak in favor of item 7.11 (a resolution for
a Lease Agreement for the Godeke Branch Library) (also spoke in favor of item 7.12 (a
resolution to fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art
Trail)). 
Eddie Kirkpatrick, board member of Lubbock Libraries Board, appeared before City
Council to speak in favor of item 7.11 (a resolution for a Lease Agreement for the Godeke
Branch Library).  
Bonnie Aycock, volunteer with the Friends of the Library, appeared before City Council to
speak in favor of item 7.11 (a resolution for a Lease Agreement for the Godeke Branch

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 3 of 21



speak in favor of item 7.11 (a resolution for a Lease Agreement for the Godeke Branch
Library). 
Stephanie Smith appeared before City Council to speak in favor of item 7.11 (a resolution
for a Lease Agreement for the Godeke Branch Library). 
Scott Faris appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund the
security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Ginger Hurley appeared before City Council to speak on items 7.6 (a resolution declaring
the intent of the City Council to create a contract with the voters for the Bond
Election); 7.11 (a resolution for a Lease Agreement for the Godeke Branch Library); and
7.12 (a resolution to fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art
Trail).
Chad Davis, president of the Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the Arts (LHUCA)
Board of Directors, appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to
fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Heather Warren-Crow appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to
fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Ana Hernandez appeared before City Council to speak in favor of items 7.11 (a resolution
for a Lease Agreement for the Godeke Branch Library) and 7.12 (a resolution to fund the
security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Tiffany Frias appeared before City Council to speak on items 7.11 (a resolution for a Lease
Agreement for the Godeke Branch Library) and 7.12 (a resolution to fund the security,
trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Derek Williams, student and employee at Texas Tech University, appeared before City
Council to speak in favor of item 7.12 (a resolution to fund the security, trolley, and general
marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Joshua Shankles appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund
the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Gay Herrin appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund the
security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Charles Adams appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund
the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Kim Gonzalez, state democratic executive committee woman for congressional district
19, appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund the security,
trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail). 
Lindsey Maestri, executive director of the Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the Arts
(LHUCA), appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund the
security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail). 
Andy Wilkinson appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund
the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Jim Douglass, president of the Civic Lubbock Inc. Board of Directors, appeared before
City Council to speak on items 2.1 (presentation and discussion of the Proposed FY
2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program) and 7.12 (a resolution to fund the security,
trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Scott Cherry appeared before City Council to speak in opposition of item 7.12 (a resolution
to fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Mikel Ward appeared before City Council to speak on items 2.1 (presentation and
discussion of the Proposed FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program); 7.6 (a
resolution declaring the intent of the City Council to create a contract with the voters for
the Bond Election); and 7.7 (a resolution adopting a proposed maximum tax rate).

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 4 of 21



Lee Ware appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund the
security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Joe Arredondo appeared before City Council to speak in favor of item 7.12 (a resolution to
fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Patty Johnson, past board member of the Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the Arts
(LHUCA) Board of Directors, appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a
resolution to fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Sharae Flores Villanueva, events and marketing coordinator for the Louise Hopkins
Underwood Center for the Arts (LHUCA), appeared before City Council to speak on item
7.12 (a resolution to fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art
Trail).
Larry Simmons appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund
the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
David Henry, board member of the Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the Arts
(LHUCA) Board of Directors, appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a
resolution to fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Robert Henry appeared before City Council to speak on items 7.6 (a resolution declaring
the intent of the City Council to create a contract with the voters for the Bond Election) and
7.12 (a resolution to fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art
Trail) (also spoke in favor of item 7.11 (a resolution for a Lease Agreement for the Godeke
Branch Library) and spoke on item 7.5 (an ordinance calling a Bond Election)). 
Susan Gillette appeared before City Council to speak in favor of item 7.12 (a resolution to
fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Shannon Cannings, artist, faculty member at Texas Tech University, and board member of
the Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the Arts (LHUCA) Board of Directors,
appeared before City Council to speak in favor of item 7.12 (a resolution to fund the
security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Charlotte Dunham appeared before City Council to speak in favor of item 7.12 (a resolution
to fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Antonio Lopez appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund the
security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Ben Davidson, board member of Lubbock Arts Alliance, appeared before City Council to
speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of the
First Friday Art Trail).
Cecilia George appeared before City Council to speak in favor of item 7.12 (a resolution to
fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Jim Clark appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund the
security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail) (also spoke on item
7.11 (a resolution for a Lease Agreement for the Godeke Branch Library)). 
Chad Plunket, director of the Charles Adam Studio Project, appeared before City Council
to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of
the First Friday Art Trail).
Russell Joe Thompson, local musician, appeared before City Council to speak on item
7.12 (a resolution to fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art
Trail).
Andy Seger appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund the
security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Tricia Earl appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund the
security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 5 of 21



Jordan Rhymer appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund
the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail) (also spoke in
favor of item 7.11 (a resolution for a Lease Agreement for the Godeke Branch Library); and
spoke on items 7.5 (an ordinance calling a Bond Election); and 7.6 (a resolution declaring
the intent of the City Council to create a contract with the voters for the Bond Election)).
Reed Hooks, board member of the Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the Arts
(LHUCA) Board of Directors, appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a
resolution to fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Mary Hogan, programs manager at the Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the Arts
(LHUCA) and coordinator for First Friday Art Trail, appeared before City Council to speak
on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First
Friday Art Trail).
Taylor Ernst, curator at the Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the Arts
(LHUCA), appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund the
security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Melodia Gutierrez, Texas State director for the Human Rights Campaign, appeared before
City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund the security, trolley, and general
marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).
Benjamin Terry appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.12 (a resolution to fund
the security, trolley, and general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail).

 
5. Minutes
 
5. 1. July 2, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting

July 9, 2024 Special City Council Meeting
July 18, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Work Session 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve the July 2, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting minutes; the
July 9, 2024 Special City Council Meeting minutes; and the July 18, 2024 Special City
Council Meeting - Work Session minutes.  

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
6. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without

separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.
 
Matt Wade, city attorney; and Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered
questions from City Council. 

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.

Jennifer Wilson, to approve items 6.1-6.15.1 and 6.25-6.32. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
6. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0103,   

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 6 of 21



6. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0103,
Amendment 43, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Cable
Services Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

  

 
6. 1. 1. Resolution - Communications & Public Engagement: Resolution No. 2024-R0340

authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order 364545, with Nelco Media, for Phase II
Upgrade of audio and video infrastructure and equipment in City Council Chambers,
Communications Studio, and Conference Rooms. 

  

 
6. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0106,

Amendment 45, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Information Technology Capital Project Fund and the Health Benefits Operating Fund;
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

  

 
6. 3. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2024-O0107 abandoning and closing

portions of an underground streetlight cable easement located in Lot 334, Lincoln 16 Addition,
City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, south of Princeton Street and east of North Clinton
Avenue. 

  

 
6. 4. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0341 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for

and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) street, public use, and right-of-way deed, and all
related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 10, Block JS,
Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 20), on the east side of Upland Avenue, north of 19th Street and
south of 18th Street, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street 2022 Road
Bond Project. 

  

 
6. 5. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0342 authorizing the mayor to execute a

Street Use License and/or City Public Grounds Monitor Well Permit, and all related
documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the Air Force Civil Engineer Center, and
located in the right-of-way of 25th Street, west of Inler Avenue. 

  

 
6. 6. Ordinance 1st Reading - Engineering: Ordinance No. 2024-O0108 amending Articles 39.04

and 39.07 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, by adding Articles 39.07.046, and
amending Sections 39.04.012, 39.04.013, and 39.07.020, to allow for certain building permits to
be approved while required infrastructure is constructed in parallel.  

  

 
6. 7. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2024-R0343 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Professional Services Agreement, Contract 18233, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for final design,
bid, and construction phase services for the 66th Street Drainage Channel Improvements Project.

  

 
6. 8. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2024-R0344 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Public Works Contract 18190, with Lone Star Dirt & Paving, LTD, for the 66th Street Channel
Drainage Improvements Project, along 66th Street to Playa. Lake 039. 

  

 
6. 9. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2024-R0345 authorizing the Mayor to execute   

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 7 of 21



6. 9. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2024-R0345 authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement, Contract 17087, with HDR Engineering,
Inc., for engineering services for the reconstruction of Milwaukee Avenue from 4th Street to the
City of Lubbock north city limits, 2022 Road Bond Project. 

  

 
6. 10. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2024-R0346 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement, Contract 17074, with Freese and
Nichols, Inc., for the design of the Upland Avenue from 34th Street to 50th Street 2022 Road
Bond Project, and street bond management.   

  

 
6. 11. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2024-R0347 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Public Works Contract 18109, with Winston Electric Inc., dba Acme Electric Company, Texas,
for the West Lubbock Water System Expansion early procurement. 

  

 
6. 12. Resolution - Public Works Solid Waste: Resolution No. 2024-R0348 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 18166, with MJE, LLC, for the West Texas Region Disposal Facility Cell 6
Construction. 

  

 
6. 13. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0349 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Amendment No. 4 to the Health and Human Services Commission Contract No.
HHS000779500003, and all related documents, under the Substance Use Prevention, Treatment
and Recovery Services Block Grant, by and between the City of Lubbock, and the State of
Texas' Health and Human Services Commission, to provide Treatment for Youth (TRY)
funding. 

  

 
6. 14. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2024-R0350 authorizing the Mayor to accept a Federal

Aviation Grant Agreement for the Mechanical Equipment Replacement Project at Lubbock
Preston Smith International Airport. 

  

 
6. 14. 1. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2024-R0351 authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract

17935, with Anthony Mechanical, Inc., for the Mechanical Equipment Replacement Project at
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport. 

  

 
6. 14. 2. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2024-R0352 authorizing the Mayor to execute Change

Order No. 1 to Contract 17935, with Anthony Mechanical, Inc., for the Mechanical Equipment
Replacement Project at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport. 

  

 
6. 14. 3. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2024-R0353 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No.16 to Contract 15200, with RS&H, Inc., for Construction Administration and
Resident Project Representative Services, for the Mechanical Equipment Replacement Project at
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport. 

  

 
6. 15. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2024-R0354 authorizing the Mayor to accept a Federal

Aviation Grant Agreement for the Taxiway Lima Extension, Taxilane Addition, and Apron
Expansion Project at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport. 

  

 
6. 15. 1. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2024-R0355 authorizing the Mayor to   

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 8 of 21



6. 15. 1. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2024-R0355 authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 8 to Contract 15310, with Parkhill, for professional architectural and
engineering services for the Taxiway Lima Extension, Taxilane Addition, and Apron Expansion
Project at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.  

  

 
6. 16. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0361 authorizing a Commercial

Revitalization Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to
VCC Management, LLC, dba Vogue College, located at 1712 34th Street, pursuant to Article
IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development
Corporation. 
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development; and John Osborne, president and chief
executive officer for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) and Market Lubbock
Inc., gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to close discussion and call the question. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
  Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0361. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member David Glasheen 

 
6. 17. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0362 authorizing a Downtown

Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Mixed Nutz
Leasing, LLC, located at 1937 Texas Avenue, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended
and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development; and John Osborne, president and chief
executive officer for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) and Market Lubbock
Inc., gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to close discussion and call the question. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
  Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0362. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member David Glasheen 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 9 of 21



6. 18. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0363 authorizing a Downtown
Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Landlines, LLC,
located at 1106 Main Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated
Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development; and John Osborne, president and chief
executive officer for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) and Market Lubbock
Inc., gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to close discussion and call the question. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
  Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0363. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member David Glasheen 

 
6. 19. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0364 authorizing a Downtown

Grant Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Landlines,
LLC, located at 1106 Main Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and
Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development; and John Osborne, president and chief
executive officer for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) and Market Lubbock
Inc., gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to close discussion and call the question. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
  Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0364. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member David Glasheen 

 
6. 20. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0365 authorizing a Commercial

Revitalization Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to
The Rolling Cones, located at 3006 34th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development; and John Osborne, president and chief

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 10 of 21



executive officer for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) and Market Lubbock
Inc., gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to close discussion and call the question. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
  Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0365. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member David Glasheen 

 
6. 21. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0366 authorizing a Commercial

Revitalization Grant Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided
to The Rolling Cones, located at 3006 34th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development; and John Osborne, president and chief
executive officer for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) and Market Lubbock
Inc., gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to close discussion and call the question. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
  Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0366. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member David Glasheen 

 
6. 22. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0367 authorizing a Commercial

Revitalization Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to
Elida Morin, located at 1819 E. Broadway, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended
and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development; and John Osborne, president and chief
executive officer for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) and Market Lubbock
Inc., gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to close discussion and call the question. 
 

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 11 of 21



  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
  Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0367. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member David Glasheen 

 
6. 23. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0368 authorizing a Commercial

Revitalization Grant Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided
to Elida Morin, located at 1819 E. Broadway, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended
and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development; and John Osborne, president and chief
executive officer for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) and Market Lubbock
Inc., gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to close discussion and call the question. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
  Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0368. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member David Glasheen 

 
6. 24. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0369 authorizing a Commercial

Revitalization Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to
Mags and Blades Ventures, LLC, located at 2223 34th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5,
of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation.
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development; and John Osborne, president and chief
executive officer for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) and Market Lubbock
Inc., gave comments and answered questions from City Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to close discussion and call the question. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
  Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0369. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 12 of 21



  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member David Glasheen 

 
6. 25. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Resolution No. 2024-R0356 authorizing Purchase Order

10027645, with Advantage Courts Co., for the resurfacing and maintenance of park courts and
court amenities at Wheelock, Rawlings, Underwood, Charles Guy, Hoel, Whisperwood, and
Higinbotham Parks. 

  

 
6. 26. Resolution - Information Technology: Resolution No. 2024-R0357 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 33001881, with Dell Marketing LP, for the purchase of computers for
the scheduled computer replacement program. 

  

 
6. 27. Resolution - Information Technology: Resolution No. 2024-R0358 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 33001880, with Dell Marketing LP, for the purchase of two Dell
PowerStore 1200T data storage appliances, to replace existing data storage units, and to provide
for additional data storage capacity. 

  

 
6. 28. Resolution - Police: Resolution No. 2024-R0359 authorizing the Chief of Police for the City of

Lubbock, to execute a Memorandum of Understanding, and all related documents, by and
between the United States Secret Service and the City of Lubbock, on behalf of the Lubbock
Police Department, regarding reimbursement of certain overtime costs and other expenses
pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 9705. 

  

 
6. 29. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Resolution No. 2024-R0360 authorizing the Mayor to

execute the Eighth Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement dated May 29, 2018, by
and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light, and TMG
Utility Advisory Services, Inc., expanding the scope of services to include work required to
integrate with Smart Meter Texas. 

  

 
6. 30. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Ordinance No. 2024-O0079, for Zone Case

3224-A, a request of Lone Star Suds, LLC for Centric Capital Partners, Inc., for a zone change
from Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) and Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) to
Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 2401 19th Street, located south of 19th Street and
west of Avenue X, Ellwood Place Addition, Block 1, the east 140 feet of Lot 1. 

  

 
6. 31. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 3): Ordinance No. 2024-O0104, Zone Case

763-D, a request of Woda Cooper Companies, Inc. for Buslon, Inc., for a zone change from Low
Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and Medium Density Residential District (MDR) to
Medium Density Residential District (MDR), at 5311 Bangor Avenue, located north of 54th
Street and east of Bangor Avenue, on approximately 5.9 acres of unplatted land out of Block
E-2, Section 28. 

  

 
6. 32. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Ordinance No. 2024-O0105, for Zone Case   

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 13 of 21



6. 32. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Ordinance No. 2024-O0105, for Zone Case
2538-MM, a request of K-9 Kennels, for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family
District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 1607 and 1715 Alcove Avenue, located
north of 19th Street and east of Alcove Avenue, on approximately 6.1 acres of unplatted land out
of Block D-6, Section 1. 

  

 
7. Regular Agenda
 
7. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Quincy Park Public

Improvement District (PID) Advisory Board.
  

 
  Motion by Council Member Tim Collins, seconded by Council Member Brayden Rose, to

appoint Rae Lynn Hambry and Dana Hinds to the Quincy Park Public Improvement
District Advisory Board. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 2. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Upland Crossing Public

Improvement District (PID) Advisory Board.
  

 
  Motion by Council Member Tim Collins, seconded by Council Member Brayden Rose, to

appoint Austin Lear, Darwin (Trey) Benton, and Jordan Rodgers to the Upland Crossing
Public Improvement District Advisory Board. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 3. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Valencia Public

Improvement District (PID) Advisory Board.
  

 
  Motion by Council Member Tim Collins, seconded by Council Member Brayden Rose, to

appoint Corey Lusk, Jena Massie, and Jon Jackson to the Valencia Public Improvement
District Advisory Board. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 4. Report: City of Lubbock 2022 Street Bond Progress Report

 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, introduced the item, gave comments, and answered questions
from City Council. Mike Keenum, division director of engineering/city engineer, gave a
presentation on the 2022 Street Bond Progress Report and answered questions from City
Council. 

  

 
7. 5. Ordinance Single Reading - City Secretary: Ordinance No. 2024-O0109 Calling a Bond

Election to be held within the City of Lubbock, Texas; making provisions for the conduct and
the giving of notice of the election; and containing other provisions related thereto.
 
This item was amended.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 14 of 21



 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, introduced the item, gave comments, and answered questions
from City Council. Matt Boles, managing director with RBC Capital Markets, gave a
presentation and answered questions from City Council. Wood Franklin, division director of
public works; Heather Keister, chair of the Citizens Advisory Committee for street roadway
construction and repair; and Matt Wade, city attorney, gave comments and answered questions
from City Council. 
 
Discussion ensued among City Council regarding the projects to be included in the Bond
Election. 

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.

Jennifer Wilson, to approve this item as presented. The motion was not considered. 
 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0109, with the following amendment: 
 

I move that the City Council adopt an ordinance calling a bond election to be held
within the City of Lubbock, Texas; making provisions for the conduct and the giving
of notice of the election; and containing other provisions related thereto, which is
before the Council, with the revised version of the list of projects to be funded inserted
in Exhibit C to replace the version of the list currently in the agenda item backup in
the amount of $103,400,000. For the avoidance of doubt, the revised version of the
list of projects to be funded removes line items 6 (Quaker Avenue), 9 (Alcove
Avenue) and 10 (South Overton). 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 6. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2024-R0370 declaring the intent of the City

Council and its commitment to create a contract with the voters stipulating that the proceeds
from the bonds shall be used for the projects identified in the ordinance calling the November 5,
2024 Bond Election and directing the City Manager to implement the November 5, 2024 Bond
Program, in accordance with specific projects and programs set forth in the resolution and the
propositions approved by the voters.
 
This item was amended.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.

Jennifer Wilson, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0370, with the following amendment: 
 

I move that the City Council adopt a resolution declaring its intent and commitment to
create a contract with the voters; stipulating the proceeds from the bond shall be used
for the projects identified in the ordinance calling the Novemer 5, 2024 bond election,
with the revised version of the list of projects to be funded inserted in Exhibit A to
replace the version of the list currently in the agenda item backup. For the avoidance
of doubt, the revised version of the list of projects to be funded removes line items 6
(Quaker Avenue), 9 (Alcove Avenue) and 10 (South Overton).

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 15 of 21



  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 7. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2024-R0375 adopting a proposed maximum tax rate that

will result in additional revenues as outlined in Section 26.05 (d) of the Tax Code of the State of
Texas, and setting the date for the public hearing to discuss the proposed tax rate.
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Matt Wade, city attorney, gave comments and answered
questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member David Glasheen, seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to set the proposed maximum property tax rate at the no-new-revenue tax rate and
make the appropriate adjustments in the resolution on the math for the evaluation of the
general fund M&O.  

  Vote: 3 - 4 Failed

  NAY:  Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia 
  Council Member Tim Collins 
  Council Member Brayden Rose 
  Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson 

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Tim

Collins, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0375, to set the maximum tax rate at the
proposed rate of 0.477402. 

  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member David Glasheen 

 
7. 8. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2024-R0373 suspending the effective date for ninety

days, in connection with the rate increase filing made on about July 16, 2024, by West Texas
Gas, Inc.; finding that the meeting complies with the open meetings act; making other findings
and provisions related to the subject; and declaring an effective date.
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Tim

Collins, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0373. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 9. Resolution - Planning: Resolution No. 2024-R0374 prescribing the type of notice to be given

for a joint meeting of the City Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission, for a public
hearing to consider amendments to the Unified Development Code (UDC), as provided under
Section 211.007(d) of the Texas Local Government Code, and setting the date for the public
hearing.
 

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 16 of 21



 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave comments and
answered questions from City Council.

 
  Motion by Council Member Tim Collins, seconded by Council Member Dr. Jennifer

Wilson, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0374. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 10. Ordinance 1st Reading - Planning: 

A. Ordinance No. 2024-O0110, the City of Lubbock Planning and Zoning Commission's final
report of August 1, 2024, to the Lubbock City Council on proposed amendments to the Unified
Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054) recommended for adoption, limited to the
following: 

Section 39.02.018.c.1.A (related to Residential Uses in the SF-2, MDR, and HDR Districts)1.
Table 39.02.004.c-2 (related to SF-2 Lot Density and Dimensions)2.
Table 39.02.004.d-2 (related to MDR Lot Density and Dimensions)3.
Table 39.03.023-2 (related to Base Public and Nonresidential Districts Sign Standards)4.
Section 39.07.041 and the Final Plat Submission Checklist (related to Final Plat Document
Requirements and Applicant Responsibilities)

5.

Section 39.07.040 and the Preliminary Plat Submission Checklist (related to Preliminary
Plat Document Requirements and Applicant Responsibilities)

6.

Section 39.10.002 (related to Definitions)7.
Section 39.02.016, Table 39.02.004.c-1, Table 39.02.004.d-1, Table 39.02.004.d-3, Table
39.02.004.e-1, Table 39.02.004.e-3, Table 39.03.009-1 (related to the Land Use Matrix)

8.

Section 39.07.041.j (related to Final Plat Recording)9.
Section 39.07.041.k.3 (related to Final Plat and Preliminary Plat Renewal and Expiration)10.
Section 39.07.040.b (related to Preliminary Plat Purpose)11.
Section 39.02.004.a.7, Section 39.02.004.b.7, Section 39.02.004.c.7, Section 39.02.004.d.7,
Section 39.02.004.e.7 (related to Signs in Residential Districts for Non-Residential Uses)

12.

Table 39.02.004.e-2 (related to HDR Lot Density and Dimensions)13.
Table 39.02.016-1 (related to Outdoor Storage in the Industrial Park District (IP))14.
Section 39.06.002 (related to the Planning and Zoning Commission)15.
Section 39.02.020.d.7.C (related to Nonresidential and Mixed-Use Accessory Uses and
Structures)

16.

Section 39.02.020.c (related to Residential Accessory Uses and Structures)17.
Section 39.07.044.b (related to Waiver of Improvements)18.
Section 39.07.045.b (related to Delay of Improvements)19.
Section 39.02.018.e (related to Limited Use Standards)20.
Table 39.03.002-1 (related to Building and Site Design Applicability)21.
Table 39.02.004.c-3 (related to SF-2 Off-Street Parking and Loading Schedule)22.
Section 39.03.023.b.8 (related to Monument Signs)23.
Table 39.04.005-3 (related to Minimum Driveway Throat Length)24.
Section 39.04.021.b (related to Recording of Plat and Dedication of Improvements)25.
Table 39.03.016-1 (related to District Bufferyard Standards)26.
Section 39.02.020.b.6 (related to Nonresidential and Mixed-Use Fences)27.
Section 39.04.012 (related to Public Water Systems)28.
Section 39.04.013 (related to Public Wastewater Systems)29.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 17 of 21



Section 39.02.023.b.3 (related to Specific Allowances for Height Requirements)30.
Table 39.02.022-1 (related to setback measurements)31.
Section 39.02.023.d.3 (related to Contextual Rear Setbacks)32.
Section 39.02.004.a.4.A, Section 39.02.004.b.4.A, Section 39.02.004.c.4.A, Section
39.02.004.d.4.A, and Section 39.02.004.e.4.A (related to Lot Density and Dimensions)

33.

Table 39.02.006.b-2 (related to Office (OF) Lot Intensity and Dimensions)34.
Section 39.07.004.f (related to Plat Filing)35.

B. Consider and take action on the City of Lubbock Planning and Zoning Commission's final
report of August 1, 2024, to the Lubbock City Council on proposed amendments to the Unified
Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054) recommended for denial, limited to the
following: 

Section 39.02.020.c.6.A.ii (related to Residential Accessory Uses and Structures - Outdoor
Swimming Pool, Spa, and Hot Tub)

1.

 
This item was amended.
 
Section A. Items 4, 12, and 23 were postponed. 
 
Section A. Item 15 failed.
 
Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Matt Wade, city attorney, gave comments and
answered questions from City Council.

 
  Motion by Council Member Tim Collins, seconded by Council Member David Glasheen,

to postpone the following proposed amendments to the Unified Development Code to the
September 10, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting, which would be following the next
regularly scheduled Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. 
 
Section A.

Item 4. Table 39.03.023-2 (related to Base Public and Nonresidential Districts Sign
Standards)
Item 12. Section 39.02.004.a.7, Section 39.02.004.b.7, Section 39.02.004.c.7, Section
39.02.004.d.7, Section 39.02.004.e.7 (related to Signs in Residential Districts for
Non-Residential Uses)
Item 23. Section 39.03.023.b.8 (related to Monument Signs)

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
  Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Council Member David Glasheen,

to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0110, Section A., with the following amendment:  
 

I move to approve Part A of Item 7.10 as recommended by the Planning and Zoning
Commission save and except Item 15 relating to the proposed amendment to Section
39.06.002, and excluding those items that were postponed. 

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 18 of 21



  Vote: 4 - 3 Motion carried

  NAY:  Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia 
  Council Member Tim Collins 
  Council Member Gordon Harris 

 
  Motion by Council Member Tim Collins, seconded by Council Member Brayden Rose, to

approve Section B., thus denying the proposed amendment to the Unified Development
Code Section 39.02.020.c.6.A.ii (related to Residential Accessory Uses and Structures -
Outdoor Swimming Pool, Spa, and Hot Tub). 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 11. Resolution - Libraries: Resolution No. 2024-R0371 authorizing the Mayor to execute a Lease

Agreement with Luskey Brothers Investments, for the Godeke Branch Library located at 5034
Frankford Avenue.
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to aprove Resolution No. 2024-R0371. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer 

 
7. 12. Resolution - City Council: Resolution No. 2024-R0372 to fund the security, trolley, and

general marketing of the First Friday Art Trail for the Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for
the Arts, as part of the Cultural Arts Grant Program as recommended by Civic Lubbock, Inc. 
 
This item was amended.
 
Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia introduced the item and gave comments. Jarrett
Atkinson, city manager; and Matt Wade, city attorney, gave comments and answered questions
from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Gordon Harris, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0372, with the following amendment: 
 

Amendment No. 1: to approve a substitute resolution with no restrictions regarding
the funding to the Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the Arts for the First Friday
Art Trail.

 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, to close discussion and call
the question on Amendment No. 1. Without objection, or a second to the
motion, discussion ended and the vote was taken on Amendment No. 1.

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 19 of 21



  Vote: 3 - 4 Failed

  NAY:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer 
  Council Member David Glasheen 
  Council Member Brayden Rose 
  Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson 

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to approve this item as presented. The motion was not considered. 
 
  Motion by Council Member Tim Collins, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0372, with the following amendment: 
 

Amendment No. 2: to approve a substitute resolution to solely fund security
and trolley services in the total amount of $20,000, with no other conditions, to the
Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the Arts for the First Friday Art Trail.

 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, to close discussion and call
the question on Amendment No. 2. Without having a second and with Mayor
Mark W. McBrayer objecting to calling the question, discussion ended and the
vote was taken on Amendment No. 2. 

 
  Vote: 3 - 4 Failed

  NAY:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer 
  Council Member David Glasheen 
  Council Member Brayden Rose 
  Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson 

 
  Motion by Mayor Mark W. McBrayer, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0372, with the following amendment: 
 

Amendment No. 3: to approve a substitute resolution to solely fund security services
in the total amount of $5,000, with no other conditions, to the Louise Hopkins
Underwood Center for the Arts for the First Friday Art Trail.

  Vote: 4 - 3 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member David Glasheen 
  Council Member Brayden Rose 
  Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson 

 

9:59 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 20 of 21



9:59 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor McBrayer adjourned the meeting.

 
The August 13, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the
10th  day of September, 2024.

  
  ____________________________________

MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2024 Page 21 of 21



 AI# 12783 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2024-O0111, Amendment 44, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Community Development Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On August 27, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

I. Accept and appropriate $93,379 from the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs
(TDHCA) for the Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program (CEAP) Grant. 
 

Grantee: City of Lubbock, Community Development Department
Funding Source: 2024 Supplemental CEAP from TDHCA (Contract 58940004161)
Use of Funds: Pass through grant from TDHCA to provide energy assistance by paying for energy
bills only and repair or replacement of existing heating and cooling units
Terms: January 1, 2024 – December 31, 2024, with the option to extend time up to 6 months as
determined by TDHCA

CEAP involves integration of all Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP)-funded
programs, thereby enhancing the efficiency and effectiveness of services provided to clients and
eliminating duplication of services.

Fiscal Impact
The current FY 2023-24 Budget for the CEAP grant is $2,000,000. With the additional amount of
$93,379, this will increase the appropriation amount to $2,093,379.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 44 







 AI# 12820 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1. 1. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Community Development Funding Contract 18278, and all related documents, with the Texas
Department of Housing and Community Affairs, for the Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program to
assist low income households in meeting their immediate energy needs.

Item Summary
• Grantee: City of Lubbock, Community Development Department
• Funding Source: 2024 Supplemental Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program (CEAP) from
Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA) Contract 58940004161
• Use of Funds: Pass through grant from TDHCA to provide energy assistance by paying for energy
bills only and repair or replacement of existing heating and cooling units for citizens of Lubbock
County
• Supplemental Allocation: $93,379
• Terms: January 1, 2024 – December 31, 2024, with the option to extend time up to six (6) months
as determined by TDHCA

This is an electronic signature contract.

The purpose of this CEAP Grant is to encourage consumers to control energy costs for years to come
through education. CEAP involves integration of all Low Income Home Energy Assistance Programs
(LIHEAP), thereby enhancing the efficiency and effectiveness of services provided to clients and
eliminating duplication of services.

Fiscal Impact
This contract does not impact the General Fund. The maximum allocation of this contract is $93,379.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Director of Community Development

Attachments
CEAP Resolution 





 AI# 12769 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 2. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Commercial Real
Estate Sales Contract, by and between the City of Lubbock and Lone Star Suds - 19th Ltd., for the sale
of real property located within Lots 1 and 2, Block 1, Elwood Place Addition to the City of Lubbock,
Lubbock County.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock owns a parcel located on the southwest side of 19th Street and Avenue X. This
parcel is 0.375 acres and is adjacent to 2401 19th Street, which is commonly known as the former
Wendy's Restaurant.  Lone Star Suds - 19th, Ltd. is in the process of acquiring the lot at 2401 19th Street
and has approached the City about purchasing the City lot adjacent to this lot to be used as part of the
development.  

Section 272.001 of the Local Government Code (LGC) allows narrow strips of land that cannot be used
independently to be sold to an abutting property owner for fair market value.  Accordingly, on July 8,
2024, the City of Lubbock retained CBRE Group, Inc. to conduct an appraisal of the property to help
determine the fair market value.  Based on the property appraisal, the value of the land is stated below.
  

Buyer Term Offer Estimated Net Proceeds
Lone Star Suds - 19th LTD. Cash, seller pays

normal closing costs $70,081.44 NA

This parcel of land was purchased by the City of Lubbock in 1972 for the purpose of the widening of
Avenue X. Staff has determined that there is no need to widen Avenue X, and accordingly, is
recommending sale of the property to Lone Star Suds - 19th, Ltd., in the amount of $70,081.44.

Fiscal Impact
Revenue of $70,081.44 to the General Fund  

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Sales Contract 
Map/Metes & Bounds 







































PO
IN

T 
O

F 
B

EG
IN

N
IN

G

16
,3

36
 S

qu
ar

e 
Fe

et
0.

37
50

 A
cr

e 
Po

rti
on

 o
f A

ve
nu

e 
"X

"

TEXAS LICENSED SURVEYING FIRM 100676-00

AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
LAND SURVEYORS
CIVIL ENGINEERS PHONE: 806 / 763-5642

1601 AVENUE N
LUBBOCK, TEXAS 79401

FAX: 806 / 763-3891TEXAS REGISTERED ENGINEERING FIRM F-760

Copyright 2024, Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for the sole use of Title Co.
for GF # and any other identifiers as indicated in the certificate shown hereon.

AVENUE "X"
PROPOSED STREET CLOSURE

LOCATED BETWEEN 19th STREET & 20th
STREET, ADJACENT TO LOT 1, BLOCK 1

ELLWOOD PLACE ADDITION
TO THE CITY OF LUBBOCK
LUBBOCK COUNTY TEXAS

Sheet 1 of 2

N
Scale : 1" = 50'



METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 0.3750 acre tract being that portion of Avenue "X", 45 foot
right-of-way dedication recorded in Volume 1374 Page 558 of the Deed Records of Lubbock County, Texas and
that portion dedicated by plat recorded in Volume 1449, Page 834 of the Deed Records of Lubbock County, Texas,
and a portion of a 15 foot alley dedicated by plat recorded in Volume 98, Page 195 of the Deed Records of Lubbock
County, Texas, said 0.3750 acre tract being further described as follows:

BEGINNING at a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HRA" set in the Eastern boundary of said 45 foot right-of-way
dedication for the most Easterly Southeast corner of this tract, which bears North a distance of 20.00 feet from the
original Southeast corner of Block 1, Ellwood Place Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas,
according to the map, plat and/or dedication deed thereof recorded in Volume 98, Page 195 of the Deed Records of
Lubbock County, Texas;

THENCE S. 45° W. a distance of 21.21 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HRA" set for the most Southerly
Southeast corner of this tract;

THENCE West a distance of 45.00 feet to a "crow's foot" cut in concrete in the West right-of-way line of Avenue
"X" for the most Southerly Southeast corner of Lot 1, Block 1, Ellwood Place according to the map plat and/or
dedication deed thereof recorded in Volume 1449, Page 834 of the Deed Records of Lubbock County, Texas and the
Southwest corner of this tract;

THENCE Northeasterly, along the West right-of-way line of Avenue "X" and the Eastern boundary of said Lot 1,
around a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 15.00 feet, a central angle of 90°, tangent lengths of 15.00
feet and a chord distance of 21.21 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HRA" set for a point of tangency;

THENCE North, continuing along the West right-of-way line of Avenue "X" and the Eastern boundary of said Lot 1,
a distance of 335.57 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HRA" set for a point of curvature;

THENCE Northwesterly, continuing along the West right-of-way line of Avenue "X" and the Eastern boundary of
said Lot 1, around a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 15.00 feet, a central angle of 90°29'32", tangent
lengths of 15.13 feet and a chord distance of 21.30 feet to a "cross" cut in concrete in the South right-of-way line of
19th Street for the Northwest corner of this tract;

THENCE N. 89°30'28" E. a distance of 45.00 feet to a "cross" cut in concrete for the most Northerly Northeast
corner of this tract;

THENCE S. 45°14'46" E. a distance of 21.30 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HRA" set for the most
Easterly Northeast corner of this tract;

THENCE South a distance of 335.95 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Contains: 16,336 square feet.

Bearings are relative to the recorded final plat of Lots 1 and 2, Block 1, Ellwood Place Addition to the City of
Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, according to the map, plat and/or dedication deed thereof recorded in Volume 98,
Page 195 of the Deed Records of Lubbock County, Texas.

I, Cyril H. Turner, Texas Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 6460, do hereby certify that this survey
was made on the ground. A determination as to whether this property lies within a special flood hazard area was not
made for this survey.  June 6, 2024

Cyril H. Turner
Registered Professional Land Surveyor
No. 6460 State of Texas
email: cturner@hugoreed.com

TEXAS LICENSED SURVEYING FIRM 100676-00

AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
LAND SURVEYORS
CIVIL ENGINEERS PHONE: 806 / 763-5642

1601 AVENUE N
LUBBOCK, TEXAS 79401

FAX: 806 / 763-3891TEXAS REGISTERED ENGINEERING FIRM F-760

Copyright 2024, Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for the sole use of Title Co.
for GF # and any other identifiers as indicated in the certificate shown hereon.

AVENUE "X"
PROPOSED STREET CLOSURE

LOCATED BETWEEN 19th STREET & 20th
STREET, ADJACENT TO LOT 1, BLOCK 1

ELLWOOD PLACE ADDITION
TO THE CITY OF LUBBOCK
LUBBOCK COUNTY TEXAS

Sheet 2 of 2



 AI# 12816 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 3. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all related documents, in
connection with certain real property located in Lot 6, Block 13, Phyllis Wheatley Addition to the City
of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock has been in the process of acquiring all the parcels in the Phyllis Wheatley
Addition for a future public use. To date, 36 parcels remain. The following Street, Public Use, and
Right-of-Way Deed dedication will reduce the number of parcels to be acquired to 35. Doris Lee Vest
Fletcher is dedicating the deed to the City of Lubbock.
 
The proponents will dedicate 7,250 square feet of land at no cost to the City of Lubbock.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution - Lot 6, Block 13, Phyllis Wheatly 
Deed - Lot 6, Block 13, Phyllis Wheatly 
GIS Map 









U
N

S
U

B
D

IV
ID

E
D

3

8

3

2

3

7

2

5

4

14

133

6

9

4

10

5

12

10

8

7

12

1

7

8

16

154

6 9

11

11

1

5

9

10

611 12
13

14

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Deed Dedication Located 
in Section 4, Block B

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

BE
EC

H
 A

V
E

35TH ST

C
H

ER
RY

 A
V

E

EU
O

N
Y

M
U

S 
RD

HYDRANGEA DR

FARMERS CO-O
P

PHYLLIS

WHEATLEY

FARMERS CO-O
P

PRODUCERS

GRAIN

34TH ST

IRIS DR
CITY OF LUBBOCK

CEMETERY

ZE
N

IT
H

 A
V

E

E 37TH ST

PHYLLIS
 W

HEATLEY

A
SP

EN
 A

V
E

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
~7,250 sq ft

0 100 20050
Feet

GALLARDIA DR

D
A

V
ID

 A
V

E

C
H

ER
RY

 A
V

E

BE
EC

H
 A

V
E

W
IN

FI
EL

D
 A

V
E

G
U

A
V

A
 A

V
E

FARMERS CO-O
P

PHYLLIS

W
HEATLEY

36TH ST

PRODUCERS

GRAIN

JONQUIL DR



 AI# 12822 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 4. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 1 to
Professional Services Agreement Contract 17778, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for design and bid phase
professional services for the Water System Electrical Improvements Project at the North Water
Treatment Plant's Terminal Storage Reservoir.

Item Summary
Amendment No. 1 to Contract 17778 is for professional design services for installing a motor operated
valve in a vault at the North Water Treatment Plant’s Terminal Storage Reservoir which will replace a
broken valve in the Plant.  This project also includes integration into the Supervisory Control and Data
Acquisition (SCADA) system which allows for remote access.  

Amendment No. 1 of the Water System Electrical Improvements Contract with Freese and Nichols, Inc.,
is based upon fair and reasonable hourly rates for a total amount not to exceed $43,378, with an extension
of 180 calendar days to the original 365 calendar days contract.

Fiscal Impact
This amendment to the Professional Services Agreement for $43,378 is funded in Capital Improvements
Project 92804, North Terminal Storage Reservoir Improvements.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 17778 
Amendment 1 Contract 
Original Contract 
Location Map 
CIP Budget Detail 
CIP Project Detail 



RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute fo
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Agreemen
Contract No. 17778 for engineering services for water treatment electrical improvements, by am
between the City of Lubbock and Freese and Nichols, Inc., and related documents. Sai
Amendment is attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein an
shall be included in the minutes of the City Council.

Passed by the City Council on

_________________________________

MARK W. MCBRAYER, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

COcL
elli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

ccdocs/RES.Amend #1 to PSA 17778 FNI water treatment electrical
8.27.24



Amendment 1
To Agreement Between

The City of Lubbock, TX
And

Freese and Nichols, Inc.

THIS IS THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT dated and entered into on the 13th day of

February, 2024, Contract No. 17778, by and between the City of Lubbock (“City”) and Freese and Nichols,

Inc. (“Engineer”), collectively (the “Parties”).

Engineer is providing professional services for water treatment electrical improvements (the “Activities”).

The Parties now agree to add additional services to the scope of the agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties enter into this amendment and agree as follows:

The scope of the original agreement is hereby amended to include additional electrical design services as

described and set forth in “Exhibits A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein. Further, the additional

services herein shall be completed for an amount not to exceed forty-three thousand three hundred seventy-

eight dollars and 00/100 ($43,378.00) as set forth in “Exhibit A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

An additional one hundred eighty 180) days shall be added to the term for the Engineer to complete the

services herein agreed.

All other terms of the agreement remain the same and are not altered herein.

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of this day of

2024.

CITY OF LUBBOCK Freese and Nichols, Inc.

__________

frCfl.CN2J

MARK W. MCBRAYER, MAYOR Jeffrey Hensley, P.E.

ATTEST:

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Page lof 2



APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Baile Ratcliffe, P.
erim Division ector of Engineering/City Engineer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Kel i Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

Page 2 of 2



Resolution No. 2024- R0073

Item No. 5. 19

February 13, 2024

RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Professional Services Agreement Contract No. 17778
water treatment electrical improvements, by and between the City of Lubbock and Freese
Nichols, Inc., and related documents. Said Contract is attached hereto and incorporated in

resolution as if fully set forth herein and shall be included in the minutes of the City Council. 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

elli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

ccdocslRES. PSA- No. 17778 — FNI water treatment electrical

1. 9. 24

Passed by the City Council on February 13, 2024



Resolution No. 2024- R0073

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK § 

This Professional Service Agreement (" Agreement") Contract No. 17778 is entered into this 13th

day of February , 2024, is by and between the City of Lubbock ( the " City"), a Texas home rule

municipal corporation, and Freese and Nichols, ( the" Engineer"), a Texas corporation. 

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, The City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services for

Water Treatment Electrical Improvements, ( the " Activities"); and

WHEREAS, the Engineer has a professional staff experienced and is qualified to provide

professional engineering services related to Activities, and will provide the services, as defined below, for

the price provided herein, said price stipulated by the City and the Engineer to be a fair and reasonable

price; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services

related to the Activities, and Engineer desires to provide the Services related to same. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in

this Agreement, the City and the Engineer hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. TERM

The term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and continues without interruption

for a term of 365 days. If the Engineer determines that additional time is required to complete the Services, 

the City Engineer, may, but is not obligated to, in his or her discretion, execute an agreement to grant up to

an additional six ( 6) months of time so long as the amount of the consideration does not increase. An

amendment to this Agreement resulting in an increase in the amount of the consideration must be approved

by the City acting through its governing body. 

Page 1 of 11



ARTICLE II. SERVICES AND COMPENSATION

A. The Engineer shall conduct all activities, and within such timeframes, as set forth on Exhibit

A", attached hereto ( the " Services"). 

B. The Engineer shall receive as consideration to be paid for the performance of the Services, in

an amount not to exceed $ 590, 659, as set forth in Exhibit " B". 

ARTICLE III. TERMINATION

A. General. The City may terminate this Agreement, for any reason or convenience, upon thirty

30) days written notice to the Engineer. In the event this Agreement is so terminated, the City shall only

pay the Engineer for services actually performed by the Engineer up to the date the Engineer is deemed to

have received notice of termination, as provided herein. 

B. Termination and Remedies. In the event the Engineer breaches any term andlor provision of this

Agreement, the City shall be entitled to exercise any right or remedy available to it by this Agreement, at

law, equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, termination of this Agreement and assertion of an

action for damages and/ or injunctive relief. The exercise of any right or remedy shall not preclude the

concurrent or subsequent exercise of any right or remedy and all rights and remedies shall be cumulative. 

ARTICLE IV. NON - ARBITRATION

The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy available to it by law, contract, equity, 

or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of

competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising

its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, 

and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another

provision in, or related to, this Agreement, this provision shall control. 

ARTICLE V. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

A. Existence. The Engineer is a corporation duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing

under the laws of the State of Texas and is qualified to carry on its business in the State of Texas. 

B. Corporate Power. The Engineer has the corporate power to enter into and perform this

Agreement and all other activities contemplated hereby. 

Page 2 of 11



C. Authorization. Execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement and the activities

contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized by all the requisite corporate action on the part

of the Engineer. This Agreement constitutes legal, valid, and binding obligations of the Engineer and is

enforceable in accordance with the terms thereof. 

D. Engineer. The Engineer maintains a professional staff and employs, as needed, other qualified

specialists experienced in providing the Services, and is familiar with all laws, rules, and regulations, both

state and federal, including, without limitation the applicable laws, regarding the Activities contemplated

hereby. 

E. Performance. The Engineer will and shall conduct all activities contemplated by this Agreement

in accordance with the standard of care, skill and diligence normally provided by a professional person in

performance of similar professional services, and comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations, 

both state and federal, relating to professional services, as contemplated hereby. 

F. Use of Copyrighted Material. The Engineer warrants that any materials provided by the Engineer

for use by City pursuant to this Agreement shall not contain any proprietary material owned by any other

party that is protected under the Copyright Act or any other law, statute, rule, order, regulation, ordinance

or contractual obligation relating to the use or reproduction of materials. The Engineer shall be solely

responsible for ensuring that any materials provided by the Engineer pursuant to this Agreement satisfy this

requirement and the Engineer agrees to indemnify and hold City harmless from all liability or loss caused

to City or to which City is exposed on account of the Engineer' s failure to perform this duty. 

ARTICLE VI. SCOPE OF WORK

The Engineer shall accomplish the following: Professional Services related to the Services, as

provided in Exhibit " A", attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

ARTICLE VI[. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS

The Engineer and the City agree that the Engineer shall perform the duties under this Agreement

as an independent contractor and shall be considered as independent contractor under this Agreement and/ or

in its activities hereunder for all purposes. The Engineer has the sole discretion to determine the manner in

which the Services are to be performed. During the performance of the Services under this Agreement, the

Engineer and the Engineer' s employees and/ or sub- consultants, will not be considered, for any purpose, 

employees or agents of the City within the meaning or the application of any federal, state or local law or

regulation, including without limitation, laws, rules or regulations regarding or related to unemployment

insurance, old age benefits, workers compensation, labor, personal injury or taxes of any kind. 

Page 3 of 11



ARTICLE VIIL INSURANCE

The Engineer shall procure and carry, at its sole cost and expense through the life of this Agreement, 

except as otherwise provided herein, insurance protection as hereinafter specified, in form and substance

satisfactory to the City, carried with an insurance company authorized to transact business in the state of

Texas, covering all aspects and risks of loss of all operations in connection with this Agreement, including

without limitation, the indemnity obligations set forth herein. The Engineer shall obtain and maintain in

full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, and shall cause each approved subcontractor or sub- 

consultant of the Engineer to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, 

commercial general liability, professional liability and automobile liability coverage for non-owned and

hired vehicles with insurance carriers admitted to do business in the state of Texas. The insurance

companies must carry a Best' s Rating of A-VI[ or better. Except for Professional Liability, the policies will

be written on an occurrence basis, subject to the following minimum limits of liability: 

Commercial General Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $ 1, 000, 000

General Aggregate Limit: $ 2, 000, 000

Professional Liability: 

Combined Single Limit: $2, 000, 000

Automobile Liability: 

Combined Single Limit for any auto: $ 1, 000, 000 Per Occurrence

Employer' s Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $ 1, 000, 000

Worker' s Compensation

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $ 500, 000

The Engineer shall further cause any approved subcontractor or sub- consultant to procure and

carry, during the term of this Agreement, the insurance coverage required of Engineer herein, including

without limitation, Professional Liability coverage, protecting the City against losses caused by the

professional negligence of the approved subcontractor or sub- consultant. The City shall be listed as a

primary and noncontributory additional insured with respect to the Automobile Liability and Commercial

General Liability and shall be granted a waiver of subrogation under those policies. The Engineer shall

provide a Certificate of Insurance to the City as evidence of coverage. 

Page 4 of 11



The Certificate shall provide 30 days' notice of cancellation. A copy of the additional insured

endorsement and waiver of subrogation attached to the policy shall be included in the Certificate. The

Engineer shall elect to obtain worker' s compensation coverage pursuant to Section 406.002 of the Texas

Labor Code. Further, the Engineer shall maintain said coverage throughout the term of this Agreement and

shall comply with all provisions of Title 5 of the Texas Labor Code to ensure that the Engineer maintains

said coverage. The Engineer may maintain Occupational Accident and Disability Insurance in lieu of

Worker' s Compensation. In either event, the policy must be endorsed to include a waiver of subrogation in

favor of the City. If at any time during the life of the Agreement or any extension hereof, the Engineer fails

to maintain the required insurance in full force and effect, the Engineer shall be in breach hereof and all

work under the Agreement shall be discontinued immediately. 

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the professional liability policy shall be

maintained at the Engineer' s sole cost and expense. The retroactive date shall be no later than the

commencement of the performance of this Agreement and the discovery period ( possibly through tail

coverage) shall be no less than 10 years after the completion of the Services provided for in this Agreement. 

The provisions of this Article VIII shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IX. EMPLOYMENT OF AGENTS/ RETAINING OF CONSULTANTS

The Engineer may employ or retain consultants, contractors, or third parties ( any of which are

referred to herein as " Sub- consultant"), to perform certain duties of Engineer, as set forth on Exhibits A& 

B, attached hereto, under this Agreement, provided that the City approves the retaining of Sub- consultants. 

The Engineer is at all times responsible to the City to perform the Services as provided in this Agreement

and the Engineer is in no event relieved of any obligation under this Agreement upon retainage of any

approved Sub- consultant. Any agent and/ or Sub- consultant retained and/ or employed by the Engineer shall

be required by the Engineer to carry, for the protection and benefit of the City and the Engineer and naming

said third parties as additional insureds, insurance as described above required to be carried by the Engineer

in this Agreement. 

The Engineer represents that such services are either under applicable value thresholds or are

otherwise exempt from notice and/ or bid requirements under Texas Law. 

ARTICLE X. CONFIDENTIALITY

The Engineer shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City' s

business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without prior written

consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 

Page 5 of 11



ARTICLE XI. INDEMNITY

THE ENGINEER SHALL INDEMNIFY AND SAVE HARMLESS THE CITY OF LUBBOCK

AND ITS ELECTED OFFICIALS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES FROM ALL SUITS, 

ACTIONS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, CLA[ MS, OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND, CHARACTER, TYPE, 

OR DESCRIPTION, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING, 

ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COLIRT COSTS, AND ATTORNEY' S FEES, FOR INNRY OR

DEATH TO ANY PERSON, OR INJURY TO ANY PROPERTY, RECEIVED OR SUSTAINED BY

ANY PERSON OR PERSONS OR PROPERTY, TO THE EXTENT ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO

OR OCCASIONED BY, THE NEGLIGENT ACTS OF THE ENGINEER, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, 

AND/ OR SUBCONSULTANTS, RELATED TO THE PERFORMANCE, OPERATIONS OR

OMISSIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND/ OR THE USE OR OCCUPATION OF CITY OWNED

PROPERTY. THE INDEMNITY OBLIGATION PROVIDED HEREIN SHALL SURVIVE THE

EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

ARTICLE XII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

The Engineer shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, 

rules and regulations relating, in any way, manner or form, to the activities under this Agreement, and any

amendments thereto. 

ARTICLE XIII. NOTICE

A. General. Whenever notice from the Engineer to the City or the City to the Engineer is required

or permitted by this Agreement and no other method of notice is provided, such notice shall be given by

1) actual delivery of the written notice to the other party by hand ( in which case such notice shall be

effective upon delivery); ( 2) facsimile ( in which case such notice shall be effective upon delivery); or ( 3) 

by depositing the written notice in the United States mail, properly addressed to the other party at the

address provided in this article, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, in which case such

notice shall be effective on the third business day after such notice is so deposited. 

B. Engineer' s Address. The Engineer' s address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

Freese and Nichols, Inc. 

Amy Raines
801 Cherry Street, Suite 2800, 
Fort Worth, Texas 76102

Telephone: 817- 735- 7361

Email: Amy. Raines@freese. com
C. City's Address. The City' s address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

Page 6 of l l



James Dean

City of Lubbock
P. O. Box 2000

1314 Avenue K

Lubbock, Texas 79457

Telephone: 806- 775- 3254

Email: jdean@mylubbock. us

D. Change of Address. Either party may change its address or nuinbers for purposes of notice by

giving written notice to the other party as provided herein, referring specifically to this Agreement, and

setting forth such new address or numbers. The address or numbers shall become effective on the 15th day

after such notice is effective. 

ARTICLE XIV. CITY- PROVIDED DATA AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Provision of Data. The City shall furnish the Engineer non-confdential studies, reports and other

available data in the possession of the City pertinent to the Engineer' s Services, so long as the City is

entitled to rely on such studies, reports and other data for the performance of the Engineer' s Services under

this Agreement ( the " Provided Data"). The Engineer shall be entitled to use and rely, so long as such

reliance is reasonable, upon all such Provided Data. 

ARTICLE XV. MISCELLANEOUS

A. Captions. The captions for the articles and sections in this Agreement are inserted in this

Agreement strictly for the parties' convenience in identifying the provisions to this Agreement and shall not

be given any effect in construing this Agreement. 

B. Audit. The Engineer shall provide access to its corporate books and records to the City. The City

may audit, at its expense and during normal business hours, the Engineer' s books and records with respect

to this Agreement between the Engineer and the City. 

C. Records. The Engineer shall maintain records that are necessary to substantiate the services

provided by the Engineer. 

D. Assignability. The Engineer may not assign this Agreement without the prior written approval

of the City. 

E. Successor and Assigns. This Agreement binds and inures to the benefit of the City and the

Engineer, and in the case of the City, its respective successors, legal representatives, and assigns, and in the

case of the Engineer, its permitted successors and assigns. 

Page 7 of 11



F. Construction and Venue. 

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. THIS AGREEMENT IS PERFORMABLE IN LUBBOCK

COUNTY, TEXAS. THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY CONSENT TO THE SOLE

AND EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF THE COURTS OF COMPETENT

NRISDICTION OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, COUNTY OF LUBBOCK, FOR THE PURPOSES OF

ALL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE

ACTIONS THAT ARE CONTEMPLATED HEREBY. 

G. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is ever held to be invalid or ineffective by any

court of competent jurisdiction with respect to any person or circumstance, the remainder of this Agreement

and the application of such provision to persons and/ or circumstances other than those with respect to which

it is held invalid or ineffective shall not be affected thereby. 

H. Amendment. No amendment, modification, or alteration of the terms of this Agreement shall be

binding unless such amendment, modification, or alteration is in writing, dated subseyuent to this

Agreement, and duly authorized and executed by the Engineer and the City. 

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including Exhibits " A" through " B" attached hereto, contains

the entire agreement between the City and the Engineer, and there are no other written or oral promises, 

conditions, warranties, or representations relating to or affecting the matters contemplated herein. 

J. No Joint Enterprise. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to imply a joint venture, joint

enterprise, partnership or principal — agent relationship between the Engineer and the City. 

K. Documents Owned by City. Any and all documents, drawings and specifications prepared by

Engineer as part of the Services hereunder, shall become the property of the City when the Engineer has

been compensated as set forth in Article II, above. The Engineer shall make copies of any and all work

products for its files. 

L. Notice of Waiver. A waiver by either the City or the Engineer of a breach of this Agreement

must be in writing and duly authorized to be effective. In the event either party shall execute and deliver

such waiver, such waiver shall not affect the waiving party' s rights with respect to any other or subsequent

breach. 

M. Third Party Activities. Nothing in this Agreement shall be constnzed to provide any rights or

benefits whatsoever to any party other than the City and the Engineer. 

Page 8 of 11



N. Non-Appropriation. All funds for payment by the City under this Agreement are subject to the

availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event of non- appropriation of

funds by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the services provided under the Agreement, the City

will terminate the Agreement, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then- 

current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the services covered by this

Agreement is spent, whichever event occurs first ( the " Non- Appropriation Date"). If at any time funds are

not appropriated for the continuance of this Agreement, cancellation shall be accepted by the Engineer on

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall

not be obligated under this Agreement beyond the Non- Appropriation Date. 

O. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist

Organization Prohibited. Pursuant to Section 2252. 152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City

from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to

have contracts with or provide supplies or service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization

P. No Boycott of Israel. Pursuant to Section 2271. 002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This

section applies only to a contract that: ( 1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more

full- time employees; and ( 2) has a value of $100, 000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public

funds of the governmental entity. ( b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract with a company

for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the company that it: ( 1) does

not boycott Israel; and ( 2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 

Q. Texas Government Code 2274. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: ( 1) it

does not, and will not for the duration of the contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive

that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by

Section 2274. 002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. If Contractor is a company

with ] 0 or more full- time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $] 00, 000 or more, 

Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, 

policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and

will not discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 

R. Contractor represents and warrants that: ( 1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the

contract, boycott energy companies or ( 2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas

Government Code does not apply to the contract. If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full- time

employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $ 100, 000 or more, Contractor verifes that, pursuant

to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott

energy companies during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement

where a governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental
Page 9 of i l



entity' s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt

obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 

S. Texas Public Information Act. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government

Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if

the contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor agrees

to: ( 1) preserve all contracting information related to the contract as provided by the records retention

requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the contract; ( 2) promptly provide to

the governmental body any contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or

possession of the entity on request of the governmental body; and ( 3) on completion of the contract, either: 

A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting information related to the contract that is in

the custody or possession of the entity; or ( B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract

as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body. 

T. Professional Responsibility. All architectural or engineering services to be performed shall be

done with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by competent architects or engineers practicing

under the same or similar circumstances and professional license. 

Page 10 of 11



EXECUTED as of the Effective Date hereof. 

CITY OF LUBBOCK

ATT : ST: 

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

Michael G. Keenum, P. E., Division Director of EngineeringlCity Engineer

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
r

K

elli Leisure, Assistant City Attorney

Firm

Freese and Nichols, 1nc. 

By. G
v. GYl

Jeff Hensley

Email: Jeff.Hensley@freese. com

Page 11 of 11



EXHIBIT A, PART 1

SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR: 

ARC FLASH STUD[ ES — WATER SITES

ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES

ARTICLE I

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The City of Lubbock ( Owner) is proceeding with performing Arc Flash
Hazard Analysis at the raw water and treated water facilities listed below. As part of the data collection
phase of the studies, an electrical assessment will be conducted at each of the listed facilities. An Arc Flash
Hazard Analysis will be performed at the following facilities: 

1. Pump Station No. 4
2. Pump Station No.8
3. Pump Station No.9
4. Pump Station No. 10
5. Pump Station No. 16
6. Bailey County Pump Station
7. Terminal Storage Reservoir

8. Lake Alan Henry Lake Pump Station
9. Lake Alan Henry Booster Pump Station
10. North Water Treatment Plant

11. South Water Treatment Plant

BASIC SERVICES: FNI shall render the following professional services in connection with the development
of the Project: 

A. PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Upon execution of this Agreement, FNI shall: 

1. Conduct kickoff ineeting to review scope, schedule, and budget; determine any special conditions
that may affect the studies; discuss administrative requirements of Owner; and to discuss and
special items as part of the electrical assessment. 

2. Manage efforts of internal team and sub-consultants on the Project and perform Quality Control
review of all deliverables. 

3. Prepare meeting agendas and minutes and attend the following meetings: 

a. Attend up to twelve ( 12) monthly project coordination meetings with Owner
b. Attend up to four ( 4) Teams workshops for review of arc flash studies and recommended

improvements as they are completed. 

4. Prepare a Microsoft Project schedule and provide monthly updates including necessary revisions
to bring the Project back on schedule if needed. The project schedule will not be resource loaded. 

5. Prepare monthly reporting including status report, recent activities, upcoming activities, action
items log, decisions made log, budget updates, schedule updates, and scope changes. Prepare

monthly invoices. 

6. Deliverables include the following: 

EXHIBIT A- 1



a. Agendas and minutes for all meetings

b. Project schedule updated monthly
c. Monthly reporting
d. Monthly invoices

B. STUDY PHASE: FN[ shall provide professional services in this phase as follows: 

1. Field Investigation. FNI to visit each site and with the assistance of subcontractor, ACME Electric, 

will open electrical equipment to obtain information such as cable sizes, circuit breaker trip settings, 
and starter overload settings. At locations where protective relays are installed, FNI with the assistance
of subcontractor, Strategic Engineering, will download existing relay settings. 

2. Prepare an Arc Flash Analysis Study at each facility. Advise Owner as to the necessity of Owner' s
providing or obtaining data or services from others and assist Owner in connection with any such
services. Collect and review existing data, reports, mapping, and records from Owner. Review

documents associated with the project. Provide analyses of Owner' s requirements for the Project, 

including planning, surveys, site evaluations and comparative studies of prospective sites and
solutions. 

3. Prepare an Arc Flash Analysis Study containing the arc flash incident energy levels at each piece of
major electrical equipment. The Arch Flash Study will also include recommendations to reduce the
flash energy levels that are calculated to be classified as Dangerous. 

4. Furnish one ( 1) PDF copy of the Preliminary Arc Flash Analysis Study of each Facility. Report, 

present and review it with Owner. Receive and address Owner' s comments and issue the fnal Study. 

5. Deliverables for the Studies shall include: 

a. Draft copy of Preliminary Arc Flash Study for each site. A draft of the studies at the Pump
Station sites will be completed within 60 days after conducting the field investigation. A draft
of the studies at the Water Treatment Plant sites will be completed within 90 days after

conducting the field investigation. 
b. Final copy ofArch Flash Study for each site. The final Study at each site will be provided 30

days after receiving comments from the Owner. 

6. Once the Studies have been fnalized, FNI will install the arc flash labels on the appropriate electrical

equipment at each site. 

7. At the end of the Studies, FNI in conjunction with its subcontractor, Strategic Engineering, will prepare
a presentation on Arc Flash to present to the City' s electrical and maintenance staff. 

ARTICLE II

SPECIAL SERVICES: Special Services to be performed by FNI include the following: 

A. ELECTRICAL ASSESSMENT: FN[ will provide an electrical assessment as follows: 

1. Visual inspection of existing equipment noting major deficiencies. 

2. Prepare Technical Memorandum on findings: FN[ will prepare a brief technical memorandum
summarizing the findings at each site and include an Opinion of Probable Construction Cost for
the recommended improvements. 

3. Prepare bidding documents — technical plans and speci cations to address electrical deficiencies

EXHIBIT A-2



at each site. 

B. PUMPING ASSESSMENT: FNI will provide the following: 

1. Conduct a site visit to review existing conditions at the following facilities: PS4, PS8, PS9, 
Bailey County PS, Lake Alan Henry Lake Pump Station, Lake Alan Henry Booster PS. 

a. Evaluate pump performance and physical layout to identify potential causes of existing
pumps overheating. Evaluation to include review of historical operational data, review
of pump curve from manufacturer, observation of pump and piping layout at the
facilities, and observation of the pumps in typical operating conditions. 

2. Submittals

a. Develop one ( 1) Site Evaluation Report summarizing findings. The Evaluation Report
will include evaluation of all facilities visited as part of this task. 

3. Meetings and Site Visits: This task will require the following meetings and site visits: 
a. Meetings

i. Pre- evaluation meeting ( virtual). Goal of this meeting would be to facilitate
communication between Engineer and City staff regarding logistics of site visits
access, day, time) and goals of site visits. 

ii. Post-evaluation meeting ( in-person). Goal of this meeting would be for the
Engineer to communicate the findings of the Site Evaluation to City staff. Site
Evaluation Report will be submitted to the City prior to this meeting. 

b. Site Visits: 

i. It is anticipated that two ( 2) pump station facilities can be observed in one ( 1) 
work day. If six ( 6) facilities are to be observed, Engineer will coordinate with
the City to find a three ( 3) day window to complete the site visits. 

ARTICLE III

TIME OF COMPLETION: FNI is authorized to commence work on the Project upon execution of this

Agreement and agrees to complete the services in accordance with the following milestones and per attached
schedule: 

Notice to Proceed ( NTP) — Set by Owner after Council execution of this Agreement
Submit Preliminary Arc Flash Study — 60 days after conducting field investigation at each Pump Station
Site and 90 days after conducting field investigation at each Water Treatment Plant Site. 
Submit Final Arc Flash Study— 30 days after review meeting with Owner for each Site. 
Install Arc Flash Labels at each Site — 30 days after submittal of Final Arc Flash Study. 
Prepare bidding documents — technical plans and specifications with recommended improvements at

each site — 60 days after Final Arc Flash Study has been completed. 
Total Project Duration: 365 days after Notice to Proceed. 

If FNI' s services are delayed through no fault of FNI, FNI shall be entitled to adjust contract schedule

consistent with the number of days of delay. These delays may include but are not limited to delays in Owner
or regulatory reviews, delays on the flow of information to be provided to FNI, governmental approvals, etc. 
These delays may result in an adjustment to compensation as outlined on the face of this Agreement and in
Attachment CO. 

EXHIBIT A- 3



ARTICLE IV

DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES: FNI and Owner designate the following representatives: 

Owner' s Designated Representative - James Dean, 1314 Avenue K, 

Lu6bock, Texas 79401; Phone: 806- 775- 3397; email jdean un,mail. ci. lubbock. tx. us

FNI' s Designated Representative - Amy Raines, 801 Cherry Street, Suite 2800, 
Fort Worth, Texas 76102; Phone 817- 735- 7361; email Amv.Raines(a freese.com

FNI' s Accounting Representative - Misty Ballard, 801 Cherry Street, Suite 2800, 
Fort Worth, Texas 76102; Phone 817- 735- 7290; email Mistv.Ballardna, freese.com

EXHIBIT A-4



EXHIB[ T A, PART 2, ADDITIONAL SERVICES

ARC FLASH STUDIES — WATER SITES

ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES

ADDITIONAL SERVICES: Additional Services to be performed by FNI, if authorized by Owner, which
are not included in the above described basic services, are described as follows: 

A. Providing services to investigate existing conditions or facilities, or to make measured drawings
thereof, or to verify the accuracy of drawings or other information furnished by Owner. 

B. Making revisions to drawings, specifications or other documents when such revisions are 1) not

consistent with approvals or instructions previously given by Owner or 2) due to other causes not
solely within the control of FNI. 

C. Providing consultation concerning the replacement of any Work damaged by fire or other cause
during the construction and providing services as may be required in connection with the
replacement of such Work. Performing investigations, studies, and analysis of work proposed by
construction contractors to correct defective work. Any services required as a result of default of the
contractor(s) or the failure, for any reason, of the contractor( s) to complete the work within the
contract time. Providing services after the completion of the construction phase not specifically
listed in Article II. Visits to the site in excess of the number of trips included in Article II for

periodic site visits, coordination meetings, or contract completion activities. Providing services
made necessary because of unforeseen, concealed, or differing site conditions or due to the presence
of hazardous substances in any form. Providing services to review or evaluate construction
contractor( s) claim( s), provided said claims are supported by causes not within the control of FNI. 
Providing value engineering studies or reviews of cost savings proposed by construction contractors
after bids have been submitted. Provide follow- up professional services during Contractor' s
wananty period. 

D. Investigations involving consideration of operation, maintenance and overhead expenses, and the
preparation of rate schedules, earnings and expense statements, feasibility studies, appraisals, 
evaluations, assessment schedules, and material audits or inventories required for certification of force

account construction performed by Owner. 

E. Preparing applications and supporting documents for government grants, loans, or planning advances
and providing data for detailed applications. 

F. Providing shop, mill, field or laboratory inspection of materials and equipment. Observe factory tests
of equipment at any site remote to the project or observing tests required as a result of equipment
failing the initial test. 

G. Conducting pilot plant studies or tests. 

H. Preparing data and reports for assistance to Owner in preparation for hearings before regulatory
agencies, courts, arbitration panels or any mediator, giving testimony, personally or by deposition, and
preparations therefore before any regulatory agency, court, arbitration panel or mediator. 

I. General Project Representation during construction phase. 

J. Furnishing the services of a Resident Project Representative to act as Owner' s on- site representative
during the Construction Phase. The Resident Project Representative will act as directed by FNI in
order to provide more extensive representation at the Project site during the Construction Phase. 
Through more extensive on- site observations of the work in progress and feld checks of materials and

EXH[ BIT A- 5



equipment by the Resident Project Representative and assistants, FN[ shall endeavor to provide further
protection for Owner against defects and deficiencies in the work. Furnishing the services of a
Resident Project Representative is subject to the provisions of Article I, F and Exhibit A, Part 4 Project
Representation. 

If Owner provides personnel to support the activities of the Resident Project Representative who is
FNI or FN[' s agent or employee, the duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of such
personnel will be set forth in an Attachment attached to and made a part of this Agreement before the
services of such personnel are begun. It is understood and agreed that such personnel will work under
the direction of and be responsible to the Resident Project Representative. Owner agrees that whenever

FNI informs him in writing that any such personnel provided by the Owner are, in his opinion, 
incompetent, unfaithful or disorderly, such personnel shall be replaced. 

K. Furnishing Special Inspections required under chapter 17 of the [ nternational Building Code. These
Special [ nspections are often continuous, requiring an inspector dedicated to inspection of the
individual work item, and they are in addition to General Representation and Resident Representation
services noted elsewhere in the contract. These continuous inspection services can be provided by
FNI as an Additional Service. 

L. Furnishing Inspections and Commissioning Reports required by International Energy Efficiency Code
IECC). 

M. Assisting Owner in preparing for, or appearing at litigation, mediation, arbitration, dispute review
boards, or other legal and/ or administrative proceedings in the defense or prosecution of claims
disputes with Contractor( s). 

N. Performing investigations, studies and analyses of substitutions of equipment and/ or materials or
deviations from the drawings and specifications. 

O. Assisting Owner in the defense or prosecution of litigation in connection with or in addition to those
services contemplated by this Agreement. Such services, if any, shall be furnished by FN[ on a fee
basis negotiated by the respective parties outside of and in addition to this Agreement. 

P. Design, contract modifications, studies or analysis required to comply with local, State, Federal or
other regulatory agencies that become effective after the date of this agreement. 

Q. Providing basic or additional services on an accelerated time schedule. The scope of this service

include cost for overtime wages of employees and consultants, inefficiencies in work sequence and

plotting or reproduction costs directly attributable to an accelerated time schedule directed by the
Owner. 

R. Preparation of Operations and Maintenance Manuals for the proposed facilities. 

S. Presencelabsence surveys for federally listed threatened/ endangered species. 

T. Conducting cultural resources studies or surveys. 

U. Phase IIII Environmental Site Assessments. 

EXH[ BIT A- 6



EXHIBIT A, PART 3, RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE OWNER

ARC FLASH STUDIES — WATER SITES

ENGINEERING DESICN SERVICES

RESPONSIBILITIES OF Owner: Owner shall perform the following in a timely manner so as not to delay
the services of FNI: 

A. Designate in writing a person to act as Owner' s representative with respect to the services to be
rendered under this AGREEMENT. Such person shall have contract authority to transmit
instructions, receive information, interpret and define Owner' s policies and decisions with respect to
FNI' s services for the Project. 

B. De- energize equipment for FNI to open up electrical equipment to conduct field investigations. 

C. Provide all criteria and full information as to Owner' s requirements for the Project, including design
objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance requirements, flexibility and
expandability, and any budgetary limitations; and furnish copies of all design and construction
standards which Owner will require to be included in the drawings and specifications. 

D. Assist FNI by placing at FNI' s disposal all available information pertinent to the Project including
previous reports and any other data relative to design or construction of the Project as provided in
this AGREEMENT. 

E. Arrange for access to and make all provisions for FNI to enter upon public and private property as
required for FNI to perform services under this AGREEMENT. 

F. Examine all studies, reports, sketches, drawings, specifications, proposals and other documents
presented by FNI, obtain advice of an attorney, insurance counselor and other consultants as Owner
deems appropriate for such examination and render in writing decisions pertaining thereto within a
reasonable time so as not to delay the services of FNI. 

G. Furnish approvals and permits from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project
and such approvals and consents from others as may be necessary for completion of the Project, 
except as otherwise the responsibility of FNI as provided in this AGREEEMENT. 

H. Give prompt written notice to FNI whenever Owner observes or otherwise becomes aware of any
development that affects the scope or timing of FNI' s services. 

Furnish, or direct FNI to provide, Additional Services as stipulated in Exhibit " A," Part 2, if deemed

necessary by Owner. 

Bear all costs incident to compliance with the requirements of this Exhibit " A", Part 3. 

EXHIB[ T A- 7



EXH[ BIT B, PART 1— BUDGET

ARC FLASH STUDIES — WATER SITES

ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES

CITY and ENGINEER have established a not- to- exceed budget of $ 590, 659 to complete all services under

this AGREEMENT. This amount includes basic services in the amount of $ 470,060 and additional services

in the amount of $ 120, 599. This amount will not be exceeded without a contract amendment. C[ TY will pay
the ENGINEER hourly, for services identified in Exhibit A, based on ENGINEERS Fee Schedule presented
as EXHIBIT B, Part 2. Subconsultant services will be billed at cost to ENGINEER with a 10 percent handling
fee. The Budget is presented for the services of ENGINEER under this AGREEMENT are provided in this
Exhibit B. CITY and ENGINEER agree to allow redistribution of funds between Tasks as appropriate to allow

flexibility in providing the needed services within the not- to- exceed budget. 

ENGINEER agrees to complete these services as delineated above. Should there be a Change in Scope of

Work or Time of Performance, then this can result in an amendment to this contract which shall be negotiated

at that time. 

The budget assumes that all work will be completed within 365 calendar days from the Notice to

Proceed. 

EXHIBIT B- 1



EXHIBIT B, PART 2- HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE COMPENSATION

ARC FLASH STUDIES - WATER SITES

ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES

LUBBOCK RATE SCHEDULE

Positian

Principal / Group Manager

Technical Professional- 6

Technical Professional - S

Technical Professional - 4

Technical Professional - 3

Technical Professional - 2

Technical Professional - 1

CAD Technician/ Designer - 3

CAD Technician/ Designer - 2

CAD Technician/ Designer - 1

Senior CAD Technician/ Designer

Construction Manager - 4

Construction Manager - 3

Construction Manager - 2

Construction Manager - 1

Corporete P oject Support - 3

Corporate Project Support - 2

Corporate Project Support - 1

Intern/ Coop

Rates for In-House Services

Technolo Charae

8. 50 per hour

TraVel

Standard IRS Rates

Rate

342

335

270

232

194

170

140

188

141

112

232

200

151

143

112

157

141

108

73

FREESE AND NICHOLS, INC. 

ATfACHMENT CO

Bulk Printina and Reoradudian

B& W Color

Small Format ( per copy) $ 0. 10 $ 0. 25

Large Format ( per sq. ft. j

Bond

Glossy / Mylar

Vinyl / Adhesive

Mounting ( per sq. R.} 

Binding ( per binding) 

0. 25 $ 0. 75

0. 75 $ 1. 25

1. 50 $ 2. 00

52. 00

0.25

OTHER DIRECT EXPENSES: 

Other direct expenses are reimbursed at actual cost times a multiplier of 1. 10. They include outside printing and reproduction

expense, communication expense, travel, transportation and subsistence away from the FNI office and other miscellaneous expenses

directly related to the work, including costs of laboratory analysis, test, a d other work required to be done by independent persons

other than staff members. For Resident Representative services performed by non- fNl employees and CAD services performed In- 

house by non- FNI employees where fNl provides workspace and equipment to perform such services, these services will be billed at
cost times a multiplier of 2. 0. This markup approximates the cost to FNI if an FNI employee was performing the same or similar
services. 

Rates to be adjusted no more than 5% annually

ve2r

EXHIBIT B- 2





City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
September 10, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92845
Capital Project Name: Water System Electrical Improvements

Capital Project Number: 92804
Capital Project Name: North Terminal Storage Resevoir Improvements

Encumbered/Expended Budget
92845 92804 Total

City of Lubbock Staff Time  $            2,20  $            9,01  $          11,217
Contract 17778 w/ FNI - Electrical System Improvements 590,659 590,659
Contract 17669 w/ dredgeSMART - TSR Improvements 188,900 188,900
Contract 17439 w/ dredgeSMART - TSR Improvements 43,800 43,800
Advertising 270 270

Agenda Items, September 10th 2024
  Contract 17778 - Amendment 1 - TSR Valve Actuation 0 43,378 43,378

Encumbered/Expended To Date            592,86            285,36            878,224

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Water System Electrical Improvements              57,14                                     57,140
TSR Improvements                                   214,63            214,636

Remaining Appropriation              57,14            214,63            271,776

Total Appropriation  $        650,00  $        500,00  $     1,150,000



Project Scope

The project will dredge the North Water Treatment Plant terminal storage reservoir.  The 
terminal storage reservoir has a design storage capacity of 30 day water supply. However, 
due to silting of the reservoir it is estimated to only have a 50% design capacity.  This project 
will restore the full capacity of the terminal storage reservoir by removing the silt and debris.  

Project Justi�cation  Project Highlights

This project will restore capacity in the North 
Terminal Storage Reservoir to provide additional 
water capacity during emergency operations.  

Council Priorities Addressed: 
Growth & Development
Community Improvement 

Project Dates Project History

Bid Date for Construction: 06/2023
Award Date for Construction: 08/2023
Construction Completion: 05/2024

$6,000,000 was appropriated in the FY 2022-23 
Budget, Ord. No. 2022-O0136, October 1, 2022. 
Project design completed, scheduled to bid early 
summer 2023. 

Project Location

North Water Treatment Plant

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

Construction $6,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $6,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to
Date

2023 - 24
Budget

2024 - 25
Budget

2025 - 26
Budget

2026 - 27
Budget

2027 - 28
Budget

2028 - 29
Budget

Water/Wastewater Fund Revenue
Bonds $6,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $6,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92804 North Terminal Storage 
Reservoir Improvements 

Upgrade/Major Maintenance

Project Manager: Josh Kristinek - Engineering

FY 2023-24 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 127



Project Scope

This project includes the assessment, evaluation, design, purchase, installation, 
replacement, and/or rehabilitation of the existing North and South Water Treatment Plants,  
and pump stations electrical transformers, switchgears, motors, and ancillary facilities. This 
project will include the assessment and evaluation of the electrical equipment and a Power 
System Study comprised of an Arc Flash Study for the major components within the Water 
System.

Project Justi�cation  Project Highlights

The current overall electrical systems for all the 
existing pump station, Bailey County Well Field, 
and both water treatment plants have not been 
evaluated as a whole since their construction. In 
order to better comply with the National Electrical 
Code, NFPA70E (Standard for Electrical Safety in 
the Workplace) and develop better safety and 
operating procedures, equipment coordination, 
and electrical protection, it is recommended to 
perform a Power System Study every 5 years. By 
both the NFPA 70E and OSHA state the Arc Flash 
Study shall be updated a minimum of every 5 
years. A reliable and safe power system at the 
plant is critical to its successful operation. A well-
designed power system ensures robust 
performance and maximizes plant availability 
under all operating conditions, including transient 
conditions like motor starting, non-linear loads 
and generator loss.
 
The project will consist of the following:
• Prioritize electrical equipment replacement
• Identify problem areas in the electrical 
system
• Develop electrical as-built drawings at the 
various sites
• Increase reliability and safety of the electrical 
system
 

Council Priorities Addressed:
Fiscal Discipline
Community Development
Growth and Development
 

CIP 2023109 Water System Electrical 
Improvements 

Study/Infrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: Josh Kristinek - Engineering

113 FY 2023-24 Operating Budget and Capital Program



Project Dates Project History

Bid Date for Design: 11/2023
Award Date for Design: 01/2023
Design Completion: 08/2024
Bid Date for Construction: TBD
Award Date for Construction: TBD
Begin Construction: TBD
Final Completion : TBD

 

Project Location

Project Appropriations

W 2023109

2022 - 23 Budget CIP 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

Design $0 $650,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $650,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

W 2023109

Funding to
Date

2023 - 24
Budget

2024 - 25
Budget

2025 - 26
Budget

2026 - 27
Budget

2027 - 28
Budget

2028 - 29
Budget

Water/Wastewater Fund
Cash $0 $650,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $650,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

2023109

Description 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 Total

Maintenance Saving Estimated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

114FY 2023-24 Operating Budget and Capital Program



 AI# 12826 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 5. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Professional
Services Agreement Contract 18273, with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., for construction phase
services for Upland Avenue, Segment 1, 66th Street to 82nd Street.

Item Summary
On August 23, 2018, the City of Lubbock retained Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. (KHA) to develop
construction plans for the roadway widening of Upland Avenue between 66th Street and 114th Street.

The design was completed, and on February 12, 2024, the Texas Department of Transportation
(TXDOT) awarded the construction contract to widen Upland Segment 1, to Lone Star Dirt & Paving,
for $19,074,046.67. The Notice to Proceed was dated June 2, 2024, with a 15-month construction
schedule.

Under this proposed professional services agreement, KHA will provide construction phase services to
respond to Requests for Information (RFIs), develop record drawings, and produce revisions to the
construction plans and specifications as necessary.

Contract negotiations were conducted with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., and fair and reasonable
hourly rates were determined for a total amount not to exceed $179,500.

Fiscal Impact
Contract No. 18273 for $179,500 is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92510, Upland Avenue 66th
to 82nd Street.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 18273 
Location Exhibit 
Budget Detail - CIP 92510 
CIP Project Detail 





Page 1 of 11 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK § 

This Professional Service Agreement (“Agreement”) Contract No.  18273 is entered into this ___ 

day of _______________, 2024, is by and between the City of Lubbock (the "City"), a Texas home rule 

municipal corporation, and Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., (the” Engineer”), a North Carolina 

corporation. 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, The City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services for 

Construction Phase Services for Upland Avenue Segment 1, 66th Street to 82nd Street Project, (the 

“Activities”); and 

WHEREAS, the Engineer has a professional staff experienced and is qualified to provide 

professional engineering services related to Activities, and will provide the services, as defined below, for 

the price provided herein, said price stipulated by the City and the Engineer to be a fair and reasonable 

price; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services 

related to the Activities, and Engineer desires to provide the Services related to same. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in 

this Agreement, the City and the Engineer hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. TERM 

The term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and continues without interruption 

for a term of 18 months. If the Engineer determines that additional time is required to complete the Services, 

the City Engineer, may, but is not obligated to, in his or her discretion, execute an agreement to grant up to 

an additional six (6) months of time so long as the amount of the consideration does not increase. An 

amendment to this Agreement resulting in an increase in the amount of the consideration must be approved 

by the City acting through its governing body. 

 



Page 2 of 11 

 

ARTICLE II. SERVICES AND COMPENSATION 

A. The Engineer shall conduct all activities, and within such timeframes, as set forth on Exhibit 

“A”, attached hereto (the “Services”). 

B. The Engineer shall receive as consideration to be paid for the performance of the Services, in 

an amount not to exceed $179,500.00, as set forth in Exhibit “B”. 

ARTICLE III. TERMINATION 

A. General. The City may terminate this Agreement, for any reason or convenience, upon thirty 

(30) days written notice to the Engineer. In the event this Agreement is so terminated, the City shall only 

pay the Engineer for services actually performed by the Engineer up to the date the Engineer is deemed to 

have received notice of termination, as provided herein. 

B. Termination and Remedies. In the event the Engineer breaches any term and/or provision of this 

Agreement, the City shall be entitled to exercise any right or remedy available to it by this Agreement, at 

law, equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, termination of this Agreement and assertion of an 

action for damages and/or injunctive relief. The exercise of any right or remedy shall not preclude the 

concurrent or subsequent exercise of any right or remedy and all rights and remedies shall be cumulative. 

ARTICLE IV. NON - ARBITRATION 

The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy available to it by law, contract, equity, 

or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of 

competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising 

its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, 

and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another 

provision in, or related to, this Agreement, this provision shall control. 

ARTICLE V. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

A. Existence. The Engineer is a corporation duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing 

under the laws of the State of Texas and is qualified to carry on its business in the State of Texas. 

B. Corporate Power. The Engineer has the corporate power to enter into and perform this 

Agreement and all other activities contemplated hereby.  

C. Authorization. Execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement and the activities 

contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized by all the requisite corporate action on the part 



Page 3 of 11 

 

of the Engineer. This Agreement constitutes legal, valid, and binding obligations of the Engineer and is 

enforceable in accordance with the terms thereof. 

D. Engineer. The Engineer maintains a professional staff and employs, as needed, other qualified 

specialists experienced in providing the Services, and is familiar with all laws, rules, and regulations, both 

state and federal, including, without limitation the applicable laws, regarding the Activities contemplated 

hereby.  

E. Performance. The Engineer will and shall conduct all activities contemplated by this Agreement 

in accordance with the standard of care, skill and diligence normally provided by a professional person in 

performance of similar professional services, and comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations, 

both state and federal, relating to professional services, as contemplated hereby. 

F. Use of Copyrighted Material. The Engineer warrants that any materials provided by the Engineer 

for use by City pursuant to this Agreement shall not contain any proprietary material owned by any other 

party that is protected under the Copyright Act or any other law, statute, rule, order, regulation, ordinance 

or contractual obligation relating to the use or reproduction of materials. The Engineer shall be solely 

responsible for ensuring that any materials provided by the Engineer pursuant to this Agreement satisfy this 

requirement and the Engineer agrees to indemnify and hold City harmless from all liability or loss caused 

to City or to which City is exposed on account of the Engineer’s failure to perform this duty. 

ARTICLE VI. SCOPE OF WORK 

The Engineer shall accomplish the following: Professional Services related to the Services, as 

provided in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

ARTICLE VII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS 

The Engineer and the City agree that the Engineer shall perform the duties under this Agreement 

as an independent contractor and shall be considered as independent contractor under this Agreement and/or 

in its activities hereunder for all purposes. The Engineer has the sole discretion to determine the manner in 

which the Services are to be performed. During the performance of the Services under this Agreement, the 

Engineer and the Engineer’s employees and/or sub-consultants, will not be considered, for any purpose, 

employees or agents of the City within the meaning or the application of any federal, state or local law or 

regulation, including without limitation, laws, rules or regulations regarding or related to unemployment 

insurance, old age benefits, workers compensation, labor, personal injury or taxes of any kind. 

 

ARTICLE VIII. INSURANCE 



Page 4 of 11 

 

The Engineer shall procure and carry, at its sole cost and expense through the life of this Agreement, 

except as otherwise provided herein, insurance protection as hereinafter specified, in form and substance 

satisfactory to the City, carried with an insurance company authorized to transact business in the state of 

Texas, covering all aspects and risks of loss of all operations in connection with this Agreement, including 

without limitation, the indemnity obligations set forth herein. The Engineer shall obtain and maintain in 

full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, and shall cause each approved subcontractor or sub-

consultant of the Engineer to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, 

commercial general liability, professional liability and automobile liability coverage for non-owned and 

hired vehicles with insurance carriers admitted to do business in the state of Texas. The insurance 

companies must carry a Best’s Rating of A-VII or better. Except for Professional Liability, the policies will 

be written on an occurrence basis, subject to the following minimum limits of liability: 

Commercial General Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $1,000,000 

General Aggregate Limit: $2,000,000 

Professional Liability: 

Combined Single Limit: $2,000,000 

Automobile Liability: 

Combined Single Limit for any auto: $1,000,000 Per Occurrence 

Employer’s Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $1,000,000 

Worker’s Compensation 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $500,000 

The Engineer shall further cause any approved subcontractor or sub-consultant to procure and 

carry, during the term of this Agreement, the insurance coverage required of Engineer herein, including 

without limitation, Professional Liability coverage, protecting the City against losses caused by the 

professional negligence of the approved subcontractor or sub-consultant. The City shall be listed as a 

primary and noncontributory additional insured with respect to the Automobile Liability and Commercial 

General Liability and shall be granted a waiver of subrogation under those policies. The Engineer shall 

provide a Certificate of Insurance to the City as evidence of coverage.  

The Certificate shall provide 30 days’ notice of cancellation. A copy of the additional insured 

endorsement and waiver of subrogation attached to the policy shall be included in the Certificate. The 

Engineer shall elect to obtain worker’s compensation coverage pursuant to Section 406.002 of the Texas 

Labor Code. Further, the Engineer shall maintain said coverage throughout the term of this Agreement and 

shall comply with all provisions of Title 5 of the Texas Labor Code to ensure that the Engineer maintains 

said coverage. The Engineer may maintain Occupational Accident and Disability Insurance in lieu of 



Page 5 of 11 

 

Worker’s Compensation. In either event, the policy must be endorsed to include a waiver of subrogation in 

favor of the City. If at any time during the life of the Agreement or any extension hereof, the Engineer fails 

to maintain the required insurance in full force and effect, the Engineer shall be in breach hereof and all 

work under the Agreement shall be discontinued immediately. 

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the professional liability policy shall be 

maintained at the Engineer’s sole cost and expense. The retroactive date shall be no later than the 

commencement of the performance of this Agreement and the discovery period (possibly through tail 

coverage) shall be no less than 10 years after the completion of the Services provided for in this Agreement. 

The provisions of this Article VIII shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IX. EMPLOYMENT OF AGENTS/RETAINING OF CONSULTANTS 

The Engineer may employ or retain consultants, contractors, or third parties (any of which are 

referred to herein as “Sub-consultant”), to perform certain duties of Engineer, as set forth on Exhibit [insert 

correct value], attached hereto, under this Agreement, provided that the City approves the retaining of Sub-

consultants. The Engineer is at all times responsible to the City to perform the Services as provided in this 

Agreement and the Engineer is in no event relieved of any obligation under this Agreement upon retainage 

of any approved Sub-consultant. Any agent and/or Sub-consultant retained and/or employed by the 

Engineer shall be required by the Engineer to carry, for the protection and benefit of the City and the 

Engineer and naming said third parties as additional insureds, insurance as described above required to be 

carried by the Engineer in this Agreement.   

The Engineer represents that such services are either under applicable value thresholds or are 

otherwise exempt from notice and/or bid requirements under Texas Law. 

ARTICLE X. CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Engineer shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City's 

business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without prior written 

consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 

ARTICLE XI. INDEMNITY 

THE ENGINEER SHALL INDEMNIFY AND SAVE HARMLESS THE CITY OF LUBBOCK 

AND ITS ELECTED OFFICIALS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES FROM ALL SUITS, 

ACTIONS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND, CHARACTER, TYPE, 

OR DESCRIPTION, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING, 

ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, AND ATTORNEY'S FEES, FOR INJURY OR 

DEATH TO ANY PERSON, OR INJURY TO ANY PROPERTY, RECEIVED OR SUSTAINED BY 



Page 6 of 11 

 

ANY PERSON OR PERSONS OR PROPERTY, TO THE EXTENT ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO 

OR OCCASIONED BY, THE NEGLIGENT ACTS OF THE ENGINEER, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, 

AND/OR SUBCONSULTANTS, RELATED TO THE PERFORMANCE, OPERATIONS OR 

OMISSIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR THE USE OR OCCUPATION OF CITY OWNED 

PROPERTY. THE INDEMNITY OBLIGATION PROVIDED HEREIN SHALL SURVIVE THE 

EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

ARTICLE XII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS 

The Engineer shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, 

rules and regulations relating, in any way, manner or form, to the activities under this Agreement, and any 

amendments thereto. 

ARTICLE XIII. NOTICE 

 A. General. Whenever notice from the Engineer to the City or the City to the Engineer is required 

or permitted by this Agreement and no other method of notice is provided, such notice shall be given by 

(1) actual delivery of the written notice to the other party by hand (in which case such notice shall be 

effective upon delivery); (2) facsimile (in which case such notice shall be effective upon delivery); or (3) 

by depositing the written notice in the United States mail, properly addressed to the other party at the 

address provided in this article, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, in which case such 

notice shall be effective on the third business day after such notice is so deposited. 

B.  Engineer’s Address.  The Engineer’s address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 
Brandon Hardaway 
4411 98th Street, Suite 300 
Lubbock, Texas 79424 
Telephone: (806) 686-1082 
Email: brandon.hardaway@kimley-horn.com 
 

 C. City's Address. The City's address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

Zoltan Fekete 
City of Lubbock 
P.0. Box 2000 
1314 Avenue K  
Lubbock, Texas 79457 
Telephone: (806) 775-3317 
Email: zfekete@mylubbock.us 
 
 

D. Change of Address. Either party may change its address or numbers for purposes of notice by 

giving written notice to the other party as provided herein, referring specifically to this Agreement, and 



Page 7 of 11 

 

setting forth such new address or numbers. The address or numbers shall become effective on the 15th day 

after such notice is effective. 

ARTICLE XIV. CITY-PROVIDED DATA AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 Provision of Data.  The City shall furnish the Engineer non-confidential studies, reports and other 

available data in the possession of the City pertinent to the Engineer’s Services, so long as the City is 

entitled to rely on such studies, reports and other data for the performance of the Engineer’s Services under 

this Agreement (the “Provided Data”). The Engineer shall be entitled to use and rely, so long as such 

reliance is reasonable, upon all such Provided Data. 

ARTICLE XV. MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Captions. The captions for the articles and sections in this Agreement are inserted in this 

Agreement strictly for the parties' convenience in identifying the provisions to this Agreement and shall not 

be given any effect in construing this Agreement. 

B. Audit. The Engineer shall provide access to its corporate books and records to the City. The City 

may audit, at its expense and during normal business hours, the Engineer’s books and records with respect 

to this Agreement between the Engineer and the City. 

C. Records. The Engineer shall maintain records that are necessary to substantiate the services 

provided by the Engineer. 

D. Assignability. The Engineer may not assign this Agreement without the prior written approval 

of the City. 

E. Successor and Assigns. This Agreement binds and inures to the benefit of the City and the 

Engineer, and in the case of the City, its respective successors, legal representatives, and assigns, and in the 

case of the Engineer, its permitted successors and assigns. 

F. Construction and Venue.  

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 

LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. THIS AGREEMENT IS PERFORMABLE IN LUBBOCK 

COUNTY, TEXAS. THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY CONSENT TO THE SOLE 

AND EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF THE COURTS OF COMPETENT 

JURISDICTION OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, COUNTY OF LUBBOCK, FOR THE PURPOSES OF 

ALL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE 

ACTIONS THAT ARE CONTEMPLATED HEREBY. 



Page 8 of 11 

 

G. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is ever held to be invalid or ineffective by any 

court of competent jurisdiction with respect to any person or circumstance, the remainder of this Agreement 

and the application of such provision to persons and/or circumstances other than those with respect to which 

it is held invalid or ineffective shall not be affected thereby. 

H. Amendment. No amendment, modification, or alteration of the terms of this Agreement shall be 

binding unless such amendment, modification, or alteration is in writing, dated subsequent to this 

Agreement, and duly authorized and executed by the Engineer and the City. 

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including Exhibits “A” through “B” attached hereto, contains 

the entire agreement between the City and the Engineer, and there are no other written or oral promises, 

conditions, warranties, or representations relating to or affecting the matters contemplated herein.  

J. No Joint Enterprise. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to imply a joint venture, joint 

enterprise, partnership or principal – agent relationship between the Engineer and the City. 

K. Documents Owned by City. Any and all documents, drawings and specifications prepared by 

Engineer as part of the Services hereunder, shall become the property of the City when the Engineer has 

been compensated as set forth in Article II, above. The Engineer shall make copies of any and all work 

products for its files.  

L. Notice of Waiver. A waiver by either the City or the Engineer of a breach of this Agreement 

must be in writing and duly authorized to be effective. In the event either party shall execute and deliver 

such waiver, such waiver shall not affect the waiving party’s rights with respect to any other or subsequent 

breach. 

M. Third Party Activities. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to provide any rights or 

benefits whatsoever to any party other than the City and the Engineer. 

N. Non-Appropriation. All funds for payment by the City under this Agreement are subject to the 

availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of non-appropriation of 

funds by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the services provided under the Agreement, the City 

will terminate the Agreement, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-

current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the services covered by this 

Agreement is spent, whichever event occurs first (the “Non-Appropriation Date”).  If at any time funds are 

not appropriated for the continuance of this Agreement, cancellation shall be accepted by the Engineer on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall 

not be obligated under this Agreement beyond the Non-Appropriation Date. 



Page 9 of 11 

 

O. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist 

Organization Prohibited.  Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City 

from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to 

have contracts with or provide supplies or service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

P. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This 

section applies only to a contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more 

full-time employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public 

funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract with a company 

for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the company that it: (1) does 

not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 

Q. Texas Government Code 2274. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it 

does not, and will not for the duration  of  the  contract,  have  a  practice,  policy,  guidance,  or  directive  

that  discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by 

Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract.  If Contractor is a company 

with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or more, 

Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, 

policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and 

will not discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 

R. Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 

contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas 

Government Code does not apply to the contract.  If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time 

employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant 

to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott 

energy companies during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement 

where a governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental 

entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt 

obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 

S. Texas Public Information Act.  The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government 

Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if 

the contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor agrees 

to:  (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contract as provided by the records retention 

requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the contract; (2) promptly provide to 

the governmental body any contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or 

possession of the entity on request of the governmental body; and (3) on completion of the contract, either: 





City of Lubbock – Upland Ave Segment 1 Construction Phase Services Page 1 of 3
Engineering Scope of Services July 2024

EXHIBIT A
Engineering Scope of Services

Upland Ave – Segment 1
From 66th Street to 82nd Street

City of Lubbock

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

The Client has requested Kimley-Horn to provide construction phase services for the Upland
Avenue Segment 1, 66th Street to 82nd Street project. This scope of services consists of the
following:

a. Construction Phase Services
b. Record Drawings

Construction Phase Services (Reimbursable/Hourly)

The scope of services listed below may or may not be performed as part of our construction phase
services. Kimley-Horn’s role during construction will be provided upon request of the Client and
billed on a reimbursable basis as labor and direct expenses are incurred. The budgeted fee for this
task is based upon approximately 433 hours of labor. We will not proceed with performance of
services beyond the hours budgeted, without written authorization by the Client.

1. Project Management
a. Project Communication: Attend two (2) progress/coordination meetings per

month with the Client and/or Contractor during the Construction phase of the
project

b. Project Administration: Prepare project correspondence and invoice documents
2. Site Visits upon request
3. Pre-Construction Meeting. Attend Pre-Construction Meeting(s) prior to commencement of

Work at the Site
4. Franchise Utility Coordination. Assist the Client with franchise utility coordination efforts

and conflict resolution during construction.
5. Clarifications and Interpretations. Issue clarifications and interpretations of the Contract

Documents to Client as appropriate to the orderly completion of Contractor's work.  Such
clarifications and interpretations will be consistent with the intent of the Contract
Documents.  Field Orders authorizing variations from the requirements of the Contract
Documents will be made by Client.

6. Change Orders. Recommend Change Orders to Client, as appropriate.  Review and make
recommendations related to Change Orders submitted or proposed by the Contractor. Task
includes preparing plan sheet revisions.

7. Shop Drawings and Samples. Review and approve or take other appropriate action in
respect to Shop Drawings and Samples and other data which Contractor is required to



City of Lubbock – Upland Ave Segment 1 Construction Phase Services Page 2 of 3
Engineering Scope of Services July 2024

submit, but only for conformance with the information given in the Contract Documents
and compatibility with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole
as indicated in the Contract Documents.  Such review and approvals or other action will not
extend to means, methods, techniques, equipment choice and usage, sequences, schedules,
or procedures of construction or to related safety precautions and programs.

8. Substitutes and "or-equal." Evaluate and determine the acceptability of substitute or "or-
equal" materials and equipment proposed by Contractor in accordance with the Contract
Documents, but subject to the provisions of applicable standards of state or local
government entities.

9. Disagreements between Client and Contractor. As necessary, render written decision on all
claims of Client and Contractor relating to the acceptability of Contractor's work or the
interpretation of the requirements of the Contract Documents pertaining to the progress of
Contractor's work.  In rendering such decisions, KHA shall be fair and not show partiality to
Client or Contractor and shall not be liable in connection with any decision rendered in good
faith in such capacity.

10. Limitation of Responsibilities. Kimley-Horn shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions
of any Contractor, or of any of their subcontractors, suppliers, or of any other individual or
entity performing or furnishing the Work.  Kimley-Horn shall not have the authority or
responsibility to stop the work of any Contractor.

11. Record Drawings. Kimley-Horn will prepare a record drawing showing significant changes
reported by the contractor or made to the design by Kimley-Horn. Record drawings are not
guaranteed to be as-build, but will be based on information made available.

Additional Services

Services not specifically identified in the Scope of Services above shall be considered additional and
shall be performed on an individual basis upon authorization by the City. Such services shall
include, but are not limited to, the following:

· Design of any offsite drainage improvements beyond the improvements identified in the
scope

· Existing water or sanitary sewer relocations
· Proposed water or sanitary sewer installations
· Landscape design
· Irrigation design
· Traffic signal design
· Construction Contract Administration
· Construction Phase RPR services
· Design of structural retaining walls
· Preparation for and attendance at public meetings beyond what was identified in the

scope
· Furnish additional copies of review documents and/or bid documents more than the

number of the same identified above



City of Lubbock – Upland Ave Segment 1 Construction Phase Services Page 3 of 3
Engineering Scope of Services July 2024

· Assist the City as an expert witness in litigation about the project or in hearings before
approving and regulatory agencies

· Redesign to reflect project scope changes requested by the City, required to address
changed conditions or change in direction previously approved by the City, mandated by
changing governmental laws, or necessitated by the City’s acceptance of substitutions
proposed by the contractor

TIME OF COMPLETION

Engineer and Subconsultants are authorized to commence work on the Project upon execution of a
mutually acceptable contract and agrees to complete the services through September 30th, 2025.



Task No. Task Name (Hourly) Kimley-Horn Freese Subtotal

1 Construction Phase Services 149,500.00$ 30,000.00$ 179,500.00$

149,500.00$ 30,000.00$ 179,500.00$

Labor fee will be billed on an hourly basis according to our then-current rates.  As to these tasks, direct
reimbursable expenses such as express delivery services, fees, air travel, and other direct expenses will
be billed at 1.15 times cost.  A percentage of labor fee will be added to each invoice to cover certain
other expenses as to these tasks such as telecommunications, in-house reproduction, postage,
supplies, project related computer time, and local mileage.  Administrative time related to the project
may be billed hourly.  All permitting, application, and similar project fees will be paid directly by the
Client. Should the Client request Kimley-Horn to advance any such project fees on the Client’s behalf, a
separate invoice for such fees, with a fifteen percent (15%) markup, will be immediately issued to and
paid by the Client.
Payment will be due within 25 days of your receipt of the invoice and should include the invoice
number and Kimley-Horn project number

Exhibit B - Fee Schedule
City of Lubbock

Upland Ave - 66th Street to 82nd Street
7/25/2024

Total Contract Fee

Kimley-Horn will perform the services in Tasks 1 on a labor fee plus expense basis with the maximum
labor fee shown above.



98TH ST

114TH ST

M
IL
W
A
U
K
E
E
 A
V

SPUR 327

F
R
A
N
K
F
O
R
D
 A
V

S
L
ID

E
 R
D

S
L
ID

E
 R
D

Q
U
A
K
E
R
 A
V

Q
U
A
K
E
R
 A
V

U
P
L
A
N
D
 A
V

50TH ST 50TH ST

66TH ST

82ND ST

130TH ST

Phase 1

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code,  this
product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Upland Avenue
Street Project

Phase 1
Phase 2
Phase 3
Lubbock City Limits

0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
Miles

Phase 2

Phase 3



City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
August 8, 2023

Capital Project Number: 92510
Capital Project Name: Upland Avenue 66th Street to 82nd Street

Budget
Encumbered/Expended 92510

Engineering Operations  $                                                          36,103
Kimley Horn Contract No. 14034                                                         1,180,000
TxDOT Construction AFA CAT 7 Funds                                                            821,115
TxDOT Design AFA                                                                3,760
Kimley Horn Contract 14034 Amendment 1                                                         1,347,300
Kimley Horn Contract 14034 Amendment 2
Kimley Horn Contract 14034 Amendment 3
Kimley Horn Contract 14034 Amendment 4                                                            351,200
ROW Acqusition Segment 1                                                            953,366
ROW Acqusition Segment 2
Utility Relocations                                                                5,315
Kimley Horn Contract 14034 Amendment 5                                                            542,300
TxDOT Construction AFA CAT 10 Funds                                                            417,300

Agenda Item September 10, 2024
Kimley Horn Contract 18273, Upland Segment 1                                                            179,500

Encumbered/Expended to Date                                                         5,837,259

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Construction                                                            523,052

Remaining Appropriation                                                            523,052
Total Appropriation To Date  $                                                     6,360,311



Project Scope

This roadway is designated in the  2018 Master Thoroughfare  Plan to become a modified principal ar terial.  This roadway is
currently  two lane strip paved.  Development and growth in this area has resulted in this roadway exceeding the  current
capacity  of the  two lane structure .  The first  year of this project funded the  Environmental Study  and Engineering
Schematics for the  Upland Avenue Corridor between 66th Street and 114th Street.  The second year funded the  Right-of-
Way acquisit ion ahead of the  improvements between 66th Street and 82nd Street.  The third year funded the  Engineering
Design and Construction of a 5- lane roadway section that will include pedestrian e lements,  drainage ,  street light ing,  and
ADA compliance between 66th Street and 82nd Street.

Project Justi�cation

The City of Lubbock continues to strive to meet the transportation needs of the Citizens of Lubbock.
The City must continue to anticipate the infrastructure needs for a growing population in order to
provide a safe and efficient transportation system. Due to continued development in the area of Upland
Avenue, this roadway has become congested and the road structure is requiring constant maintenance
in order to safely serve the traveling public. The construction of the Marsha Sharp Freeway and Upland
Avenue intersection by the Texas Department of Transportation will only increase the need for these
proposed improvements.
This project has MPO participation

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2017-18 $2,470,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2017-O0111
FY 2018-19 $448,687 was appropriated by Ord.
2018-O0109
FY 2019-20 $3,600,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2019-O0129
FY 2019-20 $841,624 was appropriated by Ord.
2021-O0146
FY 2019-20 $1,000,000 was reassigned
FY 2023-24 $10,630,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2023-O0108

Project Dates Project Location

Bid Date - Design: 07/2018
Award Date for Bid - Design: 08/2018
Project Start Date - Design: 08/2018
Project End Date - Design: 06/2023
Bid Date - Construction: 12/2023
Award Date for Bid - Construction: 05/2024
Project Start Date - Construction: 06/2024
Project End Date - Construction: 12/2025

Upland Ave - 66th to 82nd St

CIP 92510CIP 92510 Upland Ave - 66th to 82nd Street Upland Ave - 66th to 82nd Street
Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: Bailey RatcliffeProject Manager: Bailey Ratcliffe  - Engineering- Engineering



Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Design $1,700,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Construction $14,071,624 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Acquisition $1,218,687 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $16,990,311 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Zone A Impact Fees $1,270,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Zone F Impact Fees $1,600,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Gateway Fund Bonds $6,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Gateway Fund Prior Year Bonds $5,518,687 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TxDOT Participation $841,624 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Stormwater Fund Cash $1,760,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $16,990,311 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 12810 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 6. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Water System Operations: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 18255, with the United States Geological Survey, Oklahoma-Texas Water Science Center, for
monitoring and analyzing storm water discharging into both Lake Alan Henry and the future Lake 7.

Item Summary
Contract 18255 is an annual joint funding agreement with the United States Geological Survey (USGS),
Oklahoma-Texas Water Science Center, United States Department of the Interior. This annual
agreement pays for required remote and on-site work necessary to maintain, monitor, and analyze data
for 6 streamflow gauging stations.

Two established gauging stations are at Lake Alan Henry, one gauging station is at Southeast Loop 289,
and three stations were recently added within the City of Lubbock. The three newest gauging stations
are required for a Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) water rights permit. Measuring
Lubbock storm water outfalls provides accounting of developed storm water that can be impounded in
the future Lake 7.

USGS will maintain the gauging stations and manage the data. USGS also determines the cost for
annual monitoring of these stations.

Staff recommends awarding the contract to USGS for $112,450, which is the City's portion of the joint
funding for the project. This contract is for a one-year term from October 1, 2024, to September 30, 2025.

USGS will fund $8,950 and the City of Lubbock will fund $112,450, for a combined total of $121,400.

Fiscal Impact
The City's portion of this contract, which is $112,450, is funded in the FY 2024-25 Proposed Operating
Budget for the Water Reservoir Department.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution - Contract 18255, USGS 
Contract - 18255 USGS Survey Funding Agmt 













 AI# 12801 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 7. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Traffic Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Purchase Order 10027686, with Mobotrex, Inc., for the purchase of traffic signal components for
various intersections under construction by the Texas Department of Transportation along 19th Street
(SH114), and the intersection at Interstate 27 and Regis Street (FM2641).

Item Summary
As part of the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) intersection upgrades along 19th Street (SH
114) associated with current construction projects, the Traffic Management Department will furnish and
install various traffic signal components to ensure that all traffic signal equipment within the City is
consistent with other traffic signal components throughout the City.  In addition, the Traffic
Management Department recently installed signal equipment at the newly constructed intersection at
I-27 and Regis Street (FM 2641) that was built by TxDOT.

Purchase Order 10027686 includes the following equipment:
  

• Ten (10) 332L Traffic Signal Cabinets and Components
• Ten (10) Multilink Battery Backup Systems
• Eleven (11) Opticom Emergency Preemption Systems

The purchase will be made through BuyBoard Contract 703-23. BuyBoard is a local Government
Purchasing Cooperative created to increase the purchasing power of government entities and to simplify
their purchasing by using a customized online purchasing system. Its purpose is to obtain the benefits
and efficiencies that can accrue to members.

All costs associated with this purchase will be reimbursed to the City by TxDOT, in accordance with
existing agreements between TxDOT and the City. 

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 10027686, with Mobotrex, Inc., for $237,246 is funded in the following Capital
Improvement Projects. 

Capital Improvement Project 8695, FM 2641 Signals
Capital Improvement Project 8697, US62 & MLK Signals
Capital Improvement Project 8698, 19th Street/US62 Signals

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works



Attachments
Resolution 
Purchase Order 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 



RESOLUTION 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute 
for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Purchase Order No. I 0027686, for purchase of Signal 
Cabinets, Emergency Vehicle Detection System, and Battery Backups for New Intersections, as 
per Buy Board 703-23, by and between the City of Lubbock and Mobotrex, Inc., and related 
documents. Said Purchase Order is attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if 
fully set forth herein and shall be included in the minutes of the City Council. 

Passed by the City Council on _____________ _ 

ATTEST: 

Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 

ccdocs Il/RES.Mobotrex, Inc.-PurchaseOrd 

August 14, 2024 

MARK W. MCBRAYER, MAYOR 



1Page    -
Date    - 8/9/2024P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 10027686 OP000
Branch/Plant         4525

MOBOTREX, INC CITY OF LUBBOCK
109 W 55TH ST TRAFFIC CONTROLS BUILDING

202 MUNICIPAL DRDAVENPORT IA 52806
LUBBOCK TX 79403

.Freight
Taken By L VILLANUEVA

PUR 18248

Ordered 8/9/2024 
Requested 9/30/2024 
Delivery PER K RICE REQ 62025

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
4.000 13,615.0000 EA
1.000 13,615.0000 EA
5.000 13,615.0000 EA
8.000 2,350.0000 EA
8.000 310.0000 EA
8.000 2,650.0000 EA
8.000 250.0000 EA
1.000 2,350.0000 EA
1.000 310.0000 EA

1.000 2,650.0000 EA
1.000 250.0000 EA

1.000 2,530.0000 EA
2.000 48.0000 EA
2.000 755.0000 EA
2.000 2,530.0000 EA
4.000 48.0000 EA
4.000 755.0000 EA
1.000 2,350.0000 EA
1.000 310.0000 EA
1.000 2,650.0000 EA
1.000 250.0000 EA
8.000 2,530.0000 EA

16.000 48.0000 EA

332L Cabinet, Unpainted 
332L Cabinet, Unpainted 
332L Cabinet, Unpainted
EDP2000 DBL CONV UPS, 48VDC 
Standard, Transfer, Switch

BBS Cab, w/c-ch,3 Adj Slide She 
Battery Cable, 4 Battery, 48V 
EDP2000 Dbl Conv Ups, 48VDC 
Standard, Transfer, Switch

BBS Cab, w/c-ch,3 Adj Slide She 
Battery Cable, 4 Battery, 48V Opitcal 
Signal Processor -4 CH 
MINIBRAC:3/4-14NPT,84"Cbl Alum 
Detector, Optical, Int Conf, LED 
Optical Signal Processor -4 CH 
MINIBRAC:3/4-14NPT,84"Cbl Alum 
Detector, Optical, Int Conf, LED 
EDP2000 Dbl Conv Ups, 48VDC 
Standard, Transfer, Switch
BBS Cab, w/c-ch,3 Adj Slide She 
Battery Cable, 4 Battery, 48V Optical 
Signal Processor -4 CH 
MINIBRAC:3/4-14NPT,84"Cbl Alum 
Detector, Optical, Int Conf, LED 16.000 755.0000 EA

54,460.00 9/30/2024 
13,615.00 9/30/2024 
68,075.00 9/30/2024 
18,800.00 9/30/2024 
2,480.00 9/30/2024 

21,200.00 9/30/2024 
2,000.00 9/30/2024 
2,350.00 9/30/2024 

310.00 9/30/2024 
2,650.00 9/30/2024 

250.00 9/30/2024 
2,530.00 9/30/2024 

96.00 9/30/2024 
1,510.00 9/30/2024 
5,060.00 9/30/2024 

192.00 9/30/2024 
3,020.00 9/30/2024 
2,350.00 9/30/2024 

310.00 9/30/2024 
2,650.00 9/30/2024 

250.00 9/30/2024 
20,240.00 9/30/2024 

768.00 9/30/2024 
12,080.00 9/30/2024

Total Order

/ BUY BOARD 703-23

If you have any questions in regard to this order, please contact Kenny Rice at 806-775-2174 or KRice@mylubbock.us

237,246.00Terms NET 30



2Page    -
Date    - 8/9/2024P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 10027686 OP000
Branch/Plant         4525

MOBOTREX, INC CITY OF LUBBOCK
109 W 55TH ST TRAFFIC CONTROLS BUILDING

202 MUNICIPAL DRDAVENPORT IA 52806
LUBBOCK TX 79403

Ordered .Freight7/29/2024
Taken ByRequested 9/30/2024 L VILLANUEVA

PUR 18248Delivery PER K RICE REQ 62025 / BUY BOARD 703-23

This purchase order encumbers fund in the amount of $237,246.00 awarded to Mobotrex, Inc. of Davenport, IA   
on ______________________, 2024.  The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by
reference: Quote dated July 16, 2024, from Mobotrex, Inc. of Davenport, IA and BuyBoard Contract 703-23.

Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

______________________________________

Mark McBrayer, Mayor

ATTEST: 

______________________________________

Courtney Paz, City Secretary



��������	
�������������������� ������������������������� �!"#�$%&''()�#*+,%*-.��/(-0(+1����2/+()(3&-�4%�/55*)6�$7������8�����+(,90�:,&,9. ;������<�=>�?*-0%(019@�A(+)9+,�AB�C��D������ �!"#����D������C�#E�"��$�����;����F G��C���>���D������C ;��D� ����C<�<#E�H��8���	8H
�8��� �����)&5(+9,�IJKL?�7�MNLO�7�PQL4R@�/+3&(+,90 	� S	�@
	HB�� S	�
@	H�B��T�U��V���C�� WXYZ[X\]̂]]:&-9.�$&_̀ �B��2(.)�#a&%19.̀ �B��b���U�V���C�� WXYZ[X\]̂]]c�����dee�fghij�kl�kmn�ompokdnq�rklgndrgstuvwxvjyfzzfl{�flremqhqf|}~�����xuu��ghhjw}���~��|��vvxe�}���|��r���|�����vvxe���t�y���x������vu�q����|���|���g��������������sx�~�}��������}�zqd�sxe������hqf�i���~�xu�e�����������~�k��������~��s�e������������|��������k��������~��sxe��������~���x��f|������~��f|����z�|�~�s�j����}��z�|�~�s�jzd�������~�����~������������z�~~w����q������x��ehq�~�������|�~�������|���|�~��~~���|����|�����������}�w}�|���~~����| ��������������hqf�i���~�xu�¡¢re���r�|�~�}��i�|������¡��zqr�i���~�xuu�e����j���}����x��zqr�i���~�xu���~����������j��������wq�||�i���~�x�drz�wx x��o�z��~����g��|�����n�~�����u��zqr�i���~�x�x�qr�f��~�����l����|}~�����r�|���~~��n��������������~�����£��������������~��2*5*,%9_@�"+) ¤&19�	�*'��¥%(0&¦@�§/-¦�	�@����� ��̀		�E2

G����G�����c�� �̈�� ���X©YY]ZZ	���O9.,�HH,a�:,%99,�ª�4&«9+3*%,@�"E�H�¬�
�ª�H
�R����8����

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $204,833.69 awarded to Child's Play, Inc. of Dallas, TX, 

on _________________, 2024. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: Quote 

dated February 09, 2024, from Child's Play, Inc. of Dallas, TX, and BuyBoard Contract 592-19. 

Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

_______________________________________ 

Tray Payne, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________________ 
Courtney Paz, City Secretary



��������	
�������������������� ������������������������� �!"#�$%&''"#�()�*%)+,��-"+."�/����0-�"#"1&+�2%�-33)#4�$5������6������"*�.�7*&*�, 8������9�:;�<)+.%"./�=�>"�#��*�>?�@��A������ �!"#����A������@�0��$B�BC�����8����D E��@���;���A������@ 8��A� ����@9�9F55	�GGH6��� �	�6���6���I2F�����2���(JC>��F7=��G>2( 	� K�=�H�?�� K��=H��?��F55	�GG�6��� �	�6H�
6	��7$LC2L!2=�$!LC7MI!=7NB$(< 	� K�	�?�� K�=	��?��F(I			��6��	 ��H		
���7�(L�=N�(6(<=��L2O�7�B2I�7<I�M 	� K�=
H�?�� K�
=H��?��F�N	�GG
6��� G��6���6	���&**�% �(&3+�=����&**�% =��G> 	� K�H�?�� K�=H��?��P�Q��R���@�� STTUVWWXWW7&+�,�$&YZ �?��0",#�([&%/�,Z �?��\���Q�R���@�� STTUVWWXWW]�����_̂̀aàbc�̀bdefghgiee�̀jhk �̂lb�lfm�nfonlimg�dlbjmidjpqrstus\�����$<B7�v�J$I�B7��L7I2�JC�$<I�IC$B!I�>L��I�LC2�>J��0I�JM�L����BCI�B$I07�6�F%"#�,�+",*�.�)��*[",�w-)*��&%��x&+".�)�+ �"��*[���x��*�)'�1-%#[&,��)'�&++�+"���"*�y,�"��*[��w-&�*"*"�,�+",*�.=�"��*[�"%���*"%�* ?��F-%#[&,�,�)'�"�."x".-&+�+"���"*�y,�z"++�%�w-"%��&���z�w-)*��1%")%�*)�&##�1*&�#��)'�&� �1-%#[&,��)%.�%,?FL{0IC$�$I!07�L!I�CI$����2L{7�z"*[�1%")%�&11%)x�.�#%�."*?��0)3)$%�Y=�B�#?�%�*&"�,�*"*+��*)�y&*�%"&+�-�*"+�1&".�"��'-++?��L�,�%x"#��#[&%/��)'�	?H|�1�%�y)�*[�}	G|�&��-&+�%&*�~�z"++�3��&,,�,,�.�&/&"�,*�&++�1&,*�.-��&##)-�*,?��F%"#�,�&�.�.�+"x�% �w-)*�.�&%��'"%y�')%����.& ,�'%)y�*[��.&*&�)'�3".?��$[��&3)x��w-)*��.)�,��)*�"�#+-.��"�,*&++&*")��)'�*[��1%).-#*,�w-)*�.?��J�67"*��*�#[�"#&+�&,,",*&�#��",�&x&"+&3+��&�.�z"++�3��w-)*�.�-1)��%�w-�,*?v-)*&*")��.)�,��)*�"�#+-.��,&+�,�*&Y?��7&+�,�*&Y�z"++�3��&..�.�&*�*"y��)'�"�x)"#��-�+�,,�&�x&+".�7&+�,�$&Y�IY�y1*�#�%*"'"#&*��[&,�3����1%)x".�.?��7&+�,�*&Y��Y�y1*�#�%*"'"#&*��,[)-+.�&##)y1&� �#-,*)y�%�F-%#[&,��J%.�%?�"y"*�.�N&%%&�* Z��0)3)$%�Y=�B�#?�)�+ �)3+"/&*")�,�,[&++�3��*)�%�1+&#��,-#[�w-&�*"* �)'�*[��1%).-#*�1%)x���*)�3��.�'�#*"x�?N&%%&�* �F�%").Z��$[��+��/*[�)'�z&%%&�* �y&�-'&#*-%�%,�[&x��#)�x� �.�*)�*[��,�++�%�&�.�z["#[�#&��3��1&,,�.�)��*)�*[��3- �%?L.."*")�&+�*�%y,�&�.�#)�."*")�,�&11+ �6�7���0)3)$%�Y=�B�#?�$�%y,���()�."*")�,�.)#-y��*�&*�)-%�z�3,"*�Z��zzz?y)3)*%�Y?#)y?$[&�4� )-�')%�*[��)11)%*-�"* �*)�1%)x".��*[",�w-)*�?0)3)*%�Y=�B�# F&/��	�)'�	$-�,.& =�O-+ �	
=����� �GZ���L0

E����E�����]������ �������T�W	���N�,*�HH*[�7*%��*���2&x��1)%*=�BL�H�G�
���}H
�~����6����

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $204,833.69 awarded to Child's Play, Inc. of Dallas, TX, 

on _________________, 2024. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: Quote 

dated February 09, 2024, from Child's Play, Inc. of Dallas, TX, and BuyBoard Contract 592-19. 

Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

_______________________________________ 

Tray Payne, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________________ 
Courtney Paz, City Secretary



��������	
�������������������� ������������������������� �!"#�$%&''"#�()�*%)+,��-"+."�/����0-�"#"1&+�2%�-33)#4�$5������6������"*�.�7*&*�, 8������9�:;�<)+.%"./�=�>"�#��*�>?�@��A������ �!"#����A������@�$B0C!�0C7$�C!0�0B�D$�E�B$F8����G H��@���;���A������@ 8��A� ����@9�9B7IB(>�6� BI$J(C��7JKDC��I!B(F77B!�6��(<CDDF� 		 L�=M��?�� L��=N��?��0C7$�C!0��!C(�F$ 0JDJ�!C(O���6	�DI$=N�P(���C��0 �� L�N?�� L	=�M
?��2F$B(��6J(6Q 2F$F($B!=BI$J(C�=JD$�(BDR=�F2=�<=�Q=Q<$ �� L�MM?�� L	
=
	�?��S�T��U���@�� VWXYWZ[\]]7&+�,�$&̂O �?��0",#�(_&%/�,O �?���̀��T�U���@�� VWXYWZ[\]]a�����bcdeedfg�dfhijklkmii�dnlob�pf�pjq�rjsrpmqk�hpfnqmhntuvwxyw�̀����$<J7�E�B$F�J7��C7F2�BD�$<F�FD$J!F�>C��F�CD2�>B��0F�BR�C����JDF�J$F07�6�I%"#�,�+",*�.�)��*_",�z-)*��&%��{&+".�)�+ �"��*_���{��*�)'�1-%#_&,��)'�&++�+"���"*�|,�"��*_��z-&�*"*"�,�+",*�.=�"��*_�"%���*"%�* ?��I-%#_&,�,�)'�"�."{".-&+�+"���"*�|,�}"++�%�z-"%��&���}�z-)*��1%")%�*)�&##�1*&�#��)'�&� �1-%#_&,��)%.�%,?IC~0FD$�$F!07�C!F�DF$����2C~7�}"*_�1%")%�&11%){�.�#%�."*?��0)3)$%�̂=�J�#?�%�*&"�,�*"*+��*)�|&*�%"&+�-�*"+�1&".�"��'-++?��C�,�%{"#��#_&%/��)'�	?M��1�%�|)�*_��	N��&��-&+�%&*���}"++�3��&,,�,,�.�&/&"�,*�&++�1&,*�.-��&##)-�*,?��I%"#�,�&�.�.�+"{�% �z-)*�.�&%��'"%|�')%����.& ,�'%)|�*_��.&*&�)'�3".?��$_��&3){��z-)*��.)�,��)*�"�#+-.��"�,*&++&*")��)'�*_��1%).-#*,�z-)*�.?��B�67"*��*�#_�"#&+�&,,",*&�#��",�&{&"+&3+��&�.�}"++�3��z-)*�.�-1)��%�z-�,*?E-)*&*")��.)�,��)*�"�#+-.��,&+�,�*&̂?��7&+�,�*&̂�}"++�3��&..�.�&*�*"|��)'�"�{)"#��-�+�,,�&�{&+".�7&+�,�$&̂�F̂�|1*�#�%*"'"#&*��_&,�3����1%){".�.?��7&+�,�*&̂��̂�|1*�#�%*"'"#&*��,_)-+.�&##)|1&� �#-,*)|�%�I-%#_&,��B%.�%?�"|"*�.�Q&%%&�* O��0)3)$%�̂=�J�#?�)�+ �)3+"/&*")�,�,_&++�3��*)�%�1+&#��,-#_�z-&�*"* �)'�*_��1%).-#*�1%){���*)�3��.�'�#*"{�?Q&%%&�* �I�%").O��$_��+��/*_�)'�}&%%&�* �|&�-'&#*-%�%,�_&{��#)�{� �.�*)�*_��,�++�%�&�.�}_"#_�#&��3��1&,,�.�)��*)�*_��3- �%?C.."*")�&+�*�%|,�&�.�#)�."*")�,�&11+ �6�7���0)3)$%�̂=�J�#?�$�%|,���()�."*")�,�.)#-|��*�&*�)-%�}�3,"*�O��}}}?|)3)*%�̂?#)|?$_&�4� )-�')%�*_��)11)%*-�"* �*)�1%){".��*_",�z-)*�?
0)3)*%�̂=�J�# I&/��	�)'�	R%".& =��-+ �	�=����� ��O	��C0

H����H�����a������ ����Z�WX��	���Q�,*�MM*_�7*%��*���2&{��1)%*=�JC�M�N�
����M
������6����

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $204,833.69 awarded to Child's Play, Inc. of Dallas, TX, 

on _________________, 2024. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: Quote 

dated February 09, 2024, from Child's Play, Inc. of Dallas, TX, and BuyBoard Contract 592-19. 

Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

_______________________________________ 

Tray Payne, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________________ 
Courtney Paz, City Secretary



��������	
������	
���
�������������	��������������������������	���	���
���������� ��!�"�#$�!%���&'#!��(���)( �"�#$ *��$�!%���)�$!�#+�,'��%(���#+�(  � �$���!�-���$�!%��&'($!�!���� ��!�".��$�!%�����$!���!*/���'��%(����#+��$"�)�"'( � �$���!�-��0�  ���&'����(�$�0�&'#!��,��#��!#�(���,!($���#+�($*�,'��%(���#�"���/��1���������
���������23���1
�0�!%�,��#��(,,�#)�"����"�!/���#4#���5.�	$�/���!(�$��!�! ��!#�-(!���( �'$!� �,(�"��$�+'  /�������)�����%(�6��#+�7/89�,���-#$!%�:7;9�($$'( ��(!�<�0�  �4��(������"�(6(�$�!�(  �,(�!�"'��(��#'$!�/���������($"�"� �)��*�&'#!�"�(���+��-�+#��23�"(*��+�#-�!%��"(!(�#+�4�"/���%��(4#)��&'#!��"#���$#!��$� '"���$�!(  (!�#$�#+�!%��,�#"'�!��&'#!�"/���$�
�!��!��%$��( �(����!($������()(� (4 ��($"�0�  �4��&'#!�"�',#$���&'��!/�'#!(!�#$�"#���$#!��$� '"���( ���!(5/��
( ���!(5�0�  �4��(""�"�(!�!�-��#+��$)#����'$ ����(�)( �"�
( ����(5��5�-,!����!�+��(!��%(��4��$�,�#)�"�"/��
( ���!(5��5�-,!����!�+��(!���%#' "�(��#-,($*��'�!#-����'��%(�����"��/��-�!�"�=(��($!*>���#4#���5.�	$�/�#$ *�#4 �6(!�#$���%(  �4��!#���, (����'�%�&'($!�!*�#+�!%��,�#"'�!�,�#)�$�!#�4��"�+��!�)�/=(��($!*�����#">���%�� �$6!%�#+�0(��($!*�-($'+(�!'�����%()���#$)�*�"�!#�!%����  ���($"�0%��%��($�4��,(���"�#$�!#�!%��4'*��/�""�!�#$( �!��-��($"��#$"�!�#$��(,, *���
����#4#���5.�	$�/����-��?�@#$"�!�#$��"#�'-�$!�(!�#'��0�4��!�>��000/-#4#!��5/�#-/�%($A�*#'�+#��!%��#,,#�!'$�!*�!#�,�#)�"��!%���&'#!�/

�#4#!��5.�	$� �(6��B�#+�B���"(*.�C' *�7D.�B3BE 3F>77���

GHIJ�GHIJ��KH�L��� ���MNOOPQQ73D�=��!�88!%�
!���!�R��()�$,#�!.�	��8B;3S�R�:8S2<�2B2�333D

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $204,833.69 awarded to Child's Play, Inc. of Dallas, TX, 

on _________________, 2024. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: Quote 

dated February 09, 2024, from Child's Play, Inc. of Dallas, TX, and BuyBoard Contract 592-19. 

Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

_______________________________________ 

Tray Payne, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________________ 
Courtney Paz, City Secretary



����������	�
�	������
	��������
������������������� ���!����"�#�$ �! %�&��"'�"()*+(*)+,,,-./��� 0/�$ �! %�12���"������232'!$2���"������2��� ���4��5!"� ,6+*6(6788��9 ):8�4��(("/�;"���"<  ��55�=!���) >'0��?��"��� ���&!"@ (*7:6��� ���A!? �<��� ���;"'"� B;<��� ���&�C�"�@ ):>�$!0��@�>'@5 DEF�>�5"!�'"!��D��!%/"����25 9�"�,:� '@5.'@2��"����25 D��!%/"�?��?'! ��@�0�� ���'� �'  � �"��!�0�!��;/!??!�%����25 F�5"�4'@;/!?��!' 9�>�5!%�'"� �>�'$��G�53>H<I�I���!0� 9�;��0!��+ !5'�$� ���"��'��EJ�� 9��!���!"@�EJ�� 9�4�2���EJ�� 9�9'"!��'$G�59��D���!%��������!5"�E�%5 G�59���5�'�$�F�@��""9��4F3 <$$����'5�I�%!��53;&5 <$$�;"'"�5;"'"�5 #!%/J'@�;'K�"@�'� ���'KK!��&��"��$�.�� C�"5&��"�'�"�9'2� -:,+*,&��"�'�"�9��:6L:)L*:*,3KK��"!0� :(L,)L*:*63�?!�'"!�� G�5<���?"5�IDM5 7L8L*:*N�)O))�.�
This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $204,833.69 awarded to Child's Play, Inc. of Dallas, TX, 

on _________________, 2024. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: Quote 

dated February 09, 2024, from Child's Play, Inc. of Dallas, TX, and BuyBoard Contract 592-19. 

Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

_______________________________________ 

Tray Payne, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________________ 
Courtney Paz, City Secretary



City of Lubbock
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
September 10, 2024

Capital Project Number: 8695
Capital Project Name: FM 2641 Signal

Capital Project Number: 8697
Capital Project Name: US 62 & MLK Signals

Capital Project Number: 8698
Capital Project Name: 19th/US 62 Signals

Capital Project Number: 8699
Capital Project Name: SL88 Signals

Budget
Encumbered/Expended 8695 8697 8698 8699 Total
Iteris Inc.  $         28,155             20,455  $         48,610
PB Cards               1,288                  374               1,661
Misc. Traffic Signal Equipment               4,070             22,005             96,005             20,350           142,430

Agenda Item  September 10, 2024
Mobotrex, Inc.             27,447               9,696           132,028             68,075           237,246

Encumbered/Expended To Date             60,960             52,530           228,033             88,425           429,947

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Construction               3,590               3,420           194,317           224,325           425,653

Remaining Appropriation               3,590               3,420           194,317           224,325           425,653

Total Appropriation  $         64,550             55,950           422,350           312,750  $       855,600



Project Scope

As part of TxDOT's intersection upgrades at FM 2641 (Regis Street) and I-27, the Traffic Management
Department will furnish and install traffic signal equipment at this location. 

Project Justi�cation

All costs will be reimbursed back to the City by TxDOT

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:  Public Safety,
Community Improvement, and Growth and
Development

FY 2023-24 $64,550 was appropriated by
Ord.2023-O0152

Project Dates Project Location

Start Date:  1/9/2024
Project End Date:  8/31/2024

FM2641 (Regis Street) and I-27

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $64,550 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $64,550 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

TxDOT Participation $64,550 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $64,550 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

CIP 8695CIP 8695 FM 2641 Signal FM 2641 Signal
Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: David Bragg - Traffic EngineeringProject Manager: David Bragg - Traffic Engineering

https://opengov.com/


Project Scope

As part of TxDOT's intersection upgrades at US 62 (Idalou Road) and Martin Luther King, Jr. Blvd, the
Traffic Management Department will furnish and install traffic signal equipment at this location. 

Project Justi�cation

All costs will be reimbursed back to the City by TxDOT

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:  Public Safety,
Community Improvement, and Growth and
Development 

FY 2023-24 $55,950 was appropriated by
Ord.2023-O0152

Project Dates Project Location

Start Date: 1/9/2024
Project End Date: 12/31/2024 

US62 & MLK Signal

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $55,950 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $55,950 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

TxDOT Participation $55,950 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $55,950 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

CIP 8697CIP 8697 US62 & MLK Signals US62 & MLK Signals
Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: David Bragg - Traffic EngineeringProject Manager: David Bragg - Traffic Engineering

https://opengov.com/


Project Scope

In conjunction with TxDOT's 19th Street roadway upgrade project, the Traffic Management
Department will furnish and install traffic signal equipment at signalized intersections being rebuilt by
TxDOT.  Intersections included in this project are 19th Street and Crickets, 19th Street and Buddy Holly
Avenue, 19th Street and Texas Avenue, 19th Street and Avenue K, 19th Street and Avenue L, 19th Street
and Avenue Q, 19th Street and Avenue U, 19th Street and Avenue T.

Project Justi�cation

All costs will be reimbursed back to the City by TxDOT.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:  Public Safety,
Community Improvement, and Growth and
Development

FY 2023-24 $422,350 was appropriated by
Ord.2023-O0152

Project Dates Project Location

Start Date: 1/9/2024
Project End Date: 12/31/2026

19th Street/US62

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $422,350 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $422,350 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

TxDOT Participation $422,350 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $422,350 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

CIP 8698CIP 8698 19th/US62 Signals 19th/US62 Signals
Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: David Bragg - Traffic EngineeringProject Manager: David Bragg - Traffic Engineering

https://opengov.com/


Project Scope

In conjunction with the construction of Loop 88 by TxDOT, the Traffic Management Department will
furnish and install traffic signal equipment at signalized intersections being built by TxDOT. 
Intersections included in this project are Loop 88 and Chicago Avenue, Loop 88 and Slide Road, Loop 88
and Quaker Avenue, Loop 88 and Indiana Avenue, Loop 88 and University Avenue.

Project Justi�cation

All costs will be reimbursed back to the City by TxDOT.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:  Public Safety,
Community Improvement, and Growth and
Development

FY 2023-24 $312,750 was appropriated by
Ord.2023-O0152

Project Dates Project Location

Start Date: 1/9/2024
Project End Date: 12/31/2027

SL88 Signals

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $312,750 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $312,750 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

TxDOT Participation $312,750 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $312,750 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

CIP 8699CIP 8699 SL88 Signals SL88 Signals
Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: David Bragg - Traffic EngineeringProject Manager: David Bragg - Traffic Engineering

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 12796 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 8. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to the HOME Investment Partnership Program Funding Agreement 16771, and all
related documents, with the City of Lubbock Housing Initiative, to provide rehabilitation of affordable
rental housing.

Item Summary
• Grantee: City of Lubbock Housing Initiative (CLHI), a non-profit of the Lubbock Housing
Authority
• Program: Affordable Rental Housing Rehabilitation
• Funding Source: HOME Investment Partnership Program through the U.S. Department of
Housing & Urban Development (HUD)
• Use of Funds: Continuation of rehabilitation of 72 single-family residential units of existing
affordable housing, owned by CLHI in Cherry Point Neighborhood
• Allocation: $3,000,000
• Original Terms: October 1, 2022 – September 30, 2023
• Extended Terms: October 1, 2022 – September 30, 2026

This grant funding is administered by HUD.

Fiscal Impact
Amendment No. 1 is for extension of time only, so there is no fiscal impact to the General Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Director of Community Development

Attachments
Resolution 
Amendment 1 











 AI# 12731 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 9. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0112, approving
the seventeenth supplemental ordinance updating the Vintage Township Public Improvement District
Service and Assessment Plan and Assessment Roll.

Item Summary
On August 27, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

On June 26, 2007 (second reading), the City Council approved Ordinance No. 2007-O0058, which
approved a Service and Assessment Plan and Assessment Roll for Vintage Township Public
Improvement District (PID).  Supplemental Ordinances reviewing and updating the Plan and levying the
assessment on property within the PID were passed September 11, 2008, September 24, 2009, September
27, 2010, September 27, 2011, September 27, 2012, September 26, 2013, September 4, 2014, September
10, 2015, September 8, 2016, September 14, 2017, September 27, 2018, September 24, 2019, September
8, 2020, September 14, 2021, September 13, 2022, and September 8, 2023. 
 
On April 24, 2008, the Vintage Township Public Facilities Corporation and the City Council authorized
the issuance of PID bonds, payable from assessments on the property within the PID, to provide
financing for public improvements within the PID.  The PID statute and the Assessment Ordinance
require that the City Council annually review and update the Service and Assessment Plan and the
Assessment Roll.

Since the PID assessments were levied on June 26, 2007, after a public hearing and public notice (and
now secure the bonds), it is not necessary to provide new notice or a public hearing relating to the
Service Plan Update.  As contemplated by the Assessment Ordinance, the Service Plan Update will
conform the original Assessment Roll to the principal and interest payment schedule required for the
bonds.  In addition, the Service Plan Update also updates the Assessment Roll to reflect prepayments,
property divisions, and changes to the budget allocation for PID improvements that occur during the
year, if any.

Fiscal Impact
The bonds are not payable from City funds, and there is no fiscal impact to the City.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Brianna Brown, Director of Business Development

Attachments
Vintage PID Ordinance 



Vintage PID Ordinance 
Vintage PID Service Plan 



























































 AI# 12748 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 10. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0118, reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the Bell Farms Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and filing with the City
Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and
improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the
property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment. 

Item Summary
On August 27, 2024, a public hearing was held, and the City Council approved the first reading of the
ordinance.

The purpose of the public hearing is to provide the opportunity for property owners in the Bell
Farms Public Improvement District (PID) to speak in favor of, or in opposition to, the assessment to be
levied in the Bell Farms PID for 2024. The City of Lubbock is required to hold a public hearing annually
to levy the assessment. A Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal,
and notices were mailed to the property owners by Thursday, August 10, 2024, as required by the
statute. At or on the adjournment of the hearing on proposed assessments, the governing body of the
municipality must hear and pass on any objections to the proposed assessment. 

The proposed assessment rate for 2024 is $0.12 per $100 valuation. This is the same rate as 2023. All
property will be assessed for 2024. 

The City Council is required to review the Service and Assessment Plan annually, hold a public hearing,
and adopt an ordinance setting the assessment rate for the PID. The attached ordinance reflects the
proposed assessment rate of $0.12 per $100 valuation. The revised service and assessment plan is
included in the backup. Exhibit C to the ordinance is available for viewing in the Office of the City
Secretary. 

Fiscal Impact
The funds raised by the assessment will be used to provide landscape maintenance in the entryways and
parks, repair and replace amenities, enhance and maintain amenities at the entry stations, lighting, and
any other maintenance needed on projects in the District, as well as cover a portion of administering the
PID. The projected assessment that will be collected for 2024, based on estimated values, is $486,092. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Director of Business Development
Bell Farms PID Advisory Board



Attachments
Ordinance 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Bell Farms PID 2024 Public Hearing Notice 



























































































 
Bell Farms Public Improvement District 

Public Hearing for the Review of the Assessment Rate 
August 27, 2024 ❘ 2:00 P.M. 

Citizens Tower Council Chamber ❘ 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401 

Please take notice that on August 27, 2024, at 2:00 P.M., the City Council of Lubbock, Texas, will conduct a public 
hearing in the City Council Chamber of Citizens Tower at 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401. The purpose of this 
hearing is to consider the 2024 assessment rate for property owners in the Bell Farms Public Improvement District 
(“District”) pursuant to Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Government Code (The “Act”). 
 
All interested persons will be given the opportunity to appear and be heard at such public hearing. Written or oral 
objections will be considered. The Assessment Roll will be available for viewing in the Business Development 
Department on the 9th Floor of Citizens Tower after August 8, 2024. 
 
The following information is hereby provided concerning the matters to be considered at such hearing: 
 
Nature of the Services and Improvements: The general nature of the proposed public improvements is:  
(i)acquisition, construction, or drainage facilities or improvements, (ii) the design, construction and maintenance of 
parks and green spaces, fences, ponds, together with any ancillary structures, features or amenities such as 
playgrounds, splash pads, pool(s), athletic facilities, pavilions, community facilities, irrigation, walkways, lighting, 
benches, trash receptacles, community signage and any similar items located there in along with all necessary grading, 
drainage, and similar infrastructure involved in the construction of such parks and greens; landscaping, hardscaping 
and irrigation; and (ii) payment of costs associated with developing and financing the public improvements listed in 
subdivision (i) including costs of establishing, administering and operating the District. The District is to supplement 
and enhance services within the District, but not replace or supplant existing City services provided within the District. 

Estimated Cost of the Services and Improvements: The total estimated cost of services provided by the District is 
estimated at $2,911,363 over the next five years. The estimated annual cost rises from $559,443 in FY 2024-25 to 
$605,559 in FY 2028-29. The District shall not incur bonded indebtedness. The costs are based on a proposed 
assessment rate of $0.12 per $100.00 of valuation through tax year 2028. 

Boundaries: The District is located wholly within the City of Lubbock, Texas. The Bell Farms Public Improvement 
District generally covers a portion of an area in the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded by 
133rd Street on the north, 146th Street on the south, Avenue P on the east, and University Avenue on the west. A 
detailed map of the District and a legal description, as well as the Assessment Roll, is available in the Business 
Development Department on the 9th Floor of Citizens Tower. 
 
Public hearings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance, please contact 
the City Secretary’s Office at 806-775-2025 or write to P.O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas, 79457, at least 48 hours in 
advance of the public hearing. 
 
Any questions concerning the matters described in this notice should be directed to: Brianna Brown, City of 
Lubbock Business Development Department at 806-775-3082. 



 AI# 12749 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 11. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0119, reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the Northwest Passage Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and filing with the
City Secretary the assessment roll; levying the 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and
improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the
property in the district and the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessments. 

Item Summary
On August 27, 2024, a public hearing was held, and the City Council approved the first reading of the
ordinance.

The purpose of the public hearing is to provide the opportunity for property owners in the Northwest
Passage Public Improvement District (PID), to speak in favor of, or in opposition to, the assessment to be
levied in the Northwest Passage PID for 2024.  The City of Lubbock is required to hold a public hearing
annually to levy the assessment.  A Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Lubbock Avalanche
Journal, and notices were mailed to the property owners by Thursday, August 15, 2024, as required by
the statute.  At or on the adjournment of the hearing on proposed assessments, the governing body of the
municipality must hear and pass on any objections to the proposed assessment.

The proposed assessment rate for 2024 is $0.15 per $100 valuation, and does not change from 2023. All
property will be assessed for 2024.

The City Council is required to review the Service and Assessment Plan annually, hold a public hearing,
and adopt an ordinance setting the assessment rate for the PID.  The attached ordinance reflects the
proposed rate of $0.15 per $100 valuation.  The revised service and assessment plan is included in the
backup.  

Fiscal Impact
The assessments will go into a separate Northwest Passage PID fund. The funds raised by the
assessments will be used to provide maintenance for the public improvements in the District, including
design, construction, and maintenance of parks and greens, together with ancillary structures, features, or
amenities, drainage improvements, acquisition and installation of art work, improvement of
telecommunication and special supplemental services with related permits and licenses, as well as to
cover the cost of establishing, administering, and operating the PID. The District will incur bonded
indebtedness. The projected assessments that will be collected for 2024 are $33,743. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 



Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Director of Business Development

Attachments
Ordinance 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Public Hearing Notice 



















































































































































 
 

Northwest Passage Public Improvement District 
Public Hearing for the Review of the Assessment Rate 

August 27, 2024 ❘ 2:00 P.M. 
Citizens Tower Council Chamber ❘ 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401 

Please take notice that on August 27, 2024, at 2:00 P.M., the City Council of Lubbock, Texas, will conduct a public 
hearing in the City Council Chamber of Citizens Tower at 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401. The purpose of this 
hearing is to consider the 2024 assessment rate for property owners in the Northwest Passage Public Improvement 
District (“District”) pursuant to Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Government Code (The “Act”). 
 
All interested persons will be given the opportunity to appear and be heard at such public hearing. Written or oral 
objections will be considered. The Assessment Roll will be available for viewing in the Business Development 
Department on the 9th Floor of Citizens Tower after August 8, 2024. 
 
The following information is hereby provided concerning the matters to be considered at such hearing: 
 
Nature of the Services and Improvements: The general nature of the proposed public improvements is: (i) the 
design, construction and maintenance of parks and greens, together with any ancillary structures, features or amenities 
such as playgrounds, athletic facilities, pavilions, community facilities, bridges, walkways, lighting, benches, trash 
receptacles and similar items located therein along with all necessary grading, drainage, and similar infrastructure 
involved in the construction of such parks and greens; landscaping, hardscaping and irrigation; the design, 
construction and maintenance of water features such as lakes, ponds and fountains; distinctive lighting and signs; 
construction and improvement of pedestrian malls, passages or pathways including pedestrian bridges; design, 
construction and improvement of vehicular bridges and low water crossings; design, construction and improvement 
of community meeting halls or similar buildings; design, construction and improvement of community monuments, 
towers, and other amenity-type structures; acquisition and installation of art work; design, acquisition, installation, 
and improvement of telecommunication and similar technology systems; and special supplemental services defined 
in the Act, together with related permits and licenses; and (ii) payment of costs associated with developing and 
financing the public improvements listed in subdivision, including costs of establishing, administering and operating 
the District; and (iii) the District shall prioritize its expenditures as follows: (a) design, construction, maintenance, 
and financing for drainage improvements; then (b) design, construction, maintenance, and financing for park 
improvements; then (c) selection, acquisition, and maintenance for public art; then (d) all other allowable 
improvements and related expenditures. The District is to supplement and enhance services within the District, but 
not replace or supplant existing City services provided within the District. 

Estimated Cost of the Services and Improvements: The total estimated cost of services provided by the District is 
estimated at $2,029,839 over the next five years.  The estimated annual cost rises from $16,343 in FY 2024-25 to 
$899,726 in FY 2028-29. The costs are based on a proposed assessment rate of $0.15 per $100.00 of valuation 
through tax year 2028. 

Boundaries: The District is located wholly within the City of Lubbock, Texas. The Northwest Passage Public 
Improvement District (PID) generally covers a portion of an area in the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, 
generally bounded by Frankford Avenue on the west, Quaker Avenue on the east, Kent Avenue and Highway 84 on 
the north, and Marshall Avenue on the south. A detailed map of the District and a legal description, as well as the 
Assessment Roll, is available in the Business Development Department on the 9th Floor of Citizens Tower. 
 
Public hearings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance, please contact 
the City Secretary’s Office at 806-775-2025 or write to P.O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas, 79457, at least 48 hours in 
advance of the public hearing. 
 
Any questions concerning the matters described in this notice should be directed to: Brianna Brown, City of 
Lubbock Business Development Department at 806-775-3082. 



 AI# 12750 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 12. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0120, reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the Upland Crossing Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and filing with the
City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and
improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the
property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

Item Summary
On August 27, 2024, a public hearing was held, and the City Council approved the first reading of the
ordinance.

The purpose of the public hearing is to provide the opportunity for property owners in the Upland
Crossing Public Improvement District (PID) to speak in favor of, or in opposition to, the assessment to be
levied in the Upland Crossing PID for 2024.  The City of Lubbock is required to hold a public hearing
annually to levy the assessment.  A Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Lubbock Avalanche
Journal, and notices were mailed to the property owners by Thursday, August 15, 2024, as required by
the statute.  At or on the adjournment of the hearing on proposed assessments, the governing body of the
municipality must hear and pass on any objections to the proposed assessment.

The proposed assessment rate for 2024 is $0.15 per $100 valuation.  This is the same rate as 2023.  All
property will be assessed for 2024.

The City Council is required to review the Service and Assessment Plan annually, hold a public hearing,
and adopt an ordinance setting the assessment rate for the PID.  The attached ordinance reflects the
proposed rate of $0.15 per $100 valuation.  The revised service and assessment plan is included in the
backup.  Exhibit C to the ordinance is available for viewing in the Office of the City Secretary.

Fiscal Impact
The funds raised by the assessment will be used to provide landscape maintenance on the entryways and
parks, repair and replace amenities, including alley fences, lighting, and any other maintenance needed
on projects in the District, as well as cover a portion of the costs of administering the PID. The projected
assessment that will be collected for 2024, based on estimated values, is $282,059.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Director of Business Development
Upland Crossing PID Advisory Board



Attachments
Ordinance 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Public Hearing Notice 































































 
 

Upland Crossing Public Improvement District 
Public Hearing for the Review of the Assessment Rate 

August 27, 2024 ❘ 2:00 P.M. 
Citizens Tower Council Chamber ❘ 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401 

Please take notice that on August 27, 2024, at 2:00 P.M., the City Council of Lubbock, Texas, will conduct a public 
hearing in the City Council Chamber of Citizens Tower at 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401. The purpose of this 
hearing is to consider the 2024 assessment rate for property owners in the Upland Crossing Public Improvement 
District (“District”) pursuant to Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Government Code (The “Act”). 
 
All interested persons will be given the opportunity to appear and be heard at such public hearing. Written or oral 
objections will be considered. The Assessment Roll will be available for viewing in the Business Development 
Department on the 9th Floor of Citizens Tower after August 8, 2024. 
 
The following information is hereby provided concerning the matters to be considered at such hearing: 
 
Nature of the Services and Improvements: The general nature of the proposed public improvements is: 
(i)acquisition, construction, or drainage facilities or improvements, (ii) the design, construction and maintenance of 
parks and green spaces, fences, ponds, together with any ancillary structures, features or amenities such as 
playgrounds, splash pads, pool(s), athletic facilities, pavilions, community facilities, irrigation, walkways, lighting, 
benches, trash receptacles, community signage and any similar items located there in along with all necessary grading, 
drainage, and similar infrastructure involved in the construction of such parks and greens; landscaping, hardscaping 
and irrigation; and (iii) payment of costs associated with developing and financing the public improvements listed in 
subdivision including costs of establishing, administering and operating the District. The District is to supplement 
and enhance services within the District, but not replace or supplant existing City services provided within the District. 

Estimated Cost of the Services and Improvements: The total estimated cost of services provided by the District is 
estimated at $1,027,397 over the next five years. The estimated annual cost rises from $197,423 in FY 2024-25 to 
$213,697 in FY 2028-29. The District shall not incur bonded indebtedness. The costs are based on a proposed 
assessment rate of $0.15 per $100.00 of valuation through tax year 2028. 

Boundaries: The District is located wholly within the City of Lubbock, Texas. The Upland Crossing Public 
Improvement District (PID) generally covers a portion of an area in the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, 
generally bounded by 26th Street on the north, 34th Street on the south, Upland Avenue on the east, and Yuma Avenue 
on the west. A detailed map of the District and a legal description, as well as the Assessment Roll, is available in the 
Business Development Department on the 9th Floor of Citizens Tower. 
 
Public hearings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance, please contact 
the City Secretary’s Office at 806-775-2025 or write to P.O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas, 79457, at least 48 hours in 
advance of the public hearing. 
 
Any questions concerning the matters described in this notice should be directed to: Brianna Brown, City of 
Lubbock Business Development Department at 806-775-3082. 



 AI# 12751 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 13. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0121, reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the Upland Crossing 2 Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and filing with the
City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and
improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the
property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

Item Summary
On August 27, 2024, a public hearing was held, and the City Council approved the first reading of the
ordinance. 

The purpose of the public hearing is to provide the opportunity for property owners in the Upland
Crossing 2 PID to speak in favor of, or in opposition to, the assessment to be levied in the Upland
Crossing 2 PID for 2024.  The City of Lubbock is required to hold a public hearing annually to levy the
assessment.  A Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal, and notices
were mailed to the property owners by Thursday, August 15, 2024, as required by the statute.  At or on
the adjournment of the hearing on proposed assessments, the governing body of the municipality must
hear and pass on any objections to the proposed assessment.

The proposed assessment rate for 2024 is $0.12 per $100 valuation.  This is the same rate as 2023.  All
property will be assessed for 2024.

The City Council is required to review the Service and Assessment Plan annually, hold a public hearing,
and adopt an ordinance setting the assessment rate for the PID.  The attached ordinance reflects the
proposed rate of $0.12 per $100 valuation.  The revised service and assessment plan is included in the
backup.  

Fiscal Impact
The funds raised by the assessment will be used to provide design, construction, and maintenance of
drainage improvements, any other maintenance needed on projects in the District, and the cost of
administering the PID. The projected assessment that will be collected for 2024, based on estimated
values, is $38,981.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Brianna Brown, Director of Business Development

Attachments



Ordinance 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Public Hearing Notice 































































































































 
 

Upland Crossing 2 Public Improvement District 
Public Hearing for the Review of the Assessment Rate 

August 27, 2024 ❘ 2:00 P.M. 
Citizens Tower Council Chamber ❘ 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401 

Please take notice that on August 27, 2024, at 2:00 P.M., the City Council of Lubbock, Texas, will conduct a public 
hearing in the City Council Chamber of Citizens Tower at 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401. The purpose of this 
hearing is to consider the 2024 assessment rate for property owners in the Upland Crossing 2 Public Improvement 
District (“District”) pursuant to Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Government Code (The “Act”). 
 
All interested persons will be given the opportunity to appear and be heard at such public hearing. Written or oral 
objections will be considered. The Assessment Roll will be available for viewing in the Business Development 
Department on the 9th Floor of Citizens Tower after August 8, 2024. 
 
The following information is hereby provided concerning the matters to be considered at such hearing: 
 
Nature of the Services and Improvements: The general nature of the proposed public improvements is: (i) 
acquisition, construction, or drainage facilities or improvements, (ii) the design, construction and maintenance of 
parks and green spaces, together with any ancillary structures, features or amenities such as playgrounds, splash pads, 
pool(s), athletic facilities, pavilions, community facilities, irrigation, walkways, lighting, benches, trash receptacles 
and any similar items located there in along with all necessary grading, drainage, and similar infrastructure involved 
in the construction of such parks and greens; landscaping, hardscaping and irrigation; and (ii) payment of costs 
associated with developing and financing the public improvements listed in subdivision (i) including costs of 
establishing, administering and operating the District. 

Estimated Cost of the Services and Improvements: The total estimated cost of services provided by the District is 
estimated at $118,611 over the next five years. The estimated annual cost rises from $10,881 in FY 2024-25 to 
$31,524 in FY 2028-29. The District shall not incur bonded indebtedness. The costs are based on a proposed 
assessment rate of $0.12 per $100.00 of valuation through tax year 2028. 

Boundaries: The District is located wholly within the City of Lubbock, Texas. The Upland Crossing 2 Public 
Improvement District (PID) generally covers a 34.294-acre area bounded by 34th Street on the north, Upland Avenue 
on the east, and railroad tracks to the south and west. A detailed map of the District and a legal description, as well as 
the Assessment Roll, is available in the Business Development Department on the 9th Floor of Citizens Tower. 
 
Public hearings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance, please contact 
the City Secretary’s Office at 806-775-2025 or write to P.O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas, 79457, at least 48 hours in 
advance of the public hearing. 
 
Any questions concerning the matters described in this notice should be directed to: Brianna Brown, City of 
Lubbock Business Development Department at 806-775-3082. 

 
 



 AI# 12752 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 14. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0122, reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the Upland Crossing 3 Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and filing with the
City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and
improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the
property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

Item Summary
On August 27, 2024, a public hearing was held, and the City Council approved the first reading of the
ordinance.

The purpose of the public hearing is to provide the opportunity for property owners in the Upland
Crossing 3 PID to speak in favor of, or in opposition to, the assessment to be levied in the Upland
Crossing 3 PID for 2024.  The City of Lubbock is required to hold a public hearing annually to levy the
assessment.  A Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal, and notices
were mailed to the property owners by Thursday, August 15, 2024, as required by the statute.  At or on
the adjournment of the hearing on proposed assessments, the governing body of the municipality must
hear and pass on any objections to the proposed assessment.

The proposed assessment rate for 2024 is $0.18 per $100 valuation.  This is the same rate as 2023.  All
property will be assessed for 2024.

The City Council is required to review the Service and Assessment Plan annually, hold a public hearing,
and adopt an ordinance setting the assessment rate for the PID.  The attached ordinance reflects the
proposed rate of $0.18 per $100 valuation.  The revised service and assessment plan is included in the
backup.  

Fiscal Impact
The funds raised by the assessment will be used to provide design, construction, and maintenance of
drainage improvements, any other maintenance needed on projects in the District, and the cost of
administering the PID. The projected assessment that will be collected for 2024, based on estimated
values, is $16,539.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Director of Business Development

Attachments



Ordinance 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Public Hearing Notice 













































































































 
 

Notice of Public Hearing for the Review of the Assessment Rate for the 
Upland Crossing 3 Public Improvement District 

Please take notice that on August 27, 2024, at 2:00 P.M., the City Council of Lubbock, Texas, will conduct a public 
hearing in the City Council Chamber of Citizens Tower at 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401. The purpose of this 
hearing is to consider the 2024 assessment rate for property owners in the Upland Crossing 3 Public Improvement 
District (“District”) pursuant to Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Government Code (The “Act”). 
 
All interested persons will be given the opportunity to appear and be heard at such public hearing. Written or oral 
objections will be considered. The Assessment Roll will be available for viewing in the Business Development 
Department on the 9th Floor of Citizens Tower after August 8, 2024. 
 
The following information is hereby provided concerning the matters to be considered at such hearing: 
 
Nature of the Services and Improvements: The general nature of the proposed public improvements is: 
(i)acquisition, construction, or drainage facilities or improvements, (ii) the design, construction and maintenance of 
parks and green spaces, fences, ponds, together with any ancillary structures, features or amenities such as 
playgrounds, splash pads, pool(s), athletic facilities, pavilions, community facilities, irrigation, walkways, lighting, 
benches, trash receptacles, community signage and any similar items located therein along with all necessary grading, 
drainage, and similar infrastructure involved in the construction of such parks and greens; landscaping, hardscaping 
and irrigation; and (iii) payment of costs associated with developing and financing the public improvements listed in 
subdivision including costs of establishing, administering and operating the District. The District is to supplement 
and enhance services within the District, but not replace or supplant existing City services provided within the District. 

Estimated Cost of the Services and Improvements: The total estimated cost of services provided by the District is 
estimated at $102,532 over the next five years. The estimated annual cost rises from $10,881 in FY 2024-25 to 
$27,384 in FY 2028-29. The District shall not incur bonded indebtedness. The costs are based on a proposed 
assessment rate of $0.18 per $100.00 of valuation through tax year 2028. 

Boundaries: The District is located wholly within the City of Lubbock, Texas. The Upland Crossing 3 Public 
Improvement District (PID) generally covers a 21.646-acre area bounded by 26th Street to the north, Pine Hills Estates 
to the east, 34th Street to the south and Upland Avenue to the west. A detailed map of the District and a legal 
description, as well as the Assessment Roll, is available in the Business Development Department on the 9th Floor of 
Citizens Tower. 
 
Public hearings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance, please contact 
the City Secretary’s Office at 806-775-2025 or write to P.O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas, 79457, at least 48 hours in 
advance of the public hearing. 
 
Any questions concerning the matters described in this notice should be directed to: Brianna Brown, City of 
Lubbock Business Development Department at 806-775-3082. 



 AI# 12753 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 15. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0123, reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the North Overton Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and filing with the
City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and
improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the
property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

Item Summary
On August 27, 2024, a public hearing was held, and the City Council approved the first reading of the
ordinance.
 
The purpose of the public hearing is to provide the opportunity for property owners in the North Overton
PID to speak in favor of, or in opposition to, the assessment to be levied in the North Overton PID for
2024. The City of Lubbock is required to hold a public hearing annually to levy the assessment. A
Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal, and notices were mailed to
the property owners by Thursday, August 15, 2024, as required by statute.  At or on the adjournment of
the hearing on proposed assessments, the governing body of the municipality must hear and pass on any
objection to the proposed assessment. 

The proposed assessment rate for 2024 is $0.18 per $100 valuation. This is the same rate as 2023.  All
property zoned commercial and high-density residential under the City of Lubbock Zoning Ordinance
will be assessed for 2024. All property zoned single-family and two-family, will be assessed on a
block-by-block basis as public improvements that will be maintained by PID funds are completed in that
block.
 
The City Council is required to review the Service Plan annually, hold a public hearing, and adopt an
ordinance setting the assessment rate for the PID.  The attached ordinance reflects the proposed rate of
$0.18 per $100 valuation. The revised service plan is included in the backup.  Exhibit C is available for
viewing in the Office of the City Secretary.

Fiscal Impact
The assessments are deposited into a separate North Overton PID fund. The funds raised by the
assessment will be used to provide landscape maintenance, street and pedestrian lighting, and any other
maintenance needed on projects in the District, as well as cover a portion of the costs of administering
the PID. The projected assessment that will be collected for 2024, based on preliminary values, is
$971,095.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 



Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Director of Business Development

Attachments
Ordinance 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Public Hearing Notice 

































 
 

North Overton Public Improvement District 
Public Hearing for the Review of the Assessment Rate 

August 27, 2024 ❘ 2:00 P.M. 
Citizens Tower Council Chamber ❘ 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401 

Please take notice that on August 27, 2024, at 2:00 P.M., the City Council of Lubbock, Texas, will conduct a public 
hearing in the City Council Chamber of Citizens Tower at 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401. The purpose of this 
hearing is to consider the 2024 assessment rate for property owners in the North Overton Public Improvement District 
(“District”) pursuant to Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Government Code (The “Act”). 
 
All interested persons will be given the opportunity to appear and be heard at such public hearing. Written or oral 
objections will be considered. The Assessment Roll will be available for viewing in the Business Development 
Department on the 9th Floor of Citizens Tower after August 8, 2024. 
 
The following information is hereby provided concerning the matters to be considered at such hearing: 
 
Nature of the Services and Improvements: The general nature of the services and improvements to be performed 
by the District are to enhance security and public safety, and provide maintenance of landscaping and other public 
amenities in the public rights-of-way. The District is to supplement and enhance services within the District, but not 
replace or supplant existing City services provided within the District. 

Estimated Cost of the Services and Improvements: The total estimated cost of services provided by the District is 
estimated at $7,048,481 over the next five years. The estimated annual cost rises from $1,564,023 in FY 2024-25 to 
$1,375,483 in FY 2028-29. The District shall not incur bonded indebtedness. The costs are based on a proposed 
assessment rate of $0.18 per $100.00 of valuation through tax year 2028. 

Boundaries: The District is located wholly within the City of Lubbock, Texas. The North Overton Public 
Improvement District boundary includes a portion of the area between Fourth Street on the north, Avenue Q to the 
east, 1/2 block past Main Street on the south, and University Avenue to the west. A detailed map of the District and 
a legal description, as well as the Assessment Roll, is available in the Business Development Department on the 9th 
Floor of Citizens Tower. 
 
Public hearings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance, please contact 
the City Secretary’s Office at 806-775-2025 or write to P.O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas, 79457, at least 48 hours in 
advance of the public hearing. 
 
Any questions concerning the matters described in this notice should be directed to: Brianna Brown, City of 
Lubbock Business Development Department at 806-775-3082. 



 AI# 12754 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 16. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0124, reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the Quincy Park Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and filing with the City
Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and
improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the
property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

Item Summary
On August 27, 2024, a public hearing was held, and the City Council approved the first reading of the
ordinance.

The purpose of the public hearing is to provide the opportunity for property owners in the Quincy Park
PID to speak in favor of, or in opposition to, the assessment to be levied in the Quincy Park PID for
2024.  The City of Lubbock is required to hold a public hearing annually to levy the assessment.  A
Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal, and notices were mailed to
the property owners by Thursday, August 15, 2024, as required by the statute.  At or on the adjournment
of the hearing on proposed assessments, the governing body of the municipality must hear and pass on
any objections to the proposed assessment.

The proposed assessment rate for 2024 is $0.14 per $100 valuation.  This is $0.01 less than the previous
year's assessment rate.  All property will be assessed for 2024.

The City Council is required to review the Service and Assessment Plan annually, hold a public hearing,
and adopt an ordinance setting the assessment rate for the PID.  The attached ordinance reflects the
proposed rate of $0.14 per $100 valuation.  The revised service and assessment plan is included in the
backup.  Exhibit C to the ordinance is available for viewing in the Office of the City Secretary.

Fiscal Impact
The assessments are deposited into a separate Quincy Park PID fund. The funds raised by the assessment
will be used to provide design, construction, and maintenance of the neighborhood park and playa lake
and the 93rd Street median, together with any features or amenities, and any other maintenance needed
on projects in the District, as well as cover a portion of the costs of administering the PID. The projected
assessment that will be collected for 2024, based on estimated values, is $246,669.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Director of Business Development
Quincy Park PID Advisory Board



Attachments
Ordinance 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Public Hearing Notice 



















































 
 

Quincy Park Public Improvement District 
Public Hearing for the Review of the Assessment Rate 

August 27, 2024 ❘ 2:00 P.M. 
Citizens Tower Council Chamber ❘ 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401 

Please take notice that on August 27, 2024, at 2:00 P.M., the City Council of Lubbock, Texas, will conduct a public 
hearing in the City Council Chamber of Citizens Tower at 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401. The purpose of this 
hearing is to consider the 2024 assessment rate for property owners in the Quincy Park Public Improvement District 
(“District”) pursuant to Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Government Code (The “Act”). 
 
All interested persons will be given the opportunity to appear and be heard at such public hearing. Written or oral 
objections will be considered. The Assessment Roll will be available for viewing in the Business Development 
Department on the 9th Floor of Citizens Tower after August 8, 2024. 
 
The following information is hereby provided concerning the matters to be considered at such hearing: 
 
Nature of the Services and Improvements: The general nature of the proposed public improvements is: (i) the 
design, construction and maintenance of Parks and greens together with any ancillary structures, features or amenities 
such as playgrounds, athletic facilities, pavilions, community facilities, irrigation, walkways, lighting, benches, trash 
receptacles and any similar items located therein along with all necessary grading, drainage, and similar infrastructure 
involved in the construction of such parks and greens; landscaping, hardscape and irrigation; and (ii) payment of 
costs associated with developing and financing the public improvements listed in subdivision (i) including costs of 
establishing, administering and operating the District.  The District is to supplement and enhance services within the 
District, but not replace or supplant existing City services provided within the District. 

Estimated Cost of the Services and Improvements: The total estimated cost of services provided by the District 
is estimated at $1,291,601 over the next five years. The estimated annual cost rises from $248,192 in FY 2024-25 
to $268,651 in FY 2028-29. The District shall not incur bonded indebtedness. The costs are based on a proposed 
assessment rate of $0.14 per $100.00 of valuation through tax year 2028. 

Boundaries: The District is located wholly within the City of Lubbock, Texas. The Quincy Park Public Improvement 
District generally covers an area bounded by portions of 88th and 89th Street on the north, Upland Avenue on the 
west, 98th Street on the south, and Quincy Avenue on the east. A detailed map of the District and a legal description, 
as well as the Assessment Roll, is available in the Business Development Department on the 9th Floor of Citizens 
Tower. 
 
Public hearings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance, please contact 
the City Secretary’s Office at 806-775-2025 or write to P.O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas, 79457, at least 48 hours in 
advance of the public hearing. 
 
Any questions concerning the matters described in this notice should be directed to: Brianna Brown, City of 
Lubbock Business Development Department at 806-775-3082. 



 AI# 12755 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 17. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0125, reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the Valencia Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and filing with the City
Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and
improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the
property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

Item Summary
On August 27, 2024, a public hearing was held, and the City Council approved the first reading of the
ordinance.

The purpose of the public hearing is to provide the opportunity for property owners in the Valencia PID
to speak in favor of, or in opposition to, the assessment to be levied in the Valencia PID for 2024.  The
City of Lubbock is required to hold a public hearing annually to levy the assessment.  A Notice of Public
Hearing was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal, and notices were mailed to the property
owners by Thursday, August 15, 2024, as required by the statute.  At or on the adjournment of the
hearing on proposed assessments, the governing body of the municipality must hear and pass on any
objections to the proposed assessment.

The proposed assessment rate for 2024 is $0.18 per $100 valuation, and does not change from 2023. All
property will be assessed for 2024.

The City Council is required to review the Service and Assessment Plan annually, hold a public hearing,
and adopt an ordinance setting the assessment rate for the PID.  The attached ordinance reflects the
proposed rate of $0.18 per $100 valuation.  The revised service and assessment plan is included in the
backup.  Exhibit C to the ordinance is available for viewing in the Office of the City Secretary.

Fiscal Impact
The assessments will go into a separate Valencia PID fund. The funds raised by the assessment will be
used to provide maintenance for the public improvements in the District, as well as cover the cost of
administering the PID. The projected assessment that will be collected for 2024 is $75,124.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Director of Business Development
Quincy Park PID Advisory Board 

Attachments



Ordinance 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Public Hearing Notice 



















































 

 
Valencia Public Improvement District 

Public Hearing for the Review of the Assessment Rate 

August 27, 2024 ❘ 2:00 P.M. 

Citizens Tower Council Chamber ❘ 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401 

Please take notice that on August 27, 2024, at 2:00 P.M., the City Council of Lubbock, Texas, will conduct a public 

hearing in the City Council Chamber of Citizens Tower at 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401. The purpose of this 

hearing is to consider the 2024 assessment rate for property owners in the Valencia Public Improvement District 

(“District”) pursuant to Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Government Code (The “Act”). 

 

All interested persons will be given the opportunity to appear and be heard at such public hearing. Written or oral 

objections will be considered. The Assessment Roll will be available for viewing in the Business Development 

Department on the 9th Floor of Citizens Tower after August 8, 2024. 

 

The following information is hereby provided concerning the matters to be considered at such hearing: 

 

Nature of the Services and Improvements: The general nature of the proposed public improvements is: (i) the 

design, construction and maintenance of Parks and greens together with any ancillary structures, features or amenities 

such as playgrounds, athletic facilities, pavilions, community facilities, irrigation, walkways, lighting, benches, trash 

receptacles and any similar items located therein along with all necessary grading, drainage, and similar infrastructure 

involved in the maintenance of such parks and greens; landscaping, hardscape and irrigation; and (ii) costs of 

establishing, administering and operating the District. The District is to supplement and enhance services within the 

District, but not replace or supplant existing City services provided within the District. 

Estimated Cost of the Services and Improvements: The total estimated cost of services provided by the District is 

estimated at $407,170 over the next five years. The estimated annual cost rises from $78,241 in FY 2024-25 to 

$84,691 in FY 2028-29. The District shall not incur bonded indebtedness. The costs are based on a proposed 

assessment rate of $0.18 per $100.00 of valuation through tax year 2028. 

Boundaries: The District is located wholly within the City of Lubbock, Texas. The Valencia Public Improvement 

generally covers a portion of an area in the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded by 85th 

Street on the north, 88th Place on the south, Iola Avenue on the east, and Milwaukee Avenue on the west. A detailed 

map of the District and a legal description, as well as the Assessment Roll, is available in the Business Development 

Department on the 9th Floor of Citizens Tower. 

 

Public hearings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance, please contact 

the City Secretary’s Office at 806-775-2025 or write to P.O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas, 79457, at least 48 hours in 

advance of the public hearing. 

 

Any questions concerning the matters described in this notice should be directed to: Brianna Brown, City of 

Lubbock Business Development Department at 806-775-3082. 

 



 AI# 12756 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 18. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0126, reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the North Point Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and filing with the City
Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and
improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the
property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

Item Summary
On August 27, 2024, a public hearing was held, and the City Council approved the first reading of the
ordinance.

The purpose of the public hearing is to provide the opportunity for property owners in the North Point
PID to speak in favor of, or in opposition to, the assessment to be levied in the North Point PID for 2024. 
The City of Lubbock is required to hold a public hearing annually to levy the assessment.  A Notice of
Public Hearing was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal, and notices were mailed to the
property owners by Thursday, August 15, 2024, as required by the statute.  At or on the adjournment of
the hearing on proposed assessments, the governing body of the municipality must hear and pass on any
objections to the proposed assessment.

The proposed assessment rate for 2024 is $0.14 per $100 valuation.  This is the same rate as 2023.  All
property will be assessed for 2024.

The City Council is required to review the Service and Assessment Plan annually, hold a public hearing,
and adopt an ordinance setting the assessment rate for the PID. The attached ordinance reflects the
proposed rate of $0.14 per $100 valuation. The revised service and assessment plan is included in the
backup.  Exhibit C to the ordinance is available for viewing in the Office of the City Secretary.

Fiscal Impact
The funds raised by the assessment will be used to provide landscape maintenance on the common areas
on North Slide and adjacent right-of-way, maintain a walking trail, repair and replace amenities, enhance
and maintain amenities at the entry stations, lighting, and any other maintenance needed in the District,
as well as cover a portion of the costs of administering the PID. The projected assessment that will be
collected for 2024, based on estimated values, is $314,254.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Director of Business Development
North Point PID Advisory Board 



Attachments
Ordinance 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Public Hearing Notice 







































 
 

North Point Public Improvement District 
Public Hearing for the Review of the Assessment Rate 

August 27, 2024 ❘ 2:00 P.M. 
Citizens Tower Council Chamber ❘ 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401 

Please take notice that on August 27, 2024, at 2:00 P.M., the City Council of Lubbock, Texas, will conduct a public 
hearing in the City Council Chamber of Citizens Tower at 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401. The purpose of this 
hearing is to consider the 2024 assessment rate for property owners in the North Point Public Improvement District 
(“District”) pursuant to Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Government Code (The “Act”). 
 
All interested persons will be given the opportunity to appear and be heard at such public hearing. Written or oral 
objections will be considered. The Assessment Roll will be available for viewing in the Business Development 
Department on the 9th Floor of Citizens Tower after August 8, 2024. 
 
The following information is hereby provided concerning the matters to be considered at such hearing: 
 
Nature of the Services and Improvements: The general nature of the services and improvements to be performed 
by the District are to maintain the common areas on North Slide and adjacent right of way, building and maintaining 
a hike and bike trail located under a utility easement, repair and replacement of amenities, electric costs for entryway 
lighting, and enhancing and maintaining amenities in the entry stations on North Slide Road, all in accordance with 
the Act. The District is to supplement and enhance services within the District, but not replace or supplant existing 
City services provided within the District. 

Estimated Cost of the Services and Improvements: The total estimated cost of services provided by the District is 
estimated at $1,953,832 over the next five years. The estimated annual cost rises from $780,158 in FY 2024-25 to 
$302,191 in FY 2028-29. The District shall not incur bonded indebtedness. The costs are based on a proposed 
assessment rate of $0.14 per $100.00 of valuation through tax year 2028. 

Boundaries: The District is located wholly within the City of Lubbock, Texas. The North Point Public Improvement 
generally covers the area between Erskine and Ursuline, and between North Quaker to a line east of Frankford. This 
area is approximately 543 acres. A detailed map of the District and a legal description, as well as the Assessment Roll, 
is available in the Business Development Department on the 9th Floor of Citizens Tower. 
 
Public hearings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance, please contact 
the City Secretary’s Office at 806-775-2025 or write to P.O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas, 79457, at least 48 hours in 
advance of the public hearing. 
 
Any questions concerning the matters described in this notice should be directed to: Brianna Brown, City of 
Lubbock Business Development Department at 806-775-3082. 



 AI# 12757 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 19. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0127, reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and filing with
the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and
improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the
property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

Item Summary
On August 27, 2024, a public hearing was held, and the City Council approved the first reading of the
ordinance.

The purpose of the public hearing is to provide the opportunity for property owners in the Willow Bend
Villas PID to speak in favor of, or in opposition to, the assessment to be levied in the Willow Bend Villas
PID for 2024.  The City of Lubbock is required to hold a public hearing annually to levy the assessment. 
A Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal, and notices were mailed
to the property owners by Thursday, August 15, 2024, as required by the statute.  At or on the
adjournment of the hearing on proposed assessments, the governing body of the municipality must hear
and pass on any objections to the proposed assessment.

The proposed assessment rate for 2024 is $0.15 per $100 valuation, and does not change from 2023. All
property will be assessed for 2024.

The City Council is required to review the Service and Assessment Plan annually, hold a public hearing,
and adopt an ordinance setting the assessment rate for the PID.  The attached ordinance reflects the
proposed rate of $0.15 per $100 valuation.  The revised service and assessment plan is included in the
backup.  Exhibit C to the ordinance is available for viewing in the Office of the City Secretary.

Fiscal Impact
The assessments will go into a separate Willow Bend Villas PID fund. The funds raised by the
assessment will be used to provide maintenance for the public improvements in the District, as well as
cover the cost of administering the PID. The projected assessment that will be collected for 2024 is
$83,301.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Director of Business Development

Attachments



Ordinance 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Public Hearing Notice 































































 
 

Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District 
Public Hearing for the Review of the Assessment Rate 

August 27, 2024 ❘ 2:00 P.M. 
Citizens Tower Council Chamber ❘ 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401 

Please take notice that on August 27, 2024, at 2:00 P.M., the City Council of Lubbock, Texas, will conduct a public 
hearing in the City Council Chamber of Citizens Tower at 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401. The purpose of this 
hearing is to consider the 2024 assessment rate for property owners in the Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement 
District (“District”) pursuant to Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Government Code (The “Act”). 
 
All interested persons will be given the opportunity to appear and be heard at such public hearing. Written or oral 
objections will be considered. The Assessment Roll will be available for viewing in the Business Development 
Department on the 9th Floor of Citizens Tower after August 8, 2024. 
 
The following information is hereby provided concerning the matters to be considered at such hearing: 
 
Nature of the Services and Improvements: The general nature of the proposed public improvements is: (i) 
acquisition, construction, or drainage facilities or improvements, (ii) the design, construction and maintenance of 
parks and green spaces, together with any ancillary structures, features or amenities such as playgrounds, splash pads, 
pool(s), athletic facilities, pavilions, community facilities, irrigation, walkways, lighting, benches, trash receptacles 
and any similar items located there in along with all necessary grading, drainage, and similar infrastructure involved 
in the construction of such parks and greens; landscaping, hardscaping and irrigation; and (iii) payment of costs 
associated with developing and financing the public improvements listed in subdivision (iv) including costs of 
establishing, administering and operating the District. The District is to supplement and enhance services within the 
District, but not replace or supplant existing City services provided within the District. 

Estimated Cost of the Services and Improvements: The total estimated cost of services provided by the District is 
estimated at $412,722 over the next five years. The estimated annual cost rises from $79,308 in FY 2024-25 to 
$85,846 in FY 2028-29. The District shall not incur bonded indebtedness. The costs are based on a proposed 
assessment rate of $0.15 per $100.00 of valuation through tax year 2028. 

Boundaries: The District is located wholly within the City of Lubbock, Texas. The Willow Bend Villas Public 
Improvement District covers a portion of an area in the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded 
by 19th Street to the north, the alley between Kelsey Avenue and Kenwood Avenue to the east, and railroad tracks to 
the south and west. A detailed map of the District and a legal description, as well as the Assessment Roll, is available 
in the Business Development Department on the 9th Floor of Citizens Tower. 
 
Public hearings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance, please contact 
the City Secretary’s Office at 806-775-2025 or write to P.O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas, 79457, at least 48 hours in 
advance of the public hearing. 
 
Any questions concerning the matters described in this notice should be directed to: Brianna Brown, City of 
Lubbock Business Development Department at 806-775-3082. 

 
The above referenced PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE was posted at the South side Citizens Tower, West of the 
revolving doors at 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, on the ______ day of __________, 2024 at _________ AM/PM. 
 
By: ______________________________________________ 
 



 AI# 12817 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 20. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Downtown Grant Program
(Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to the YWCA of Lubbock, located at
1500 14th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market
Lubbock Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
YWCA of Lubbock is renovating their property at 1500 14th Street, which is located within the
Downtown Tax Increment Financing District Boundary, as designated by the City of Lubbock. The
scope of the facade project includes improvements to the parking lot. 

The cost of the project is estimated to be $93,600, and the requested grant amount is $25,000. The
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors approved this amount at their August 28, 2024 Board Meeting,
and recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $93,600, with $25,000 to be paid upon completion by
Market Lubbock, Inc. with the requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director 
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors 

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Support Documentation 







 

MARKET LUBBOCK, INC. – DOWNTOWN GRANT PROGRAM 

 

 

1500 14th St. 

(YWCA of Lubbock) 

 

TOTAL SCOPE OF WORK = $5,495,379 

TOTAL GRANT = $125,000 

 

TOTAL FAÇADE SCOPE OF WORK = $93,600 

FAÇADE GRANT = $25,000 

 

TOTAL PERMITTABLE SCOPE OF WORK = $5,401,779 

PERMITTABLE GRANT = $100,000 

 

ADDITIONAL $112,950 IN DEMO WORK NOT INCLUDED IN FINAL SCOPE 



 
 

Downtown Grant Program 
Presented to MLI Board 

August 28, 2024 
 
 

Project 1500 14th St. (Façade & Permittable) 
The YWCA of Lubbock is making improvements to both the interior and exterior of their property at 1500 
14th St., located in the Downtown TIF.  
 
The YWCA is dedicated to eliminating racism, empowering women, and promoting peace, justice, 
freedom, and dignity for all. This creates opportunities for growth, education, and social change, ensuring 
that our impact resonates far beyond our doors. This organization is a dynamic force in the Lubbock 
community, with a legacy of making a tangible difference in the lives of individuals and families. The 
YWCA of Lubbock impacts daily and advances the power of women and diversity to strengthen our 
community. They are building a brighter and more equitable future for everyone in Lubbock and beyond. 
 
With these renovations, the YWCA intends to add much needed quality meeting space to the downtown 
area. 
 
The scope of façade work will include improvements to the parking lot totaling $93,600 in façade 
expenses. Permittable work will include electrical, structural, plumbing, and a total renovation of the 
interior totaling $5,401,779 in permittable expenses for a total renovation cost of $5,495,379. There is 
also an additional $112,950 in interior expenses that are not eligible for the grant program. 
 
The MLI Board is being asked to consider a Downtown Façade Grant for the YWCA of Lubbock totaling 
$25,000 and a Downtown Permittable Grant of $100,000 at 1500 14th St. 
 
 



MLI CONTACT INFORMATION
Jorge Quirino - Director of Downtown & Special Projects Phone: 806.749.4500
Market Lubbock, Inc.
1500 Broadway, Sixth Floor, Lubbock, TX 79401 Email: jorge@marketlubbock.org

Date Initial Application Submitted (Due prior to start of construction or permits assigned)

Projected Project Start Date

GENERAL INFORMATION
Contact

Title
Phone
Email 

INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROJECT
Property Ownership: Own Lease Permittable Façade 

Project Summary Scope 

COMPANY BACKGROUND
List any person or entity that has at least 5% ownership in the Applicant Company:

Percent
100%

Is the firm registered with the Secretary of State's Office to do business in Texas? Yes �
Are you in good standing with the State of Texas? Yes 

If you answered "No" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm and/or principals delinquent on any federal, state or local tax obligations? No �
Has the company or principals of the company had prior bankruptcies or lawsuits? No 

If you answered "Yes" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm receiving tax revenue from any government agency? No �

The information requested on this form will be used by Market Lubbock, Inc. for analysis of your project.
Downtown Grant - Application

806-781-9803
glenda.mathis@ywcalubbock.org

Renovate a very choppy space into wide open conference center spaces.  The first floor will offer a commercial kitchen 
suitable for large catering options and 3-4 large conference/meeting room spaces.  We anticipate a 12,000 sf meeting space, 
and 8,000 sf meeting space and  a 4,000 sf space with options for smaller configurations.  Outdoor changes will increase 

Street Address

Project Property Address
Property LCAD R#

City, State, Zip

Company Name

01/31/24

04/01/25

1500 14th St.

Summary of Expenses (detailed bids attached) Projected MLI Approved 

$100,000Permittable $5,401,779
TOTAL $5,495,379 $125,000

R112611

YWCA of Lubbock
6501 University
Lubbock, TX

Glenda Mathis
CEO

Façade $25,000$93,600

Grant Type: 

Final bids will be used to calculate the project cost and grant amount.

YWCA of Lubbock-Board of Directors
Name Name Percent

1 MLI 11.17.23



Is the firm a non-profit entity? Yes �

After Completion of Construction

PAID Invoices (must reference the approved project)

Glenda Mathis

1/31/24 via emailDate:

Signature (not required for electronic submittals):

Certificate of Occupancy or Similar City Document Approving 
Completion (Applicant responsible for final scope of work matching 
approved scope)
Proof of Payment:

Processed Checks, Bank or Credit Card Statements 
matching PAID invoices (legible copies)

APPLICANT'S CHECKLIST:

Initial application received by MLI prior to the start of construction and/or before permits are assigned

All remaining documents must be received and an application packet presented to the MLI Board no 
more than three months after the initial application is received by MLI.

Contact Brianna Gerardi, City Director of Development bgerardi@mylubbock.us , to determine:

Documents Required for Final Grant Application

Does the scope of work meet downtown standards and guidelines?
Are permits required for any aspect of the scope of work?
Are public improvements required?

Architectural Plans (if applicable)

Copy of building's current certificate of occupancy (request at 
orr@mylubbock.us)

Copies of City permits, if applicable
Detailed/Itemized Bids
Before Pictures

Architectural Renderings (if applicable)

2 MLI 11.17.23



 

 



 

 



 

 

 



THE LEGACY EVENT CENTER



ENTRY CORRIDOR

TILE FLOOR
TERAZZO LOOK

VENETIAN PLASTER

DIMENTIONAL WALL

FLUTED WOOD 
WALL TREATMENT

MURAL

BLUE CEILING
CONCRETE 

LOOK FLOOR



ENTRY CORRIDOR



ENTRY CORRIDOR



BANQUET 1 ENTRANCE



BANQUET 1

CONCRETE WALL PANELS

SKEWED MAIN ENTRANCE

COLUMN DESIGN

POLISHED CONCRETE FLOOR

ORGANIC/WHIMSICAL CEILING CLOUDS



BANQUET 1



BANQUET 1



BANQUET 2

METAL ARCH ENTRANCE

COLOR BLOCKING ARCH’S

COLUMN DESIGN

POLISHED CONCRETE

PERFORATED 
CEILING PANELS

VENETIAN PLASTER

GLASS

MURAL COLORS



BANQUET 2



BANQUET 2



BANQUET 2



 AI# 12818 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 21. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Downtown Grant Program
(Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to YWCA of Lubbock, located at
1500 14th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market
Lubbock Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
YWCA of Lubbock is renovating their property at 1500 14th Street, which is located within the
Downtown Tax Increment Financing District Boundary, as designated by the City of Lubbock. The
scope of the permittable project includes electrical, plumbing, and a full renovation of the interior of the
building. 

The cost of the project is estimated to be $5,401,779, and the requested grant amount is $100,000. The
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors approved this amount at their August 28, 2024 Board Meeting,
and recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $5,401,779, with $100,000 to be paid upon completion by
Market Lubbock, Inc. with the requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director 
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors 

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Support Documentation 







 

MARKET LUBBOCK, INC. – DOWNTOWN GRANT PROGRAM 

 

 

1500 14th St. 

(YWCA of Lubbock) 

 

TOTAL SCOPE OF WORK = $5,495,379 

TOTAL GRANT = $125,000 

 

TOTAL FAÇADE SCOPE OF WORK = $93,600 

FAÇADE GRANT = $25,000 

 

TOTAL PERMITTABLE SCOPE OF WORK = $5,401,779 

PERMITTABLE GRANT = $100,000 

 

ADDITIONAL $112,950 IN DEMO WORK NOT INCLUDED IN FINAL SCOPE 



 
 

Downtown Grant Program 
Presented to MLI Board 

August 28, 2024 
 
 

Project 1500 14th St. (Façade & Permittable) 
The YWCA of Lubbock is making improvements to both the interior and exterior of their property at 1500 
14th St., located in the Downtown TIF.  
 
The YWCA is dedicated to eliminating racism, empowering women, and promoting peace, justice, 
freedom, and dignity for all. This creates opportunities for growth, education, and social change, ensuring 
that our impact resonates far beyond our doors. This organization is a dynamic force in the Lubbock 
community, with a legacy of making a tangible difference in the lives of individuals and families. The 
YWCA of Lubbock impacts daily and advances the power of women and diversity to strengthen our 
community. They are building a brighter and more equitable future for everyone in Lubbock and beyond. 
 
With these renovations, the YWCA intends to add much needed quality meeting space to the downtown 
area. 
 
The scope of façade work will include improvements to the parking lot totaling $93,600 in façade 
expenses. Permittable work will include electrical, structural, plumbing, and a total renovation of the 
interior totaling $5,401,779 in permittable expenses for a total renovation cost of $5,495,379. There is 
also an additional $112,950 in interior expenses that are not eligible for the grant program. 
 
The MLI Board is being asked to consider a Downtown Façade Grant for the YWCA of Lubbock totaling 
$25,000 and a Downtown Permittable Grant of $100,000 at 1500 14th St. 
 
 



MLI CONTACT INFORMATION
Jorge Quirino - Director of Downtown & Special Projects Phone: 806.749.4500
Market Lubbock, Inc.
1500 Broadway, Sixth Floor, Lubbock, TX 79401 Email: jorge@marketlubbock.org

Date Initial Application Submitted (Due prior to start of construction or permits assigned)

Projected Project Start Date

GENERAL INFORMATION
Contact

Title
Phone
Email 

INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROJECT
Property Ownership: Own Lease Permittable Façade 

Project Summary Scope 

COMPANY BACKGROUND
List any person or entity that has at least 5% ownership in the Applicant Company:

Percent
100%

Is the firm registered with the Secretary of State's Office to do business in Texas? Yes �
Are you in good standing with the State of Texas? Yes 

If you answered "No" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm and/or principals delinquent on any federal, state or local tax obligations? No �
Has the company or principals of the company had prior bankruptcies or lawsuits? No 

If you answered "Yes" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm receiving tax revenue from any government agency? No �

The information requested on this form will be used by Market Lubbock, Inc. for analysis of your project.
Downtown Grant - Application

806-781-9803
glenda.mathis@ywcalubbock.org

Renovate a very choppy space into wide open conference center spaces.  The first floor will offer a commercial kitchen 
suitable for large catering options and 3-4 large conference/meeting room spaces.  We anticipate a 12,000 sf meeting space, 
and 8,000 sf meeting space and  a 4,000 sf space with options for smaller configurations.  Outdoor changes will increase 

Street Address

Project Property Address
Property LCAD R#

City, State, Zip

Company Name

01/31/24

04/01/25

1500 14th St.

Summary of Expenses (detailed bids attached) Projected MLI Approved 

$100,000Permittable $5,401,779
TOTAL $5,495,379 $125,000

R112611

YWCA of Lubbock
6501 University
Lubbock, TX

Glenda Mathis
CEO

Façade $25,000$93,600

Grant Type: 

Final bids will be used to calculate the project cost and grant amount.

YWCA of Lubbock-Board of Directors
Name Name Percent

1 MLI 11.17.23



Is the firm a non-profit entity? Yes �

After Completion of Construction

PAID Invoices (must reference the approved project)

Glenda Mathis

1/31/24 via emailDate:

Signature (not required for electronic submittals):

Certificate of Occupancy or Similar City Document Approving 
Completion (Applicant responsible for final scope of work matching 
approved scope)
Proof of Payment:

Processed Checks, Bank or Credit Card Statements 
matching PAID invoices (legible copies)

APPLICANT'S CHECKLIST:

Initial application received by MLI prior to the start of construction and/or before permits are assigned

All remaining documents must be received and an application packet presented to the MLI Board no 
more than three months after the initial application is received by MLI.

Contact Brianna Gerardi, City Director of Development bgerardi@mylubbock.us , to determine:

Documents Required for Final Grant Application

Does the scope of work meet downtown standards and guidelines?
Are permits required for any aspect of the scope of work?
Are public improvements required?

Architectural Plans (if applicable)

Copy of building's current certificate of occupancy (request at 
orr@mylubbock.us)

Copies of City permits, if applicable
Detailed/Itemized Bids
Before Pictures

Architectural Renderings (if applicable)

2 MLI 11.17.23



 

 



 

 



 

 

 



THE LEGACY EVENT CENTER



ENTRY CORRIDOR

TILE FLOOR
TERAZZO LOOK

VENETIAN PLASTER

DIMENTIONAL WALL

FLUTED WOOD 
WALL TREATMENT

MURAL

BLUE CEILING
CONCRETE 

LOOK FLOOR



ENTRY CORRIDOR



ENTRY CORRIDOR



BANQUET 1 ENTRANCE



BANQUET 1

CONCRETE WALL PANELS

SKEWED MAIN ENTRANCE

COLUMN DESIGN

POLISHED CONCRETE FLOOR

ORGANIC/WHIMSICAL CEILING CLOUDS



BANQUET 1



BANQUET 1



BANQUET 2

METAL ARCH ENTRANCE

COLOR BLOCKING ARCH’S

COLUMN DESIGN

POLISHED CONCRETE

PERFORATED 
CEILING PANELS

VENETIAN PLASTER

GLASS

MURAL COLORS



BANQUET 2



BANQUET 2



BANQUET 2



 AI# 12812 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 22. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Municipal Court: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment
No. 1 to the Interlocal Agreement with Lubbock County, for Juvenile Case Manager Services. 

Item Summary
On September 26, 2023, the City of Lubbock and Lubbock County entered into an Interlocal Agreement
for Juvenile Case Manager Services.  This joint agreement, which is renewed annually, is a strategic
measure to help curb crimes committed by juveniles at the local level and prevent them from further
involvement with the justice system.  This allows for a comprehensive and coordinated system to reduce
juvenile criminal activity.

Both parties of the Interlocal Agreement agree to Amendment No. 1, lowering the cost from $120,500.00
to $104,883.23, that the City reimburses to the County, for expenses related to Juvenile Case Manager
Services.

Fiscal Impact
The cost to the City for Juvenile Case Manager Services is $104,883.23 annually.  This amount has been
included in the proposed Municipal Court Budget for FY 2024-25, and is paid from a special revenue
fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
The Honorable Jorge Hernandez, Municipal Court Judge

Attachments
Resolution - Juvenile Case Manager 
Amendment No. 1 - Interlocal Agreement 









 AI# 12814 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 23. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the renewal of the
Interlocal Agreement between the City of Lubbock and Lubbock County, Texas, as constituent agencies
of the Lubbock Metropolitan Special Crimes Unit, to identify, investigate, and deter violent criminal
activity in Lubbock County.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock (on behalf of the Lubbock Police Department) and Lubbock County, Texas (on
behalf of the Lubbock County Sheriff and the Lubbock County Criminal District Attorney), as
constituent agencies of the Lubbock Metropolitan Special Crimes Unit (LMSCU), agree to continue to
staff the LMSCU. Each of the participating agency representatives will remain in place to
identify, investigate, and deter violent crime wherever it may occur or be discovered in Lubbock County.
 
The Interlocal Agreement with Lubbock County and the participation with the LMSCU facilitated
combating violent crimes in Lubbock County, beginning in 2018. The Lubbock Police Department
(LPD) participation in the LMSCU will continue to have a positive impact as the LMSCU successfully
performs its mission.

Fiscal Impact
The LPD will remain responsible for the salary, benefits and overtime of the LPD officers assigned to
the Lubbock Metropolitan Special Crimes Unit. There is no additional cost to the City of Lubbock.

Staff/Board Recommending
Seth Herman, Chief of Police

Attachments
Resolution 
LMSCU Agreement - Resolution No. 2018-R0431 
Memo - Hiighlights and Fiscal Review 
Fiscal Review/Data Charts 



RESO LU TI ON

WIIEREAS. in 2018. the City of Lubbock and Lubbock County agreed to
establish the Lubbock Metropolitan Special Crimes Unit (LMSCU). where
representatives from both law enforcement agencies will cooperate and
collaborate on investigatory activities related to the shared threat of violent crime
wherever it may occur or be discovered in Lubbock County;

WHEREAS, the LMSCU continues to successfully perform its mission to
further the ability of law enforcement agencies to identify, investigate, and
deter violent criminal activity throughout I ‘ubbock Count)’;

WI-1EREAS, after conducting the required fiscal review of the anticipated costs to
each entity in the LMSCU, the City of’ Lubbock has determined that the entities’
mutual cooperation and sharing of resources will result in an equivalent benefit to
each participating entity such that additional financial compensation from either
entity to the other is not necessary; and

WHEREAS. the City of Lubbock desires to continue its participation in the
LMSCU for an additional year;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE (T1’Y COUNCIL OFlHE
CITY OF LUBBOCK:

‘IIIAl the City Council of the City of Lubbock hereby renevs the Local
Administrative Agreement Between the Constituent Agencies of the Lubbock
Metropolitan Special Crimes Unit, an interlocal agreement by and between:

The City of’ Lubbock (on behalf of the Lubbock Police I)epartment); and

Lubbock County, Texas, (on behalf of the Lubbock County Sheriff and
the Lubbock County Criminal District Attorney);

Said Local Administrative Agreement Between the Constituent Agencies of
the Lubbock Metropolitan Special Crimes Unit and any associated documents,
are attached hereto and made a part of this Resolution for all intents and purposes.

‘l’he Local Administrative Agreement Between the Constituent Agencies of
the Lubbock Metropolitan Special Crimes Unit, is hereby renewed, elThctie
October 1, 2024 through September 30, 2025, without further substantive
changes.

Passed b the (‘ity Council this - day of 2024

MARK W. MCBRAYER. MAYOR



All’ES’l’:

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

AEFO CONTENT:

Seth 1-lerman, Chief of Police

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Ryan B/oke Senior Assistant City Attorney

S ‘i1att\C’C’L)OC’S\RES 1MSCIJ.2024.doc

























 AI# 12824 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 24. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager to establish a program to
transfer ownership of service duty weapons to retired Lubbock Police Department officers.

Item Summary
In order to better serve the public, the Lubbock Police Department requests authorization to transfer
ownership of a police officer’s service weapon to him/her upon the officer’s retirement, at no cost to the
officer.  This transfer will enable the City to retain the benefit of the retiree’s professional abilities, and
will ensure that the retired police officers are well-equipped with a law enforcement-grade weapon with
which they are familiar and well-trained.

Fiscal Impact
The cost to the City is $599.96 per LPD Sworn Retiree, and is funded in LPD's Operating Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
Seth Herman, Chief of Police

Attachments
Resolution-Retiree Pistol Ownership Transfer 







 AI# 12711 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 25. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0113, for Zone Case
1067-G, a request of Helmos Interests LTD, for a zone change from Neighborhood Commercial District
(NC) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) Specific Use for a smoke shop, at 6909, 6911, 6913,
6917, 6923, 6925, 6931, and 6951 Indiana Avenue, located east of Indiana Avenue and north of
70th Street, Liberty Village Addition, Lots 1-55 of Tract A.

Item Summary
On August 27, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance unanimously.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on August 1, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a vote of
7-1-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 1067-G 
Staff Report 1067-G 
Documentation 1067-G 









Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 1067-G 
City Council Meeting August 27, 2024 

 
Applicant   Helmos Interests LTD  

Property Owner  Helmos Interests LTD 

 

Council District   4 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends approval of the request with the following condition: 

1. That the Specific Use is limited to one smoke shop on the parcel. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 September 11, 1958, Ordinance No. 2535: The subject property was annexed into City limits. 

 June 11, 1959, Zone Case 769, Ordinance No. 2813: The property was zoned Single-Family District (R-1).  

 April 23, 1964, Zone Case 1067, Ordinance No. 4391: The property was rezoned from R-1 to Local Retail 

District (C-2) with conditions. 

 September 11, 1969, Zone Case 1067-B, Ordinance No. 5734: The conditions approved with the prior zone 

change were amended.  

 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 

from C-2 to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

 July 8, 2024, Zone Case 1067-G: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone 

change from NC to NC Specific Use for a smoke shop by a vote of 7-1-0 with the following condition: 

1. That the Specific Use only be approved for the suite at 6913 Indiana Avenue. 

 August 1, 2024, Zone Case 1067-G: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

zone change from NC to NC Specific Use for a smoke shop by a vote of 7-1-0, with the following condition: 

1. That the Specific Use is limited to one smoke shop on the parcel to be located at 6913 Indiana 

Avenue. 

 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 47 

 Received In Favor: 1 

 Received In Opposition: 4 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject properties were originally platted as Liberty Village Addition, Lots 1 -55 of Tract A on March 3, 1982. 

There is an existing retail shopping center occupying the properties, which was constructed on the property in 

1991. 

 

Adjacent Property Development  

Properties to the north and east are developed with retail uses zoned Neighborhood Commercial District (NC). 

The property to the south is developed with a medical clinic zoned Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC). The 

properties to the west are developed with both duplexes zoned Medium Density Residential District (MDR) and 

retail uses zoned Neighborhood Commercial District (NC). 

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject properties are addressed as 6909, 6911, 6913, 6917, 6923, 6931 and 6951 Indiana Avenue, located 

east of Indiana Avenue and north of 70th Street. The applicant requests a Specific Use for a smoke shop on 

property zoned Neighborhood Commercial District (NC). 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Current zoning:  Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) 

 

Requested zoning:  Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) Specific Use for a smoke shop 

 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current NC zoning is “to provide for small-scale retail and moderate density residential uses 

located away from major intersections (nodes), with building and site design standards that are compatible and 

have adjacent residential uses.” 

 

The purpose of a Specific Use approval is “to ensure that a use that is generally deemed incompatible with 

permitted uses in a given zoning district can be considered for approval with certain conditions placed on the 

use as denoted in this Section [39.02.019].” 

 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located north of 70th Street, which is designated as a Local Street, and east of Indiana Avenue, 
which is designated as a Principal Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Principal Arterials provide 
connectivity across the transportation network serving high volume needs of local and regional traffic. Local 
Streets provide access to smaller, destination-oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local 
business districts.  
 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed Specific Use is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development. The applicant is requesting the Specific Use to allow for a smoke shop. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed Specific Use is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 

location. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed Specific Use, as it would not change the characteristics of the existing 

commercial development. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Photos 

G. Application and Supporting Documentation 

H. Notification Responses 

 

 

Staff Contacts 

Victoria Lewelling   Victor Escamilla 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2021    806-775-3029 

vlewelling@mylubbock.us  vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

mailto:vlewelling@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 1067-G 

 

Allowable Uses:   Neighborhood Commercial District (NC)  

    Specific Use for a Smoke Shop 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access to Indiana Avenue and 70th 
Street.  

Thoroughfare Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Indiana Avenue, 
Principal Arterial, 

Complete  

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-lane, 
undivided, paved 

70th Street, Local 
Street, Complete 

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved N/A 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes: 

District 4 

3.1    Zone Case 1067-G: Helmos Interests LTD, request for a zone change from Neighborhood Commercial 
District (NC) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) Specific Use for a smoke shop, at:  

• 6909, 6911, 6913, 6917, 6923, 6925, 6931, and 6951 Indiana Avenue, located east of Indiana 
Avenue and north of 70th Street, Liberty Village Addition, Lots 1 - 55 of Tract A. 
 

PLANNER VICTORIA LEWELLING gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff 
recommended approval of the request. 

APPLICANT REPRESENTATIVE CARRIE HARRIS, 1101 Broadway, introduced herself as an attorney for the 
proponent.  

ABDULA ALIHAIR, 2207 88th Street, gave comments about his smoke shop request and answered questions from 
the Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 1067-G, a motion was made by SCOTT GLOYNA and seconded by SUSAN TOMLINSON 
to approve the request with the following condition: 
 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-579
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-600


Zone Case 1067-G 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

• That the Specific Use is limited to one smoke shop on the parcel to be located at 6913 Indiana Avenue. 
 

The Commission voted 7 (in favor) to 1 (in opposition) to approve the motion. The case will be forwarded to City 
Council for consideration. 
 
BRANDON HARDAWAY cast the vote in opposition. 











  1067-G 

 

  

View of subject property to the east. View to the south. 

View to the west. View to the north. 















 AI# 12713 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 26. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0114, for Zone Case
3303-D, a request of Steen Realty Group of Keller Williams for SE4NS Properties, LLC, for a zone
change from Industrial Park District (IP) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 11919 and 11923
Frankford Avenue, located east of Frankford Avenue and south of 119th Street, Stonewood Industrial
Park Addition, Tracts B-1 and B-2.

Item Summary
On August 27, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance unanimously.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on August 1, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3303-D 
Staff Report 3303-D 
Documentation 3303-D 









Page 1 of 2  

 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report Zone Case 3303-D 
City Council Meeting August 27, 2024 

 

Applicant Steen Realty Group of Keller Williams 
 

Property Owner SE4NS Properties LLC 
 

Council District 5 

 
Recommendations 

 Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 
Prior Board or Council Action 

 December 18, 2014, Ordinance No. 2014-O0150: The subject properties were annexed into City Limits 
and zoned Transition District (T). 

 February 9, 2017, Zone Case 3303, Ordinance No. 2017-O0019: The properties were rezoned from (T) to 
Industrial Park (IDP). 

 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 
from IDP to Industrial Park District (IP) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

 August 1, 2024, Zone Case 3303-D: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 
zone change from IP to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 
Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 56 

 Received In Favor: 1 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 

The subject properties were originally platted August 7, 2019 as Stonewood Industrial Park Additon, Tract B. On 
August 27, 2021, the properties were replatted as Stonewood Industrial Park Addition, Tracts B-1 and B-2. Tract 
B-1 currently is developed with a commercial building, built in 2019, and Tract B-2 is currently vacant land. 

 
Adjacent Property Development 

The area to the west of the subject properties is zoned Low Density Single-Family Distirct (SF-2) and developed 

with residential housing. The area to the east is zoned Medium Density Residential District (MDR) and developed 

with residential duplex housing. The vacant land to the south is zoned Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), and 

the IP zoned property is developed with a commercial building. To the north is IP zoned land developed with 

commercial properties. 

 
Zoning Request and Analysis  
Item Summary 

The subject properties are addressed as 11919 and 11923 Frankford Avenue, located east of Frankford 

Avenue and south of 119th Street, Stonewood Industrial Park Addition, Tracts B-1 and B-2. The applicant is 

requesting a zone change from Industrial Park District (IP) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC). 

Current zoning: Industrial Park District (IP) 

Requested zoning: Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC)  
  



Page 2 of 2  

Purpose Statements 

The purpose of the Industrial Park District “is to provide for low-impact manufacturing, wholesaling, 

warehousing, and distribution activities that occur within enclosed buildings, typically within industrial park 
settings.” 

The purpose of the Auto-Urban Commercial District “is to provide for a broad range of single-use and multi-
tenant centers that vary in scale, and that provide for retail, service, and office uses typically with on-site 
surface parking. The district may be located along major thoroughfares or at nodes with increased intensity.” 

 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The location is along Frankford Avenue, which is designated as a Minor Arterial, by the Master Thoroughfare 
Plan, 2018. Principal Arterials are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs of local traffic 
and regional traffic. 

 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development. The down zoning from IP to AC is an appropriate district to the adjacent MDR land uses to 

the east. The AC district is a suitable buffer between Frankford Avenue and the neighborhood to the east. 

 
Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Residential Low Density. Although the proposed zone change 

to AC would not be in conformance with the Future Land Use Plan or the Comprehensive Plan Principles, the 

surrounding properties along Frankford Avenue are already being developed as commercial properties, making 

this location appropriate for AC zoning. 

 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located along an Arterial 

street and is appropriate adjacent to nearby land uses. 

 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed use, though additional improvements may be necessary. 

 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G. Photos 

H. Application and supporting documentation 

I. Notification Replies 

 
 

Staff Contacts 

Gregory Hernandez Victor Escamilla 

Planner Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-3147 806-775-3029 

ghernandez@mylubbock.us vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

mailto:ghernandez@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3303-D 

 

Allowable Uses:   Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Frankford Avenue.     

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Frankford Avenue, 
Minor Arterial, 

Incomplete  

R.O.W. 55 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, unpaved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-lane, 
undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes: 

District 5 

 

3.3      Zone Case 3303-D: Steen Realty Group of Keller Williams for SE4NS Properties, LLC, request for a zone 

change from Industrial Park District (IP) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at: 

 11919 and 11923 Frankford Avenue, located east of Frankford Avenue and south of 119th 

Street, Stonewood Industrial Park Addition, Tracts B-1 and B-2. 

 

PLANNER GREG HERNANDEZ gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff 

recommended approval of the request. 

APPLICANT JEREMY STEEN, 10210 Quaker Avenue, gave comments and answered questions from the 

Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3303-D, a motion was made by BRANDON HARDAWAY and seconded by SUSAN 

TOMLINSON to approve the request. The Commission voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the 

motion. The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx?secid=605&keywords=chimney%27s%2Cchimneys%2Cchimneys%27%2Cchimney#secid-580












3303-D 
 
 

 

      View of subject property to the east.                       View to the north. 
  
 

 

 

View to the south.    View to the west. 











 AI# 12714 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 27. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0115, for Zone Case
3506, a request of Brian and Chad Carter, for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District
(SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 5834 and 5836 146th Street, west of Frankford Avenue
and north of 146th Street, on approximately 4.978 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 9.

Item Summary
On August 27, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance unanimously.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on August 1, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3506 
Staff Report 3506 
Documentation 3506 









Exhibit "A"





Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3506 
City Council Meeting August 27, 2024 

 
Applicant   Brian and Chad Carter  

Property Owner  Brian and Chad Carter 

 

Council District   5 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 April 28, 2016, Ordinance No. 2016-O0054: The subject property was annexed into City limits and zoned 

Transition District (T). 

 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 

from T to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

 August 1, 2024 Zone Case 3506: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone 

change from Industrial Park District (IP) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 7 

 Received In Favor: 0 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property is addressed as 5834 and 5836 146th Street, west of Frankford Avenue and north of 146th 

Street, on approximately 4.978 acres of unnplatted land out of Block AK, Section 9. The single-family house built 

on 5836 146th Street was built in 1926. The single-family house on 5834 146th Street was built in 1934.   

 

Adjacent Property Development  

The properties to the east are outside of City limits, developed with single-family homes and commercial offices. 

The property to the north and west is undeveloped farmland, zoned SF-2. The property to the south is 

undeveloped farmland, zoned Medium Density Residential District (MDR).  

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 5834 and 5836 146th Street, located west of Frankford Avenue and north of 

146th Street, on 4.978 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 9. The applicant requests a zone change 

from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC). 

 

Current zoning:  Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) 

 

Requested zoning:  Heavy Commercial District (HC) 

 

Intent Statements 

The purpose of the current Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) is “to provide two types of residential 

subdivisions: 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately-sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space is 

located on private lots. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with in increased percentage of common open 

space compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended character of the 

district while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent neighborhoods, as well 

as for recreational amenities and resources protection.” 

 

The intent of the requested HC zoning is “to provide for development of heavy vehicle repair, wholesale trade, 

and warehousing and freight movement uses that typically are characterized by outside storage of materials or 

merchandise.” 

 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located north of 146th Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial (Modified), and west of 
Frankford Avenue, which is designated as a Minor Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Principal and 
Minor Arterials provide connectivity across the transportation network serving high volume needs of local and 
regional traffic.  
 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development. Currently, the property is surrounded by undeveloped farmland. HC zoning will be 

appropriate near this land use.  

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Residential Low Density land uses. While this request does not 

conform to this designation, it would be appropriate along a major thoroughfare. Alleys and required bufferyards 

would provide sufficient barriers from lower intensity uses. Therefore, this request is in moderate conformance 

with the Comprehensive Plan Principles.  

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 

location. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed district, as it would not change the characteristics of the existing 

neighborhood. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Aerial Map 

D. Zoning Map 

E. Future Land Use Map 

F. Photos 

G. Application and Supporting Documentation 

 

 

Staff Contacts 

Victoria Lewelling   Victor Escamilla 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2021    806-775-3029 

vlewelling@mylubbock.us  vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

mailto:vlewelling@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 1 

Case Information: Zone Case 3506 

Allowable Uses: Heavy Commercial District (HC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from 146th Street. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

146th Street, 
Principal Arterial 

(Modified), Future 

R.O.W. 80 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, unpaved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-lane, 
undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes: 

District 5 

3.4  Zone Case 3506: Brian and Chad Carter, request for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family 

District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at: 

 5834 and 5836 146th Street, west of Frankford Avenue and north of 146th Street,  on 

approximately 4.978 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 9.

PLANNER VICTORIA LEWELLING gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff 

recommended approval of the request. 

APPLICANT BRIAN CARTER, 4708 109th Place, gave comments about his request and answered questions from the 

Commission. 

IN FAVOR, THOMAS PAYNE, 15309 Farm Market 1730, indicated that he was favorable to Mr. Carter’s 

current business operations, stating their businesses are very clean and orderly.  

No one appeared to speak in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3506, a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by ZACH SAWYER to 

approve the zone case as presented. The Commission voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx?secid=562#secid-1620














 AI# 12715 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 28. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0116, for Zone Case
3507, a request of Mountain Top Engineering for CTJ Diamond Investments, LLC, for a zone change
from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 7108
82nd Street, located north of 82nd Street and east of Upland Avenue, on 1.01 acres of unplatted land out
of Block AK, Section 30.

Item Summary
On August 27, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance unanimously.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on August 1, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3507 
Staff Report 3507 
Documentation 3507 







Exhibit "A"



Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3507 
City Council Meeting August 27, 2024 

 

Applicant Mountain Top Engineering    

 

Property Owner  CTJ Diamond Investments, LLC  

 

Council District   5 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 January 14, 1999, Ordinance No. 10117: The subject property was annexed into City limits and zoned 
Transition District (T). 

 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 
from T to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

 August 1, 2004, Zone Case 3507: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone 
change from SF-2 to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 17 

 Received In Favor: 0 

 Received In Opposition: 1 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property remains unplatted and is developed with a commercial structure, built in 1994. 

 

Adjacent Property Development  

The properties to the north and east are zoned SF-2 and are developed with a self-storage facility. The property 

to the south is zoned Office District (OF) and is developed with a garden office. To the west, the properties are 

zoned SF-2, and Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) and are developed with a church and a daycare center, 

respectively.  

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 7108 82nd Street, located north of 82nd  Street and east of Upland Avenue. 

The applicant requests a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Auto-Urban Commercial 

District (AC).   

 

Current zoning:  Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2)  

 

Requested zoning:  Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) 

 

Intent Statements 

The purpose of the Low Density Single-Family (SF-2) District is to provide two types of residential subdivisions: 

 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space is 

located on private lots. 

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with an increased percentage of common open 



Page 2 of 2 

 

space compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended character of the 

district while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent neighborhoods, as well 

as for recreational amenities and resources protection. 

 

The intent of the requested AC zoning is “…to provide for a broad range of single-use and multi-tenant 

centers that vary in scale, and that provide for retail, service, and office uses typically with on-site surface 

parking. The district may be located along major thoroughfares or at nodes with increased intensity.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location will be along 82nd Street. The Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018 designates 82nd 

Street as a Principal Arterial. Arterials are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs to 

local traffic and regional traffic.  

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.   

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Commercial” land use. The proposed zone change to AC would 

be in conformance with the Commercial designation. This request would be appropriate next to adjacent land 

uses and commercial zoning along 82nd Street, and fronting along an Arterial Street.  

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 

location.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed use and may need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), as the property remains unplatted.  

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information      

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  

C.  Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E.  Zoning Map 

F.  Future Land Use Map 

G.  Photos 

H.  Application and supporting documentation 

I. Notification Responses 

 

Staff Contacts 

Ashley Padilla    Victor Escamilla 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2107    806-775-3029 

ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us    vescamilla@mylubbock.us  

mailto:ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3507 

 

Allowable Uses:   Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has an access point from 82nd  Street.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

82nd  Street, Principal 
Arterial, Completed  

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes: 

District 5 

3.5     Zone Case 3507: Mountain Top Engineering for CTJ Diamond Investments, LLC, request for a zone 

change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at: 

 7108 82nd Street, located north of 82nd Street and east of Upland Avenue, on 1.01 acres of 

unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 30.  

PLANNER ASHLEY PADILLA gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff 

recommended approval of the request. 

APPLICANT TOMMY HARMS, 604 County Road 7200, gave comments and answered questions from the 

Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 
 

In the matter of Zone Case 3507, a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by SCOTT GLOYNA to 
approve the zone case as presented. The Commission voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 
The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-580




















From: CityPlanning
To: Ashley Padilla
Cc: Victor Escamilla
Subject: FW: Planning Meeting Aug. 1 @ 6:00, Case #3507 OPPOSE
Date: Thursday, August 1, 2024 3:22:19 PM

 
 

From: Betty Lynch <bettylynch15@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Thursday, August 1, 2024 2:59 PM
To: CityPlanning <cityplanning@mylubbock.us>
Subject: Planning Meeting Aug. 1 @ 6:00, Case #3507 OPPOSE
 

WARNING: This message was sent from outside the City of Lubbock's email system.

It could contain harmful attachments or links to harmful web pages.

 

I know I am late, but I wanted to oppose the rezoning Case #3507. being held tonight. 
 
I AM OPPOSED TO REZONING District 5, Case 3507.
 
Betty Lynch
7105 79th St.
Lubbock, TX  79424

mailto:cityplanning@mylubbock.us
mailto:AshleyPadilla@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


 AI# 12716 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 29. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0117, for Zone Case
3505, a request of Seventeen Services, LLC for Scarlet River, LLC, for a zone change from Low Density
Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 2909 and 2911 North Frankford
Avenue, located west of North Frankford Avenue and north of Ursuline Street, on 5.023 acres of
unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 12.

Item Summary
On August 27, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance unanimously.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on August 1, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3505 
Staff Report 3505 
Documentation 3505 









Exhibit "A"



Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3505 
City Council Meeting August 27, 2024 

 

Applicant Seventeen Services, LLC    

 

Property Owner  Scarlet River, LLC  

 

Council District   6 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 May 10, 2018, Ordinance No. 2018-O0050: The subject property was annexed into City limits and zoned 
Transition District (T). 

 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 
from T to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

 August 1, 2024, Zone Case 3505: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone 
change from SF-2 to Heavey Commercial District (HC) by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 13 

 Received In Favor: 2 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property remains unplatted and is developed with a vacant residential home built in 2018 and an 

accessory structure built in 1994. 

 

Adjacent Property Development  

The property to the north is zoned SF-2 and is developed with a residential home. The property to the east is 

zoned SF-2 and is developed with a self-storage facility. To the south, the property is zoned SF-2 and is developed 

with a residential home and multiple accessory structures. To the west, the property is zoned SF-2 and remains 

vacant. 

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 2909 and 2911 North Frankford Avenue, located west of Frankford Avenue 

and north of Ursuline Street. The applicant requests a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-

2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC).   

 

Current zoning:  Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2)  

 

Requested zoning:  Heavy Commercial District (HC) 

 

Intent Statements 

The purpose of the Low Density Single-Family (SF-2) District is to provide two types of residential subdivisions: 

 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space is 

located on private lots. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with an increased percentage of common open 

space compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended character of the 

district while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent neighborhoods, as well 

as for recreational amenities and resources protection. 

 

The intent of the proposed Heavy Commercial (HC) District zoning is “… to provide for development of heavy 

vehicle repair, wholesale trade, and warehousing and freight movement uses that typically are characterized 

by outside storage of materials or merchandise. The district should be located away from residential areas or, 

if unavoidable, should be heavily buffered.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location will be along North Frankford Avenue. The Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018, 

designates Frankford Avenue, as a Principal Arterial (Modified). Arterial streets are continuous routes whose 

function is to serve high-volume needs to local traffic and regional traffic.  

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.   

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Residential low density” land use. While the proposed zone 

change to HC is not in conformance with this designation, it is appropriate at this location while fronting a major 

thoroughfare, near an established HC zoned property to the south, and across the street from a self-storage 

facility.   

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 

location.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed use and may need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the Heavy Commercial District (HC), as the property remains unplatted.  

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information      

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  

C.  Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E.  Zoning Map 

F.  Future Land Use Map 

G.  Photos 

H.  Application and supporting documentation 

I. Notification Responses 

 

Staff Contacts 

Ashley Padilla    Victor Escamilla 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2107    806-775-3029 

ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us    vescamilla@mylubbock.us  

mailto:ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3505 

 

Allowable Uses:   Heavy Commercial District (HC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has an access point from Frankford Avenue.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Frankford Avenue, 
Principal Arterial 

(Modified), Partially 
Completed  

R.O.W. 120 feet, three-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes: 

District 6 

3.6     Zone Case 3505: Seventeen Services, LLC for Scarlet River, LLC, request for a zone change from Low 
Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at: 

 

 2909 and 2911 North Frankford Avenue, located west of North Frankford Avenue and north 

of Ursuline Street, on 5.023 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 12.  

 

PLANNER ASHLEY PADILLA gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff 

recommended approval of the request. 

APPLICANT TYLER GENTRY, 604 County Road 7200, gave comments and answered questions from the 

Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 
 

In the matter of Zone Case 3505, a motion was made by ZACH SAWYER and seconded by SCOTT GLOYNA to 
approve the zone case as presented. The Commission voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 
The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1620
























 AI# 12830 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 30. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution approving American Rescue Plan Act Agreement
No. 18314, by and between the City of Lubbock and Armstrong Mechanical Co., Inc., for workforce
training grants.

Item Summary
On March 5, 2024, the City Council approved a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the
Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) to solicit and review grant applications for the
Workforce Training Grant Program.
 
As part of the City of Lubbock's job training efforts, the City allocated $150,000 from the Job Training
allocation of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds for workforce training grants.  The program
provides workforce training grants to employers to assist in offsetting the costs of employee training for
employees seeking a license in the licensed trades.  The grant program provides employers with a $5,000
grant per employee, for up to 2 employees.
 
The requirements of the program are outlined below. 

Applicant must be a valid employer located in the city limits of the City of Lubbock. 
Applicant must be eligible to conduct business in the State of Texas.
Applicant must be current on all payments to the Texas State Comptroller.
Applicant is not eligible for grant program funding if delinquent in property taxes according to
Lubbock Central Appraisal District (LCAD) records and other taxing districts as applicable.
A training grant application must be submitted within 90 days of hiring a new employee in order to
be eligible. 
The employee must be pursuing a license in the Plumbing, HVAC, or Electrical trades. 
Applicant is eligible for up to 2 grants.  

The first $2,500 will be paid to the applicant upon the hiring of a new employee.
The remaining $2,500 will be paid upon verification that the employee has completed 1,800
hours of training towards licensing in a trade with the employer.

Applications have been received and reviewed, and a total of 9 workforce development grants are being
recommended for 5 businesses.
 
Staff is recommending the award of 2 workforce training grants for a total of $10,000, to Armstrong
Mechanical Co., Inc.

Fiscal Impact
This agreement for $10,000 is funded through ARPA Job Training Funds.  

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 



Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 

Attachments
Resolution 
Agreement 
Program Guidelines 













































Workforce Training Grant Program 
 

Overview 
 
The City of Lubbock and LEDA are offering workforce-training grants to employers to assist in offsetting the costs of 
employee training for employees seeking a license in the licensed trades.  The City of Lubbock will provide employers 
with a $5,000 grant per employee to assist in offsetting the costs associated with employee training.   
 
An employer can request grants for up to two (2) employees. The funds will be available on a first come first serve basis 
at the sole discretion of the City of Lubbock and will be available until budgeted funds are depleted.   
 
Training Grant Eligibility 
 

• Applicant must be a valid employer located in the city limits of the City of Lubbock.   
• Applicant must be eligible to conduct business in the State of Texas. 
• Applicant must be current on all payments to the Texas State Comptroller. 
• Applicant is not eligible for grant program funding if delinquent in property taxes according to Lubbock Central 

Appraisal District (LCAD) records and other taxing districts as applicable.  
• A training grant application must be submitted within 90 days of hiring a new employee in order to be eligible.   
• The employee must be pursuing a license in the Plumbing, HVAC, or Electrical trades.   
• Applicant is eligible for up to two (2) grants.   

Training Grant Details 
 

• An employer is eligible to receive one training grant in the amount of $5,000 per employee hired within 90 days of 
submission of the grant application.   

• The first $2,500 will be paid to the applicant upon the hiring of a new employee. 
• The remaining $2,500 will be paid upon verification that the employee has completed 1,800 hours of 

training towards licensing in a trade with the employer. 
• Applicants will apply directly with LEDA who will then make recommendations to the City for funding.   
• All grants are awarded at the sole discretion of the City of Lubbock. 

 
 

 



 AI# 12832 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 31. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution approving American Rescue Plan Act Agreement
No. 18315, by and between the City of Lubbock and Dale Bolles Plumbing, Inc., for workforce training
grants.

Item Summary
On March 5, 2024, the City Council approved a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the
Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) to solicit and review grant applications for the
Workforce Training Grant Program.
 
As part of the City of Lubbock's job training efforts, the City allocated $150,000 from the Job Training
allocation of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds for workforce training grants.  The program
provides workforce training grants to employers to assist in offsetting the costs of employee training for
employees seeking a license in the licensed trades.  The grant program provides employers with a $5,000
grant per employee, for up to 2 employees.
 
The requirements of the program are outlined below. 

Applicant must be a valid employer located in the city limits of the City of Lubbock. 
Applicant must be eligible to conduct business in the State of Texas.
Applicant must be current on all payments to the Texas State Comptroller.
Applicant is not eligible for grant program funding if delinquent in property taxes according to
Lubbock Central Appraisal District (LCAD) records and other taxing districts as applicable.
A training grant application must be submitted within 90 days of hiring a new employee in order to
be eligible. 
The employee must be pursuing a license in the Plumbing, HVAC, or Electrical trades. 
Applicant is eligible for up to 2 grants.  

The first $2,500 will be paid to the applicant upon the hiring of a new employee.
The remaining $2,500 will be paid upon verification that the employee has completed 1,800
hours of training towards licensing in a trade with the employer.

Applications have been received and reviewed, and a total of 9 workforce development grants are being
recommended for 5 businesses.
 
Staff is recommending the award of 2 workforce training grants for a total of $10,000, to Dale Bolles
Plumbing, Inc.

Fiscal Impact
This agreement is in the amount of $10,000 and is funded through ARPA Job Training Funds.  

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 



Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 

Attachments
Resolution 
Agreement 
Program Guidelines 













































Workforce Training Grant Program 
 

Overview 
 
The City of Lubbock and LEDA are offering workforce-training grants to employers to assist in offsetting the costs of 
employee training for employees seeking a license in the licensed trades.  The City of Lubbock will provide employers 
with a $5,000 grant per employee to assist in offsetting the costs associated with employee training.   
 
An employer can request grants for up to two (2) employees. The funds will be available on a first come first serve basis 
at the sole discretion of the City of Lubbock and will be available until budgeted funds are depleted.   
 
Training Grant Eligibility 
 

• Applicant must be a valid employer located in the city limits of the City of Lubbock.   
• Applicant must be eligible to conduct business in the State of Texas. 
• Applicant must be current on all payments to the Texas State Comptroller. 
• Applicant is not eligible for grant program funding if delinquent in property taxes according to Lubbock Central 

Appraisal District (LCAD) records and other taxing districts as applicable.  
• A training grant application must be submitted within 90 days of hiring a new employee in order to be eligible.   
• The employee must be pursuing a license in the Plumbing, HVAC, or Electrical trades.   
• Applicant is eligible for up to two (2) grants.   

Training Grant Details 
 

• An employer is eligible to receive one training grant in the amount of $5,000 per employee hired within 90 days of 
submission of the grant application.   

• The first $2,500 will be paid to the applicant upon the hiring of a new employee. 
• The remaining $2,500 will be paid upon verification that the employee has completed 1,800 hours of 

training towards licensing in a trade with the employer. 
• Applicants will apply directly with LEDA who will then make recommendations to the City for funding.   
• All grants are awarded at the sole discretion of the City of Lubbock. 

 
 

 



 AI# 12833 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 32. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution approving American Rescue Plan Act Agreement
No. 18316, by and between the City of Lubbock and Precision Pros Plumbing, for workforce training
grants.

Item Summary
On March 5, 2024, the City Council approved a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the
Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) to solicit and review grant applications for the
Workforce Training Grant Program.
 
As part of the City of Lubbock's job training efforts, the City allocated $150,000 from the Job Training
allocation of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds for workforce training grants.  The program
provides workforce training grants to employers to assist in offsetting the costs of employee training for
employees seeking a license in the licensed trades.  The grant program provides employers with a $5,000
grant per employee, for up to 2 employees.
 
The requirements of the program are outlined below. 

Applicant must be a valid employer located in the city limits of the City of Lubbock. 
Applicant must be eligible to conduct business in the State of Texas.
Applicant must be current on all payments to the Texas State Comptroller.
Applicant is not eligible for grant program funding if delinquent in property taxes according to
Lubbock Central Appraisal District (LCAD) records and other taxing districts as applicable.
A training grant application must be submitted within 90 days of hiring a new employee in order to
be eligible. 
The employee must be pursuing a license in the Plumbing, HVAC, or Electrical trades. 
Applicant is eligible for up to 2 grants.  

The first $2,500 will be paid to the applicant upon the hiring of a new employee.
The remaining $2,500 will be paid upon verification that the employee has completed 1,800
hours of training towards licensing in a trade with the employer.

Applications have been received and reviewed, and a total of 9 workforce development grants are being
recommended for 5 businesses.
 
Staff is recommending the award of 1 workforce training grant for a total of $5,000, to Precision Pros
Plumbing.

Fiscal Impact
This agreement is in the amount of $5,000 and is funded through ARPA Job Training Funds.  

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 



Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 

Attachments
Resolution 
Agreement 
Program Guidelines 













































Workforce Training Grant Program 
 

Overview 
 
The City of Lubbock and LEDA are offering workforce-training grants to employers to assist in offsetting the costs of 
employee training for employees seeking a license in the licensed trades.  The City of Lubbock will provide employers 
with a $5,000 grant per employee to assist in offsetting the costs associated with employee training.   
 
An employer can request grants for up to two (2) employees. The funds will be available on a first come first serve basis 
at the sole discretion of the City of Lubbock and will be available until budgeted funds are depleted.   
 
Training Grant Eligibility 
 

• Applicant must be a valid employer located in the city limits of the City of Lubbock.   
• Applicant must be eligible to conduct business in the State of Texas. 
• Applicant must be current on all payments to the Texas State Comptroller. 
• Applicant is not eligible for grant program funding if delinquent in property taxes according to Lubbock Central 

Appraisal District (LCAD) records and other taxing districts as applicable.  
• A training grant application must be submitted within 90 days of hiring a new employee in order to be eligible.   
• The employee must be pursuing a license in the Plumbing, HVAC, or Electrical trades.   
• Applicant is eligible for up to two (2) grants.   

Training Grant Details 
 

• An employer is eligible to receive one training grant in the amount of $5,000 per employee hired within 90 days of 
submission of the grant application.   

• The first $2,500 will be paid to the applicant upon the hiring of a new employee. 
• The remaining $2,500 will be paid upon verification that the employee has completed 1,800 hours of 

training towards licensing in a trade with the employer. 
• Applicants will apply directly with LEDA who will then make recommendations to the City for funding.   
• All grants are awarded at the sole discretion of the City of Lubbock. 

 
 

 



 AI# 12834 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 33. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution approving American Rescue Plan Act Agreement
No. 18317, by and between the City of Lubbock and Larcon Electric, L.C., for workforce training grants.

Item Summary
On March 5, 2024, the City Council approved a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the
Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) to solicit and review grant applications for the
Workforce Training Grant Program.
 
As part of the City of Lubbock's job training efforts, the City allocated $150,000 from the Job Training
allocation of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds for workforce training grants.  The program
provides workforce training grants to employers to assist in offsetting the costs of employee training for
employees seeking a license in the licensed trades.  The grant program provides employers with a $5,000
grant per employee, for up to 2 employees.
 
The requirements of the program are outlined below. 

Applicant must be a valid employer located in the city limits of the City of Lubbock. 
Applicant must be eligible to conduct business in the State of Texas.
Applicant must be current on all payments to the Texas State Comptroller.
Applicant is not eligible for grant program funding if delinquent in property taxes according to
Lubbock Central Appraisal District (LCAD) records and other taxing districts as applicable.
A training grant application must be submitted within 90 days of hiring a new employee in order to
be eligible. 
The employee must be pursuing a license in the Plumbing, HVAC, or Electrical trades. 
Applicant is eligible for up to 2 grants.  

The first $2,500 will be paid to the applicant upon the hiring of a new employee.
The remaining $2,500 will be paid upon verification that the employee has completed 1,800
hours of training towards licensing in a trade with the employer.

Applications have been received and reviewed, and a total of 9 workforce development grants are being
recommended for 5 businesses.
 
Staff is recommending the award of 2 workforce training grants for a total of $10,000, to Larcon Electric,
L.C.

Fiscal Impact
This agreement is in the amount of $10,000 and is funded through ARPA Job Training Funds.  

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 



Attachments
Resolution 
Agreement 
Program Guidelines 













































Workforce Training Grant Program 
 

Overview 
 
The City of Lubbock and LEDA are offering workforce-training grants to employers to assist in offsetting the costs of 
employee training for employees seeking a license in the licensed trades.  The City of Lubbock will provide employers 
with a $5,000 grant per employee to assist in offsetting the costs associated with employee training.   
 
An employer can request grants for up to two (2) employees. The funds will be available on a first come first serve basis 
at the sole discretion of the City of Lubbock and will be available until budgeted funds are depleted.   
 
Training Grant Eligibility 
 

• Applicant must be a valid employer located in the city limits of the City of Lubbock.   
• Applicant must be eligible to conduct business in the State of Texas. 
• Applicant must be current on all payments to the Texas State Comptroller. 
• Applicant is not eligible for grant program funding if delinquent in property taxes according to Lubbock Central 

Appraisal District (LCAD) records and other taxing districts as applicable.  
• A training grant application must be submitted within 90 days of hiring a new employee in order to be eligible.   
• The employee must be pursuing a license in the Plumbing, HVAC, or Electrical trades.   
• Applicant is eligible for up to two (2) grants.   

Training Grant Details 
 

• An employer is eligible to receive one training grant in the amount of $5,000 per employee hired within 90 days of 
submission of the grant application.   

• The first $2,500 will be paid to the applicant upon the hiring of a new employee. 
• The remaining $2,500 will be paid upon verification that the employee has completed 1,800 hours of 

training towards licensing in a trade with the employer. 
• Applicants will apply directly with LEDA who will then make recommendations to the City for funding.   
• All grants are awarded at the sole discretion of the City of Lubbock. 

 
 

 



 AI# 12835 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 34. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution approving American Rescue Plan Act Agreement
No. 18318, by and between the City of Lubbock and Bruce Thornton Air Conditioning, for workforce
training grants.

Item Summary
On March 5, 2024, the City Council approved a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the
Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) to solicit and review grant applications for the
Workforce Training Grant Program.
 
As part of the City of Lubbock's job training efforts, the City allocated $150,000 from the Job Training
allocation of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds for workforce training grants.  The program
provides workforce training grants to employers to assist in offsetting the costs of employee training for
employees seeking a license in the licensed trades.  The grant program provides employers with a $5,000
grant per employee, for up to 2 employees.
 
The requirements of the program are outlined below. 

Applicant must be a valid employer located in the city limits of the City of Lubbock. 
Applicant must be eligible to conduct business in the State of Texas.
Applicant must be current on all payments to the Texas State Comptroller.
Applicant is not eligible for grant program funding if delinquent in property taxes according to
Lubbock Central Appraisal District (LCAD) records and other taxing districts as applicable.
A training grant application must be submitted within 90 days of hiring a new employee in order to
be eligible. 
The employee must be pursuing a license in the Plumbing, HVAC, or Electrical trades. 
Applicant is eligible for up to 2 grants.  

The first $2,500 will be paid to the applicant upon the hiring of a new employee.
The remaining $2,500 will be paid upon verification that the employee has completed 1,800
hours of training towards licensing in a trade with the employer.

Applications have been received and reviewed, and a total of 9 workforce development grants are being
recommended for 5 businesses.
 
Staff is recommending the award of 2 workforce training grants for a total of $10,000, to Bruce Thornton
Air Conditioning.  

Fiscal Impact
This agreement in the amount of $10,000, is funded through ARPA Job Training Funds.  

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 



Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 

Attachments
Resolution 
Agreement 
Program Guidelines 













































Workforce Training Grant Program 
 

Overview 
 
The City of Lubbock and LEDA are offering workforce-training grants to employers to assist in offsetting the costs of 
employee training for employees seeking a license in the licensed trades.  The City of Lubbock will provide employers 
with a $5,000 grant per employee to assist in offsetting the costs associated with employee training.   
 
An employer can request grants for up to two (2) employees. The funds will be available on a first come first serve basis 
at the sole discretion of the City of Lubbock and will be available until budgeted funds are depleted.   
 
Training Grant Eligibility 
 

• Applicant must be a valid employer located in the city limits of the City of Lubbock.   
• Applicant must be eligible to conduct business in the State of Texas. 
• Applicant must be current on all payments to the Texas State Comptroller. 
• Applicant is not eligible for grant program funding if delinquent in property taxes according to Lubbock Central 

Appraisal District (LCAD) records and other taxing districts as applicable.  
• A training grant application must be submitted within 90 days of hiring a new employee in order to be eligible.   
• The employee must be pursuing a license in the Plumbing, HVAC, or Electrical trades.   
• Applicant is eligible for up to two (2) grants.   

Training Grant Details 
 

• An employer is eligible to receive one training grant in the amount of $5,000 per employee hired within 90 days of 
submission of the grant application.   

• The first $2,500 will be paid to the applicant upon the hiring of a new employee. 
• The remaining $2,500 will be paid upon verification that the employee has completed 1,800 hours of 

training towards licensing in a trade with the employer. 
• Applicants will apply directly with LEDA who will then make recommendations to the City for funding.   
• All grants are awarded at the sole discretion of the City of Lubbock. 

 
 

 



 AI# 12829 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 35. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Council: Consider a resolution approving a contract amendment to American Rescue
Plan Act Agreement No. 16663, by and between the City of Lubbock and the East Lubbock Resident
Owned Business Initiative, for job training services.  

Item Summary
On June 14, 2022, the City Council approved an agreement with the East Lubbock Resident Owned
Business Initiative (EL ROBI), for job training services.  The agreement was in the amount of $420,000
and the term set forth in the agreement was through September 30, 2024.

EL ROBI is a six-week pre-apprenticeship program that targets low to moderate income people that are
pursuing careers in the skilled trades.  This is an existing program that provides safety training, financial
coaching, and industry-specific curriculum for the trades, including plumbing, HVAC, electrical, and
welding.

EL ROBI works directly with employers to develop training programs that meet the specific needs of the
sector to ensure that individuals are well-prepared and positioned to be successful in apprenticeships for
careers in the skilled trades. The program funds up to $3,000 per student, per class for an amount not to
exceed $420,000.  During that 6-week period, students receive a minimum of 40 hours of instruction and
the funding is applied towards program expenses, including staffing, instructors, and equipment, and
supplies.  EL ROBI has utilized $243,301.91 through August of this year.  

The proposed amendment would extend the original term of the agreement to December 31, 2026, but
will not add any additional funds to the amount already allocated through the original agreement.  

Fiscal Impact
This amendment is an extension of the original term of the agreement, and has no fiscal impact.

Staff/Board Recommending
Gordon Harris, Councilman, District 2
Dr. Jennifer Wilson, Councilwoman, District 5

Attachments
Resolution 
Amendment 
Original Agreement 













































































 AI# 12840 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 36. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Secretary: Consider a resolution confirming the appointment by City Manager W.
Jarrett Atkinson, of Jimmy Lee Tillinghast as a member of the Civil Service Commission of the City of
Lubbock.

Item Summary
Section 143.006 of the Local Government Code requires appointment of persons to the Civil Service
Commission of the City of Lubbock to be made by the municipality’s chief executive and confirmed by
the governing body of the municipality. Jimmy Lee Tillinghast will replace Vickie Bennett. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
Civil Service Commission Appointment Resolution 





 AI# 12828 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider and take action to ratify and confirm the appointment of Richard
M. Stewart as Fire Chief for the City of Lubbock.

Item Summary
Section 143.013 of the Texas Local Government Code requires that the appointment of the head (Chief)
of a civil service department of a municipality to be made by the municipality’s chief executive and
confirmed by the municipality’s governing body.
 
As the City Manager and Chief Executive Officer of the City of Lubbock, I have appointed Chief
Richard M. Stewart as the Fire Chief, effective October 7, 2024, and respectfully request your
ratification and confirmation per the requirements of the Texas Local Government Code.
 
Chief Stewart was one of five, highly-qualified finalists that were selected as the result of an intensive
nation-wide search.  The process included application, multi-stage assignments and extensive
background research.  Multiple interviews were conducted as well as tours of the City and Lubbock Fire
Rescue (LFR) facilities where the participating candidates were put in direct contact with both LFR
members and senior City staff.  The final portion of the recruitment was a public meet-and-greet
session.  Numerous public input submissions were received, all of which were reviewed and considered.
 Further information and input was received by debriefing various City staff who were involved in the
process and had direct contact with the finalists.  Executive Board members of the Lubbock Professional
Firefighters Association also visited with the finalists and briefed me on their observations and thoughts. 
In the case of Chief Stewart, additional reference research was conducted as well as follow-up phone
interviews.
 
Based on the information received and observations above, it is my recommendation and respectful
request that the City Council ratify and confirm this appointment.  Chief Richard M. Stewart is the best
choice to lead Lubbock Fire Rescue as its next Fire Chief.

Fiscal Impact
All costs are included in existing, approved budgets.

Staff/Board Recommending
W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - Appt. of Fire Chief Stewart 





 AI# 12767 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 2. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Planning:
Consider and take action on the City of Lubbock Planning and Zoning Commission's final report of
September 5, 2024, to the Lubbock City Council on proposed amendments to the Unified Development
Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054) recommended for adoption, limited to the following: 

Table 39.03.023-2 (related to Base Public and Nonresidential Districts Sign Standards)1.
Section 39.02.004.a.7, Section 39.02.004.b.7, Section 39.02.004.c.7, Section 39.02.004.d.7, Section
39.02.004.e.7 (related to Signs in Residential Districts for Non-Residential Uses)

2.

Section 39.03.023.b.8 (related to Monument Signs)3.

Item Summary
The Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC) and the City Council held a joint public hearing on July
25, 2024, to discuss amending the Unified Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054).  On
August 13, 2024, the City Council tabled the amendments related to sign regulations, until the
September 10, 2024 City Council meeting.  On September 5, 2024, the PZC reviewed sign-related
amendments to the Unified Development Code.  The recommendation from the PZC will be presented at
the City Council meeting on September 10, 2024.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
UDC Amendments Ordinance 
Amendments 









Postponed UDC Amendments 

09-10-2024 City Council Meeting 

 

4. Table 39.03.023-2 – Base Public and Nonresidential Districts Sign Standards – Canopy Signs    

 

a. Current Language: Limited to a maximum of 1 sign per canopy. 

b. Proposed Revision: Change to No max. 

 

 
 

 

5. Table 39.03.023-2 – Base Public and Nonresidential Districts Sign Standards – Canopy Signs    

 

a. Current Language: EMD Signs are prohibited.  

 

b. Proposed Revision: Change to Yes. 

 

 

19. Section 39.02.004(a)(7), (b)(7), (c)(7), (d)(7), (e)(7) – Signs in Residential Districts for Non-Residential Uses 

 

a. Current Language: Signs. Table 39.02.004.a-5, RE Permitted Sign Types, denotes sign types permitted 

in the RE district. For more details and specific standards, refer to Division 3.5, Signs. Signs not listed in 

this table are prohibited in this zoning district. In case of a conflict between Table 39.02.004.a-5 and the 

provisions of Division 3.5, Signs, the latter shall control. 

  

b. Proposed Revision: Signs. 

 

A. Table 39.02.004.a-5, RE Permitted Sign Types, denotes sign types permitted in the RE district. For more 

details and specific standards, refer to Division 3.5, Signs. Signs not listed in this table are prohibited in this 

zoning district. In case of a conflict between Table 39.02.004.a-5 and the provisions of Division 3.5, Signs, the 

latter shall control. 

A. Table 39.02.004.b-5, SF-1 Permitted Sign Types, denotes sign types permitted in the SF-1 district. For 

more details and specific standards, refer to Division 3.5, Signs. Signs not listed in this table are prohibited in 

this zoning district. In case of a conflict between Table 39.02.004.b-5 and the provisions of Division 

3.5, Signs, the latter shall control. 

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629


A. Table 39.02.004.c-5, SF-2 Permitted Sign Types, denotes sign types permitted in the SF-2 district. For more 

details and specific standards, refer to Division 3.5, Signs. Signs not listed in this table are prohibited in this 

zoning district. In case of a conflict between Table 39.02.004.c-5 and the provisions of Division 3.5, Signs, the 

latter shall control. 

A. Table 39.02.004.d-5, MDR Permitted Sign Types, denotes sign types permitted in the MDR district. For 

more details and specific standards, refer to Division 3.5, Signs. Signs not listed in this table are prohibited in 

this zoning district. In case of a conflict between Table 39.02.004.d-5 and the provisions of Division 

3.5, Signs, the latter shall control. 

 

A. Table 39.02.004.e-5, HDR Permitted Sign Types, denotes sign types permitted in the HDR district. For 

more details and specific standards, refer to Division 3.5, Signs. Signs not listed in this table are prohibited in 

this zoning district. In case of a conflict between Table 39.02.004.e-5 and the provisions of Division 

3.5, Signs, the latter shall control. 

B. Nonresidential. For nonresidential developments, refer to Subsection 39.02.006.a, Neighborhood 

Commercial (NC). 

 
33. Section 39.03.023.b.8 – Monuments Signs 

 

a. Current Language: Separation. Monument or pole signs are permitted on one street frontage when 400 

feet of frontage is provided.  The total area of both signs shall not exceed the maximum sign area listed 

in the table below and the minimum separation between signs is 200 feet. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Separation. Two monument or pole signs are permitted on one street frontage 

when 400 feet of frontage is provided.  The total area of both signs shall not exceed the maximum sign 

area listed in the table below and the minimum separation between signs is 200 feet. 

 

47. Table 39.03.023-2 Base Public and Nonresidential Districts Sign Standards - Murals  

 

a. Current Language: Murals are limited to 50% of façade area/10% of façade area per tenant and 75% of 

façade or tenant space width in MU Districts. They are also limited to 750 sq. ft. and 35’ width in non-

residential districts. 

b. Proposed Revision: Change Sign Area (max) and Sign Width (max) to No max and remove MU-4 and 

MU-6 from list. 

 

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-579
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1748
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1748


 

 



 AI# 12809 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 3. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0128, approving and adopting a
budget for Fiscal Year 2024-25; approving summary of estimated and forecasted revenues,
appropriations, and use of excess reserves for all funds of the city; providing for necessary transfers of
funds between accounts and departments, if required; authorizing reduction of spending by City
Manager if necessary; re-appropriation of balances which support authorized obligations or
encumbrances; providing for filing of Adopted Budget; establishing civil service classifications and
positions; appropriating funds for the Fiscal Year 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program of the
City of Lubbock; providing for continuation of appropriations for projects in capital program; approving
all permit, license, fees, and charges for service recommended to be adjusted; approving the pay plan and
positions; approving personnel; amending subsections (a), (b), (c), and (d) of section 4.02.041 of the
Code of Ordinances by revising animal service fees as contained therein; amending subsection (a) of
section 22.04.041 of the Code of Ordinances by revising the wastewater base charge as contained
therein; amending subsection (a) of section 22.04.133 of the Code of Ordinances by revising the sewage
disposal permit fee as contained therein; amending subsections (h), (i), (j), and (k) of section 22.04.174
of the Code of Ordinances by revising the septic load fees as contained therein; amending subsections
(b) and (c) of section 22.06.051 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by revising the solid
waste landfill service fees as contained therein; amending subsection (a) of section 22.06.185 of the
Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by revising the solid waste collections service fees as
contained therein; providing for the reconciliation of the transfer of funds from the General Fund to
Enterprise Funds; accepting the budgets for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Market
Lubbock, Inc., Civic Lubbock, Inc., and Vintage Township Public Facilities Corporation;  finding that
proper notice of meeting provided by law and ratifying such; providing for publication; and providing for
a savings clause.

Item Summary
On September 3, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

This is the second reading of the ordinance adopting the City’s FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and
Capital Program.  The budget ordinance must be considered prior to consideration of the tax rate. This
ordinance incorporates the operating and capital budgets that have been proposed by the City Manager
with the changes that the City Council made at the September 3, 2024 City Council meeting.  The
property tax rate proposed by the City Council is $0.470120 per $100 valuation.  

Included as Exhibit G in the proposed Budget Ordinance are the changes that have occurred since the
FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program was filed with the City Secretary on August 7, 2024,
and all changes to the FY 2023-24 Adopted Budget and Capital Program that have been approved since
the presentation of the FY 2024-25 Budget.

Fiscal Impact
The adoption of this budget sets all revenue and expense appropriation amounts as well as rates and fees



The adoption of this budget sets all revenue and expense appropriation amounts as well as rates and fees
for FY 2024-25.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Ordinance 
Exhibit B 
Exhibit C 
Exhibit D 
Exhibit E 
Exhibit F 
Exhibit G 





























Budget
FY 2024‐25

General Fund Revenue Sources
Taxes
Property Taxes 89,351,424$                    
Delinquent Taxes/Penalties & Interest 1,025,000                       
Sales Tax 105,648,634                   
Mixed Beverage Tax 2,000,000                       
Bingo Tax 200,000                           
Suddenlink 1,535,000                       
Xcel Energy 1,000                              
Atmos 3,778,000                       
South Plains Electric Coop. 2,175,000                       
West Texas Gas 75,000                              
Franchise Fee 24,158,803                     
Telecom ROW 1,576,000                       

Development Services 320,900                           
General Government 276,950                           
City Secretary 500,150                           
Public Safety 975,665                           
Public Works/Solid Waste 29,614,228                     
Public Health 134,100                           
Animal Shelter 94,500                              
Cultural/Recreational 629,684                           
Museum 349,350                           
Licenses and Permits 5,882,279                       
Intergovernmental 546,561                           
Fines and Forfeitures 2,867,475                       
Interest Earnings 2,630,000                       
In Lieu of Property Tax 11,015,679                     
Rental 68,000                              
Recoveries of Expenditures 1,035,080                       
Oil and Gas Royalties 400,000                           
Other 532,400                           
Transfers from Solid Waste CIP 290,900                           
Transfers from LP&L 2,017,848                       
Transfers from Water/Wastewater Fund 3,097,316                       
Transfers from Airport Fund 2,502,392                       
Transfers from Risk Fund 216,295                           
Transfers from Stormwater 632,884                           
Total General Fund Revenue 298,154,497$                 

Use of Excess Reserves 12,519,096                      

Exhibit B ‐ All Funds Summary



Budget
FY 2024‐25

Exhibit B ‐ All Funds Summary

General Fund Appropriation Units
Administrative Services:
City Attorney 2,617,904$                      
City Council 604,742                           
City Manager 1,852,421                       
City Secretary 1,747,041                       
Facilities Management 5,508,382                       
Finance 3,852,551                       
Human Resources 1,317,432                       
Internal Audit 300,072                           
Non‐departmental 4,282,015                       
Communications and Marketing and Call Center 1,061,846                       
Administrative Services Appropriation 23,144,406                     

Cultural and Recreation Services:
Library 4,410,917                       
Cultural Arts 1,378,512                       
Parks and Recreation 13,848,816                     
Cultural and Recreation Services Appropriation 19,638,245                     

Development Services:
Building Safety 3,020,984                       
Code Enforcement 3,245,262                       
Environmental Health 1,440,088                       
Vector Control 617,108                           
Planning 1,192,409                       
Development Services Appropriation 9,515,851                       

Public Works/Solid Waste:
Engineering 790,637                           
Solid Waste 28,305,627                     
Streets 6,695,908                       
Traffic 4,563,611                       
Public Works/Solid Waste Appropriation 40,355,783                     

Public Safety and Health Services: 3,702,405                       
Animal Services 997,054                           
Fire 71,400,961                     
Municipal Court 1,955,010                       
Police 92,765,166                     
Public Health 1,804,628                       
Public Safety & Health Services Appropriation 172,625,224                   

Other Appropriation:
Transfers 38,958,365                     
Other Appropriation 38,958,365                     
Additional COLI Adjustment 6,435,719                       

Total General Fund Appropriation 310,673,593$                 



Budget
FY 2024‐25

Exhibit B ‐ All Funds Summary

Debt Service Fund Revenue Sources
Tax Collection 29,404,282$                    
Interest on Investments 100,000                           
Transfer from Solid Waste 4,661,378                       
Transfer from North Overton TIF 2,919,557                       
Transfer from CBD TIF 940,954                           
Transfer from Hotel Tax Fund 90,500                              
Transfer from Gateway 8,778,479                       
Transfer from LP&L ‐ Citizens Tower 1,141,493                       
Transfer from Water ‐ Citizens Tower 146,744                           
Transfer from Storm Water (Street Maintenance) 102,721                           

Total Debt Service Fund Revenue 48,286,108                     
Use of Excess Reserves 6,320                              

Debt Service Fund Expenditures
Principal and Interest Bond Payments 47,656,222                     
Fiscal Agent Fees 14,000                              
Bond Sale Charges 180,000                           
Transfer to Civic Centers 442,206                           

Total Debt Service Fund Appropriation 48,292,428                     

Fleet Services Fund
Total Fleet Service Fund Revenue 16,764,906                     
Use of Excess Reserves 26,902                              
Total Fleet Service Fund Appropriation 16,791,808                     

Health Benefits Fund
Total Health Benefits Fund Revenue 46,187,535                     
Total Health Benefits Fund Appropriation 46,128,332                     

Information Technology Fund
Total Information Technology Revenue 14,102,497                     
Use of Excess Reserves 145,078                           
Total Information Technology Appropriation 14,247,575                     

Telecommunications Fund
Total Telecommunications Revenue 1,708,856                       
Use of Excess Reserves 9,170                              
Total Telecommunications Appropriation 1,718,026                       

GIS and Data Services Fund
Total GIS & Data Services Revenue 896,413                           
Use of Excess Reserves 41,680                              
Total GIS & Data Services Appropriation 938,093                           

Radio Shop Fund
Total Radio Shop Revenue 2,759,900                       
Total Radio Shop Appropriation 2,186,089                       



Budget
FY 2024‐25

Exhibit B ‐ All Funds Summary

Investment Pool Fund
Total Investment Pool Fund Revenue 211,204$                         
Total Investment Pool Fund Appropriation 208,794                           

Print Shop Fund
Total Print Shop Revenue 291,464                           
Total Print Shop Appropriation 247,760                           

Warehouse Fund
Total Warehouse Fund Revenue 507,360                           
Total Warehouse Fund Appropriation 500,142                           

Risk Management Fund
Total Risk Management Fund Revenue 13,464,922                     
Total Risk Management Fund Appropriation 13,413,121                     

Airport Fund
Total Airport Fund Revenue 20,368,569                     
Total Airport Fund Appropriation 18,428,899                     

Cemetery Fund
Total Cemetery Fund Revenue 487,544                           
Use of Excess Reserves 405,502                           
Total Cemetery Fund Appropriation 893,046                           

Civic Centers Fund
Total Civic Center Fund Revenue 661,434                           
Transfer from HOT Fund 2,600,487                       
Transfer from Debt Service Fund 442,206                           
Use of Excess Reserves 632,652                           
Total Civic Center Fund Appropriation 4,336,779                       

Lake Alan Henry Fund
Total Lake Alan Henry Fund Revenue 719,244                           
Use of Excess Reserves 101,806                           
Total Lake Alan Henry Fund Appropriation 821,050                           

Lubbock Power and Light Fund
Total Lubbock Power and Light Fund Revenue 165,155,480                   
Transfer from Other Funds 1,084,931                       
Use of Excess Reserves 19,160,902                     
Total Lubbock Power and Light Fund Appropriation 185,401,313                   

Meadowbrook Golf Course Fund
Total Meadowbrook Golf Course Fund Revenue 2,650,000                       
Total Meadowbrook Golf Course Fund Appropriation 2,524,000                       



Budget
FY 2024‐25

Exhibit B ‐ All Funds Summary

Storm Water Utility Fund
Total Storm Water Utility Fund Revenue 23,861,366$                    
Use of Excess Reserves 1,861,953                       
Total Storm Water Utility Fund Appropriation 25,723,319                     

Transit Fund
Total Transit Fund Revenue 14,965,852                     
Transfer from Economic Development Fund 400,000                           
Transfer from City of Lubbock 2,958,473                       
Use of Excess Reserves 803,815                           
Total Transit Fund Appropriation 19,128,140                     

Water/Wastewater Utility Fund
Total Water/Wastewater Utility Fund Revenue 165,510,418                   
Transfer from Other Fund 107,912                           
Total Water/Wastewater Utility Fund Appropriation 161,526,168                   

Abandoned Vehicle Fund
Total Abandoned Vehicle Fund Revenue 1,277,900                       
Use of Excess Reserves 517,100                           
Total Abandoned Vehicle Fund Appropriation 1,795,000                       

Animal Assistance Program
Total Animal Assistance Program Fund Revenue 313,307                           
Use of Excess Reserves 16,064                              
Total Animal Assistance Program Fund Appropriation 329,371                           

Bell Farms PID
Total Bell Farms PID Fund Revenue 504,766                           
Use of Excess Reserves 54,677                              
Total Bell Farms PID Fund Appropriation 559,443                           

Cable Services Fund
Total Cable Services Fund Revenue 415,645                           
Use of Excess Reserves 84,355                              
Total Cable Services Fund Appropriation 500,000                           

Central Business District TIF Fund
Total Central Business District TIF Fund Revenue 1,755,508                       
Total Central Business District TIF Fund Appropriation 1,293,065                       

Charity Care ‐ 1115 Waiver Fund
Total Charity Care Fund Revenue 55,435                              
Total Charity Care Fund Appropriation 55,435                              

Community Development Fund
Total Community Development Fund Revenue 5,449,782                       
Total Community Development Fund Appropriation 5,449,782                       



Budget
FY 2024‐25

Exhibit B ‐ All Funds Summary

Criminal Investigation Fund
Total Criminal Investigation Fund Revenue 175,300$                         
Use of Excess Reserves 268,700                           
Total Criminal Investigation Fund Appropriation 444,000                           

Cypress Ranch Public Improvement District
Total Cypress Ranch Fund Revenue 257                                 
Total Cypress Ranch Fund Appropriation 257                                 

Economic Development Fund
Total Economic Development Fund Revenue 3,511,557                       
Transfer from General Fund 89,768                              
Use of Excess Reserves 513,565                           
Total Economic Development Fund Appropriation 4,114,890                       

Gateway Streets Fund
Total Gateway Streets Fund Revenue 300,000                           
Transfer from General Fund 9,000,570                       
Use of Excess Reserves 277,909                           
Total Gateway Streets Fund Appropriation 9,578,479                       

Grants
Total Grant Revenue 8,496,045                       
Total Grant Appropriation 8,496,045                       

Health Rebate and Insurance Fund
Total Health Rebate and Insurance Fund Revenue 129,600                           
Total Health Rebate and Insurance Fund Appropriation 129,146                           

Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund
Total Hotel Motel Tax Fund Revenue 9,700,000                       
Total Hotel Motel Tax Fund Appropriation 9,700,000                       

Impact Fees
Total Impact Fees Revenues 3,590,000                       
Total Impact Fee Appropiation ‐                                  

Lubbock Business Park TIF
Total Lubbock Business Park TIF Revenue 1,170,618                       
Total Lubbock Business Park TIF Appropriation 25,414                              

Lubbock Economic Development Alliance Fund
Total Lubbock Economic Development Alliance Fund Revenue 9,604,421                       
Total Lubbock Economic Development Alliance Fund Appropriation 9,604,421                       

Municipal Court Fund
Total Municipal Court Fund Revenue 435,938                           
Total Municipal Court Fund Appropriation 196,265                           



Budget
FY 2024‐25

Exhibit B ‐ All Funds Summary

North and East Lubbock Neighborhood and Infrastructure Fund
Transfer from General Fund 360,000$                         
Use of Excess Reserves 300,000                           
Total North and East Lubbock Neighborhood Fund Appropriation 660,000                           

North Overton Public Improvement District Fund
Total North Overton Public Improvement District Fund Revenue 1,046,093                       
Use of Excess Reserves 517,931                           
Total North Overton Public Improvement  District Fund Appropriation 1,564,023                       

North Overton Tax Increment Fund
Total North Overton Tax Increment Fund Revenue 5,894,579                       
Transfer from Hotel Motel Tax 472,951                           
Total North Overton Tax Increment Fund Appropriation 4,951,892                       

North Point Public Improvement District Fund
Total North Point Public Improvement District Fund Revenue 341,398                           
Use of Excess Reserves 438,760                           
Total North Point Public Improvement  District Fund Appropriation 780,158                           

Northwest Passage Public Improvement District Fund
Total Northwest Passage Public Improvement District Fund revenue 14,669                              
Total Northwest Passage Public Improvement District Fund Appropriation 14,669                              

Quincy Park Public Improvement District Fund
Total Quincy Park Public Improvement District Fund Revenue 261,139                           
Total Quincy Park Public Improvement District Fund Appropriation 248,192                           

Truancy Prevention and Diversion Fund
Total Truancy Prevention and Diversion Fund Revenue 196,581                           
Total Truancy Prevention and Diversion Fund Appropiation 126,500                           

Upland Crossing Public Improvement District Fund
Total Upland Crossing Public Improvement District Fund Revenue 293,724                           
Total Upland Crossing Public Improvement District Fund Appropriation 197,423                           

Upland Crossing 2 Public Improvement District Fund
Total Upland Crossing Public Improvement District Fund Revenue 38,981                              
Total Upland Crossing Public Improvement District Fund Appropriation 10,881                              

Upland Crossing 3 Public Improvement District Fund
Total Upland Crossing Public Improvement District Fund Revenue 16,539                              
Total Upland Crossing Public Improvement District Fund Appropriation 10,881                              

Valencia Public Improvement District Fund
Total Valencia Public Improvement District Fund Revenue 78,521                              
Total Valencia Public Improvement District Fund Appropriation 78,241                              

Vintage Township Public Improvement District Fund
Total Vintage Township Public Improvement District Fund Revenue 207,823                           
Total Vintage Township Public Improvement District Fund Appropriation 207,823                           



Budget
FY 2024‐25

Exhibit B ‐ All Funds Summary

Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District Fund
Total Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District Fund Revenue 86,269$                            
Total Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District Fund Appropriation 79,308                              

Lubbock Economic Development Alliance
Total Lubbock Economic Development Alliance Revenue 11,244,222                     
Use of Non‐Cash Assets ‐ Land 115,500                           
Use of Excess Reserve 7,593,418                       
Total Lubbock Economic Development Alliance Appropriation 18,953,140                     

Market Lubbock, Inc.
Total Market Lubbock, Inc. Revenue 3,805,809                       
Use of Excess Reserve 4,561,861                       
Total Market Lubbock Inc. Appropriation 8,367,670                       

Market Lubbock, Inc. ‐ Visit Lubbock, Inc.
Total Market Lubbock, Inc. ‐ Visit Lubbock, Inc. Revenue 3,854,985                       
Use of Excess Reserve 714,293                           
Total Market Lubbock Inc. ‐ Visit Lubbock, Inc. Appropriation 4,569,278                       

Market Lubbock, Inc. ‐ Sports Authority
Total Market Lubbock, Inc. ‐ Sports Authority Revenue 1,845,890                       
Use of Excess Reserve 5,388,100                       
Total Market Lubbock Inc. ‐ Sports Authority Appropriation 7,233,990                       

Civic Lubbock, Inc. 
Total Civic Lubbock, Inc. Revenue 2,033,834                       
Total Civic Lubbock, Inc. Appropriation 2,033,834                       

Vintage Township Public Facilities Corporation
Total Vintage Township Public Facilities Corporation Revenue 192,823                           
Total Vintage Township Public Facilities Corporation Appropriation 192,823                           



Exhibit C ‐ Transfers Summary
To From Description Amount

Airport Capital Projects Fund Airport Enterprise Fund Airport Cash Funded Capital 1,855,500$           

Airport Enterprise Fund Airport CFC Fund Airport CFC Debt Service 1,050,611             

Airport Enterprise Fund Airport PFC Fund Airport PFC Debt Service 1,303,806             

Cemetery Capital Project Fund Cemetery Enterprise Fund Cemetery Cash Funded Capital 20,000                   

Central Business District TIF Capital Central Business District TIF CBD TIF Cash Funded Capital 200,000                 

Civic Center Capital Projects Fund Civic Center Enterprise Fund Civic Center Cash Funded Capital 526,230                 

Civic Center Capital Projects Fund Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund Civic Center Cash Funded Capital 380,345                 

Civic Center Enterprise Fund Debt Service Fund Debt Service Payment 442,206                 

Civic Center Enterprise Fund Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund Civic Center Operations/Marketing 2,600,487             

Debt Service Fund Lubbock Power & Light Debt Service Payment ‐ Citizen Tower 1,141,493             

Debt Service Fund Central Business District TIF Debt Service Payment 940,954                 

Debt Service Fund Gateway Streets Fund Debt Service Payment 8,778,479             

Debt Service Fund Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund Debt Service Payment 90,500                   

Debt Service Fund North Overton TIF Debt Service Payment 2,919,557             

Debt Service Fund Water/Wastewater Enterprise Fund Debt Service Payment ‐ Citizen Tower 146,744                 

Debt Service Fund Stormwater Enterprise Fund Debt Service Payment 102,721                 

Debt Service Fund Solid Waste Fund Debt Service 4,661,378             

Economic Development Fund General Fund Economic Development Operations 89,768                   

Fleet Capital Projects Fund General Fund General Fund Cash Funded Capital (Vehicles) 6,567,100             

Fleet Capital Projects Fund Fleet Operating Fund Fleet Cash Funded Capital 178,244                 

Fleet Capital Projects Fund Water/Wastewater Enterprise Fund Water/Wastewater Cash Funded  Capital (Vehicles) 3,739,500             

Fleet Capital Projects Fund Stormwater Enterprise Fund Stormwater Cash Funded Capital (Vehicles) 1,504,000             

Fleet Capital Projects Fund Civic Center Enterprise Fund Civic Center Cash Funded Capital (Vehicles) 15,817                   

Fleet Capital Projects Fund Civic Center Enterprise Fund Civic Center Fund Cash 47,000                   

Fleet Maintenance Fund General Fund (Solid Waste Disposal) Vehicle Tax Notes 1,521,716             

Fleet Maintenance Fund General Fund (Solid Waste Collections) Vehicle Tax Notes 192,409                 

Fleet Maintenance Fund General Fund (Fire Equipment Maintenance) Vehicle Tax Notes 783,468                 

Fleet Vehicle Replacement Fund Fleet Maintenance Fund Vehicle Replacement Fund 34,239                   

Fleet Vehicle Replacement Fund Water/Wastewater Enterprise Fund Vehicle Replacement Fund 706,929                 

Fleet Vehicle Replacement Fund Stormwater Enterprise Fund Vehicle Replacement Fund 422,306                 

Gateway Streets Capital Projects Fund Gateway Streets Fund Gateway Streets Cash Funded Capital 500,000                 

Gateway Streets Fund General Fund Gateway Operations & Debt 9,000,570             

General Facilities System Improvements Capital  General Fund General Fund Cash Funded Capital 180,000                 

General Facilities System Improvements Capital  General Fund General Fund Cash Funded Capital 75,000                   

General Fund Lubbock Power & Light Indirect Cost 2,017,848             

General Fund Water/Wastewater Enterprise Fund Indirect Cost 1,967,445             

General Fund Water/Wastewater Enterprise Fund Paved Streets 1,129,871             

General Fund Solid Waste Capital Projects Fund General Fund Cash Funded Capital 290,900                 

General Fund Airport Enterprise Fund Indirect Cost 459,372                 

General Fund Airport Enterprise Fund Aircraft Rescue Fire Fighting (ARFF) 2,043,020             

General Fund Self Insurance Risk Fund Organizational Development 216,295                 

General Fund Stormwater Enterprise Fund Indirect Cost 248,748                 

General Fund Stormwater Enterprise Fund Playa Lake 384,136                 

Grant Fund Transit Enterprise Fund Transit Operations 3,178,402             

Hotel Motel Capital Projects Fund Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund Hotel Occupancy Tax Cash Funded Capital 379,965                 

Lubbock Power & Light Water/Wastewater Enterprise Fund Debt Service Payment ‐ Customer Info System 661,576                 

Lubbock Power & Light Water/Wastewater Enterprise Fund Utility Collections 4,221,218             

Lubbock Power & Light Water/Wastewater Enterprise Fund Debt Service Payment ‐ AMI Debt 180,190                 

Lubbock Power & Light Stormwater Enterprise Fund Debt Service Payment ‐ Customer Info System 115,673                 

Lubbock Power & Light Stormwater Enterprise Fund Utility Collections 738,054                 

Lubbock Power & Light Solid Waste Fund Debt Service Payment ‐ Customer Info System 127,493                 

Lubbock Power & Light Capital Project Fund Lubbock Power & Light LP&L Cash Funded Capital 21,345,000           

North & East Lbk Ngbhd & Infrstr General Fund North & East Lubbock Operations 360,000                 

North Overton TIF Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund North Overton TIF 472,951                 

North Overton TIF Capital North Overton TIF North Overton Cash Funded Capital 2,000,000             

Parks Capital Project Fund General Fund General Fund Cash Funded Capital 125,000                 

Parks Capital Project Fund General Fund General Fund Cash Funded Capital 40,425                   

Public Safety Capital Project Fund General Fund General Fund Cash Funded Capital 127,000                 

Public Safety Capital Project Fund General Fund General Fund Cash Funded Capital 1,798,937             

Public Safety Capital Project Fund General Fund General Fund Cash Funded Capital 47,092                   

Public Safety Capital Project Fund General Fund General Fund Cash Funded Capital 1,764,000             

Public Safety Capital Project Fund General Fund General Fund Cash Funded Capital 400,000                 

Radio Shop Capital Projects Fund Radio Shop Operating Fund Radio Shop Cash Fund 375,000                 

Stormwater Capital Projects Fund Stormwater Enterprise Fund Stormwater Cash Funded Capital 4,400,000             

Streets Capital Projects Fund General Fund General Fund Cash Funded Capital 14,000,000           

Streets Capital Projects Fund General Fund General Fund Cash Funded Capital 300,000                 

Streets Capital Projects Fund Gateway Streets Fund Gateway Streets Cash Funded Capital 300,000                 

Traffic Capital Projects Fund General Fund General Fund Cash Funded Capital 200,000                 

Traffic Capital Projects Fund General Fund General Fund Cash Funded Capital 100,000                 

Traffic Capital Projects Fund General Fund General Fund Cash Funded Capital 75,000                   

Traffic Capital Projects Fund General Fund General Fund Cash Funded Capital 450,000                 

Transit Enterprise Fund General Fund Transit Operations 2,958,473             

Transit Enterprise Fund Economic Development Fund Transit Operations 400,000                 

Vintage Township Public Facilities Corporation Vintage Township PID Debt Service Payment 192,823                 

Water/Wastewater Capital Project Fund Water/Wastewater Enterprise Fund Water/Wastewater Cash Funded Capital 16,305,500           

Water/Wastewater Enterprise Fund Lake Alan Henry Fund Lake Alan Henry Debt Service 107,912                 



Exhibit D ‐ Capital Program Summary
Project

Number Project Name

Appropriation to 

Date 

Appropriation 

FY 2024‐25 

8550 Golf Course Improvements 1,261,238$                ‐                            

8606 FEMA Restudy ‐ Systems C & D 900,000                      ‐                            

8625 Field Asset Inventory Data Verification 2,350,862                  ‐                            

8626 Distribution Planning 680,000                      ‐                            

8628 Digital Orthophotography 1,265,000                  ‐                            

8631 Convention Center Hotel Project 74,494                        ‐                            

8634 City Council Initiatives 125,000                      ‐                            

8638 Canyon and Playa Lakes Restoration and Restudy 2,000,000                  ‐                            

8639 Future Infrastructure Funding Study 366,500                      ‐                            

8646 Public Safety CAD Study 4,100,000                  ‐                            

8647 Outer Route (Loop 88) Segments 1 & 2 609,700                      ‐                            

8649 Fire Hydrant Repair & Replacement 1,240,000                  430,000              

8659 Downtown One Way to Two Way Street Conversion 550,000                      ‐                            

8664 21‐22 Comprehensive Zoning Map Analysis 75,000                        ‐                            

8665 Document Management System 215,000                      ‐                            

8667 Flood Protection Study 762,500                      ‐                            

8668 Diversion Center Contribution 3,500,000                  ‐                            

8669 Job Training ‐ARPA 3,220,000                  ‐                            

8675 Employee Education Assistance ‐ ARPA 500,000                      ‐                            

8676 Watershed Boundary and Drainage Studies 525,000                      300,000              

8677 FEMA Restudy ‐ System B 500,000                      ‐                            

8678 Storm Water Vault Improvements 150,000                      50,000                 

8679 Lake 7 Permitting and Mitigation 2,150,000                  800,000              

8680 Lead Service Line Replacement 750,000                      100,000              

8681 Water Distribution System Master Plan Update 500,000                      ‐                            

8682 Strategic Water Supply Plan Update 250,000                      ‐                            

8683 Safety Management System (SMS) Development 200,000                      ‐                            

8684 Airfield Pavement Maintenance Phase 2 100,000                      200,000              

8685 Impact Fee Report Update 200,000                      ‐                            

8686 Wastewater Collection System Master Plan Update 1,100,000                  ‐                            

8687 Demo Elevated and Ground Storage Tanks 275,000                      275,000              

8688 Smart Meter Texas Integration 1,574,520                  ‐                            

8689 Utility Relocation Ahead of Lake 7 400,000                      ‐                            

8690 Locate and Repair Water Valves 475,000                      600,000              

8691 BCWF Water Supply Optimization 350,000                      ‐                            

8692 Lake Alan Henry Raw Water Line Cleaning 300,000                      ‐                            

8693 Sanitary Sewer Adjustments FY 2023‐24 80,000                        ‐                            

8694 Tournament Ball Fields Maintenance & Improvements 379,965                      379,965              

8695 FM 2641 Signal 64,550                        ‐                            

8696 Ave. Q Signals 128,400                      ‐                            

8697 US62 & MLK Signal 55,950                        ‐                            

8698 19th/US62 Signals 422,350                      ‐                            



Exhibit D ‐ Capital Program Summary
Project

Number Project Name

Appropriation to 

Date 

Appropriation 

FY 2024‐25 

8699 SL88 Signals 312,750                      ‐                            

8700 SL88/FM1585 (130th Street) @ US87 87,050                        ‐                            

8702 Master Thoroughfare Plan Update ‐                                   300,000              

8703 South Water Treatment Plant TSR and Membrane Study ‐                                   200,000              

8704 Pump Station 12 EST Interior Painting ‐                                   300,000              

8705 Topographic Information Acquisition ‐                                   650,000              

8706 Stormwater Pipe Inspection ‐                                   1,500,000           

8707 Substation Arcflash Study ‐                                   450,000              

92238 Facility Maintenance Fund 2,018,693                  ‐                            

92254 North Overton TIF Public Improvements 5,647,351                  1,000,000           

92331 Fiberoptic Communications 2,965,000                  ‐                            

92359 Facility Roof Replacements 2,151,700                  380,000              

92361 Terminal Building Remodel 43,315,719                ‐                            

92399 Gateways 4,500,000                  ‐                            

92450 Lowhead C Pump Station and Supply Line 23,598,161                ‐                            

92484 Substation Upgrades 5,200,000                  885,000              

92510 Upland Avenue ‐ 66th to 82nd 16,990,311                ‐                            

92513 Pumping System Improvements Phase II 4,000,000                  ‐                            

92537 GIS Software Upgrades and Interfaces 2,435,000                  817,000              

92551 Public Safety Improvements 57,114,485                ‐                            

92557 Landfill 69 Gas Collection System Replacement 534,730                      ‐                            

92558 Landfill 69 Groundwater Remediation 685,000                      ‐                            

92565 Garden And Arts Center Exterior Renovations 295,000                      ‐                            

92567 Dock And Bridge Replacement 820,454                      ‐                            

92569 Backup Power at Signalized Intersections 500,000                      100,000              

92570 American Disability Act Ramp and Sidewalk 1,325,000                  300,000              

92572 Municipal Hill Car Wash 18‐19 250,000                      ‐                            

92579 Airport Property Improvements 1,674,039                  ‐                            

92580 Cemetery Capital Improvements 80,000                        20,000                 

92583 Automated Metering Infrastructure 20,635,000                ‐                            

92587 Loop 88 Sewer Line Relocation 1,609,132                  ‐                            

92589 Water Line Upsizing For Development 150,000                      ‐                            

92590 Sewer Line Upsizing for Development 450,000                      ‐                            

92591 Lift Station Rehabilitation 2,041,043                  ‐                            

92592 Large Valve Project 3,500,000                  500,000              

92605 Operating System Upgrades 1,765,000                  ‐                            

92617 Lake 7 Design and Land Acquisition 1,200,000                  22,276,000         

92619 Construct Federal Inspection Services Facility 3,552,401                  ‐                            

92620 Civic Center Parking Lot Repair 1,023,712                  644,930              

92621 Amphitheatre Erosion Renovations 441,831                      ‐                            

92624 Pickeball Facility A&E 567,655                      ‐                            

92634 LP&L ‐ GIS Office Renovations 1,115,000                  ‐                            



Exhibit D ‐ Capital Program Summary
Project

Number Project Name

Appropriation to 

Date 

Appropriation 

FY 2024‐25 

92648 Zetron Fire Paging Replacement 800,000                      ‐                            

92649 Upland Avenue from 82nd Street to 98th Street 1,750,000                  ‐                            

92653 Storm Water Rehabilitation & Maintenance 2,700,000                  ‐                            

92654 Upland Ave and 66th St Playa Drainage Improvements 8,150,000                  ‐                            

92655 North Quaker and Clovis Drainage 1,250,000                  ‐                            

92656 SEWRP Effluent Pump Station #2 Improvements 7,966,099                  700,000              

92657 Downtown Sewer Line Replacement 7,400,000                  ‐                            

92670 114th Street Quaker Ave to Indiana Ave Design 1,160,000                  ‐                            

92673 Upland Avenue 98th Street to 114th Street 800,000                      ‐                            

92674 SEWRP Improvements Plant 3 Nutrient Removal 2,000,000                  ‐                            

92675 Roof Repairs and Replacement 459,497                      ‐                            

92680 Substation Capacity Upgrade ‐ Northeast 9,505,000                  ‐                            

92683 FY 20‐21 Service Distribution Meters 1,543,500                  850,000              

92684 FY 20‐21 Distribution Transformer 15,875,000                1,850,000           

92685 FY 20‐21 Distribution System Upgrade 12,050,000                2,280,000           

92686 FY 20‐21 Overhead Lines 9,720,500                  3,450,000           

92687 FY 20‐21 Street Lights 4,282,100                  1,445,000           

92688 FY 20‐21 Underground Distribution 12,699,916                3,580,000           

92689 ERCOT ‐ Transmission Distribution Service Provider 23,881,137                ‐                            

92695 Downtown Redevelopment 3,235,000                  250,000              

92698 Transfer Station CIP 32,700,000                ‐                            

92699 SEWRP Plant #4 Secondary Clarifier Rehabilitation 2,231,342                  ‐                            

92701 Major Sewer Line Condition Assessment and Repair 11,299,550                ‐                            

92702 East Lubbock Future Expansion 1,400,000                  ‐                            

92703 Civic Center Convention Center Hotel 106,500                      ‐                            

92704 North Overton TIF Street Upgrade/Replacement 5,349,680                  1,000,000           

92705 Outdoor Warning Siren System 1,060,322                  127,000              

92706 Neighborhood Plan Development 500,000                      ‐                            

92707 Public Health Facility 10,111,342                ‐                            

92708 Memphis Avenue Drainage Improvements 120,583                      ‐                            

92709 Reese Air Force Water Line 1,416,931                  ‐                            

92711 Fire Station 20 10,645,000                ‐                            

92712 Transportation Improvement/Unpaved Roads 21 9,059,162                  ‐                            

92713 Erskine Street 11,300,000                ‐                            

92714 Warehouse Replacement 97,300                        ‐                            

92720 General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 21‐22 3,267,374                  ‐                            

92722 General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 21‐22 ARPA 6,361,189                  ‐                            

92730 Cooke Facility Remodel 60,000                        ‐                            

92733 DNV‐GL Cascade Upgrades 250,000                      5,000                   

92734 Additional COLU Phone Lines 370,246                      ‐                            

92735 FY 2021‐22 Vehicles and Equipment 2,625,000                  ‐                            

92737 114th St ‐ Quaker Avenue to Indiana Avenue 3,193,721                  ‐                            



Exhibit D ‐ Capital Program Summary
Project

Number Project Name

Appropriation to 

Date 

Appropriation 

FY 2024‐25 

92738 Pedestrian and Cyclist Enhancements 485,000                      ‐                            

92739 Iola Avenue from 122nd to FM 1585 1,275,000                  ‐                            

92741 Fiber Optic Expansion Continuation 282,871                      75,000                 

92742 Traffic Signal FY 21‐22 through FY 25‐26 995,235                      450,000              

92743 Playa Lake 054 Lateral Extension  7,500,000                  ‐                            

92744 Sewer Ahead of Broadway Avenue 1,650,000                  ‐                            

92745 Manhole Replacement on Interceptors 1,000,000                  250,000              

92746 Sewer Line Replacements 975,000                      100,000              

92747 Sewer Tap Replacements 1,500,000                  1,210,000           

92748 New Water Meter Sets and Meter Replacements 7,570,275                  2,415,000           

92749 Water Line Replacement FY 21 4,394,767                  1,000,000           

92750 Water Lines Ahead of Street Paving FY 21 5,205,576                  1,200,000           

92751 Water Ahead of Broadway Avenue 100,000                      ‐                            

92752 Water Lines Ahead of Arterial Roadways 1,550,000                  1,150,000           

92753 Elevated Storage Tanks 18,531,270                ‐                            

92754 Cyber Security Infrastructure 2,250,000                  ‐                            

92756 Civic Park 1,500,000                  ‐                            

92757 Housing Project ‐ ARPA 2,636,312                  ‐                            

92759 Public Safety Improvements ‐ ARPA 3,922,346                  ‐                            

92761 Walking Trails ‐ ARPA 1,100,000                  ‐                            

92762 Homelessness ‐ ARPA 3,200,000                  ‐                            

92763 Playground ‐ ARPA 1,528,848                  ‐                            

92764 Cattail Removal ‐ ARPA 1,900,000                  ‐                            

92765 Pickleball Facility ‐ ARPA 1,500,000                  ‐                            

92766 Mae Simmons Parking Lots/Lake 6 RRM ‐ ARPA 500,000                      ‐                            

92768 Restrooms Replacement/Renovations ‐ ARPA 1,033,402                  ‐                            

92769 Advance Purchase Vehicles 22‐23 3,400,000                  ‐                            

92770 Terminal Building Electrical Upgrades 7,982,071                  ‐                            

92772 Extend Taxiway L, Taxiline Addition, and Apron Expansion 4,505,200                  55,700,000         

92773 Civic Center Maintenance Fund 1,614,025                  43,895                 

92774 Civic Center Equipment Replacement and Upgrade 350,000                      217,750              

92775 Cemetery Perimeter Fencing 323,491                      ‐                            

92776 Utility Upgrades, Gateways and Greenspace 1,378,955                  ‐                            

92779 Aquatic Facilities ‐ ARPA 7,322,314                  ‐                            

92780 FY 22‐23 Radio Systems Upgrade 1,250,000                  125,000              

92783 General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY23 Tax Note 4,871,332                  ‐                            

92787 General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 22‐23 5,979,089                  ‐                            

92788 4kV Distribution Conversion 3,279,273                  3,088,000           

92789 NERC Security for Substation 100,000                      650,000              

92790 Security Upgrade ‐ Hill Building 110,000                      ‐                            

92791 UCSC Expansion 138,000                      ‐                            

92792 FY 22‐23 Vehicles and Equipment 3,715,000                  ‐                            



Exhibit D ‐ Capital Program Summary
Project

Number Project Name

Appropriation to 

Date 

Appropriation 

FY 2024‐25 

92793 LAS Security Fence 90,000                        ‐                            

92794 Street Maintenance 2023 25,019,691                ‐                            

92795 Next Generation Traffic Signal Detection 100,000                      ‐                            

92796 Shop Renovation 30,000                        ‐                            

92797 WTRDF Cell Construction 7,000,000                  ‐                            

92798 Mackenzie Park Dam Structure Eval and Restoration 1,000,000                  ‐                            

92799 Northwest Loop 289 Interceptor Project Phase I 1,500,000                  ‐                            

92800 Sewer Ahead of Street Paving FY22 650,000                      400,000              

92801 Southwest Lubbock Sanitary Sewer Expansion 1,500,000                  1,000,000           

92802 Wastewater Collection System Maintenance 500,000                      75,000                 

92803 Water Reclamation Plant Replacement FY 22‐23 2,200,000                  900,000              

92804 North Terminal Storage Reservoir Improvements 500,000                      ‐                            

92805 Southeast Lubbock Water System Expansion 1,500,000                  ‐                            

92806 West Lubbock Water System Expansion 11,293,917                28,000,000         

92807 Water Distribution System and Supply Maintenance 50,000                        ‐                            

92808 Lake Alan Henry Erosion Maintenance 751,308                      ‐                            

92809 Water System SCADA Upgrade 500,000                      ‐                            

92810 Business Park Median Irrigation 1,372,699                  ‐                            

92811 98th Street: Alcove to Upland ‐ 22B 11,500,000                ‐                            

92812 Upland Ave: 4th St to 19th St ‐ 22B 3,200,000                  11,500,000         

92813 34th Street: Upland to Milwaukee ‐ 22B 16,500,000                ‐                            

92814 34th Street: Ave Q to I27 and Quaker to Slide ‐ 22B 7,500,000                  ‐                            

92815 Upland Ave: 34th to 50th Street ‐ 22B 17,500,000                ‐                            

92816 Upland Ave from 19th Street to 34th Street ‐ 22B 3,200,000                  11,500,000         

92817 Dunbar/Manhattan Heights ‐ 22B 6,500,000                  ‐                            

92818 66th Street from Alcove Avenue to Upland Avenue ‐ 22B 4,200,000                  ‐                            

92819 Milwaukee Ave: North City Limits to 4th Street ‐ 22B 17,000,000                ‐                            

92820 114th Street from Frankford Avenue to Slide Road ‐ 22B 2,200,000                  13,800,000         

92821 146th St: Quaker to Indiana ‐ 22B 12,000,000                ‐                            

92822 114th Street from Indiana Avenue to University Avenue ‐ 22B ‐                                   2,500,000           

92823 Residential Unpaved Roadways: East of I‐27 ‐ 22B ‐                                   4,000,000           

92824 Upland Avenue from 50th Street to 66th Street ‐ 22B 3,200,000                  ‐                            

92825 82nd Street and MLK Blvd ‐ 22B 5,700,000                  ‐                            

92827 Pre‐ Purchase Vehicles FY 23‐24 3,030,000                  ‐                            

92828 Quaker Ave/146th‐Woodrow Road 1,274,850                  ‐                            

92829 Work Order System 2,000,000                  ‐                            

92830 LAH Maintenance Building and Storage Yard 150,000                      ‐                            

92831 LAH Dump Station 38,000                        ‐                            

92832 Amenity Replacement Program 189,176                      ‐                            

92833 Specialized Camera Syst Police 2,586,190                  1,798,937           

92834 Substation Capacity Upgrade ‐ Erskine 4,770,000                  5,570,000           

92835 Pump Station 11B 1,250,000                  5,000,000           



Exhibit D ‐ Capital Program Summary
Project

Number Project Name

Appropriation to 

Date 

Appropriation 

FY 2024‐25 

92836 Overhead/Underground Training Facility 255,000                      290,000              

92837 SEWRP Plant #4 Primary Clarifier Rehabilitation 200,000                      2,500,000           

92838 Airport Property Improvements Phase II 262,281                      200,000              

92839 Mechanical Systems Improvements 6,777,013                  7,020,000           

92840 Spare Autotransformer 75,000                        ‐                            

92841 FY 2023‐24 Vehicles & Equipment 2,560,000                  ‐                            

92842 Stormwater System Improvements 1,562,868                  ‐                            

92843 Water Reclamation Electrical Replacement and Monitor 500,000                      ‐                            

92844 Lift Station Rehabilitation 1,450,000                  1,300,000           

92845 Water System Electrical Improvements 650,000                      ‐                            

92848 Water/Wastewater Vehicle Replacement FY 2023‐24 1,844,000                  ‐                            

92849 Storm Water Vehicle Replacement FY 2023‐24 305,000                      ‐                            

92850 General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 2023‐24 Tax Note 4,850,000                  ‐                            

92851 Fleet Vehicle Replacement FY 2023‐24 70,000                        ‐                            

92853 General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 2023‐24 1,248,500                  ‐                            

92854 Park Development 1,160,742                  3,959,316           

92855 Berl Huffman Water Well 215,000                      ‐                            

92856 Municipal Museum Improvements 126,537                      ‐                            

92857 Loop 88 Segment 3D Water Line Relocate 1,953,403                  ‐                            

92858 Pump Station 14 Roof Replacement 110,000                      ‐                            

92859 Terminal Building ‐ 2nd Floor Renovations 1,097,468                  ‐                            

92860 Tom Martin Sports Complex Expansion 8,000,000                  ‐                            

92861 Street Maintenance Inside Loop 289 500,000                      500,000              

92862 Fuel Master Software Upgrade ‐                                   118,244              

92863 Vehicle Replacements FY 24‐25 Cash ‐                                   11,917,600         

92864 Vehicle Replacements FY 24‐25 Tax Note ‐                                   9,899,500           

92865 Radio Tower Building Replacement ‐                                   150,000              

92866 Radio Replacements ‐                                   100,000              

92867 Electronic Ticket Writers ‐                                   47,092                 

92868 SCBA Paks ‐                                   1,764,000           

92869 Personal Protective Equipment ‐                                   400,000              

92870 Street Maintenance 2025 ‐                                   14,000,000         

92871 Signal Cabinet ID Badge Access Systems ‐                                   200,000              

92872 Equipment Replacement Fund ‐                                   75,000                 

92873 Water ‐ Pipeline Maintenance Facility Renovations ‐                                   50,500                 

92874 Water Meter Shop Expansion ‐                                   600,000              

92875 Pumping System Improvements Phase III ‐                                   500,000              

92876 East 50th Street Water Line Extension ‐                                   2,000,000           

92877 Water Line Looping ‐                                   300,000              

92878 SWTP Membrane Backwash Pretreatment ‐                                   200,000              

92879 SEWRP Headworks Improvements ‐                                   500,000              

92880 Sewer Line Upsizing for Development ‐                                   250,000              



Exhibit D ‐ Capital Program Summary
Project

Number Project Name

Appropriation to 

Date 

Appropriation 

FY 2024‐25 

92881 Stormwater System Improvements & Maintenance ‐                                   650,000              

92882 Drainage Improvements for Arterials ‐                                   1,000,000           

92883 Canyon Lake No. 6 Dam Evaluation and Restoration ‐                                   250,000              

92884 Replace Airfield Lighting/LED Conversion ‐                                   200,000              

92885 Street Sweeper Acquisition ‐                                   255,500              

92886 Freight Road and Parking Improvements ‐                                   500,000              

92887 Airfield Perimeter Road Reconstruction ‐                                   500,000              

92888 Consolidated Rental Car Facility Improvements ‐                                   200,000              

92889 Cemetery Irrigation System ‐                                   2,000,000           

92890 Public Improvements ‐                                   200,000              

92891 FY 2024‐25 Vehicles and Equipment ‐                                   2,340,000           

92892 Trees for New Transfer Station ‐                                   40,425                 

92893 Lake 6 Fountain Inlet ‐                                   125,000              

Total Appropriation 827,253,532$           269,815,654      



Funding Source Funding to Date 

 Funding             

FY 2024‐25 

AIP Discretionary ‐$                                         18,500,000                 

AIP Grant ‐                                           16,200,000                 

Airport Federal Grant Funding 18,088,646                        ‐                                     

Airport Fund Bonds 9,681,739                           ‐                                     

Airport Fund Cash 6,643,420                           1,855,500                    

ARPA Funding 57,878,376                        ‐                                     

BIL Grant 14,099,426                        22,420,000                 

C.A.R.E.S. Act Funding 5,298,725                           ‐                                     

CBD TIF Fund Cash ‐                                           200,000                       

CBD TIF Fund Prior Year Bonds 5,878,955                           ‐                                     

CBD TIF Fund Prior Year Cash 180,994                              ‐                                     

Cemetery Fund Prior Year Cash 403,491                              ‐                                     

CFC Fund Cash 108,399                              200,000                       

CH Foundation Grant 500,000                              ‐                                     

Civic Center Fund Cash 841,471                              573,230                       

Civic Center Fund Prior Year Cash 1,236,945                           ‐                                     

County ARPA 3,500,000                           ‐                                     

Fleet Fund Cash 70,000                                118,244                       

Fleet Fund Prior Year Cash 51,294                                60,000                          

Fleet Fund Tax Notes 4,850,000                           8,558,447                    

Fleet Prior Year Tax Notes ‐                                           1,341,053                    

Gateway Fund Bonds 6,000,000                           ‐                                     

Gateway Fund Cash 1,480,366                           800,000                       

Gateway Fund Prior Year Bonds 6,748,321                           ‐                                     

General Fund Cash 76,555,409                        26,269,554                 

General Fund CO Bonds 131,925,874                     ‐                                     

General Fund Prior Year Bonds 97,333                                ‐                                     

General Fund Prior Year Cash 120,000                              200,000                       

General Fund Tax Notes 9,028,852                           2,000,000                    

General Obligation Bonds 110,200,000                     43,300,000                 

Helen Jones Foundation Grant 1,000,000                           ‐                                     

Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund Cash 1,731,117                           760,310                       

IT Fund Cash 155,000                              ‐                                     

Lake Alan Henry Cash 188,000                              ‐                                     

LBP TIF Fund Cash 1,372,699                           ‐                                     

LP&L Fund Cash 83,545,866                        18,257,000                 

LP&L Prior Year Revenue Bonds 20,169,915                        6,455,000                    

LP&L Revenue Bonds 27,469,273                        3,088,000                    

Market Lubbock, Inc. Cash 58,000                                ‐                                     

North Overton TIF Fund Bonds 747,031                              ‐                                     

North Overton TIF Fund Cash 8,750,000                           2,000,000                    

PFC Fund Bonds 16,005,334                        5,600,000                    

Radio Shop Cash 1,250,000                           375,000                       

Exhibit D ‐ Capital Program Summary



Funding Source Funding to Date 

 Funding             

FY 2024‐25 

Exhibit D ‐ Capital Program Summary

Stormwater Fund Bonds 10,095,921                        ‐                                     

Stormwater Fund Cash 19,854,423                        5,904,000                    

Texas Water Development Board Bonds 31,652,500                        ‐                                     

TxDOT Participation 4,676,960                           3,959,316                    

United States Air Force Funding 1,416,931                           ‐                                     

Wastewater Fund Cash 640,000                              210,000                       

Wastewater Fund Revenue Bonds 244,767                              ‐                                     

Water Fund Cash 228,249                              ‐                                     

Water/Wastewater Fund Cash 84,952,121                        19,835,000                 

Water/Wastewater Fund Revenue Bonds 36,711,389                        60,776,000                 

Zone A Impact Fees 1,270,000                           ‐                                     

Zone F Impact Fees 1,600,000                           ‐                                     

Total Funding 827,253,532$                   269,815,654               



Exhibit E ‐ Non‐Civil Service Pay Plan

Pay Grade Minimum Midpoint Maximum

101 18,528.64 24,554.40 30,580.16

102 19,452.16 25,780.56 32,108.96

103 20,419.36 27,069.12 33,718.88

104 21,444.80 28,424.24 35,403.68

105 22,518.08 29,844.88 37,171.68

106 23,643.36 31,335.20 39,027.04

107 24,820.64 32,900.40 40,980.16

108 26,060.32 34,544.64 43,028.96

109 27,364.48 36,274.16 45,183.84

110 28,733.12 38,087.92 47,442.72

111 30,172.48 39,992.16 49,811.84

112 31,686.72 41,995.20 52,303.68

113 33,261.28 44,090.80 54,920.32

114 34,927.36 46,296.64 57,665.92

115 36,674.56 48,610.64 60,546.72

116 38,507.04 51,040.08 63,573.12

117 39,588.64 52,474.24 65,359.84

118 41,570.88 55,102.32 68,633.76

119 43,650.88 57,857.28 72,063.68

120 45,834.88 60,751.60 75,668.32

121 48,118.72 63,783.20 79,447.68

122 49,466.56 65,567.84 81,669.12

123 51,933.44 68,840.72 85,748.00

124 54,535.52 72,286.24 90,036.96

125 57,264.48 75,901.28 94,538.08



Exhibit E ‐ Non‐Civil Service Pay Plan

Pay Grade Minimum Midpoint Maximum

126 60,122.40 79,695.20 99,268.00

127 62,231.52 82,487.60 102,743.68

128 65,339.04 86,611.20 107,883.36

129 68,606.72 90,941.76 113,276.80

130 72,042.88 95,492.80 118,942.72

131 75,643.36 100,266.40 124,889.44

132 79,424.80 105,278.16 131,131.52

133 83,395.52 110,541.60 137,687.68

134 87,565.92 116,068.16 144,570.40

135 91,942.24 121,871.36 151,800.48

136 96,532.80 127,959.52 159,386.24

137 101,366.72 134,363.84 167,360.96

138 106,435.68 141,083.28 175,730.88

139 110,680.96 146,713.84 182,746.72

140 116,220.00 154,052.08 191,884.16

141 122,029.44 161,753.28 201,477.12

142 128,128.00 169,839.28 211,550.56

143 134,538.56 178,334.00 222,129.44

144 141,265.28 187,249.92 233,234.56

145 148,328.96 196,612.00 244,895.04

146 155,748.32 206,446.24 257,144.16

147 163,531.68 216,764.08 269,996.48

148 171,704.00 227,600.88 283,497.76

149 180,292.32 238,982.64 297,672.96

150 189,307.04 250,931.20 312,555.36

Pay Plan reflects annual salary amount



Exhibit E ‐ Part‐Time Pay Plan

Pay Grade Minimum Midpoint Maximum

201 8.338 10.703 13.761

202 8.753 11.237 14.448

203 9.189 11.799 15.173

204 9.649 12.389 15.931

205 10.132 13.008 16.727

206 10.640 13.659 17.563

207 11.168 14.340 18.440

208 11.727 15.057 19.362

209 12.315 15.811 20.331

210 12.929 16.601 21.348

211 13.577 17.431 22.414

212 14.255 18.303 23.536

213 14.967 19.217 24.712

214 15.717 20.179 25.949

215 16.503 21.188 27.244

216 17.329 22.248 28.608

217 18.193 23.358 30.036

218 19.104 24.528 31.541

219 20.059 25.754 33.116

220 21.062 27.042 34.772

221 22.113 28.393 36.511

222 23.221 29.814 38.337

223 24.380 31.303 40.253

224 25.599 32.868 42.265

225 26.881 34.512 44.377



Exhibit E ‐ Part‐Time Pay Plan

Pay Grade Minimum Midpoint Maximum

226 28.224 36.237 46.596

227 29.635 38.049 48.926

228 31.115 39.951 51.373

229 32.670 41.948 53.941

230 34.306 44.047 56.639

231 36.021 46.249 59.471

232 37.821 48.561 62.445

233 39.712 50.989 65.566

234 41.699 53.538 68.842

235 43.783 56.216 72.288

236 45.970 59.024 75.899

237 48.670 61.976 79.695

238 50.684 65.077 83.682

239 53.215 68.328 87.864

240 55.878 71.745 92.257

241 58.671 75.333 96.871

242 61.604 79.099 101.714

243 64.686 83.055 106.800

244 67.920 87.207 112.140

245 71.316 91.566 117.744

246 74.882 96.146 123.634

247 78.626 100.953 129.814

248 82.555 105.999 136.305

249 86.685 111.300 143.120

250 91.018 116.864 150.275

Pay Plan reflects hourly rate



Exhibit E ‐ Police Pay Plan

Grade Title Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F

PCS6 Police Asst. Chief (H) 76.072  79.873  83.871 

(B) 6,085.76  6,389.84  6,709.68 

(M) 13,185.81  13,844.65  14,537.64 

(A) 158,229.76  166,135.84  174,451.68 

PCS5 Police Deputy Chief (H) 65.094 68.345 72.447

(B) 5,207.52  5,467.60  5,795.76 

(M) 11,282.96  11,846.47  12,557.48 

(A) 135,395.52  142,157.60  150,689.76 

PCS4 Police Lieutenant (H) 55.964  58.765  61.995 

(B) 4,477.12  4,701.20  4,959.60 

(M) 9,700.43  10,185.93  10,745.80 

(A) 116,405.12  122,231.20  128,949.60 

PCS3 Police Sergeant (H) 49.058  51.511  54.603 

(B) 3,924.64  4,120.88  4,368.24 

(M) 8,503.39  8,928.57  9,464.52 

(A) 102,040.64  107,142.88  113,574.24 

PCS2 Police Detective/Corporal (H) 46.721 

(B) 3,737.68 

(M) 8,098.31 

(A) 97,179.68 

10 years

PCS1 Police Officer (H) 34.244  35.955  37.754  39.830  42.820  46.032 

(B) 2,739.52  2,876.40  3,020.32  3,186.40  3,425.60  3,682.56 

(M) 5,935.63  6,232.20  6,544.03  6,903.87  7,422.13  7,978.88 

(A) 71,227.52  74,786.40  78,528.32  82,846.40  89,065.60  95,746.56 

PNC(E2) Entry Level II (H) 34.244 

(Pay grade does not indicate (B) 2,739.52 

Civil Service status) (M) 5,935.63 

(A) 71,227.52 

PNC(E1) Entry Level I A + B (H) 31.202 

(non‐Civil Service) (B) 2,496.16 

(M) 5,408.35 

(A) 64,900.16 

PNCSP Cadet (H) 31.202 

(non‐Civil Service) (B) 2,496.16 

(M) 5,408.35 

(A) 64,900.16 
∙  PNCSP ‐ Cadet: 

Hired pre‐Academy start date

Attained 12 months after PNC(E1)A
This grade is skipped by PNC(E1)B ONLY IF the employee was hired with a TCOLE license

∙  PCS1 – Police Officer: Step A
Step A is attained 6 months after the employee attains PNC(E2) – Entry Level 2, OR
Step A is attained 12 months after PNC(E1)B if the employee was hired with a TCOLE license. 
Step A also indicates the end of the probationary period:
18 months if the employee was hired without a TCOLE license
12 months if the employee was hired with a TCOLE license

∙  PCS1 – Police Officer: Step B

6 months after Step A if the employee was hired without a TCOLE license, OR
12 months after Step A if the employee was hired with a TCOLE license

∙  PCS1 – Police Officer: Steps C – F
Step C is attained at 4 years of service
Step D is attained at 6 years of service
Step E is attained at 8 years of service
Step F is attained at 10 years of service

∙  PCS 2 – 6 
Pay steps at all other ranks are attained after 2 years spent in the prior step

Biweekly rate=Hourly * 80.  Annual rate=Biweekly * 26.  Monthly rate=Annual / 12.

If the anniversary date in a classification occurs during the last half of the pay period, the increase does not become effective until the beginning of the next pay period. Progression in each 

classified position (PNCE1‐B and above) is based on time in that classification. Time spent in "move‐up" does not count toward time in the “move up” classification. Seniority is based on all years 

of service as a sworn/classified police officer (PNCE1‐B and above) or firefighter for the City of Lubbock, not merely the last continuous period of service. Disciplinary suspensions do not 

constitute a break in service. Seniority credit shall be figured to five decimal places. In the event of a conflict between this ordinance and state law, state law will control.

∙  Lateral Entry Program

LPD employees hired under the Lateral Entry Program begin at the PSC1 pay grade commensurate with their years of qualified experience according to Local Civil Service 

Rules, Section 3.03, and progress to the next step after 2 years in service at their beginning pay grade, unless their beginning pay grade is PCS1 Step F, in which case they 

will remain in that grade. For LPD employees hired under the Lateral Entry Program, a probationary period of 12 months, prior to entering full civil service protection, 

begins on the employee’s Academy start date.

Step B is attained 2 years after the Academy start date

∙  PNC(E1)A – Entry Level 1: 
Beginning grade for employee hired without a TCOLE license

∙  PNC(E1)B – Entry Level 1: 
Attained upon earning a TCOLE license OR 
Beginning grade for employee with a TCOLE license 

∙  PNC(E2) Entry Level 2: 



Grade Title 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

FCS7 Fire Deputy Chief

H  75.841 76.837 77.831 78.826 79.819 80.814 81.809

B 6,067.28          6,146.96          6,226.48          6,306.08          6,385.52        6,465.12        6,544.72       

A 157,749.28      159,820.96      161,888.48      163,958.08      166,023.52    168,093.12    170,162.72   

FCS6 Fire Division Chief

H  71.185 71.472 71.757 72.044 72.328 72.616 72.903 73.192 73.475

B 5,694.80          5,717.76          5,740.56          5,763.52          5,786.24        5,809.28        5,832.24        5,855.36        5,878.00       

A 148,064.80      148,661.76      149,254.56      149,851.52      150,442.24    151,041.28    151,638.24    152,239.36    152,828.00   

FCS5 Fire Battalion Chief

H  63.952 64.454 64.956 65.456 65.957 66.459 66.958 67.461 67.962 68.462 68.986

B 5,116.16          5,156.32          5,196.48          5,236.48          5,276.56        5,316.72        5,356.64        5,396.88        5,436.96        5,476.96        5,518.88         

A 133,020.16      134,064.32      135,108.48      136,148.48      137,190.56    138,234.72    139,272.64    140,318.88    141,360.96    142,400.96    143,490.88     

FCS4 Fire Captain

H  55.620 56.036 56.451 56.868 57.282 57.697 58.113 58.530 58.944 59.360 59.774 60.190 60.606

B 4,449.60 4,482.88 4,516.08 4,549.44 4,582.56 4,615.76 4,649.04 4,682.40 4,715.52 4,748.80 4,781.92 4,815.20 4,848.48

A 115,689.60 116,554.88 117,418.08 118,285.44 119,146.56 120,009.76 120,875.04 121,742.40 122,603.52 123,468.80 124,329.92 125,195.20 126,060.48

FCS3 Fire Lieutenant

H  49.738 50.009 50.278 50.551 50.819 51.088 51.359 51.631 51.903 52.173 52.442 52.713 52.984 53.254 53.526

B 3,979.04 4,000.72 4,022.24 4,044.08 4,065.52 4,087.04 4,108.72 4,130.48 4,152.24 4,173.84 4,195.36 4,217.04 4,238.72 4,260.32 4,282.08

A 103,455.04 104,018.72 104,578.24 105,146.08 105,703.52 106,263.04 106,826.72 107,392.48 107,958.24 108,519.84 109,079.36 109,643.04 110,206.72 110,768.32 111,334.08

FCS2 Fire Equipment Oper.

H  45.914 46.127 46.337 46.549 46.761 46.972 47.187 47.396 47.609 47.820 48.031 48.243 48.454 48.666 48.878 49.090 49.304

B 3,673.12 3,690.16 3,706.96 3,723.92 3,740.88 3,757.76 3,774.96 3,791.68 3,808.72 3,825.60 3,842.48 3,859.44 3,876.32 3,893.28 3,910.24 3,927.20 3,944.32

A 95,501.12 95,944.16 96,380.96 96,821.92 97,262.88 97,701.76 98,148.96 98,583.68 99,026.72 99,465.60 99,904.48 100,345.44 100,784.32 101,225.28 101,666.24 102,107.20 102,552.32

FCS1 Fire Fighter

H  33.945 34.513 35.083 35.653 36.225 36.794 37.364 37.933 38.502 39.072 39.641 40.215 40.783 41.355 41.927 42.494 43.064 43.635 44.205 44.775

B 2,715.60 2,761.04 2,806.64 2,852.24 2,898.00 2,943.52 2,989.12 3,034.64 3,080.16 3,125.76 3,171.28 3,217.20 3,262.64 3,308.40 3,354.16 3,399.52 3,445.12 3,490.80 3,536.40 3,582.00

A 70,605.60 71,787.04 72,972.64 74,158.24 75,348.00 76,531.52 77,717.12 78,900.64 80,084.16 81,269.76 82,453.28 83,647.20 84,828.64 86,018.40 87,208.16 88,387.52 89,573.12 90,760.80 91,946.40 93,132.00

FNCS1 Prob. Fire Fighter

H  32.004

B 2,560.32

A 66,568.32

Progression in each pay grade is based on seniority in that pay grade.  Seniority is defined as the total time of employment as a police officer or

fire fighter for the City of Lubbock.  Time‐off for disciplinary suspension does not constitute a loss of seniority time, nor does it constitute a break in

service.  The time involved in "move‐up" is also not included.  It does mean all years of service as a police officer or fire fighter with the City of Lubbock

whether interrupted, or uninterrupted and not merely the last continuous period of service.  Seniority credit shall be figured to five decimal places

Employees who successfully complete one (1) year as Probationary Fire Fighter move to grade FCS1.  Fire Fighters then progress through steps in

FCS1 annually.  Progress through the steps in the other grades also requires one year in each step.  However, if the anniversary date occurs during

the last half of the pay period, the increase does not become effective until the beginning of the next pay period

Hourly rate=annual / 2,080.  Biweekly rate=Hourly rate * 80.  All conversions are approximate.

Exhibit E ‐ Fire Pay Plan (40 Hour Shifts)



Grade 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

FCS5

H 45.680 46.039 46.397 46.756 47.112 47.472 47.827 48.188 48.546 48.902 49.276

B 4,842.08 4,880.13 4,918.08 4,956.14 4,993.87 5,032.03 5,069.66 5,107.93 5,145.88 5,183.61 5,223.26

A 125,894.08 126,883.48 127,870.13 128,859.54 129,840.67 130,832.83 131,811.21 132,806.13 133,792.78 134,773.91 135,804.66

FCS4

H 39.731 40.026 40.323 40.620 40.915 41.214 41.509 41.808 42.104 42.402 42.697 42.993 43.290

B 4,211.49 4,242.76 4,274.24 4,305.72 4,336.99 4,368.68 4,399.95 4,431.65 4,463.02 4,494.61 4,525.88 4,557.26 4,588.74

A 109,498.64 110,311.66 111,130.19 111,948.72 112,761.74 113,585.78 114,398.80 115,222.85 116,038.62 116,859.91 117,672.93 118,488.71 119,307.24

FCS3

H 35.528 35.722 35.914 36.108 36.301 36.492 36.685 36.879 37.075 37.267 37.460 37.653 37.846 38.038 38.233

B 3,765.97 3,786.53 3,806.88 3,827.45 3,847.91 3,868.15 3,888.61 3,909.17 3,929.95 3,950.30 3,970.76 3,991.22 4,011.68 4,032.03 4,052.70

A 97,915.17 98,449.83 98,978.98 99,513.65 100,045.56 100,571.95 101,103.86 101,638.52 102,178.70 102,707.85 103,239.76 103,771.67 104,303.58 104,832.73 105,370.15

FCS2

H 32.797 32.948 33.098 33.250 33.402 33.552 33.706 33.855 34.007 34.158 34.309 34.461 34.611 34.762 34.914 35.065 35.218

B 3,476.48 3,492.49 3,508.39 3,524.50 3,540.61 3,556.51 3,572.84 3,588.63 3,604.74 3,620.75 3,636.75 3,652.87 3,668.77 3,684.77 3,700.88 3,716.89 3,733.11

A 90,388.53 90,804.69 91,218.09 91,637.00 92,055.91 92,469.31 92,893.74 93,304.38 93,723.29 94,139.45 94,555.60 94,974.52 95,387.92 95,804.07 96,222.98 96,639.14 97,060.81

FCS1

H 24.246 24.652 25.059 25.467 25.875 26.281 26.688 27.098 27.503 27.910 28.317 28.725 29.131 29.541 29.947 30.353 30.760 31.169 31.575 31.982

B 2,570.08 2,613.11 2,656.25 2,699.50 2,742.75 2,785.79 2,828.93 2,872.39 2,915.32 2,958.46 3,001.60 3,044.85 3,087.89 3,131.35 3,174.38 3,217.42 3,260.56 3,303.91 3,346.95 3,390.09

A 66,821.98 67,940.91 69,062.60 70,187.05 71,311.50 72,430.44 73,552.13 74,682.09 75,798.27 76,919.96 78,041.65 79,166.10 80,285.04 81,415.00 82,533.93 83,652.87 84,774.56 85,901.76 87,020.70 88,142.39

FNCS1

H 22.860

B 2,423.16

A 63,002.16

Progression in each pay grade is based on seniority in that pay grade.  Seniority is defined as the total time of employment as a police officer or

fire fighter for the City of Lubbock.  Time‐off for disciplinary suspension does not constitute a loss of seniority time, nor does it constitute a break in

service.  The time involved in "move‐up" is also not included.  It does mean all years of service as a police officer or fire fighter with the City of Lubbock

whether interrupted, or uninterrupted and not merely the last continuous period of service.  Seniority credit shall be figured to five decimal places

Employees who successfully complete one (1) year as Probationary Fire Fighter move to grade FCS1.  Fire Fighters then progress through steps in

FCS1 annually.  Progress through the steps in the other grades also requires one year in each step.  However, if the anniversary date occurs during

the last half of the pay period, the increase does not become effective until the beginning of the next pay period.

Kelly shift rate (k)=Biweekly (40 hour)/112.  Biweekly rate=Hourly*106.  Annual rate=Biweekly rate*26.  All conversions are approximate

Title

Exhibit E ‐ Fire Pay Plan (Kelly Shifts)

Prob. Fire Fighter

Fire Battalion Chief

Fire Captain

Fire Lieutenant

Fire Equipment Oper

Fire Fighter



Exhibit F - Position Control Summary

 Budget
 FY 2024-25

Administrative Services
City Attorney                         15
City Council                           3
City Manager                           8
City Secretary                         11
Facilities Management                         16
Finance                         33
Human Resources                         12
Internal Audit                           3
Communications and Marketing                           9
Total Administrative Services                       110

Development Services
Building Safety                         32
Codes Enforcement                         29
Environmental Health                         16
Vector Control                           5
Planning                         11
Total Development Services                         93

Cultural and Recreation Services
Library                         35
Cultural Arts                           9
Parks and Recreation                         72
Total Cultural and Recreation Services                       116

Public Works
Engineering                         45
Solid Waste                         99
Streets                         43
Traffic                         34
Total Public Works                       221

Public Safety and Health Services
Animal Services                         30
Fire                       463
Municipal Court                         21
Police                       579
Public Health                         55
Total Public Safety and Health Services                   1,148

TOTAL GENERAL FUND                   1,688

Internal Service Funds
Fleet                         24
Health Benefits                           4
Information Technology                         35
Telecommunications                           3
GIS &Data Services                         10
Radio Shop                           9
Print Shop                           2
Central Warehouse                           4
Risk Management                           7
Total Internal Service Funds                         98

Enterprise Funds
Airport                         52
Cemetery                           6
Civic Centers                         18
Lake Alan Henry                           2
Lubbock Power and Light                       311
Storm Water                         32
Water/Wastewater                       232
Total Enterprise Funds                       653 6

Special Revenue Funds

Community Development                         14
Economic Development                           3
Total Special Revenue Funds                         17

Component Unit
Civic Lubbock                           6
Total Component Unit                           6

TOTAL CITY FUNDS                   2,462



Exhibit F - Position Control Summary

 Budget
 FY 2024-25

Administrative Services Changes from Exhibit G:
City Attorney                         15
City Council                           3
City Manager                           8
City Secretary                         11
Facilities Management                         16
Finance                         32
Human Resources                         12
Internal Audit                           2
Communications and Marketing                           9
Total Administrative Services                       108

Development Services
Building Safety                         32
Codes Enforcement                         29
Environmental Health                         16
Vector Control                           5
Planning                         11
Total Development Services                         93

Cultural and Recreation Services
Library                         35
Cultural Arts                           9
Parks and Recreation                         72
Total Cultural and Recreation Services                       116

Public Works
Engineering                         45
Solid Waste                       100
Streets                         43
Traffic                         33
Total Public Works                       221

Public Safety and Health Services
Animal Services                         32
Emergency Management                           5
Fire                       462 1 - Division Chief; 3 Fire Fighters
Municipal Court                         19
Police                       587 4 - Public Service Officers; (2) - Patrol Officers
Public Health                         52
Total Public Safety and Health Services                   1,157

TOTAL GENERAL FUND                   1,695

Internal Service Funds
Fleet                         24
Health Benefits                           4
Information Technology                         37
Telecommunications                           2
GIS &Data Services                         10
Radio Shop                           8
Print Shop/Warehouse                           6
Risk Management                           7
Total Internal Service Funds                         98

Enterprise Funds
Airport                         52
Cemetery                           6
Civic Centers                         18
Lake Alan Henry                           2
Lubbock Power and Light                       311
Storm Water                         32
Water/Wastewater                       235 1 - Constr and Maint Foremen; 2 - Constr and Maint Wkr; (1) - Environmental Compliance Specialist; (1) Apprentice WW Treatment Plant Operator; 2 - Industrial Electrician
Total Enterprise Funds                       656

Special Revenue Funds
Community Development                         14
Economic Development                           3
Total Special Revenue Funds                         17

Component Unit
Civic Lubbock                           6
Total Component Unit                           6

TOTAL CITY FUNDS                   2,472



General Fund

Interfund Loan to Meadowbrook Golf Fund 500,000$              

Transfer from LP&L ‐ TCOS 2,100,000           

Decrease Property Tax Revenue (1,732,250)          

Add Fire Division Chief Position in Fire Suppression 189,274

Add 3 Fire Fighter Positions to Fire Marshal Office 212,667

Add 4 Public Service Officer Positions 219,331

Add Pay Adjustment for Forensic, Crime and Property Police Non‐Civil Service Staff 158,199

Increase Professional Services in Communications & Public Engagement for Website and Intranet Design 105,000

Increase Professional Services in Non‐Departmental for Short‐Term Rental Software 49,856

Increase Professional Services in Non‐Departmental for Meet and Confer Agreement 100,000

Increase Special Projects in Non‐Departmental for Library Concept 100,000

Decrease 2 Police Officer Positions (346,940)

Decrease Overtime in Fire Suppression (94,637)

Decrease Transfer to CIP (Pay‐as‐you‐go) for Clapp Pool Repair Project (325,000)

LP&L Fund

Decrease Revenue (1,179,984)          

Increase Use of Excess Reserves 6,004,984           

Increase Operating Expenses 250,000               

Increase Fund Level Expenses 4,575,000           

Meadowbrook Golf Fund

Interfund Loan from General Fund 500,000$              

Water/Wastewater Fund

Add one Construction and Maintenance Foreman Position to Water Distribution & Maintenance 77,808$                

Add two Construction and Maintenance Worker Positions to Wastewater Collection 114,032

Increase Transfer to Water/Wastewater Capital Projects Fund for Sewer Lateral repairs 210,000

Increase Sewer Lateral Repairs revenue ‐ $1K owner repair cost 1,054,500

Delete one Environmental Compliance Specialist Position from Industrial Monitoring & Pre‐Treatment  (77,808)                

Delete one Apprentice Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator Position from Wastwater Treatment (73,146)                

Add two Industrial Electrician Positions to Wastewater Treatment 204,726               

Water/Wastewater Capital Projects Fund

CIP 92747 Sewer Tap Replacements 210,000$              

Increase appropriation and funding ‐ Water/Wastewater fund cash

CIP 92745 Manhole Replacements Interceptors (250,000)$            

Decrease appropriation and funding ‐ Water/Wastewater fund cash

CIP 92746 Sewer Line Replacements (275,000)             

Decrease appropriation and funding ‐ Water/Wastewater fund cash

CIP 92802 Wastewater Collection System Maintenance (175,000)             

Decrease appropriation and funding ‐ Water/Wastewater fund cash

Exhibit G ‐ Changes to Proposed FY 2024‐25 Budget



CIP 92656 SEWRP Effluent Pump Station #2 Improvements 700,000               

Increase appropriation and funding ‐ Water/Wastewater fund cash

Health Rebates and Insurance Fund

Add revenue to Health ‐  Charity Care  600$                      

North and East Lubbock Neighborhood and Infrastructure Fund

Add Sewer Lateral Assistance Program  300,000$              

Increase Use of Excess Reserves (300,000)             

FY 2023‐24 Operating Budget and Capital Program Amendments After Filing Proposed Budget

Amendments not included in the FY 2024‐25 Proposed Operating Budget and Capital

Approved on the August 13, 2024 City Council Meeting:

Cable Services Fund

Communications Equipment and Renovations 785,390$              

Establish CIP and appropriation and funding

Approved on the August 27, 2024 City Council Meeting:

Information Technology Capital Project Fund

92578 Enterprise Resource Planning (193,806)$            

Decrease appropriation and funding ‐ Health Benefits Cash

Increase Transfer to Health Benefits Operating Fund 193,806               

Health Benefits Fund

Increase Transfer from Information Technology Capital Project Fund 193,806$              

Budget Change Requests since Filing Proposed Budget

Budget Change Request No. 2024‐25

Lubbock Power & Light Capital Fund

92730 Cooke Facility Remodel (145,000)$            

Decrease appropriation and funding

92836 Overhead/Underground Training Facility  145,000               

Increase appropriation and funding

92684 FY 2020‐25 Distribution Transformers (500,000)             

Decrease appropriation and funding

92686 FY 2020‐25 Overhead Lines 500,000               

Increase appropriation and funding

92731  Yellowhouse Substation Capacity Upgrade (157,916)             

Decrease appropriation and funding

92840 Spare Autotransformer (425,000)             

Decrease appropriation and funding

92688 FY 2020‐25 Underground Distribution 582,916               

Increase appropriation and funding



92788 4kV Distribution Conversion (1,500,000)          

Decrease appropriation and funding

92834 Substation Capacity Upgrade ‐ Erskine 1,500,000           

Increase appropriation and funding

Budget Change Request No. 2024‐29

General Fund

Decrease Part‐time for Park Maintenance (38,957)$              

Increase Computer Capital Outlay for Park Maintenance 38,957                 



 AI# 12831 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 4. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution ratifying the adoption of the FY 2024-25 Budget that will
require raising more revenue from property taxes than in the previous year.

Item Summary
Chapter 102 of the Texas Local Government Code brings into the budget process truth-in-taxation
disclosure concepts.  Any budget to be enacted after September 1, 2007, that raises more property tax
revenue than the previous year requires two votes by the City Council:
 
1. One vote to adopt the budget; and 
2. A separate vote to ratify the property tax revenue increase reflected in the budget.

This resolution addresses #2 as required by Chapter 102 of the Texas Local Government Code.

Fiscal Impact
The FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program raises more total property taxes than last year's
budget by $5.88 million or 5.06 percent, and of that amount, $3,298,460 is tax revenue to be raised from
new property added to the tax roll this year.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Ratification Resolution 







 AI# 12811 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 5. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0129, setting the tax rate and
levying a tax upon all property subject to taxation within the City of Lubbock for 2024; apportioning
said levy among the various funds and items for which revenue must be raised; fixing the times in which
said taxes shall be paid and assessing penalty and interest for nonpayment of such taxes within the time
provided.

Item Summary
On September 3, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

This is the second reading of the ordinance adopting and levying the tax rate for 2024.  Prior to
considering the ordinance adopting and levying of the tax rate, the City Council must consider the
ordinance adopting the budget.  The second reading adopting the budget is Item 6.3. on today’s
agenda. The property tax is proposed at $0.470120 per $100 valuation.  The tax rate is distributed as
follows:
  
General Fund Maintenance and Operations $0.357456
Interest and Sinking Fund $0.112664

Fiscal Impact
The General Fund Maintenance and Operations tax rate will generate $92.8 million and the Interest and
Sinking Fund tax rate will generate $29.3 million.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Tax Rate Ordinance 









 AI# 12842 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 6. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution amending the allocation of the Hotel Occupancy Tax
Revenues for FY 2024-25 and distributing receipts, net of collection expenses, as authorized in
Subsection 18.03.001(b)(2) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock.

Item Summary
Hotel Occupancy Tax (HOT) receipts are distributed as authorized in Chapter 351 of the Texas Tax
Code, as directed by the City Council. 

The total revenue projected for FY 2024-25 is $9.7 million, an increase of $300,000.  Budgeted
expenditures have also increased $300,000 from the prior year.

The FY 2024-25 Operating Budget includes changes to the FY 2023-24 allocation as follows:
• Civic Center Operations and Marketing allocation decreased $8,523.
• The allocation to Civic Lubbock - Art Grants increased $17,763.
• The allocation to the North Overton TIF - Conference Center debt increased $26,383.
• Buddy and Maria Elena Holly Plaza debt service allocation increased $1,125.
• Transfer to CIP - Civic Center allocation decreased $35,365.
• A new allocation is included this year for Visitor Support at $298,617.  This visitor support covers
staffing for the maintenance of the tournament ball fields, as well as promotions of the Buddy Holly
Center and the Silent Wings Museum.

The allocation distribution is found below: 
Convention & Tourism Bureau $ 3,697,485
Civic Center Operations/Marketing 2,600,487
Visiting Participatory & Spectator Sports Marketing 1,205,294
North Overton TIF Conference Center Debt Service 472,951
Civic Lubbock, Inc. 574,356
Buddy & Maria Elena Holly Plaza Debt Service 90,500
Transfer to Civic Center Capital 380,345
Transfer to HOT Capital 379,965
Visitor Support 298,617

Total        $ 9,700,000

Fiscal Impact
Revenue and expenditures are projected to increase 3.2 percent, or $300,000 for FY 2024-25.



Revenue and expenditures are projected to increase 3.2 percent, or $300,000 for FY 2024-25.
Total projected revenue and expenditures for FY 2024-25 are $9.7 million.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
HM Resolution 







 AI# 12827 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 7. 
09/10/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Lubbock Power and Light: Consider a resolution adopting the Delivery System Electric
Rate/Tariff Schedule (Tariff) of Lubbock Power & Light (LP&L), the City of Lubbock's municipally
owned electric utility, applicable to all rate classes, effective November 1, 2024.

Item Summary
The Electric Utility Board (EUB) is tasked with approving and recommending the Delivery System Rate
Schedule/Discretionary Fees to the City Council for their consideration. The Delivery System Rate
Schedule/Discretionary Fees serves as the funding mechanism for Lubbock Power & Light (LP&L) in
FY 2024-25 with an effective date of November 1, 2024. 

Fiscal Impact
The attached Tariff includes a slight rate decrease for all rate classes. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Electric Utility Board

Attachments
Resolution - CC 
Tariff 
Resolution - EUB 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TARIFF  
FOR  

COMPETITIVE RETAILER ACCESS 
 

 

 

 

 

City of Lubbock, by and through Lubbock Power & Light (LP&L) 

 

 

  



 

Page | 1 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

This page intentionally left blank. 
  



 

Page | 2 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS .............................................................................................................................................. 2 

1 CHAPTER 1: DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................................................... 6 

2 CHAPTER 2: DESCRIPTIONS OF LP&L’S CERTIFICATED SERVICE AREA ........................................... 10 

2.1 CITY OF LUBBOCK, BY AND THROUGH LUBBOCK POWER & LIGHT ....................................... 10 

2.2 MAP OF SERVICE AREA........................................................................................................................ 11 

3 CHAPTER 3: GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF ACCESS ............................................................ 12 

3.1 APPLICABILITY ...................................................................................................................................... 12 

3.2 GENERAL ................................................................................................................................................. 12 

3.3 CHARGES ASSOCIATED WITH DELIVERY SERVICE ...................................................................... 12 

3.4 AVAILABILITY OF TARIFF ................................................................................................................... 12 

3.5 CHANGES TO ACCESS TARIFF ............................................................................................................ 12 

3.6 NON-DISCRIMINATION......................................................................................................................... 13 

3.7 FORM AND TIMING OF NOTICE .......................................................................................................... 13 

3.8 DESIGNATION OF LP&L CONTACT PERSONS FOR MATTERS RELATING TO ACCESS .......... 13 

3.9 INVOICING TO STATE AGENCIES ...................................................................................................... 13 

3.10 GOVERNING LAWS AND REGULATIONS ......................................................................................... 13 

3.11 GOOD FAITH OBLIGATION .................................................................................................................. 13 

3.12 COOPERATION IN EMERGENCIES ...................................................................................................... 14 

3.13 HEADINGS ............................................................................................................................................... 14 

3.14 TAX EXEMPT STATUS .......................................................................................................................... 14 

3.15 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS ............................................................................................................... 14 

3.16 EXERCISE OF RIGHT TO CONSENT .................................................................................................... 14 

3.17 WAIVERS ................................................................................................................................................. 14 

3.18 HOURS OF OPERATION ........................................................................................................................ 14 

4 CHAPTER 4: SERVICE RULES AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO ACCESS TO DELIVERY SYSTEM 
OF LP&L BY COMPETITIVE RETAILERS ............................................................................................................ 15 

4.1 GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS ............................................................................................. 15 

4.1.A APPLICABILITY OF CHAPTER ........................................................................................................ 15 

4.1.B REQUIRED NOTICE ........................................................................................................................... 15 

4.2 LIMITS ON LIABILITY ........................................................................................................................... 15 

4.2.A LIABILITY BETWEEN LP&L AND COMPETITIVE RETAILERS ................................................. 15 

4.2.B LIMITATION OF DUTY AND LIABILITY OF COMPETITIVE RETAILER .................................. 16 

4.2.C DUTY TO AVOID OR MITIGATE DAMAGES ................................................................................. 16 

4.2.D FORCE MAJEURE ............................................................................................................................... 16 

4.2.E EMERGENCIES AND NECESSARY INTERRUPTIONS .................................................................. 16 

4.2.F LIMITATION OF WARRANTIES BY LP&L ..................................................................................... 17 

4.2.G DUTY TO REVIEW ............................................................................................................................. 17 



 

Page | 3 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

4.3 ACCESS .................................................................................................................................................... 17 

4.3.A ELIGIBILITY ........................................................................................................................................ 17 

4.3.B INITIATION OF ACCESS (DELIVERY SYSTEM SERVICE CONNECTION) ............................... 17 

4.3.C REQUESTS FOR DISCRETIONARY SERVICES INCLUDING CONSTRUCTION SERVICES ... 18 

4.3.D CHANGING OF DESIGNATED COMPETITIVE RETAILER .......................................................... 18 

4.3.E SWITCHING FEE ................................................................................................................................. 19 

4.3.F IDENTIFICATION OF THE PREMISES AND SELECTION OF RATE SCHEDULES ................... 19 

4.3.G PROVISION OF DATA BY COMPETITIVE RETAILER TO LP&L ................................................ 19 

4.3.H SUSPENSION OF ACCESS ................................................................................................................. 19 

4.3.I RESTORATION OF ACCESS ............................................................................................................. 20 

4.3.J DISCONNECTION OF SERVICE REQUESTED BY COMPETITIVE RETAILER TO RETAIL 
CUSTOMER’S FACILITIES .............................................................................................................................. 21 

4.3.K EXTREME WEATHER ........................................................................................................................ 21 

4.3.L CRITICAL CARE AND CRITICAL LOAD CUSTOMERS ................................................................ 21 

4.4 BILLING AND REMITTANCE ............................................................................................................... 21 

4.4.A CONSOLIDATED BILLING BY LP&L .............................................................................................. 22 

4.4.B SEPARATE BILLS ............................................................................................................................... 23 

4.4.C CONSOLIDATED BILLING BY COMPETITIVE RETAILER ......................................................... 23 

4.4.D REMITTANCE OF INVOICED CHARGES ........................................................................................ 25 

4.5 SECURITY DEPOSITS AND CREDITWORTHINESS .......................................................................... 27 

4.5.A DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS FOR CONSOLIDATED BILLING BY LP&L .................................... 27 

4.5.B DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS FOR CONSOLIDATED BILLING BY COMPETITIVE RETAILER 27 

4.5.C SIZE OF DEPOSIT ............................................................................................................................... 27 

4.5.D FORM OF DEPOSIT ............................................................................................................................ 27 

4.5.E INTEREST ............................................................................................................................................ 28 

4.5.F HISTORICAL DEPOSIT INFORMATION ......................................................................................... 28 

4.5.G REFUND OF DEPOSIT ........................................................................................................................ 28 

4.6 DELINQUENCY, DEFAULT AND REMEDIES ON DEFAULT ........................................................... 28 

4.6.A LP&L DELINQUENCY AND DEFAULT ........................................................................................... 28 

4.6.B DEFAULT AND REMEDIES ON DEFAULT OF LP&L .................................................................... 28 

4.6.C DEFAULT OF LP&L RELATED TO FAILURE TO PROVIDE METER READING DATA ........... 29 

4.7 MEASUREMENT AND METERING OF SERVICE ............................................................................... 31 

4.7.A MEASUREMENT ................................................................................................................................. 31 

4.7.B METER READING ............................................................................................................................... 31 

4.7.C REPORTING MEASUREMENT DATA .............................................................................................. 33 

4.7.D METER TESTING, METER REPLACEMENT AND ADJUSTMENTS FOR METER READING 
INACCURACIES ................................................................................................................................................ 33 

4.7.E INVOICE ADJUSTMENT DUE TO METER INACCURACY ........................................................... 33 

4.8 DATA EXCHANGE .................................................................................................................................. 33 

4.8.A DATA FROM METER READING ....................................................................................................... 33 



 

Page | 4 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

4.8.B DATA FOR UNMETERED LOADS .................................................................................................... 35 

4.8.C ADJUSTMENTS TO PREVIOUSLY TRANSMITTED DATA .......................................................... 36 

4.8.D DATA EXCHANGE PROTOCOLS ..................................................................................................... 36 

4.9 DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURES .............................................................................................. 37 

4.9.A COMPLAINT PROCEDURES ............................................................................................................. 37 

4.9.B COMPLAINT WITH REGULATORY AUTHORITY ......................................................................... 37 

4.9.C SERVICE INQUIRIES OR ACCESS STATUS ................................................................................... 38 

4.10 OUTAGE AND SERVICE REQUEST REPORTING .............................................................................. 38 

4.10.A NOTIFICATION OF INTERRUPTIONS, IRREGULARITIES, AND SERVICE REQUESTS ..... 38 

4.10.B RESPONSE TO REPORTS OF INTERRUPTIONS AND REPAIR REQUESTS .......................... 39 

5 CHAPTER 5: LP&L GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS AND RATES ................................................ 40 

5.1 GENERAL ................................................................................................................................................. 40 

5.2 LP&L - SPECIFIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS .................................................................................... 40 

5.2.A DEFINITIONS ...................................................................................................................................... 40 

5.2.B ADDITIONAL DELIVERY SERVICE INFORMATION ................................................................... 42 

5.2.C HOURS OF OPERATION .................................................................................................................... 43 

5.3 RATE SCHEDULES ................................................................................................................................. 43 

5.3.A APPLICABILITY .................................................................................................................................. 43 

5.3.B DUAL BILLING ................................................................................................................................... 43 

5.3.C TERMS OF SERVICE .......................................................................................................................... 43 

5.3.D TERMS OF PAYMENT ........................................................................................................................ 45 

5.3.E TERMS AND CONDITIONS ............................................................................................................... 45 

5.3.F TERRITORY ......................................................................................................................................... 45 

5.3.G EFFECTIVE DATE ............................................................................................................................... 45 

5.3.H RESIDENTIAL DELIVERY SYSTEM SERVICE .............................................................................. 46 

5.3.I SECONDARY SERVICE LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 10 kW DELIVERY SYSTEM SERVICE . 47 

5.3.J SECONDARY SERVICE GREATER THAN 10 kW DELIVERY SYSTEM SERVICE ................... 47 

5.3.K PRIMARY DELIVERY SYSTEM SERVICE ...................................................................................... 49 

CHARACTER OF SERVICE ............................................................................................................................. 49 

5.3.L PRIMARY SUBSTATION DELIVERY SERVICE ............................................................................. 50 

5.3.M TRANSMISSION DELIVERY SYSTEM SERVICE ........................................................................... 51 

5.3.N STREET LIGHTING DELIVERY SERVICE ...................................................................................... 52 

5.3.O DISCRETIONARY SERVICE CHARGES .......................................................................................... 53 

5.3.P UNIFORM DISCRETIONARY SERVICE CHARGES ....................................................................... 54 

5.4 DISTRIBUTED GENERATION INTERCONNECTION POLICIES ...................................................... 64 

5.5 CONSTRUCTION SERVICE CHARGES ................................................................................................ 65 

5.5.A AVAILABILITY ................................................................................................................................... 65 

5.5.B DISCRETIONARY CHARGES FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICE INCLUDE: .............................. 65 

5.5.C GENERAL: DELIVERY SYSTEM FACILITIES ................................................................................ 65 



 

Page | 5 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

5.5.D STANDARD DELIVERY SYSTEM FACILITIES .............................................................................. 66 

5.5.E NON-STANDARD FACILITIES ......................................................................................................... 66 

5.5.H OVERHEAD DELIVERY SERVICE ................................................................................................... 67 

5.5.I UNDERGROUND DELIVERY SERVICE .......................................................................................... 67 

5.5.J DELIVERY SERVICE FROM LP&L'S EXISTING UNDERGROUND DELIVERY SYSTEM ....... 68 

5.5.K SERVICE LATERAL – SECONDARY VOLTAGE ............................................................................ 68 

5.5.L TRANSFORMER AND EQUIPMENT ................................................................................................ 68 

5.5.M VAULT .................................................................................................................................................. 68 

5.5.N METER .................................................................................................................................................. 69 

5.5.O STANDARD FACILITY EXTENSIONS ............................................................................................. 69 

5.5.P OVERHEAD EXTENSIONS ................................................................................................................ 69 

5.5.Q UNDERGROUND EXTENSIONS ....................................................................................................... 70 

5.5.R STANDARD FACILITY EXTENSION:  EXTENSIONS CALCULATION OF CIAC FOR 
UNDERGROUND STANDARD FACILITY EXTENSIONS BEYOND STANDARD ALLOWANCE ......... 70 

5.5.S CALCULATION OF CIAC FOR OVERHEAD STANDARD FACILITY EXTENSIONS BEYOND 
300’ ALLOWANCE ............................................................................................................................................ 70 

5.5.T CUSTOMER REQUESTED FACILITY UPGRADES ........................................................................ 70 

5.5.U UNUSED STANDARD ALLOWANCE .............................................................................................. 70 

5.5.V NON-STANDARD FACILITY DELIVERY SYSTEM EXTENSIONS .............................................. 70 

5.5.W TEMPORARY DELIVERY SYSTEM FACILITIES ....................................................................... 71 

5.5.X REMOVAL AND RELOCATION OF LP&L'S FACILITIES .............................................................. 71 

5.5.Y BILLING AND REMITTANCE ........................................................................................................... 71 

APPENDIX A ...................................................................................................................................................... 72 

 

  



 

Page | 6 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

1 CHAPTER 1: DEFINITIONS 

 
The following definitions apply to the Access Tariff of City of Lubbock, by and through Lubbock Power & Light 
(LP&L) and to any Access Agreements made under the Access Tariff, unless specifically defined otherwise therein. 

 
ACCESS. The ability of a Competitive Retailer to deliver electric energy to Retail Customers at the Point of Supply. 

 
ACCESS AGREEMENT. The Access Agreement set forth in this Access Tariff that must be executed by LP&L and 
Competitive Retailer before the Competitive Retailer can deliver Electric Power and Energy to LP&L’s Delivery 
System and provide Electric Power and Energy to Retail Customers connected to LP&L’s Delivery System. 

 
ACCESS TARIFF. The document filed with and approved, except for Chapters 2 and 5, by the PUC pursuant to 
which LP&L provides Access to Competitive Retailers. It is comprised of Rate Schedules, Access rules and 
regulations. The Access rules and regulations include definitions, terms and conditions, policies, and Access 
Agreements. 

 
ACTUAL METER READING. A Meter Reading whereby LP&L has collected information from the Meter either 
manually or through a direct reading, through telemetry, or other electronic communications. 

 
APPLICABLE LEGAL AUTHORITIES. A Texas or federal law, rule, regulation or ruling of the Commission or 
any other regulatory authority having jurisdiction, an order of a court of competent jurisdiction, or a rule, regulation, 
ruling, procedure, protocol, guide, or guideline of ERCOT, the Independent Organization, or any entity authorized by 
the Independent Organization to perform registration or settlement functions. 

 
BANKING HOLIDAY. Any day on which the bank designated by LP&L as the repository for payment of funds due 
to LP&L under this Access Tariff is not open for business. 
 
BILLING DEMAND.  Demand used for billing purposes as stated in the applicable Rate Schedule or Rider. 
 
BILLING DETERMINANTS.  Measured, calculated, or specified values used to determine LP&L’s Delivery 
Charges that can be transmitted to the Competitive Retailer on an approved TX SET electronic transaction.  These 
values may include, but are not limited to, measurements of kilowatt-hours (kWh), actual monthly Non-coincident 
Peak (NCP) Demand, annual NCP Demand, annual 4-CP Demand (coincident peak for four summer months), Billing 
Demand, Power Factor, fixed charges, number of lamps, Rate Schedules, and rate subclass. 
 
BUSINESS DAY. Any day on which LP&L’s corporate offices are open for business in accordance with Section 
3.18, HOURS OF OPERATION. 
 
CENTRAL PREVAILING TIME. As established by national time standards, either Central Standard Time or 
Central Day-Light time. 
 
CODES. Federal, state, or local laws, or other rules or regulations governing electrical installations. 
 
COMMISSION, PUC or PUCT. The Public Utility Commission of Texas. 
 
COMPETITIVE RETAILER. A Retail Electric Provider, POLR or a Municipally Owned Utility or Electric 
Cooperative that offers customer choice in the competitive electric power market and is selling Electric Power and 
Energy or any other entity authorized to provide Electric Power and Energy in Texas. 
 
CONSTRUCTION SERVICE. Services related to the construction, extension, installation, modification, repair, 
upgrade, conversion, relocation, or removal of LP&L’s Delivery System facilities, including temporary facilities.  
 
CONSTRUCTION SERVICE CHARGE. Charges imposed to recover costs associated with Construction Services.  
 
DELIVERY. The movement of Electric Power and Energy through LP&L’s electric lines and other equipment, 



 

Page | 7 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

including transformers, from the Point of Supply to the Point of Delivery. 
 
DELIVERY SERVICE. A service performed by LP&L for Retail Customers to effect the Delivery of Electric Power 
and Energy from the Point of Supply where it enters the Delivery System of LP&L and is delivered to the Retail 
Customer to the Point of Delivery. 
 
DELIVERY SERVICE TARIFF. A document promulgated by LP&L describing the rates, terms and conditions of 
Delivery Service to Retail Customers, which may include LP&L’s Facility Extension Policy and Construction 
Services, and applicable charges regarding same. 
 
DELIVERY SYSTEM. LP&L’s electric lines, meters and other equipment, including transformers used in the 
Delivery of Electric Power and Energy. 
 
DEMAND. The rate at which electric energy is used at any instant or averaged over any designated period of time 
and which is measured kW or kVA. 
 
DISCRETIONARY SERVICES. Customer specific services as outlined in the Rate Schedule, Chapter 5 of this 
Tariff. 
 
ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE. An electric cooperative as defined in PURA §11.003(9). 
 
ELECTRIC POWER AND ENERGY. The kWh, the rate of delivery of kWh, and ancillary services related to kWh 
that a Competitive Retailer provides to Retail Customers. 
 
ELECTRIC SERVICE IDENTIFIER or ESI ID. The basic identifier assigned to each Point of Delivery used in 
the registration system and settlement system managed by ERCOT or another Independent Organization. 
 
ELECTRIC RELIABILITY COUNCIL OF TEXAS (ERCOT). The Electric Reliability Council of Texas, Inc. as 
defined in P.U.C. SUBST. R. 25.5, Definitions. 
 
ESTIMATED METER READING. The process by which the majority of Billing Determinants are estimated when 
an Actual Meter Reading is not obtained. 
 
FACILITY EXTENSION POLICY. The LP&L policy that covers such activities as extensions of standard facilities, 
extensions of non-standard facilities, extensions of facilities in excess of facilities normally provided for the requested 
type of Delivery Service, upgrades of facilities, electric connections for temporary services, and relocation of facilities.  
 
FIELD OPERATIONAL DAY. Any day but Sunday, or a holiday designated in or pursuant to HOURS OF 
OPERATION.  
 
FIRST AVAILABLE SWITCH DATE (FASD). As defined in ERCOT Nodal Protocols Section 15, CUSTOMER. 
 
GOOD UTILITY PRACTICE. This term will have the meaning ascribed thereto in P.U.C. SUBST. R. 25.5, 
Definitions, or its successor. 
 
INTERVAL DATA. Meter data that reports electricity usage in 15-minute intervals.  
 

INDEPENDENT ORGANIZATION. The organization authorized to perform the functions prescribed by PURA 
§39.151. 
 
KILOVOLT AMPERES or kVA. 1000 volt-amperes. 
 
KILOWATT-HOUR or kWh. 1000 watt-hours. 

 
METER. A device, or devices, together with any required auxiliary equipment, for measuring the amount of Electric 



 

Page | 8 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

Power and Energy delivered. 
 

METER DATA. The data contained within, or generated by, the Meter that is used by LP&L to calculate charges for 
service pursuant to this Tariff. This term includes Interval Data, if available. 
 
METERING EQUIPMENT. Required auxiliary equipment that is owned by LP&L and used with the Meter to 
accurately measure the amount of Electric Power and Energy delivered. Metering equipment under this definition 
does not include communication, storage, and equipment necessary for customer access to data. 

 
METER READING or METER READ. The process whereby LP&L collects the information recorded by a Meter. 
Such reading may be obtained manually, through telemetry or other electronic communications, or by estimation, 
calculation or conversion in accordance with the procedures and practices authorized under this Tariff.  
 
METER READING SCHEDULE. No later than December 15 of each calendar year, LP&L must post its schedule 
for reading each Meter on its website so that Competitive Retailers and Retail Customers may access it. LP&L must 
notify Competitive Retailer of any changes to this schedule 60 days prior to the proposed change. LP&L is responsible 
for reading the Meter within two Business Days of the date posted in this schedule.  
 
MUNICIPALLY OWNED UTILITY. A utility owned, operated, and controlled by a municipality or by a nonprofit 
corporation the directors of which are appointed by one or more municipalities and includes any chilled water program 
operated by the utility, as defined in PURA §11.003(11)) Definitions. 
 
NON-BUSINESS DAY. Any day that LP&L’s business offices are not open for business, in accordance with Chapter 
5. 
 
POINT OF DELIVERY. As determined by LP&L, the point where the Electric Power and Energy leaves LP&L’s 
Delivery System and is delivered to a customer.   
 
POINT OF SUPPLY. The point where the Electric Power and Energy enters LP&L’s Delivery System. 

 
POWER FACTOR. The ratio of real power, measured in kW, to apparent power, measured in kVA, for any given 
load and time, generally expressed as a percentage. 
 
PREMISES. A tract of land or real estate or related commonly used tracts, including buildings and other 
appurtenances thereon. 
 
PROVIDER OF LAST RESORT or POLR. A REP certified in Texas that has been designated by the Commission 
to provide a basic, standard retail service package to requesting or default customers or an entity selected by a 
municipally owned utility or electric cooperative to act as a provider of last resort. 
 
PURA. Public Utility Regulatory Act, Texas Utilities Code, Title II. 
 
RATE SCHEDULE. A statement of the method of determining charges for Delivery Service, including the conditions 
under which such charges and method apply, as outlined in Chapter 5. As used in this Tariff, the term Rate Schedule 
includes all applicable riders. 
 
REGISTRATION AGENT. Entity designated by the Commission to administer settlement and Premises data and 
other processes concerning a Retail Customer’s choice of a Competitive Retailer in the competitive retail electric 
market in Texas. 
 
RETAIL CUSTOMER. An end-use customer who purchases Electric Power and Energy and ultimately consumes 
it. Whenever used in the context of Construction Services, the term Retail Customer also includes property owners, 
builders, developers, contractors, governmental entities, or any other organization, entity or individual that is not a 
Competitive Retailer making a request for such services to LP&L. 
 
RETAIL CUSTOMER’S ELECTRICAL INSTALLATION. All conductors, equipment, or apparatus of any kind 



 

Page | 9 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

on Retail Customer’s side of the Point of Delivery, except LP&L’s Metering Equipment, used by or on behalf of Retail 
Customer in taking and consuming Electric Power and Energy delivered by LP&L. 
 
RETAIL ELECTRIC PROVIDER or REP. As defined in PURA §31.002(17)) Definitions, a person, certificated 
under PURA §39.352, that sells Electric Power and Energy to Retail Customers. 
 
SCHEDULED METER READING DATE. Date LP&L is scheduled to read the Meter according to the Meter 
Reading Schedule. 
 
SERVICE CALL. The dispatch of an LP&L representative to a Delivery Service address or other designated location 
for investigation of a complete or partial service outage, irregularity, interruption or other service-related issue. 
 
SWITCHING FEE. Any fee or charge assessed to any Retail Customer or Competitive Retailer upon switching to 
the Competitive Retailer that recovers any utility cost or expenses not already included in LP&L’s Delivery Charges 
included in Chapter 5 of this Tariff. 
 
TAMPER OR TAMPERING. Any unauthorized alteration, manipulation, change, modification, or diversion of 
LP&L’s facilities, including Metering Equipment, that could adversely affect the integrity of billing data or LP&L’s 
ability to collect the data needed for billing or settlement. Tampering includes, but is not limited to, harming or 
defacing LP&L’s facilities, physically or electronically disorienting the Meter, attaching objects to the Meter, inserting 
objects into the Meter, or other electrical or mechanical means of altering billing and settlement data or other electrical 
or mechanical means of altering Delivery Service. 
 
TARIFF. A document describing rates, terms and conditions of electric service. 
 
TEXAS SET, TX SET OR SET. A Standard Electronic Transaction as defined by the protocols adopted by the 
Commission or the Independent Organization. 
 
TRANSITION CHARGES.  Charges reasonably designed to recover the stranded investment over an appropriate 
period of time, and as authorized by Utilities Code Chapter 40 or 41, as applicable. 

 
UNMETERED SERVICE. Delivery Service to Premises without a Meter.  
 
UTILITY’S DELIVERY SYSTEM. The portion of the Delivery System that is owned by LP&L.  
 
VALID INVOICE. An invoice transaction that contains all the information required by TX SET and is in compliance 
with TX SET standards as set forth in the TX SET Implementation Guides and Commission Rules and has not been 
rejected in accordance with the TX SET Implementation Guides and Commission Rules 
 

  



 

Page | 10 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

2 CHAPTER 2: DESCRIPTIONS OF LP&L’S CERTIFICATED SERVICE AREA 

2.1 CITY OF LUBBOCK, BY AND THROUGH LUBBOCK POWER & LIGHT  

The City of Lubbock, Texas (City) is a political subdivision and municipal corporation of the State, duly organized 
and existing under the laws of the State, including the City’s Home Rule Charter. The City was incorporated in 
1909 and first adopted its Home Rule Charter in 1917. The City operates under a Council/Manager form of 
government with a City Council comprised of the Mayor and six Council members. The City provides a full range 
of services including electric service.  The City’s municipally owned electric utility system, known as Lubbock 
Power & Light (LP&L), was established in 1916, and is at present the largest municipal electric system in the 
West Texas region and the third largest municipal system in the State of Texas. LP&L, South Plains Electric 
Cooperative, and Southwestern Public Service Company (SPS) provide electric service in the City of Lubbock.  
 
On November 2, 2004, Lubbock voters elected to amend the City Charter to provide for an Electric Utility Board 
(EUB), which governs, manages, and operates LP&L today. The City Council retains authority for appointment 
of board members, approval of the operating and capital budget, approval of rates for electric service, eminent 
domain, and approval of debt financing. 
 
On February 22, 2022, Lubbock’s City Council, with the Electric Utility Board’s recommendation, approved an 
irrevocable resolution opting into competition for retail electric service in Lubbock Power & Light’s certificated 
area, as provided by Texas Utilities Code Chapter 40. 
 
LP&L owns, maintains and operates; (1) 345, 115 and 69 kilovolt (kV) transmission lines and substations, (2) 4, 
15 and 23 kilovolt (kV) distribution lines and substations, and (3) over 107,000 electric meters.  The Public Utility 
Commission Texas (PUCT) first issued LP&L a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity in Docket Number 42 
in 1976. 
 
LP&L operates as the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light (LP&L) with the PUCT 
as LUBBOCK POWER & LIGHT SYSTEM and with the Electric Reliability Council of Texas as the City of 
Lubbock, by and through Lubbock Power & Light as a Transmission and Distribution Service Provider (TDSP).  

 
 

  



 

Page | 11 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

2.2 MAP OF SERVICE AREA 
 

 
 

  



 

Page | 12 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

3 CHAPTER 3: GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF ACCESS  

3.1 APPLICABILITY 

This Access Tariff governs the terms and conditions of the provision of Access by LP&L to Competitive Retailers 
to the Delivery System of LP&L for the purpose of selling Electric Power and Energy to Retail Customers within 
the retail service area of LP&L who are connected to the Delivery System of LP&L. The provisions of this Access 
Tariff will uniformly apply to all Competitive Retailers. Terms and Conditions for the Delivery of Electric Power 
and Energy to Retail Customers are set out in a separate Delivery Service Tariff. LP&L provides Delivery Service 
directly to Retail Customers at their respective Points of Delivery in conjunction with the provision of Access.   

3.2 GENERAL 

Utility will construct, own, operate, and maintain its Delivery System in accordance with Good Utility Practice 
for the Delivery of Electric Power and Energy to Retail Customers that are located within LP&L’s service territory 
and served by Competitive Retailers. LP&L has no ownership interest in any Electric Power and Energy it delivers 
to Retail Customers that purchase electric energy from third-party Competitive Retailers. LP&L will provide to 
all Competitive Retailers access to the Delivery System pursuant to this Tariff (and LP&L’s Delivery Service 
Tariff, if applicable), which Tariff(s) establishes the rates, terms and conditions and policies for such Access and 
Delivery Service. LP&L must provide access to the Delivery System on a nondiscriminatory basis to all 
Competitive Retailers and must provide Delivery Service on a nondiscriminatory basis to all Retail Customers 
and Competitive Retailers. This Tariff is intended to provide uniform Delivery Service to all Competitive 
Retailers within LP&L’s service area. 
 
LP&L will use reasonable diligence to comply with the operational and transactional requirements and timelines 
as specified in this Tariff and to comply with the requirements set forth by Applicable Legal Authorities to 
effectuate the requirements of this tariff.   

3.3 CHARGES ASSOCIATED WITH DELIVERY SERVICE 

All charges associated with a Delivery Service provided by LP&L must be authorized by the municipal governing 
body, or a body vested with the power to manage and operate a municipally owned utility, or the board of directors 
of an electric cooperative, and are included as Tariff charges in Section 5.3, RATE SCHEDULES. 

3.4 AVAILABILITY OF TARIFF 

Copies of this Access Tariff are available in standard electronic format on the website of the Commission and on 
the website of LP&L. LP&L must post on its website a copy of its Delivery Service Tariff. 

3.5 CHANGES TO ACCESS TARIFF 

This Access Tariff may be revised, amended, supplemented, or otherwise changed from time to time in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas and the rules and regulations of the PUC, and such changes, when 
effective, will have the same force and effect as the present Access Tariff. LP&L retains the right to file a petition 
for rulemaking, requesting a change in Chapters 1, 3, and 4 of its Access Tariff and will comply with all laws and 
rules concerning the provision of notice concerning any such application. LP&L must file accurate and current 
rates for Access in Chapter 5. If an Access rate is altered, LP&L is responsible for providing the current rate 
information in a timely manner. Any agreement made pursuant to this Access Tariff will be deemed to be modified 
to conform to any changes in this Access Tariff as of the date of the effectiveness of such change. No agent, 
officer, director, employee, or representative of LP&L has authority to modify the provisions of this Access Tariff 
or to bind LP&L by any promise or representation contrary to the terms of this Access Tariff except as expressly 
permitted by the PUC. For changes in Chapters 2 and 5, LP&L’s governing body or a body vested with the power 
to manage and operate the utility must authorize the change. In the event that LP&L determines it necessary to 
change its application of an existing Tariff provision under Chapter 5 of this Tariff, LP&L must notify the 



 

Page | 13 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

designated contact of all Competitive Retailers certified to serve customers in its service territory at least 45 
Business Days in advance of any proposed change in application of an existing Tariff provision taking effect. 

3.6 NON-DISCRIMINATION 

LP&L will discharge its responsibilities under this Access Tariff in a non-discriminatory manner not favoring or 
burdening any particular Competitive Retailer. LP&L will not discriminate against non-affiliated Competitive 
Retailers or their Retail Customers in the provision of Delivery Services that affect Competitive Retailer’s’ Access 
to LP&L’s Delivery System or Retail Customers. LP&L must process requests for Delivery Services in a non-
discriminatory manner without regard to the affiliation of a Competitive Retailer or its Retail Customers, and 
consistent with Applicable Legal Authorities. 

3.7 FORM AND TIMING OF NOTICE 

A notice, demand or request required or authorized under this Access Tariff to be given by any party to any other 
party must be in writing or conveyed electronically, as specified in the section of this Access Tariff requiring such 
notice. Electronic notice must be given in accordance with the appropriate TX SET protocol, if a TX SET 
transaction exists. If a TX SET transaction does not exist, electronic notice must be provided to the authorized 
representative for the Competitive Retailer in accordance with Section 3.9. Written notice must either be 
personally delivered, transmitted by telecopy or facsimile equipment (with receipt confirmed), sent by overnight 
courier or mailed, by certified mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, to the other party. Any such notice, 
demand or request so delivered or mailed will be deemed to be given when so delivered or three days after mailed, 
unless the party asserting that such notice was provided is unable to show evidence of its delivery.  

3.8 DESIGNATION OF LP&L CONTACT PERSONS FOR MATTERS RELATING TO 
ACCESS 

LP&L will designate a person(s), either by name or title, who will serve as LP&L’s contact for all matters relating 
to Access provided to Competitive Retailers and post such information along with the names, telephone numbers, 
mailing addresses and electronic mail addresses for its Access contact person(s) on its Internet website. LP&L 
may change its designation by providing notice to the Commission and those Competitive Retailers with Access 
and by updating such information on LP&L’s Internet website. 

3.9 INVOICING TO STATE AGENCIES 

Notwithstanding any provisions in this Access Tariff with respect to when invoices become past due and imposing 
an increased amount if invoices are not paid within a specified time, all invoices rendered directly to a “State 
Agency,” as that term is defined in Government Code Chapter 2251, will be due and will bear interest if overdue 
as provided in Chapter 2251. 

3.10 GOVERNING LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

Notwithstanding any provisions in this Access Tariff with respect to when invoices become past due and imposing 
an increased amount if invoices are not paid within a specified time, all invoices rendered directly to a “State 
Agency,” as that term is defined in Government Code Chapter 2251, will be due and will bear interest if overdue 
as provided in Chapter 2251. 

3.11 GOOD FAITH OBLIGATION 

LP&L and Competitive Retailer will use reasonable efforts to cooperate in good faith to fulfill all duties, 
obligations, and rights set forth in this Access Tariff. LP&L and Competitive Retailer will negotiate in good faith 
concerning the details of carrying out their duties, obligations, and rights set forth in this Access Tariff. 

 



 

Page | 14 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

3.12 COOPERATION IN EMERGENCIES 

LP&L and Competitive Retailer must cooperate with each other, the Independent Organization and any other 
affected entities in the event of an emergency condition affecting the delivery of Electric Power and Energy or 
the safety and security of persons and property. 

3.13 HEADINGS 

The descriptive headings of the various sections of this Access Tariff have been inserted for convenience of 
reference only and will in no way define, modify, or restrict any of the terms and provisions hereof. 

3.14 TAX EXEMPT STATUS 

Nothing in this Tariff may impair LP&L’s tax exempt status, nor will anything in this Tariff compel LP&L to use 
its Delivery System in a manner that violates any contractual provisions, bond covenants, or other restrictions 
applicable to facilities financed by tax exempt debt. If LP&L believes that its tax exempt status is threatened it 
must notify the Commission. 

3.15 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Tariff will inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, LP&L, Competitive Retailer, and Retail Customer 
and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

3.16 EXERCISE OF RIGHT TO CONSENT 

LP&L, Competitive Retailer, or Retail Customer must not unreasonably withhold, condition, or delay giving any 
consent required for another party to exercise rights conferred under this Tariff that are made subject to that 
consent. LP&L, Competitive Retailer, or Retail Customer further must not unreasonably withhold, condition, or 
delay their performance of any obligation or duty imposed under this Tariff. 

3.17 WAIVERS 

The failure of LP&L, Competitive Retailer, or Retail Customer to insist in any one or more instances upon strict 
performance of any of the provisions of this Tariff, or to take advantage of any of its rights under this Tariff, must 
not be construed as a general waiver of any such provision or the relinquishment of any such right, but the same 
must continue and remain in full force and effect, except with respect to the particular instance or instances. 

3.18 HOURS OF OPERATION  

LP&L hours of Operation and Holidays are contained in Chapter 5.  
 
  



 

Page | 15 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

4 CHAPTER 4: SERVICE RULES AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO ACCESS TO 
DELIVERY SYSTEM OF LP&L BY COMPETITIVE RETAILERS 

4.1 GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS 

4.1.A APPLICABILITY OF CHAPTER 

This Chapter governs the terms and conditions of Access by Competitive Retailers to the Delivery System 
of LP&L, whether the Competitive Retailer has entered into an Access Agreement or not. This Chapter also 
applies to Access by Competitive Retailers to the Delivery System of LP&L unlawfully or pursuant to 
unauthorized use. The provisions of this Chapter will uniformly apply to all Competitive Retailers receiving 
Access from LP&L. 

4.1.B REQUIRED NOTICE 

Notice to Competitive Retailer and LP&L provided under Section 3.7, FORM AND TIMING OF NOTICE, 
must be provided to the addresses specified in the Access Agreement. 

4.2 LIMITS ON LIABILITY 

4.2.A LIABILITY BETWEEN LP&L AND COMPETITIVE RETAILERS 

This Access Tariff is not intended to limit the liability of LP&L or Competitive Retailer for damages except 
as expressly provided in this Access Tariff. 
 
LP&L WILL MAKE REASONABLE PROVISIONS TO SUPPLY STEADY AND CONTINUOUS 
ACCESS AND DELIVERY SERVICE TO COMPETITIVE RETAILER AND RETAIL 
CUSTOMERS, RESPECTIVELY, BUT DOES NOT GUARANTEE ACCESS OR DELIVERY 
SERVICE AGAINST FLUCTUATIONS OR INTERRUPTIONS (WHETHER AS A RESULT OF 
NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE). LP&L WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES, 
WHETHER DIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOSS OF 
PROFITS, LOSS OF REVENUE, OR LOSS OF PRODUCTION CAPACITY, OCCASIONED BY 
FLUCTUATIONS OR INTERRUPTIONS UNLESS IT BE SHOWN THAT LP&L HAS NOT MADE 
REASONABLE PROVISION TO SUPPLY STEADY AND CONTINUOUS ACCESS AND 
DELIVERY SERVICE, CONSISTENT WITH THE RETAIL CUSTOMER’S CLASS OF SERVICE, 
AND IN THE EVENT OF A FAILURE TO MAKE SUCH REASONABLE PROVISIONS, 
WHETHER AS A RESULT OF NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE, LP&L’S LIABILITY WILL BE 
LIMITED TO THE COST OF NECESSARY REPAIRS OF PHYSICAL DAMAGE PROXIMATELY 
CAUSED BY THE SERVICE FAILURE TO THOSE ELECTRICAL DELIVERY FACILITIES OF 
RETAIL CUSTOMER WHICH WERE THEN EQUIPPED WITH THE PROTECTIVE 
SAFEGUARDS RECOMMENDED OR REQUIRED BY THE THEN CURRENT EDITION OF THE 
NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE.  LP&L WILL MAKE REASONABLE PROVISIONS TO 
PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION SERVICE, BUT DOES NOT GUARANTEE THE TIMELINESS OF 
INITIATING OR COMPLETING SUCH CONSTRUCTION SERVICE NOR THE SUITABILITY 
OF SUCH FACILITIES FOR RETAIL CUSTOMER’S SPECIFIC USES. LP&L WILL NOT BE 
LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES, WHETHER DIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL, INCLUDING, 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOSS OF PROFITS, LOSS OF REVENUE, OR LOSS OF 
PRODUCTION CAPACITY, OCCASIONED BY THE FAILURE TO PROVIDE TIMELY OR 
SUITABLE CONSTRUCTION SERVICE.  THE TERM “CONSTRUCTION SERVICE” AS USED 
IN THIS PARAGRAPH INCLUDES ANY AND ALL SERVICES THAT (A) ARE PROVIDED, (B) 
FAIL TO BE PROVIDED, OR (C) FAIL TO BE TIMELY PROVIDED BY LP&L, FROM THE 
TIME RETAIL CUSTOMER FIRST CONTACTS LP&L WITH RESPECT TO THE PROVISION 
OF ANY TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION OR DELIVERY SERVICE. 
 



 

Page | 16 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

However, if damages result from failure to provide timely or suitable Construction Service or fluctuations or 
interruptions in Access or Delivery Service that are caused by LP&L’s or Competitive Retailer’s gross 
negligence, or intentional misconduct, this Access Tariff will not preclude recovery of appropriate damages 
when legally due.  Nothing herein will prevent LP&L from being liable if found to be grossly negligent or to 
have committed intentional misconduct with respect to its exercise of its authority in this Tariff. 

4.2.B LIMITATION OF DUTY AND LIABILITY OF COMPETITIVE RETAILER 

Competitive Retailer has no ownership, right of control, or duty to LP&L, Retail Customer or other third 
party, regarding the design, construction, or operation of LP&L’s Delivery System. Competitive Retailer will 
not be liable to any person or entity for any damages, direct, indirect or consequential, including, but without 
limitation, loss of business, loss of profits or revenue, or loss of production capacity, occasioned by any 
fluctuations or interruptions of Delivery Service caused, in whole or in part, by the design, construction or 
operation of LP&L’s Delivery System. 

4.2.C DUTY TO AVOID OR MITIGATE DAMAGES 

LP&L and Competitive Retailer will use reasonable efforts to avoid or mitigate its damages or losses suffered 
as a result of the other’s culpable behavior, under Section 4.2.A, LIABILITY BETWEEN LP&L AND 
COMPETITIVE RETAILERS. 

4.2.D FORCE MAJEURE 

NEITHER LP&L NOR COMPETITIVE RETAILER WILL BE LIABLE IN DAMAGES FOR ANY 
ACT OR EVENT THAT IS BEYOND SUCH PARTY’S CONTROL AND WHICH COULD NOT BE 
REASONABLY ANTICIPATED AND PREVENTED THROUGH THE USE OF REASONABLE 
MEASURES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, AN ACT OF GOD, EXTREME WEATHER, 
ERCOT GRID INTERRUPTIONS, ACT OF THE PUBLIC ENEMY, WAR, INSURRECTION, 
RIOT, FIRE, EXPLOSION, LABOR DISTURBANCE OR STRIKE, WILDLIFE, UNAVOIDABLE 
ACCIDENT, EQUIPMENT OR MATERIAL SHORTAGE, PANDEMIC OR EPIDEMIC, 
BREAKDOWN OR ACCIDENT TO MACHINERY OR EQUIPMENT, OR GOOD FAITH 
COMPLIANCE WITH A THEN VALID CURTAILMENT, ORDER, REGULATION OR 
RESTRICTION IMPOSED BY GOVERNMENTAL, MILITARY, OR LAWFULLY 
ESTABLISHED CIVILIAN AUTHORITIES, INCLUDING ANY ORDER OR DIRECTIVE OF THE 
INDEPENDENT ORGANIZATION. 

4.2.E EMERGENCIES AND NECESSARY INTERRUPTIONS 

LP&L’s tariff for Delivery Service governs LP&L’s authority to interrupt Delivery Service in the event of 
any emergency that poses a threat to LP&L’s Delivery System or for other reasons that it deems to be 
necessary, including, inspection, test, repair, or changes in LP&L’s Delivery System, or when such 
interruption will reduce or remove possible danger to life or property or will aid in the restoration of service. 
 
LP&L may curtail, reduce voltage, or interrupt Delivery Service in the event of an emergency arising 
anywhere on the Delivery System on the interconnected systems of which it is a part, when the emergency 
poses a threat to the integrity of its system or the systems to which it is directly or indirectly connected, if in 
its sole judgment, such action may prevent or alleviate the emergency condition.  LP&L may interrupt 
service, when necessary, for inspection, test, repair, or when such interruption will lessen or remove possible 
danger to life or property, or will aid in the restoration of Delivery Service. 
 
LP&L must provide advance notice to Competitive Retailer of such actions, if reasonably possible. Such 
notice may be provided by electronic notice to all certificated Competitive Retailers operating within LP&L’s 
service territory with specific identification of location, time, and expected duration of the outage. If 
reasonably possible, LP&L must provide notice to Competitive Retailer no later than one hour after the 
initiation of the curtailment, interruption, or voltage reduction that occurs due to the emergency if the 
emergency occurs during  LP&L’s normal hours of operation as defined in Section 3.18. If the emergency 



 

Page | 17 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

occurs outside LP&L’s normal hours of operation, LP&L must provide notice as soon as reasonably possible 
under the circumstances to Competitive Retailer after the initiation of the curtailment, interruption, or voltage 
reduction that occurs due to the emergency. Advance notice must also be provided, if reasonably possible, to 
those Retail Customers for whom suspension of service could create a dangerous or life-threatening 
condition.  

4.2.F LIMITATION OF WARRANTIES BY LP&L 

LP&L MAKES NO WARRANTIES WITH REGARD TO THE PROVISION OF ACCESS, 
CONSTRUCTION SERVICE OR DELIVERY SERVICE AND DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL 
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT WITHOUT LIMITATION, 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

4.2.G DUTY TO REVIEW 

LP&L has a right to rely on any notice from a Competitive Retailer requesting connection, disconnection, 
interruption, or suspension of Delivery Service to Retail Customer, and is not responsible for monitoring or 
reviewing the factual basis or appropriateness of any such notice from a Competitive Retailer requesting 
connection, disconnection, or suspension of Delivery Service to Retail Customer. 

4.3 ACCESS 

4.3.A ELIGIBILITY 

A Competitive Retailer is eligible for Access when: 
 

(1) The Competitive Retailer and LP&L have received written notice from the Independent 
Organization certifying the Competitive Retailer’s successful completion of market testing, 
including receipt of the digital certificate pursuant to Applicable Legal Authorities. Market testing 
will be conducted in accordance with a test plan as specified by Applicable Legal Authorities. LP&L 
and Competitive Retailer will use best efforts to timely complete market testing;  

(2) Competitive Retailer and LP&L execute an Access Agreement, or if, LP&L has failed to execute 
the Access Agreement upon presentment by Competitive Retailer who has signed such Access 
Agreement, Competitive Retailer will be deemed eligible for Access during an interim period by 
filing the unexecuted Access Agreement with the Commission so that it may investigate into the 
reasons for such non-execution by LP&L; and 

(3) The Competitive Retailer, is registered with the municipality in whose area the REP intends to 
provide service, if applicable, and is not in material default with the registration requirements. 

4.3.B INITIATION OF ACCESS (DELIVERY SYSTEM SERVICE CONNECTION) 

For the purposes of this section, “initiation of Access” refers to the actions taken by LP&L to allow the 
Competitive Retailer to deliver Electric Power to LP&L’s Delivery System at the Point of Supply or serve 
the Retail Customer.  LP&L may choose whether, for purposes of Discretionary Services and Construction 
Services, it will communicate through the applicable Competitive Retailer, through the Retail Customer, or 
both.  LP&L must publish on its website the process for Competitive Retailer or Retail Customer to initiate 
Construction Services or Discretionary Services. 

4.3.B.1 INITIATION OF ACCESS WHERE CONSTRUCTION SERVICES ARE NOT 
REQUIRED 

(1) The Retail Customer’s electrical installation is known to be hazardous or is of such character 
that Delivery Service cannot be provided consistent with Good Utility Practice, or interferes with 
the service of other Retail Customers, or unless a known or dangerous condition exists for as 
long as it  exists; 

 



 

Page | 18 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

(2) The Competitive Retailer is in default under this tariff; or 
 
(3) The Retail Customer is in default under LP&L’s Delivery Service Tariff. 

4.3.B.2 INITIATION OF ACCESS WHERE CONSTRUCTION SERVICES ARE 
REQUIRED 

When Construction Services are required, LP&L may determine whether it will coordinate and 
communicate regarding such Construction Services through the Competitive Retailer, or directly with 
a Retail Customer.  When a Competitive Retailer requests initiation of Access that requires 
Construction Service prior to initiation, Competitive Retailer must contact LP&L to make 
arrangements for Construction Services and for establishment of an ESI ID if one is not in existence 
for that Delivery Point. LP&L must establish a new ESI ID and will notify the Registration Agent. The 
processing of Construction Service, including the establishment of an ESI ID, if one is not in existence 
for the Point of Delivery, and notifying the Registration Agent of the new ESI ID will be governed by 
the provisions of LP&L’s applicable Tariffs. LP&L may contact the Retail Customer for verification 
of the request. LP&L must initiate Access upon completion of the Construction Service and satisfaction 
of each of the conditions specified in Section 4.3.B.1, INITIATION OF ACCESS WHERE 
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES ARE NOT REQUIRED. 

4.3.C REQUESTS FOR DISCRETIONARY SERVICES INCLUDING CONSTRUCTION 
SERVICES 

By mutual agreement of LP&L and Competitive Retailer (and noted in Appendix A), a Competitive Retailer 
may request Discretionary Services from LP&L on behalf of the Retail Customer, or the Retail Customer 
may contact LP&L directly to obtain the service.  If a Competitive Retailer requests Discretionary Services 
on behalf of the Retail Customer, such requests for Discretionary Services must include the following 
information: 
 

(1) Retail Customer contact name or Retail Customer’s authorized representative contact name; 
(2) Retail Customer or authorized representative contact phone number and email; 
(3) ESI ID, if in existence; 
(4) Service address (including City and zip code) and directions to location, as needed; 
(5) Project name, if in existence; 
(6) Discretionary Services and/or Construction Services requested; and 
(7) Date requested for LP&L to perform Discretionary Services and/or Construction Services. 

 
LP&L may contact the Retail Customer for verification of the request. Provision of the Discretionary Services 
requested will be in accordance with LP&L’s Delivery Service Tariff. 
 
To the extent LP&L chooses to communicate with the Competitive Retailer for Construction Services or 
Discretionary Services, LP&L will acknowledge receipt of Competitive Retailer’s electronic service request 
and will notify the Competitive Retailer upon completion of the Discretionary Service Request. Such 
notification must include the date when the service was completed in the field. LP&L may also notify the 
Competitive Retailer and the Retail Customer of the estimated completion date of the discretionary services 
request. 

4.3.D CHANGING OF DESIGNATED COMPETITIVE RETAILER 

LP&L must change a Retail Customer’s designated Competitive Retailer upon receiving proper notification 
from the Registration Agent, in accordance with LP&L’s customer protection rules and the protocols 
developed by the Independent Organization, unless the new Competitive Retailer is in default under this 
Access Tariff. Competitive Retailer may request a Meter Reading for the purpose of a self-selected switch 
subject to charges and timeframes specified in Chapter 5. LP&L will honor the requested switch date 
contained in the TX SET transaction in accordance with Applicable Legal Authorities to the extent that LP&L 
has received the request within the timeframes established in Applicable Legal Authorities. LP&L will 



 

Page | 19 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

release proprietary customer information to the designated Competitive Retailer in a manner prescribed by 
the Applicable Legal Authorities. 

4.3.E SWITCHING FEE 

LP&L will not charge Competitive Retailer for a change of designation of a Retail Customer’s Competitive 
Retailer. 

4.3.F IDENTIFICATION OF THE PREMISES AND SELECTION OF RATE SCHEDULES 

The establishment, assignment, and maintenance of ESI IDs will be as determined by Applicable Legal 
Authorities. In addition, LP&L will:  
 

(1) Assign a unique ESI ID for each Point of Delivery, or in the case of non-Metered load, a unique ESI 
ID to each Premises, in accordance with Applicable Legal Authorities;  

(2) Establish separate and distinct ESI IDs for temporary and permanent service. The temporary ESI ID 
will be retired after all market transactions associated with the temporary ESI ID have been 
completed. If the temporary Meter has been used for the same Premises for which the permanent 
Meter will be used, the same ESI ID may be used for temporary and permanent service; 

(3) Identify, assign, and maintain ESI IDs with the appropriate load profile, Meter Reading cycle, and 
other information necessary for accurate settlement of the wholesale market, unless such functions 
are undertaken by the Independent Organization; 

(4) Notify the Competitive Retailer and Independent Organization, using the appropriate TX SET 
transaction, of revisions in the assignment of a Rate Schedule; and  

(5) Maintain accurate United States Postal Service compliant services addresses, when available, to 
comply with Applicable Legal Authorities. When there are two or more ESI IDs for the same service 
address, the service address will include information to distinguish between the Points of Delivery 
at the service address.  

 
The Rate Schedules included in this Tariff state the conditions under which LP&L’s Delivery Services are 
available and the applicable rates for each Delivery Service. For service to a new Retail Customer at an 
existing Premises, LP&L will bill actual Demand of the existing Retail Customer, subject to provisions in 
LP&L’s Delivery Service Tariff, Chapter 5 herein, and Applicable Legal Authorities. 

4.3.G PROVISION OF DATA BY COMPETITIVE RETAILER TO LP&L 

Competitive Retailer will timely supply to LP&L all data, materials, or other information specified in this 
Access Tariff, including current customer names, telephone number, and mailing address in connection with 
LP&L’s provision of Access to Competitive Retailer for that Retail Customer, if required. Such information 
will be used only for LP&L operations and will be subject to the provisions P.U.C. SUBST. R. 25.275, Code 
of Conduct for Municipally Owned Utilities and Electric Cooperatives Engaged in Competitive Activities, if 
applicable. 

4.3.H SUSPENSION OF ACCESS 

4.3.H.1 SUSPENSIONS WITHOUT PRIOR NOTICE FOR EMERGENCIES OR 
NECESSARY INTERRUPTIONS 

LP&L may without prior notice intentionally suspend Access to a Competitive Retailer in connection 
with suspending Delivery Service to the Competitive Retailer’s Retail Customer where a known or 
dangerous condition exists, for the duration of the dangerous condition, or for an emergency arising 
anywhere on LP&L’s Delivery System, which poses a threat to the Delivery System. Any suspension 
of Delivery must be done in accordance with LP&L’s Delivery Service Tariff. LP&L must notify, as 
soon as practically possible, the affected Retail Customer’s Competitive Retailer of suspensions for 
the above reason. 
 



 

Page | 20 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

Such notice may be made by electronic notice to all Competitive Retailers operating in LP&L’s service 
area with specific identification of location, time, and expected duration of outage. 
 
Competitive Retailer must convey any notice received by Retail Customer to LP&L that suspension or 
interruption of service of Retail Customer will create a dangerous or life-threatening condition on 
Retail Customer’s Premises. 
 
LP&L may also suspend Access without prior notice when such suspension is authorized by Applicable 
Legal Authorities. 
 
Nothing in this section is intended to take precedence over timely restoration of service. 

4.3.H.2 NOTICED SUSPENSION NOT RELATED TO EMERGENCIES OR NECESSARY 
INTERRUPTIONS 

If LP&L suspends Access in connection with suspending Delivery Service other than as provided for 
an emergency under Section 4.3.H.1, SUSPENSIONS WITHOUT PRIOR NOTICE FOR 
EMERGENCIES OR NECESSARY INTERRUPTIONS, LP&L must provide electronic notice of the 
suspension of Access, specifically identifying the location, time, cause, and expected duration of the 
suspension. 
 
LP&L must perform all suspensions or disconnects in accordance with its Delivery Service Tariff. 
 
LP&L may suspend Access in connection with suspending Delivery Service in accordance with 
LP&L’s Delivery Service Tariff: 
 
(1) In the event of unauthorized use, unauthorized connection or reconnection, or diversion of service 

or Tampering with LP&L’s Meter or equipment or bypassing same; 
(2) In the event of Retail Customer’s violation of the provisions of LP&L’s Delivery Service Tariff in 

a manner which interferes with the Delivery Service of others or the operation of nonstandard 
equipment, or as otherwise specified by written agreement, and a reasonable opportunity has been 
provided to remedy the situation; 

(3) Upon Retail Customer’s failure to comply with the terms of any written agreement made between 
LP&L and Retail Customer, upon default of Retail Customer under such an agreement, or upon 
failure to pay any charges billed by LP&L directly to Retail Customer after a reasonable 
opportunity has been provided to remedy the failure; 

(4) For Retail Customer’s failure to provide LP&L with reasonable access to LP&L’s facilities located 
on Retail Customer’s Premises after a reasonable notice has been provided of the need for access 
to the facilities; or 

(5) Upon LP&L’s receipt of a notice requiring such action, in the form and from the party specified 
by Applicable Legal Authorities. LP&L will not be responsible for monitoring or reviewing the 
appropriateness of any such notice. 

 
LP&L must provide electronic notice of the suspension of Access, specifically identifying the time, 
cause, and expected duration of the suspension. 

4.3.I RESTORATION OF ACCESS 

LP&L will restore Access to the Competitive Retailer as soon as possible following the alleviation or 
correction of the conditions that cause a suspension or disconnection, consistent with LP&L’s Delivery 
Service Tariffs, and provide notice of restoration of Access as soon as practically possible. 



 

Page | 21 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

4.3.J DISCONNECTION OF SERVICE REQUESTED BY COMPETITIVE RETAILER TO 
RETAIL CUSTOMER’S FACILITIES 

At the request of Competitive Retailer, for Retail Customer related construction, alteration, or other 
temporary clearance requirement, and in accordance with LP&L’s Delivery Service Tariff, LP&L must 
disconnect Retail Customer’s facilities on the date requested by Competitive Retailer, provided such request 
is made at least three Business Days prior to the requested date for disconnection. 
 
In the event Competitive Retailer no longer desires to provide Electric Power and Energy Access to a Retail 
Customer at the Retail Customer’s Premises, Competitive Retailer must notify the Registration agent of the 
date the Competitive Retailer desires LP&L to discontinue Access to a particular Point of Delivery.  
Competitive Retailer may request disconnection for non-payment by Retail Customer as authorized by the 
commission’s Customer Protection Rules except when the Competitive Retailer is the affiliate of  LP&L, in 
which case LP&L’s customer protection rules apply.  LP&L must disconnect and reconnect Retail 
Customer’s Premises upon receipt of request for disconnection or reconnection by a Competitive Retailer 
authorized to do so. 
Only personnel authorized by LP&L are permitted to make, energize, or de-energize connections between 
LP&L’s facilities and Retail Customer’s Electrical Installation. 
 
LP&L will not be responsible for monitoring or reviewing the appropriateness of any notice from a 
Competitive Retailer requesting suspension, connection, or disconnection of Delivery Service to Retail 
Customer. 

4.3.K EXTREME WEATHER 

When LP&L discontinues performing disconnections for non-payment due to an extreme weather 
emergency, LP&L must provide notice to Competitive Retailers as soon as reasonably possible in accordance 
with Section 3.7, FORM AND TIMING OF NOTICE. 

4.3.L CRITICAL CARE AND CRITICAL LOAD CUSTOMERS 

LP&L and Competitive Retailer will, by mutual consent, establish procedures to enable LP&L and 
Competitive Retailer to comply with all requirements established in Applicable Legal Authorities related to 
critical care and critical load customer designations. 
 

4.4 BILLING AND REMITTANCE 

In accordance with Applicable Legal Authorities, Retail Customer or LP&L may have the option for the Retail 
Customer to (1) receive a single bill that contains both the Delivery Service charges and the Electric Power and 
Energy charges; or (2) receive two bills, one for Delivery Service charges and one for Electric Power and Energy 
charges. In the event that the entity provided with this option fails to select either separate billing or consolidated 
billing, a consolidated bill will be provided. 
 
If a consolidated bill is to be provided, LP&L at its option may allow each Competitive Retailer to provide a 
consolidated bill to its Retail Customers. If LP&L has chosen this option, it must do so in a non-discriminatory 
manner in accordance with 4.4.C. CONSOLIDATED BILLING BY COMPETITIVE RETAILER. 
 
LP&L may bill Retail Customers directly for all services it provides to its Retail Customers. Nothing in this Tariff 
is intended to prohibit LP&L from contracting with a third party, including a Competitive Retailer, to perform 
billing services and functions on its behalf, including in the instance of separate bills, as provided above. Any 
third-party performing billing on behalf of the LP&L is subject to the billing provisions in this Tariff and billing 
responsibilities set out in the LP&L’s Tariff for Delivery Services, to the same extent as the LP&L. 



 

Page | 22 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

4.4.A CONSOLIDATED BILLING BY LP&L 

When a Retail Customer receives a consolidated bill from LP&L, LP&L may assess a fee to Competitive 
Retailer for billing services, which will cover the preparation and delivery of reports specified in this chapter. 
 
LP&L must at the Competitive Retailer’s request provide the Competitive Retailer with an electronic copy 
of the entirety of each bill containing the Competitive Retailer’s Electric Power and Energy charges within 
one Business Day of receipt of request. The LP&L, in lieu of an electronic copy of the bill may provide 
access to a database containing all billing information presented on the bill in an electronically accessible 
format. 
 
LP&L must provide to the Competitive Retailer its schedule for Meter Reading and bill due dates for the 
Competitive Retailer’s Retail Customers. This schedule will be provided yearly for the coming year. At such 
time a Competitive Retailer gains a new Retail Customer, LP&L must inform the Competitive Retailer of the 
Retail Customer’s Meter Reading dates and bill due dates for the remainder of the year. If the schedule is 
altered, LP&L must notify Competitive Retailer at least 20 days prior to the altered date. 

4.4.A.1 BILLING BY LP&L TO RETAIL CUSTOMERS FOR DELIVERY SERVICES 

Calculation of charges, transmittal of the invoices, error corrections, dispute resolution and all other 
aspects of the billing for Delivery Services by LP&L to Retail Customer will be performed in accordance 
with LP&L’s Delivery Service Tariff. 

4.4.A.2 CALCULATION AND TRANSMITTAL OF ELECTRIC POWER AND ENERGY 
CHARGES BY COMPETITIVE RETAILER 

In order for LP&L to prepare a consolidated bill for Retail Customers who receive a consolidated bill 
from LP&L for all services, Competitive Retailer will calculate charges for Electric Power and Energy 
and must transmit the charges to LP&L by means of an electronic pre-bill statement for each Retail 
Customer’s total charges within three Business Days from receipt of Meter Reading data. Electronic pre-
bill statements must be transmitted using the appropriate SET transaction and will be consistent with the 
terms and conditions of this Access Tariff. LP&L must validate or reject the pre-bill statement using the 
appropriate rejection code within 48 hours of the first Business Day following receipt. Competitive 
Retailer must correct any Competitive Retailer errors that lead to a rejection. Transactions that are neither 
validated nor rejected within 48 hours will be deemed valid. Electronic pre-bill statements transmitted 
after 5:00 P.M. Central Prevailing Time will be considered transmitted on the next Business Day. 

4.4.A.3 PRE-BILL STATEMENT CORRECTIONS 

Pre-bill statements will be subject to adjustment for errors including, but not limited to, arithmetic errors, 
computational errors, and Meter Reading errors. 

4.4.A.4 BILLING CYCLE 

Unless otherwise stated in LP&L’s Delivery Service Tariff or as provided in Section 4.8.A.3, METER 
READINGS FOR THE PURPOSE OF A SELF-SELECTED SWITCH OR TO VERIFY ACCURACY OF 
METER READING, invoiced charges will be based on a cycle of approximately one month. If LP&L decides 
to alter the billing cycle for any Retail Customer, LP&L agrees that it must notify the Retail Customer’s 
Competitive Retailer at least 30 days prior to such billing cycle change. If LP&L has not received the pre-bill 
statement from the Competitive Retailer within the time period specified in Section 4.4.A.2, CALCULATION 
AND TRANSMITTAL OF ELECTRIC POWER AND ENERGY CHARGES BY COMPETITIVE 
RETAILER, LP&L may send out its bills to Retail Customer without the Electric Power and Energy charges. 

4.4.A.5 REMITTANCE FOR UTILITY CONSOLIDATED BILLING 

4.4.A.5.1 Upon receipt of payment from Retail Customer for Electric Power and Energy 



 

Page | 23 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

service billed by LP&L on behalf of Competitive Retailer, LP&L will remit 
payment to Competitive Retailer within five Business Days of the due date of the 
Retail Customer’s bill, or if customer has paid after the due date, five days after 
LP&L has received payment. LP&L may remit payment by electronic funds 
transfer (EFT), utilizing the Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) Standard to a bank 
designated by the Competitive Retailer. LP&L may also pay by wire transfer (WT) 
or check. Payment will be considered received on the date Competitive Retailer’s 
bank receives the EFT or WT or three days from the date the check is properly 
addressed and placed in the US mail. No extension of time will be given if LP&L 
has contracted its billing or collections functions to a third party. 
 

4.4.A.5.2 On the same day LP&L remits payment, LP&L must provide a collection report to 
Competitive Retailer that includes information about amounts billed and received 
for Electric Power and Energy for each Retail Customer for which payment is 
remitted, listed by ESI ID. 

4.4.A.6 NON-PAYMENT OR PARTIAL PAYMENT BY RETAIL CUSTOMER 

LP&L will not be responsible for non-payment for Electric Power and Energy billed by LP&L to 
Retail Customers on behalf of Competitive Retailer. If LP&L receives partial payment from Retail 
Customers, LP&L will apply proceeds first to outstanding balances due to LP&L, next to the billing 
service fee specified in Section 4.4.AA, CONSOLIDATED BILLING BY LP&L, and then to 
outstanding balances for Electric Power and Energy billed to Retail Customer on behalf of 
Competitive Retailer. 

4.4.A.7 RETAIL CUSTOMER BILLING INQUIRIES 

When LP&L receives an inquiry from a Retail Customer concerning the Electric Power and Energy 
portion of the Retail Customer’s bill, LP&L will direct the Retail Customer to contact the person(s) 
designated by the Competitive Retailer to handle billing inquiries. 

4.4.B SEPARATE BILLS 

If a Retail Customer specifically elects to receive two separate bills, separate invoices will be submitted to 
the Retail Customer by LP&L,or its third party contractor, and Competitive Retailer. 

4.4.C CONSOLIDATED BILLING BY COMPETITIVE RETAILER 

If LP&L chooses to allow Competitive Retailer to prepare a consolidated bill, Competitive Retailer will act 
as a billing agent for LP&L in the processing of such bill. The income derived from any services billed by 
Competitive Retailer on LP&L’s behalf including, but not limited to Delivery Service, will be deemed to 
have come from the Retail Customer, not the Competitive Retailer. 

4.4.C.1 CALCULATION AND TRANSMITTAL OF DELIVERY SERVICE INVOICES BY 
LP&L 

Not later than three Business Days after the scheduled date of a Meter Read for a Point of Delivery, 
LP&L must transmit an electronic invoice for LP&L’s total Delivery System charges based on its 
Delivery Service Tariff associated with the Point of Delivery supplied with Electric Power and Energy 
by the Competitive Retailer. LP&L will separately identify the Delivery System charges and billing 
determinants on the electronic invoice, to the extent that the transaction allows them to be reported, 
for each Point of Delivery served by a Competitive Retailer.  LP&L must provide information on any 
Billing Determinants not provided on the electronic transaction to Competitive Retailer upon request, 
within two Business Days from the receipt of the request, and applicable fees may apply.  The start 
and end dates for the billing period contained on the invoice will match the start and end dates of the 
Meter Reading for the Premises. 



 

Page | 24 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

 
Charges for all services other than Delivery Service provided to a particular Point of Delivery, will be 
separately identified on the invoice. 
 
Electronic invoices must be transmitted using the appropriate SET transaction and be consistent with 
the terms and conditions of this Access Tariff. The Competitive Retailer must acknowledge the receipt 
of the invoice and indicate whether the transaction conformed with ANSI X12 using the appropriate 
TX SET transaction within 24 hours of the first Business Day following receipt of the invoice. If 
LP&L receives a negative acknowledgement indicating the transaction failed ANSI X12 validation, 
LP&L must correct any LP&L errors that lead to a rejection and re-issue the transaction within two 
Business Days of receipt of the negative acknowledgement.  Following a positive acknowledgement 
indicating the transaction passed ANSI X12 validation, the Competitive Retailer will have five 
Business Days to send a rejection response in accordance with the TX SET Implementation Guides 
and Commission Rules.  
 
However, if the Competitive Retailer receives an invoice relating to an ESI ID for which the 
Competitive  Retailer has sent an enrollment or move-in request but has not received a response 
transaction from ERCOT, then the Competitive Retailer must allow four Business Days to receive the 
response. If the Competitive Retailer has still not received the response transaction, the Competitive 
Retailer will not reject the invoice, but will utilize an approved market process to resolve the issue.  
 
Additionally, a Competitive Retailer will not reject an invoice, claiming it is not a Valid Invoice, 
outside the timelines specified in this subsection, or without supplying appropriate rejection reasons 
in accordance with TX SET Implementation Guides and Commission Rules. A Competitive Retailer 
may dispute a Valid Invoice under Section 4.4.D.7, INVOICE DISPUTES, but not reject it. 
Construction Service charges must be invoiced to the entity requesting such service. If Competitive  
 
Retailer has requested such a service, LP&L must include the Construction Service Charge associated 
with that service as a separately identified item on the invoice provided under Section 4.4.C.1, 
CALCULATION AND TRANSMITTAL OF DELIVERY SERVICE INVOICES BY LP&L. 
 
The income derived from Construction Service Charges will be deemed to have come from the Retail 
Customer whether the service is requested directly by the Retail Customer or indirectly through a 
Competitive Retailer. 

4.4.C.2 INVOICE CORRECTIONS 

Invoices will be subject to adjustment for errors, including, but not limited to arithmetic errors, 
computational errors, Meter inaccuracies and Meter Reading errors. LP&L will cancel and re-bill the 
original invoice that was incorrect and apply any payments made to the re-billed invoice. If it is 
determined that LP&L over-billed for Delivery charges, LP&L will make adjustment(s) associated 
with the Point of Delivery for the entire period of over-billing. If it is determined that LP&L under-
billed for Delivery charges, LP&L may not issue an invoice for under-billings for adjustments more 
than 150 days after the date the original invoice was issued or should have been issued. 
 
All invoices with estimations must be trued-up within 150 days of the estimation.  If LP&L does not 
true-up an under-billing within 150 days, LP&L may not bill for the difference it has under-billed. 
 
LP&L must render a corrected invoice within seven days of the date of resolution of the error unless 
otherwise prohibited by this section. LP&L must provide notice to an affected Competitive Retailer 
under Section 3.7, FORM AND TIMING OF NOTICE, at least one Business Day before the rendition. 
 
Disputes about invoice corrections will be governed by Section 4.9, DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
PROCEDURES. 



 

Page | 25 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

4.4.C.3 BILLING CYCLE 

Unless otherwise stated in the applicable Rate Schedule or as provided in Section 4.8.A.3, METER 
READINGS FOR THE PURPOSE OF A SELF-SELECTED SWITCH OR TO VERIFY 
ACCURACY OF METER READING, invoiced charges will be based on a cycle of approximately 
one month. 
 
The Competitive Retailer will have the right to request a one-time adjustment to a Retail Customer’s 
Meter Reading/Billing Cycle. The Competitive Retailer must select another LP&L defined Meter 
Reading schedule, if available for that account, unless the Retail Customer has remote Meter Reading 
capability, in which case the Competitive Retailer has the right to arrange for any Meter 
Reading/Billing Cycle. LP&L must notify Competitive Retailer of any permanent changes in billing 
cycle or Meter Reading Schedules. Notification must be provided in accordance with appropriate TX 
SET protocol.  LP&L’s Meter Reading Schedules will be made available on LP&L’s website for the 
next year by December 15. LP&L must provide 60 days’ notice for any changes in the Meter Reading 
Schedule. 

4.4.D REMITTANCE OF INVOICED CHARGES 

Payments for all charges except Discretionary Service Charges invoiced to Competitive Retailer will be due 
35 calendar days following LP&L transmittal of a valid invoice.  The preceding 35 calendar day payment 
provision will not apply to invoices that have been rejected using Applicable Legal Authorities.   
 
Disputed invoiced amounts will be governed by Section 4.4.D.3, INVOICE DISPUTES. Payments are due 
without regard to whether or when the Competitive Retailer receives payment from its Retail Customer(s). 
However, the income derived from Delivery Service charges is deemed to have come from the Retail 
Customer, not the Competitive Retailer. 
 
LP&L must specify the due date on the invoice, and the due date must be the 35th calendar day after the 
transmittal date of the valid invoice, unless the 35th day falls on a weekend or Banking Holiday, in which 
case the due date will be the following Business Day. Electronic invoices transmitted after 3:00 P.M. will be 
considered transmitted on the following Business Day. 
 
Competitive Retailer must pay the invoice by electronic funds transfer (EFT) utilizing the electronic data 
interchange (EDI) standard to a bank designated by LP&L. Competitive Retailer may also pay by wire 
transfer (WT) accommodated with the appropriate TX SET transaction. Payment will be considered received 
on the date LP&L’s bank receives the EFT or WT and the appropriate remittance advice is received by LP&L 
in accordance with the requirements specified by Applicable Legal Authorities. 

4.4.D.1 DELINQUENT PAYMENTS 

Payments for Delivery charges invoiced to Competitive Retailer will be considered delinquent if not 
received by 5:00 P.M. Central Prevailing Time of the due date stated on the valid invoice. Delinquent 
payments will be subject to a one-time late fee of 5.0% of the delinquent balance existing on the day 
after the due date stated on the validated invoice. Competitive Retailer will be considered in default 
only after a ten calendar day grace period has passed without the Competitive Retailer fully paying 
the delinquent balance. Upon delinquency of Competitive Retailer, LP&L must provide notice to 
Competitive Retailer stating that Competitive Retailer is delinquent and will be in default if payment 
is not received within ten calendar days. If the amount of the penalty is the sole remaining past-due 
amount after the ten calendar day grace period, the Competitive Retailer will not be considered to be 
in default unless the penalty remains unpaid for an additional 30 calendar days from receipt of the 
notice. 



 

Page | 26 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

4.4.D.2 PARTIAL PAYMENTS 

Unless the partial payment is made due to a dispute, partial payments will be applied pro-rata to all 
separately stated charges. 

4.4.D.3 INVOICE DISPUTES 

Competitive Retailer will pay all undisputed portions of an invoice within the remittance timeframes 
of Section 4.4.D, REMITTANCE OF INVOICED CHARGES, unless otherwise agreed to by LP&L 
and Competitive Retailer. Competitive Retailer may refuse to pay the disputed amount. If a 
Competitive Retailer disputes all or a portion of an invoice, the Competitive Retailer must provide 
written notice to LP&L of the dispute and must include in the notice, at a minimum, an explanation of 
the disputed portion of the invoice, the basis of the dispute, and a proposed resolution. Upon notice of 
a disputed invoice, LP&L will investigate and report the results of the investigation within ten Business 
Days. Invoice disputes will be addressed promptly, and in the event the dispute is not resolved, the 
parties must resort to the dispute resolution procedures set forth in Section 4.9, DISPUTE 
RESOLUTION PROCEDURES. If LP&L does not receive notification of a dispute within 11 months 
from the due date of the invoice in question, said invoice will be deemed conclusive and binding. 
 
Upon resolution of the dispute, the appropriate adjustments will be reflected on the first subsequent 
invoice after resolution. If the Competitive Retailer has remitted amounts found to be improperly 
invoiced, LP&L will pay interest on such amounts from the due date on the invoice at the interest rate 
set in accordance with Tex. Gov’t Code Chapter 2251, or other Applicable Legal Authority. If the 
dispute is resolved in favor of the LP&L, LP&L will not hold Competitive Retailer in default for non-
payment of the original invoice based on the original due date. The invoice will be due within one 
Business Day of resolution of the dispute. 
 
LP&L may dispute the reason for which a Competitive Retailer rejects an invoice. LP&L must provide 
written notice of the dispute to the Competitive Retailer’s designated contact and must include in the 
notice, at a minimum, an explanation of the disputed rejection, the basis of the dispute and a proposed 
resolution. 
 
Upon notice of a dispute, the responding party will investigate and respond in writing to the disputing 
party within ten Business Days of transmittal of the notice. Such response must include a proposed 
resolution. Within 20 Business Days of the response, either party may initiate the dispute resolution 
procedures set forth in Section 4.9, DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURES. If LP&L does not 
receive notification of a dispute within 11 months from the due date of the invoice in question, said 
invoice will be deemed conclusive and binding.  Upon resolution of the dispute, the appropriate 
adjustments will be reflected on the first subsequent invoice after resolution. If the Competitive 
Retailer has remitted amounts found to be improperly invoiced, LP&L will pay interest on such 
amounts from the date payment was received by LP&L until the date of refund of such amounts at the 
interest rate set in accordance with Texas Gov’t Code Chapter 2251, or other Applicable Legal 
Authority. If the Competitive Retailer has been found to have withheld amounts properly invoiced, 
Competitive Retailer will pay interest on the disputed amount from the due date on the invoice at the 
interest rate set in accordance with Texas Gov’t Code Chapter 2251, or other Applicable Legal 
Authority. If the dispute is resolved in favor of the LP&L, LP&L will not hold Competitive Retailer 
in default for non-payment of the original invoice based on the original due date. The invoice will be 
due within three Business Days of resolution of the dispute. A Competitive Retailer must not dispute 
a methodology used to estimate a Meter Reading if the estimation methodology has been approved by 
the governing body. 

4.4.D.4 RETAIL CUSTOMER BILLING INQUIRIES 

When Competitive Retailer receives an inquiry from a Retail Customer concerning the Retail 
Customer’s consolidated bill in connection with an inquiry relating to charges for Delivery Service, 
the Competitive Retailer may respond to the inquiry, forward the call to LP&L, if that option is 



 

Page | 27 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

available, or direct the Retail Customer to contact the persons designated by the LP&L to handle 
billing inquiries. 

4.4.D.5 SUCCESSOR COMPETITIVE RETAILER 

A Competitive Retailer will not be obligated to pay the delinquent balance of another Competitive 
Retailer as a condition of providing service to Retail Customers. The prior Competitive Retailer, 
however, will in no case be relieved of any previously invoiced unpaid charges including but not 
limited to late fees incurred in the use of LP&L’s Delivery System. 

4.5 SECURITY DEPOSITS AND CREDITWORTHINESS 

4.5.A DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS FOR CONSOLIDATED BILLING BY LP&L 

If consolidated billing is performed by LP&L, the Competitive Retailer will not require deposits to secure 
remittance of payments by Retail Customers for Electric Power and Energy from LP&L unless LP&L has 
defaulted under Section 4.6.B.1, DEFAULT OF LP&L RELATED TO FAILURE TO REMIT PAYMENTS 
DUE UNDER THIS TARIFF OR MAINTAIN REQUIRED SECURITY, within the past 24 months. If 
LP&L has defaulted under that section within the past 24 months, Competitive Retailer may require such 
deposit from LP&L for payments LP&L has received from Retail Customers for Electric Power and Energy 
billed under this Access Tariff. 

4.5.B DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS FOR CONSOLIDATED BILLING BY COMPETITIVE 
RETAILER 

LP&L will not require deposits for a Competitive Retailer that has not defaulted under Section 4.6.C.2, 
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES RELATED TO COMPETITIVE RETAILER’S FAILURE TO REMIT 
PAYMENT OR MAINTAIN REQUIRED SECURITY within the last 24 months. If a Competitive Retailer 
has defaulted under Section 4.6, DELINQUENCY, DEFAULT AND REMEDIES ON DEFAULT within 
the past 24 months, LP&L may require the Competitive Retailer to provide a deposit as security for payments 
of amounts billed under this Access Tariff. 

4.5.C SIZE OF DEPOSIT 

For LP&L, deposits must be equal to one-sixth of the estimated annual amount to be received from Retail 
Customers by LP&L for Electric Power and Energy supplied by Competitive Retailer. 
 
For Competitive Retailer, deposits must be equal to one-sixth of the estimated annual amount of Delivery 
Service charges to be billed under this Tariff by Competitive Retailer, on behalf of LP&L. 
 
The computation of the size of a required deposit will be mutually agreed upon by LP&L and the Competitive 
Retailer. The amount of deposit will be adjusted, if necessary, during the first month of each calendar quarter 
to ensure that the deposit accurately reflects the required amount. 

4.5.D FORM OF DEPOSIT 

Deposits under this section must be in the form of cash held by a third-party escrow, surety bond, letter of 
credit, affiliate guaranty, or any combination thereof, at the billing party’s option. The non-billing party will 
be the beneficiary of any affiliate guaranty, surety bond or letter of credit. Providers of affiliate guaranty, 
surety bonds or letters of credit must have and maintain long-term unsecured credit ratings of not less than 
“BBB-” or “Baa3” (or equivalent) from Standard and Poor’s or Moody’s Investor Service, respectively. Other 
forms of security may be mutually agreed to by LP&L and Competitive Retailer provided that terms are 
offered on a non-discriminatory basis. Within ten Business Days of the quarterly review in Section 4.5.C, 
SIZE OF DEPOSIT, the billing party will remit additional cash in escrow or replacement affiliate guaranty, 
surety bonds or letters of credit, as applicable, in the amount determined pursuant to the review. 



 

Page | 28 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

4.5.E INTEREST 

Cash deposits will accrue interest payable to the billing party. Interest accrued must be paid to the billing 
party in connection with the quarterly review under Section 4.5.C, SIZE OF DEPOSIT, if such interest causes 
the size of the deposit to exceed the required amount. The rates of interest to be paid will be in accordance 
with the Texas Utilities Code Chapter 183, or other Applicable Legal Authority. 

4.5.F HISTORICAL DEPOSIT INFORMATION 

Parties must maintain adequate records of deposits. Records of each unclaimed deposit must be maintained 
for at least four years, during which time LP&L will make reasonable efforts to return the deposit and any 
accrued interest. 

4.5.G REFUND OF DEPOSIT 

Cash deposits in third-party escrow, plus any accrued interest, will be returned to the billing party after 
deduction of all charges and other debts that the billing party owes the non-billing party, including any 
applicable late fees, when: 
 

(1) Competitive Retailer ceases operations within LP&L’s service territory;  
(2) Other arrangements are made for satisfaction of deposit requirements; or 
(3) Twenty-four months have elapsed without the billing party defaulting on any payment obligations 

to the non-billing party. 
 
All unclaimed deposits will be held by LP&L for four years from the date the Competitive Retailer ceases 
operations in the LP&L’s service territory. 

 

4.6 DELINQUENCY, DEFAULT AND REMEDIES ON DEFAULT 

4.6.A LP&L DELINQUENCY AND DEFAULT 

LP&L will be considered to be delinquent if LP&L: 
 

(1) Fails to remit payment for Electric Power and Energy received from Retail Customers to the 
Competitive Retailer under Sections 4.4.A.5, REMITTANCE, and 4.4.A.6, NON-PAYMENT OR 
PARTIAL PAYMENT BY RETAIL CUSTOMER;  

(2) Fails to satisfy any material obligation under this tariff, including fulfilling the security requirements 
set forth in Section 4.5, SECURITY DEPOSITS AND CREDITWORTHINESS; or 

(3) Fails to provide Meter Reading data to Competitive Retailer in accordance with Section 4.8.A, 
DATA FROM METER READING. 

4.6.B DEFAULT AND REMEDIES ON DEFAULT OF LP&L 

4.6.B.1 DEFAULT OF LP&L RELATED TO FAILURE TO REMIT PAYMENTS DUE 
UNDER THIS TARIFF OR MAINTAIN REQUIRED SECURITY 

Upon LP&L’s delinquency related to failure to remit Electric Power and Energy payments, in 
accordance with Sections 4.4.A.5 REMITTANCE, and 4.4.A.6, NON-PAYMENT OR PARTIAL 
PAYMENT BY RETAIL CUSTOMER, Competitive Retailer must provide notice of delinquency to 
LP&L of same. LP&L will have ten Business Days to cure the delinquency. Upon LP&L’s failure to 
cure the delinquency, LP&L will be in default, and Competitive Retailer may pursue any or all of the 
following remedies: 
 

(1) Apply delinquent balances to LP&L’s third-party escrow deposit, if any, and any accrued 
interest to delinquent balances, or seek recourse against any letter of credit or surety bond 



 

Page | 29 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

for the amount of delinquent charges due to Competitive Retailer, including any penalties 
or interest; 

(2) Avail itself of any legal remedies that may be appropriate to recover unpaid amounts and 
associated penalties or interest; or 

(3) Implement other mutually suitable and agreeable arrangements with LP&L, provided that 
such arrangements are available to all Competitive Retailers on a non-discriminatory basis. 

4.6.B.2 DEFAULT OF LP&L RELATED TO FAILURE TO PROVIDE METER READING 
DATA 

Upon delinquency related to failure of LP&L to provide Meter Reading data in accordance with 
Section 4.8.A, DATA FROM METER READING, Competitive Retailer may provide notice of 
delinquency to LP&L. LP&L will have ten Business Days to cure the delinquency by providing the 
data, starting from the date notice is received by LP&L. Upon failure to cure the delinquency, LP&L 
will be in default, and Competitive Retailer may pursue any or all of the following remedies: 
 

(1) Based on the Competitive Retailer’s historic usage data for a Retail Customer, use 
estimated usage information for that billing cycle to calculate charges to a Retail Customer 
for Electric Power and Energy provided by the Competitive Retailer; or 

(2) Avail itself of any other legal remedies that may be appropriate. 

4.6.C DEFAULT OF LP&L RELATED TO FAILURE TO PROVIDE METER READING DATA 

4.6.C.1 COMPETITIVE RETAILER DELINQUENCY 

A Competitive Retailer will be considered to be delinquent if Competitive Retailer: 
(1) Fails to remit to LP&L any payments due under this Access Tariff;  
(2) Provides consolidated billing and fails to remit payment to LP&L within the ten-calendar 

day grace period allowed under Section 4.4.D.5, DELINQUENT PAYMENTS;  
(3) Fails to satisfy any material obligation under this Access Tariff including, but not limited 

to failure to, fulfill the security requirements set forth in Section 4.5, SECURITY 
DEPOSITS AND CREDITWORTHINESS;  

(4) Fails to comply with the requirements of the applicable municipal certification; or 
(5) Is no longer certified as a Retail Electric Provider. 

4.6.C.2 DEFAULT AND REMEDIES RELATED TO COMPETITIVE RETAILER’S 
FAILURE TO REMIT PAYMENT OR MAINTAIN REQUIRED SECURITY 

Upon Competitive Retailer’s delinquency related to its failure to remit payments due under this Access 
Tariff, maintain its certification, or maintain required security, LP&L must provide notice of 
delinquency to Competitive Retailer of the same. Competitive Retailer will have ten Business Days to 
cure the delinquency. Upon failure to cure the delinquency the Competitive Retailer will be in default. 
LP&L may pursue any or all of the following remedies: 
 

(1) Apply to delinquent balances to Competitive Retailer’s deposit, if any, and any accrued 
interest, or seek recourse against any letter of credit or surety bond for the amount of 
delinquent charges due to LP&L, including any penalties or interest; 

(2) Avail itself of any legal remedies that may be appropriate to recover unpaid amounts and 
associated fees, including any penalties or interest; 

(3) Implement other mutually suitable and agreeable arrangements with Competitive Retailer, 
provided that such arrangements are available to all Competitive Retailers on a non-
discriminatory basis; 

(4) Notify the Commission that the Competitive Retailer is in default and request suspension 
or revocation of the Competitive Retailer’s certificate; or 

(5) Require the Competitive Retailer to do one of the following: 
 



 

Page | 30 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

(A) Transfer the billing and collection responsibility for all Delivery charges to LP&L, if 
LP&L consents; 

(B) Immediately arrange for all future remittances from Retail Customers to be paid into 
a lock-box controlled by LP&L or the financial mechanism/account designated by 
LP&L. Amounts collected must first be applied to amounts due LP&L, including any 
late fees and penalties with remaining amounts released to Competitive Retailer. 
Competitive Retailer will bear all costs of such mechanism; or 

(C) Immediately arrange for the Competitive Retailer’s customers to be served by another 
qualified Competitive Retailer or the Provider of Last Resort. 

 
If LP&L chooses option (5), the Competitive Retailer must choose and notify LP&L as to which option 
under (5) it will implement but, if the Competitive Retailer fails to immediately implement one of the 
options, LP&L will immediately implement option (A) or (B). A Competitive Retailer choosing option 
(A) or (C) must provide all needed customer information to the entity assuming collection 
responsibilities within three Business Days so that it can bill Competitive Retailer’s Retail Customers. 

4.6.C.3 DEFAULT RELATED TO COMPETITIVE RETAILER’S FAILURE TO SATISFY 
MATERIAL OBLIGATIONS UNDER ACCESS TARIFF 

Upon failure of Competitive Retailer to satisfy material obligations under this Tariff, LP&L must 
provide notice of delinquency to Competitive Retailer, explaining the reason(s) for delinquency. 
Competitive Retailer will have ten Business days to cure such reasons for delinquency. If the 
Competitive Retailer fails to cure the delinquency within ten business days, the Competitive Retailer 
will be considered to be in default and LP&L may pursue any or all of the following: 
 

(1) Implement mutually suitable and agreeable arrangements with Competitive Retailer 
provided that such arrangements are available to all Competitive Retailers on a non-
discriminatory basis; or 

(2) Notify the Commission that the Competitive Retailer is in default and that certification 
should be suspended or canceled. 

4.6.C.4 DEFAULT RELATED TO DE-CERTIFICATION OF A COMPETITIVE 
RETAILER AS A RETAIL ELECTRIC PROVIDER OR LOSS OF MUNICIPAL 
REGISTRATION 

Upon loss of Commission certification as a Retail Electric Provider, Competitive Retailer must abide by 
P.U.C. SUBST. R. 25.107, Certification of Retail Electric Providers (REPs), with respect to notice and 
transfer of Retail Customers to another qualified Competitive Retailer(s) or the applicable Provider(s) of 
Last Resort (POLR). In the event that the Competitive Retailer fails to abide by this rule, the Commission 
will instruct the Registration Agent to immediately transfer the customers to the POLR(s). 
 
Upon Competitive Retailer’s failure to comply with the registration requirements of a municipality, the 
municipality must provide notice of the failure to comply with the registration requirements to Competitive 
Retailer. Unless otherwise provided in the registration requirements of the municipality, Competitive 
Retailer will have ten Business Days to cure the noncompliance unless the municipality at its option agrees 
to extend the amount of time. Upon failure to cure the noncompliance, Competitive Retailer will be in 
default, and Competitive Retailer must abide by the procedures provided in the registration requirements of 
the municipality with respect to notice and transfer of affected Retail Customers to other qualified 
Competitive Retailer(s) or the POLR(s). In the event that the Competitive Retailer fails to abide by these 
procedures, the municipality must instruct the Registration Agent to immediately transfer the affected 
customers to the POLR(s). If the municipality has not adopted such procedures, the Competitive Retailer 
will abide by the procedures in P.U.C. SUBST. R. 25.107. 

4.6.C.5 CURE OF DEFAULT 

Upon payment of all past due amounts and associated penalties and late fees, establishment of any 



 

Page | 31 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

security required under Section 4.5, SECURITY DEPOSITS AND CREDITWORTHINESS, and cure 
of any failure to abide by the provisions of this Tariff, Competitive Retailer will no longer be 
considered in default and will not be required to comply with the provisions in Section 4.6, 
DELINQUENCY, DEFAULT AND REMEDIES ON DEFAULT. 

4.7 MEASUREMENT AND METERING OF SERVICE 

4.7.A MEASUREMENT 

Charges for Electric Power and Energy are calculated using measurements obtained from LP&L-owned, 
LP&L-installed and LP&L-read Metering Equipment, estimation, or otherwise as defined in LP&L Delivery 
Service Tariff. 
 
Electric Meter services will be performed by LP&L. LP&L will provide metering services in accordance 
with its Delivery Service Tariff, Applicable Legal Authorities, and all standards and protocols adopted by 
the Independent Organization. 
 
If Access is provided to Competitive Retailer whose Retail Customer takes Delivery Service at primary 
distribution or transmission voltage, LP&L may meter on the low side of Retail Customer’s transformers and 
adjust measurements to account for losses occurring between the Point of Delivery and point of measurement. 

4.7.B METER READING 

LP&L is responsible for reading LP&L’s Meter on a monthly basis in accordance with the published Meter 
Reading Schedule. LP&L must make a reasonable effort to complete an Actual Meter Reading. LP&L must 
obtain an Actual Meter Reading within two Business Days of the date published in the Meter Reading 
Schedule, except as otherwise provided herein, and will submit the Data from the Meter Reading to the 
Registration Agent within three Business Days of the Scheduled Meter Reading Date. If an actual Meter 
Reading is not obtained, LP&L will estimate the Meter Reading for invoicing purposes in accordance with 
the applicable protocols of an Independent Organization, this chapter, the Rates in Chapter 5 and Applicable 
Legal Authorities. Unless otherwise provided in this section or in the Rate Schedule, a Meter Reading must 
not be estimated more than three times consecutively.  LP&L will establish validation procedures that 
prohibit zero usage and extreme value Meter Readings unless good reason exists for the readings. LP&L 
must ensure that invoices and Meter Reading transactions with zero usage or usage with extreme and unlikely 
values are not issued to Competitive Retailer or Retail Customer unless LP&L has good reason to believe 
that the value is correct. 
 
In any month where the Meter Reading fails the validation process, LP&L must perform a second Meter 
Reading, subject to applicable costs, if any, from Chapter 5. 

4.7.B.1 DENIAL OF ACCESS BY RETAIL CUSTOMER 

If in any month Retail Customer prohibits LP&L access to read the Meter (due to Premises being 
locked, presence of a threatening animal, physical threats to LP&L, or other similar reason), LP&L 
must attempt communication with the customer, either through direct conversation, phone call, or by 
providing the Retail Customer a door hanger requesting access the following month, and informing 
the Retail Customer of the consequences for continuing to fail to provide access. If LP&L does not 
choose the door hanger option or there is no door on which to leave a door hanger, LP&L may leave 
the door hanger at a point of ingress. If no point of ingress is available, LP&L may choose not to leave 
the door hanger and must notify Competitive Retailer of the inability to leave the door hanger. 
 
 LP&L must inform Competitive Retailer that LP&L was unable to gain access and the reason that 
LP&L was unable to gain access, providing enough detail that Competitive Retailer can explain to the 
Retail Customer and inform Competitive Retailer of the number of consecutive months LP&L has 
been denied access by the Retail Customer. If the Competitive Retailer is notified that a Retail 
Customer denied LP&L access to read the Meter, Competitive Retailer must contact the Retail 



 

Page | 32 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

Customer to request access for LP&L the following month and inform the Retail Customer of the 
consequences for continuing to fail to provide access. Competitive Retailer contact may be either by 
mail, telephone or door-to-door contact.  
 
After three consecutive months of denial of access by the Retail Customer to LP&L to read the Meter, 
the Retail Customer has the following options: a) Disconnection of service; b)  Relocation of the Meter 
to make Meter accessible at the Retail Customer’s expense or c) If available in LP&L’s Service Area,  
installation of a remotely read Meter,  at the Retail Customer’s expense and billed directly by LP&L 
to Competitive Retailer. If Retail Customer does not choose an option, the LP&L will choose the 
option on behalf of the Retail Customer. [LP&L may continue to perform Estimated Meter Reading 
for an additional 60 days in order to implement one of the options. 

4.7.B.2 ESTIMATES FOR REASONS OTHER THAN FOR DENIAL OF ACCESS BY 
RETAIL CUSTOMER 

LP&L must not perform Estimated Meter Reading for more than three consecutive Scheduled Meter 
Reading Dates for Retail Customer’s Premises when Retail Customer has not denied access. LP&L’s 
failure to complete an Actual Meter Reading for reasons other than the Retail Customer’s failure to 
provide access will not be considered a break in a series of consecutive months of denial of access 
under Section 4.7.B.1, DENIAL OF ACCESS BY RETAIL CUSTOMER, but will not be considered 
a month in which the Retail Customer has denied access. Estimated Meter Reading performed by 
LP&L for the purpose of a mass transition of Retail Customers when Actual Meter Reading is 
infeasible or Applicable Legal Authorities dictate an Estimated Meter Reading will not be considered 
a break in a series of consecutive months of Estimated Meter Reading, and will not be considered a 
month in a series of consecutive Estimated Meter Reading performed by LP&L. 

4.7.B.3 METER DATA 

LP&L must provide Meter Data, other than Interval Data, consistent with its Meter Reading Schedule. 
In addition, when available, LP&L must provide Competitive Retailer access to, and provide to 
Registration Agent, complete Interval Data for the prior calendar day for each Meter in accordance 
with Applicable Legal Authorities. The inclusion of missing Interval Data does not meet the 
requirement of complete Interval Data. 
 
For Utilities with meters that collect interval data, LP&L must use reasonable efforts to ensure that 
the sum of all Interval Data reported by LP&L equals the monthly usage for the same billing period 
within the acceptable range established by the NAESB Uniform Business Practices (UBP), or any 
range established in a superseding Applicable Legal Authority. Despite LP&L’s reasonable efforts, 
however, there will be instances when the Interval Data and the monthly usage for the same billing 
period are not equal within the acceptable range. Upon request, LP&L must provide to Competitive 
Retailer a detailed explanation when the sum of the Interval Data does not equal the monthly usage 
within the acceptable range.  

  



 

Page | 33 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

4.7.C REPORTING MEASUREMENT DATA 

LP&L must report measurement data for a Point of Delivery as required by this Chapter, Applicable Legal 
Authorities, and in accordance with the LP&L’s Tariffs. 

4.7.D METER TESTING, METER REPLACEMENT AND ADJUSTMENTS FOR METER 
READING INACCURACIES 

LP&L will test its Meters in accordance with the schedule and standards of the American National Standards 
Institute, Incorporated (“ANSI”). Upon notice of a request by a Competitive Retailer, LP&L will perform 
additional tests of the accuracy of LP&L’s Meter no later than ten Business Days after the request is received, 
provided the Meter is a self-contained single phase, kWh Meter and subject to obtaining access and 
completing any necessary coordination with the Retail Customer or a third party. In the event the Meter is 
other than a self-contained, single phase kWh Meter, Company will perform the additional tests no later than 
30 calendar days after the request is received.  The additional tests preferably will be performed on the Retail 
Customer’s Premises, but may, at LP&L’s discretion, be performed at LP&L test laboratory. Charges for 
meter accuracy testing requested by Competitive Retailer will be invoiced to the Competitive Retailer in 
accordance with the rates contained in Chapter 5. Following the completion of any additional test, LP&L will 
promptly advise the Competitive Retailer requesting the test of the date of removal of the Meter, the date of 
the test, the result of the test, and who performed the test. 

4.7.E INVOICE ADJUSTMENT DUE TO METER INACCURACY 

If any LP&L-owned Meter is determined to be outside of the accuracy standards established by the ANSI, 
unless bypassed or tampered with, proper correction will be made of previous measurement data. Competitive 
Retailer and LP&L must adjust their respective charges to Retail Customer based on the corrected Meter 
Data pursuant to Applicable Legal Authorities for underbilling and overbilling. 

4.8 DATA EXCHANGE 

LP&L will release to Competitive Retailer in a manner prescribed by Applicable Legal Authorities proprietary 
customer information necessary to enable the Competitive Retailer to serve the Retail Customer. LP&L will not 
assess separate charges to Competitive Retailer for the provision of the most recent 12 months of Meter Data 
used by LP&L for billing the Premises; however, charges may apply for the provision of such data beyond the 
most recent 12 months in accordance with LP&L’s rates contained in Chapter 5 for provision of such information 
including Meter Reading data. 

4.8.A DATA FROM METER READING 

LP&L must make available to Retail Customer’s Competitive Retailer all data recorded in Retail Customer’s 
meter(s) that are owned by LP&L. 
 
LP&L must provide Meter Reading data or estimated usage data to Retail Customer’s Competitive Retailer 
through the Registration Agent within three Business Days from LP&L’s scheduled Meter Reading date for 
that Retail Customer in accordance with the protocols adopted by the Independent Organization. 
 
Metering data, except as specified in Section 4.8.A.3, METER READINGS FOR THE PURPOSE OF A 
SELF-SELECTED SWITCH OR TO VERIFY ACCURACY OF METER READING, will be sent to the 
Competitive Retailer in complete billing periods. 
 
All metering data values will contain an associated Date/Time field as a time stamp. All time stamps (both 
for data points and sets of data) will be reported in Central Prevailing Time. 
 
Unless provided by the Independent Organization, LP&L must provide to Competitive Retailer, if requested 
by Competitive Retailer in a switch request, the most recent 12 months of historical usage and interval data 
by the appropriate TX SET protocol upon the switching of a Retail Customer to a new Competitive Retailer. 



 

Page | 34 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

 
Unless provided by the Independent Organization, LP&L must provide access to Retail Customer’s historical 
usage and interval data (if available) to Retail Customer and with the Retail Customer’s permission, current 
and/or prospective Competitive Retailers within three Business Days of the receipt of the request. LP&L 
must maintain at least 12 months of usage and demand data for each customer with a volumetric or demand 
meter, , and 12 months interval data for any customer for whom LP&L records interval data. If not provided 
by the Independent Organization, LP&L may provide access to this data for customers served with a meter 
that records interval data through a web-portal, or other means such that the data is accessible in real time. 
LP&L must ensure confidentiality of customer load data through the assignment of unique customer 
passwords or personal identification numbers (PINs) released only to the metered Retail Customer. 

4.8.A.1 DATA RELATED TO INTERVAL METERS 

Data from interval meters will be sent as kWh during each interval. The kWh will be reported for each 
interval. Each recording interval must be labeled according to Applicable Legal Authorities. 

4.8.A.2 DATA REPORTED BY VOLUMETRIC (kWh) METERS 

Data reported by volumetric (kWh) meters, will include: the start-of-period date and time, usage for 
period, demand readings (if available), end-of--period date and time, and end-of-period reading. 
Exceptions, which include initial meter reads and meter changes for start-of-period reading, must be 
appropriately labeled and providing in accordance with Applicable Legal Authorities. 
 
Metered data upon termination of Access to a Competitive Retailer as a result of termination of a 
Retail Customers’ Delivery Service at a particular Point of Delivery (final read) will be provided by 
LP&L to Competitive Retailer within three Business Days from the date that Delivery Service has 
been terminated. 

4.8.A.3 METER READINGS FOR THE PURPOSE OF A SELF-SELECTED SWITCH OR TO 

VERIFY ACCURACY OF METER READING 

Meter reads associated with a Retail Customer’s change in designated Competitive Retailer (Self-
Selected Switch) will be provided with the timelines provided in Chapter 5.   Meter reads for the 
purpose of a self-selected switch will be provided to both the new and previous Competitive Retailer 
the next Business Day following the meter read date. For the new Competitive Retailer, the billing 
period begins with the date of meter read for the purpose of a self-selected switch, and for the previous 
Competitive Retailer, the billing period ends with the date of the meter read for the purpose of a self-
selected switch. No such Meter Read will be deemed to require any change in LP&L’s regular 
continuing Meter Read cycle for that Retail Customer. 
 
A Meter Reading to verify the accuracy of an original Meter Reading will be performed and the new 
reading must be transmitted to Competitive Retailer within five Business Days of LP&L’s receipt of 
the request. If, based upon the Meter re-read, it is determined that the original monthly Meter Reading 
was in error, the Meter Reading and billing determinants for that billing period must be corrected in 
accordance with Section 4.4.C.3, INVOICE CORRECTIONS, and no Discretionary Service Charge 
will be applied by LP&L. If the Meter re-read determines that the original monthly Meter Reading 
was correct, a charge may be assessed for the re-read in accordance with Chapter 5. 
 
Any other Meter Reads not associated with a Retail Customer’s change in Competitive Retailer must 
be provided to the Competitive Retailer requesting such meter read within three Business Days 
following the Meter Read date. 
 
Competitive Retailer may be charged for a read that is requested by the Competitive Retailer in 
accordance with the rates in Chapter 5 of this Tariff. 



 

Page | 35 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

4.8.A.4 ESTIMATED USAGE  

LP&L is responsible for reading Meter on a monthly basis in accordance with the published Meter 
Reading Schedule. LP&L must make a reasonable effort to complete an Actual Meter Reading. If 
LP&L does not complete an Actual Meter Reading, LP&L will perform an Estimated Meter Reading 
for invoicing purposes in accordance with this Tariff.   Estimated usage must be identified as 
“Estimated” in the SET transactions. LP&L must provide the estimation method used if requested. 
 
Unless an Applicable Legal Authority has prescribed an estimation methodology, LP&L will perform 
an Estimated Meter Reading consistent with the following: Reasonable efforts must ensure that 
estimated usage does not equal zero for a known active Meter, or equal or exceed double the usage 
from the previous month’s Actual Meter Reading unless LP&L has good reason to believe that this 
value is a reasonable estimate and can provide its reason upon request to Competitive Retailer. 
 
When an Actual Meter Reading is taken after two or more consecutive months of estimation, LP&L 
will allocate any over or under-estimated usage over the entire estimation period. The allocation will 
be based on the average daily consumption for the Retail Customer for the period between Actual 
Meter Readings.  LP&L must consistently use reasonable methodologies to develop Estimated Billing 
Determinants. When LP&L must estimate Interval Data, it will estimate the interval usage based on a 
methodology that reasonably accounts for the Retail Customer’s consumption and consumption 
patterns.  If requested, LP&L must provide the estimation methodology used.  
 
A meter Reading for a meter that collects interval data will not be considered an Estimated Meter 
Reading if an Actual Meter Reading was completed and LP&L had to estimate a limited number of 
intervals of data to fill in gaps in the data collected. 

4.8.A.5 METER/BILLING DETERMINANT CHANGES  

Upon a Meter change, the data for each Meter must be reported as a separate set of data within a single 
TX SET transaction corresponding to the Retail Customer’s billing period. 
 
If a Meter is replaced, an estimation of metering data may be made. The period of estimated metering 
data will be reported with the old Meter number. 
 
If changes occur in Rate Schedule Billing Determinants, the new Billing Determinants will not become 
part of billing until the new Billing Determinants are available for a full Meter Reading cycle. 

4.8.A.6 NOTICE OF PLANNED AND UNPLANNED INTERRUPTIONS TO MARKET 

COMMUNICATIONS AND DATA EXCHANGE  

LP&L must provide at least seven days advance notice to Competitive Retailer of any planned 
interruption to LP&L’s ability to engage in market transactions or provide Meter Data to Competitive 
Retailer. LP&L must provide notice of any significant unplanned interruptions to LP&L’s market 
transactions or provision of Meter Data to Competitive Retailer no later than one hour after discovery 
or knowledge of the interruption. Notice is not required for short-term disruptions where market 
transactions or the provision of Meter Data are not affected or where there is no impact on Competitive 
Retailer. LP&L must provide updates to Competitive Retailer in the event of changes to the expected 
duration of the interruption and inform Competitive Retailer when the interruption has concluded. 

4.8.B DATA FOR UNMETERED LOADS 

For unmetered service, the following standards apply: 
 

(1) One usage value will be posted for an account, which may encompass multiple Points of Delivery; 
(2) If a change in an account’s inventory of Points of Delivery is discovered for a past billing period, 

the entire amount of usage for the account should be reported as an adjustment; and 



 

Page | 36 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

(3) If an account goes from unmetered to metered service, metered usage starts with the first full billing 
cycle after the Meter is installed. 

4.8.C ADJUSTMENTS TO PREVIOUSLY TRANSMITTED DATA 

Re-sending or adjusting of previously transmitted data arises from data maintenance activities (e.g. response 
to inquiries, needs to restore data files, and responses to problems with posted data), and Meter maintenance 
activities (e.g., adjustments as improved information becomes available due to discovery of incorrect reads, 
crossed Meters, non- registering Meters, slow or fast Meters, and incorrect multipliers.) 
 
The following standards apply to such previously transmitted data: 
 

(1) When corrections are made to previously sent TX SET data, the original TX SET must be first 
canceled. Replacement TX SET data (labeled as replacement data) must then be transmitted within 
one Business Day of the cancelled TX SET data; 

(2) When corrections are made to previously sent TX SET data, the complete set of TX SET data 
pertaining to a Meter and billing cycle will be provided in the replacement transaction. When 
sending or correcting TX SET data, each billing cycle for the affected Meter will be in a distinct TX 
SET dataset. Only the TX SET data for the affected billing cycle and Meter will be transmitted; 

(3) In the case of “crossed Meters,” in which Meter numbers have been incorrectly reported for sets of 
usage data, the original SET will be canceled, and a new TX SET will be transmitted that correctly 
reports the TX SET data, ESI ID, and other associated TX SET data; 

(4) LP&L will make corrected TX SET data available to the original recipients in a timely manner no 
matter when the correction is made;  

(5) LP&L must provide a reason for an adjustment to Competitive Retailer when the adjustment is made 
in the TX SET data; 

(6) All transactions containing corrections to a previously submitted TX SET transaction must be sent 
in accordance with TX SET standards as set forth in TX SET Implementation Guidelines and 
Commission rules; and  

(7) For any replacement interval data that become available to LP&L due to corrected or revised actual 
or estimated intervals, LP&L must timely replace the original Meter Data in the impacted intervals 
with such replacement data. 

4.8.D DATA EXCHANGE PROTOCOLS 

The following standards and protocols are a baseline, or minimum set, necessary to facilitate data exchange 
between parties. Parties must also comply with data exchange protocols established by the Commission or 
Independent Organization. 
 

(1) A uniform Premises identifier number, ESI ID, will be utilized by LP&L; 
(2) The ESI ID number will be used in all data exchanges specific to related Premises data transactions; 
(3) ESI ID is a unique, permanent, and non-intelligent number, used to facilitate communications in an 

unbundled electric market. The format will be as determined by the protocols adopted by the 
Independent Organization; and 

(4) An ESI ID will be assigned by LP&L for each Point of Delivery in accordance with protocols 
adopted by the Independent Organization. 

  



 

Page | 37 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

4.9 DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURES 

For complaints by Competitive Retailers or LP&L regarding Access, the parties may contact each other during 
normal business hours. 
 
Should one party bring a complaint against the other, LP&L and Competitive Retailer will use good faith and 
commercially reasonable efforts to informally resolve such complaint. Unless otherwise provided for in this 
Tariff all complaints must be conducted pursuant to the following procedures: 
 

(1) LP&L or Competitive Retailer may initiate the dispute process by presenting to the other party a 
notice of the dispute/complaint. Notice must include, at a minimum, a clear description of the dispute, the 
nature of the dispute, a contact name, and a proposed resolution; 

(2) All disputes must be referred to a designated senior representative of each of the parties for 
resolution on an informal basis as promptly as practicable; 

(3) The receiving party must investigate the complaint and provide a response as soon as possible but 
not later than ten Business Days following receipt of the complaint; 

(4) In the event that the designated representatives are unable to resolve the dispute within 30 calendar 
days, such dispute, by mutual agreement, may be referred to mediation or be submitted to binding arbitration 
and resolved in accordance with the current Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration 
Association; and 

(5) In the event that binding arbitration is not chosen and resolution is not obtained within 30 calendar 
days after the initial complaint (or another mutually agreed upon timeline), the Competitive Retailer or LP&L 
may file a complaint at any time thereafter with the Commission. 

 

4.9.A  COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 

For complaints by Competitive Retailers or LP&L regarding Access, the parties may contact each other 
during normal business hours. 
 
Should one party bring a complaint against the other, LP&L and Competitive Retailer will use good faith and 
commercially reasonable efforts to informally resolve such complaint. Unless otherwise provided for in this 
Tariff all complaints must be conducted pursuant to the following procedures: 
 

(1) LP&L or Competitive Retailer may initiate the dispute process by presenting to the other party a 
notice of the dispute/complaint. Notice must include, at a minimum, a clear description of the 
dispute, the nature of the dispute, a contact name, and a proposed resolution; 

(2) All disputes must be referred to a designated senior representative of each of the parties for 
resolution on an informal basis as promptly as practicable; 

(3) The receiving party must investigate the complaint and provide a response as soon as possible but 
not later than ten Business Days following receipt of the complaint; 

(4) In the event that the designated representatives are unable to resolve the dispute within 30 calendar 
days, such dispute, by mutual agreement, may be referred to mediation or be submitted to binding 
arbitration and resolved in accordance with the current Commercial Arbitration Rules of the 
American Arbitration Association; and 

(5) In the event that binding arbitration is not chosen and resolution is not obtained within 30 calendar 
days after the initial complaint (or another mutually agreed upon timeline), the Competitive Retailer 
or LP&L may file a complaint at any time thereafter with the Commission. 

 

4.9.B  COMPLAINT WITH REGULATORY AUTHORITY 

Nothing in this section will restrict the rights of LP&L or Competitive Retailer to file a complaint with the 
Commission under the relevant portions of PURA, where that right is available, or to exercise other legal 
rights and remedies. 



 

Page | 38 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

4.9.C  SERVICE INQUIRIES OR ACCESS STATUS 

Competitive Retailer may contact LP&L regarding the status of Delivery Service and Access for the provision 
of Retail Customer’s Delivery Service, including, but not limited to, the following situations: 
 

(1) Inquiries regarding site specific Delivery Services; 
(2) Construction of new lines, installation of a Meter, modification of existing equipment or change in 

Point of  Delivery; 
(3) Special circumstances such as Delivery Service requirements that are of non-standard size or 

characteristics; or 
(4) Initiation of Delivery System Service to Retail Customer. 

 
Competitive Retailer seeking information about the above items may contact LP&L as appropriate during 
normal business hours. 

 

4.10 OUTAGE AND SERVICE REQUEST REPORTING 

4.10.A  NOTIFICATION OF INTERRUPTIONS, IRREGULARITIES, AND SERVICE 
REQUESTS 

Competitive Retailer will be responsible for informing its Retail Customers how to report interruptions, 
irregularities, outages, and how to report service requests. Competitive Retailer must meet this obligation by 
directing Retail Customers to call LP&L directly to make such reports. Competitive Retailer must provide 
Retail Customers, in accordance with the applicable customer protection rules, with the LP&L supplied toll 
free telephone number and indicate that Retail Customer should call this number. 
 
Alternatively, and only with the agreement of both LP&L and Competitive Retailer, Competitive Retailer 
may meet this obligation as follows: 
 

(1) Competitive Retailer may direct Retail Customers to call the Competitive Retailer for such reporting 
of requests and electronically forward outage information to LP&L. Such arrangements must ensure 
that all necessary information is communicated in a manner such that LP&L can respond to requests 
in a timely fashion and that Competitive Retailers are kept informed of the status of restoration 
efforts and service requests;  

(2) Competitive Retailer may direct Retail Customer to call Competitive Retailer for such reporting or 
requests and then forward the call to LP&L; or 

(3) Competitive Retailer may direct Retail Customers to directly call LP&L to make such reports or 
requests. 

 
If alternative option (1) is mutually agreed to by Competitive Retailer and LP&L, Competitive Retailer must 
ensure that all necessary information is electronically communicated to LP&L in a timely manner using the 
appropriate SET protocol so as not to unnecessarily delay LP&L’s response. The data necessary includes the 
following information: 
 

(1) Customer name, and if different, contact name; 
(2) Contact phone number; 
(3) ESI ID; 
(4) Service address (including City and zip code) and directions to location when necessary; and 
(5) Description of problem. 

 
If alternative option (2) or (3) is mutually agreed to by Competitive Retailer and LP&L, Competitive Retailer 
must ensure that calls are properly forwarded to an LP&L supplied toll free telephone number. If alternative 
option (2) is used, Competitive Retailer will be required to provide LP&L with the information needed to 
verify Retail Customer’s identity (name, address, and home phone number) for a particular Point of Delivery 
served by Competitive Retailer and to continually provide LP&L updates of such information. 



 

Page | 39 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

 
If alternative option (2) or (3) is used, Competitive Retailer must make arrangements with LP&L to pre-
authorize any service requests for which the LP&L will invoice the Competitive Retailer before such requests 
are performed. A Competitive Retailer who does not make other arrangements will be deemed to have pre-
authorized all service requests from retail customers. LP&L must not act in a discriminatory manner in 
making such arrangements with Competitive Retailers. 
 
In all events, LP&L must, as soon as reasonably practicable, provide information to Competitive Retailer 
regarding reported customer interruptions, irregularities, outages and service repair requests. 
 
If either of the three alternative options (1), (2), or (3) are mutually agreed to by Competitive Retailer and 
LP&L, Competitive Retailer and LP&L will designate in the Access Agreement Form (Appendix A to the 
pro-forma access tariff) which one of the three alternative options was selected as the primary method for 
reporting interruptions, irregularities, outages, and which one of the two alternative options was selected as 
the primary method for making service repair requests. Nothing in this section is meant to restrict a 
Competitive Retailer who has mutually agreed with LP&L to utilize alternative option (1), (2), or (3) for the 
majority of their Retail Customers to allow a Retail Customer with special needs to directly contact the LP&L 
if agreed to by the Competitive Retailer and Retail Customer. 
 
LP&L must notify Competitive Retailers of any change in an LP&L supplied telephone number 60 days in 
advance of such change. 

4.10.B RESPONSE TO REPORTS OF INTERRUPTIONS AND REPAIR REQUESTS 

LP&L will promptly investigate reported problems. If, upon making a service call, LP&L determines that a 
reported problem is caused by a condition on Retail Customer’s side of the Point of Delivery, LP&L must 
notify Competitive Retailer. LP&L may charge a fee for the Service Call as applicable in the Rate Schedule. 

  



 

Page | 40 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

5 CHAPTER 5: LP&L GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS AND RATES 

5.1 GENERAL 

LP&L retains jurisdiction to set all rates including rates relating to Access. The following Rate Schedules have 
been promulgated by LP&L and are filed with the Public Utility Commission of Texas for informational 
purposes only. 

 

5.2 LP&L - SPECIFIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

5.2.A DEFINITIONS 

The following terms, when used in this Delivery Service Tariff, have the following definitions.  
 
ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM (AMS) OPERATIONAL DAY. Monday through Friday 7:00 am – 
7:00 pm and 7:00 am to 12:00 pm on Saturdays, excluding holidays as identified in this Delivery Service 
Tariff. 
 
CONNECTED LOAD. The combined electrical requirement (i.e., the sum of the capacities and/or ratings) 
of all motors and other electric power consuming devices installed on the Customer's Premises.  
 
CONTRIBUTION IN AID OF CONSTRUCTION (CIAC). Payment by Customer to LP&L for facilities 
extensions, upgrades, or expansions in excess of allowable expenditures, or for nonstandard service facilities, 
removals or relocations. The payment shall also include an amount to recover franchise fees, where 
applicable. 
 
CUSTOMER.  The end use Customer for which LP&L provides or will provide electrical delivery service 
(but does not provide retail energy).  Also see Retail Customer as defined in Chapter 1. 
 
CUSTOMER’S INSTALLATION. In general, all wiring, pipes, valves, devices, apparatus, and appliances 
of any kind or nature on Customer's side of the Point of Delivery, except for Facilities. 
  
DELIVERY CHARGES. City of Lubbock authorized rates and charges for the use of LP&L’s Delivery 
System. Delivery Charges are comprised of Delivery System Charges and Discretionary Charges. 
 
DEMAND INTERVAL. The specified interval of time on which a demand measurement is based.  
The LP&L demand interval is 15 minutes.  
 
DWELLING UNIT. An individually metered private residence or individually metered apartment 
containing kitchen and bathroom facilities.  
 
INDIVIDUAL PRIVATE DWELLING. A fixed, permanent residential structure. This term includes a 
mobile home. This term does not include self-propelled and non-self-propelled recreational vehicles that have 
no foundation other than wheels, jacks, or skirtings.  
 
METER SOCKET. A receptacle of weatherproof construction used for mounting a socket-type meter.  
 
MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING. A building or buildings containing three or more dwelling units all of 
which are used primarily for non-transient use, with rent (when applicable) paid at intervals of one week or 
longer. Multi-Family Dwelling includes residential condominiums, whether rented or owner occupied.  
 
NCP. The Non Coincident Peak kW applicable under the Monthly Rate section shall be the kW supplied 
during the 15-minute period of maximum demand during the billing month.  
  



 

Page | 41 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

NETWORK SERVICE. A unique type of electrical service derived through one or more connections to an 
electrical bus or grid established by paralleling two or more primary and or secondary network circuits, 
providing an additional level of reliability due to the redundant nature of the service. Electrical power 
networks must be designed and configured for that purpose and must be operated and maintained utilizing 
special methods. LP&L determines where Network Service will be provided at its sole discretion, and 
Network Service is only available in limited areas.  
 
NON-STANDARD METER. A Meter that is not a Standard Meter because it lacks the ability to provide 
one or more of the following functions: automated or remote Meter Reading, two-way communications, 
remote disconnection and reconnection capability, or the capability to provide Interval Data. A Non-Standard 
Meter includes a Meter that is otherwise a Standard Meter but has one or more of the aforementioned 
functionalities disabled. 
 
POWER. The rate at which electric energy is provided for doing work. The electrical unit of power is the 
watt, or kilowatt.  
  
RACEWAY. Tubular or rectangular channel or conduit for containing electrical conductors, which may be 
exposed, buried beneath the surface of the earth, or encased in a building or structure.  
 
SERVICE DROP. Overhead conductors that extend from LP&L's overhead Delivery System to the Point 
of Delivery where connection is made to Customer's electrical installation.  
 
SERVICE ENTRANCE CONDUCTORS. Conductors provided by Customer extending from Customer's 
electrical equipment to the Point of Delivery where connection is made.  
  
SERVICE ENTRANCE ENCLOSURE. A connection enclosure used for the purpose of connecting the 
Service Lateral to Customer's electrical installation.  
 
SERVICE LATERAL. Conductors, usually underground but sometimes in raceway above ground, that 
extend from LP&L's Delivery System to the Point of Delivery or from Customer's electrical installation to 
the Point of Delivery.  
 
STANDARD METER. A Meter that the LP&L has deployed with capabilities including automated or 
remote Meter Reading, two-way communications, remote disconnection and reconnection capability, and the 
capability to provide Interval Data. 
 
SUITABLE SPACE. The required amount of cleared space and access, after vegetation and other 
obstructions have been removed, in order to install, operate, and maintain LP&L facilities.  
  
TEMPORARY DELIVERY SERVICE. Delivery Service provided to Customer for a single, continuous 
period of time which is less than twelve consecutive months, except that Delivery Service in connection with 
the delivery of construction power, even though provided for a continuous period of time in excess of twelve 
months, is also considered to be Temporary Delivery Service.  
  
WATT. The rate at which electric power is provided to do work. One watt is the power represented by current 
having a component of one ampere in phase with and under a pressure of one volt.  
 
WATT-HOUR. A unit of work or energy equivalent to the power of one watt operating for one hour.  
  
  



 

Page | 42 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

STANDARD VOLTAGES.   LP&L provides Delivery Service at LP&L's standard voltages and not all 
standard voltages are available at every location. If Customer requests a voltage that is non-standard or not 
available for a specific load or location, such voltage may be provided by LP&L at the expense of the 
requesting party.  

   
Single Phase  
120  
120/240  
240  
240/480  
  
480  
  
  
  
  
  

Three Phase  
120/208  
120/240 (overhead only)  
240 (overhead only)  
240/480 (overhead only)  
277/480  
480  
2400/4160  
4160  
  
7200/12470  
12470  
13200/22860  
22860  
  
69000   
115000   
345000  

 
Customer should obtain from LP&L the phase and voltage of the service available before committing to the 
purchase of motors or other equipment.  
 
SECONDARY VOLTAGE.  Any one of the LP&L's standard service voltages at which Customer takes 
Delivery of Electric Power and Energy after two or more LP&L transformations (other than by use of 
autotransformers) from a transmission voltage.  
  
PRIMARY VOLTAGE.  Any one of the LP&L's standard service voltages at which Customer takes 
Delivery of Electric Power and Energy after one LP&L transformation (other than by use of 
autotransformers) from a transmission voltage.  
  
TRANSMISSION VOLTAGE.  Any one of the LP&L's standard voltages in excess of 60,000 volts at which 
Customer takes Delivery of Electric Power and Energy.  

5.2.B ADDITIONAL DELIVERY SERVICE INFORMATION  

Method of Providing Delivery Service  
 
Multi-Family Dwellings  
LP&L provides Delivery Service through an individual Meter to each Dwelling Unit or through one Meter 
at each Point of Delivery for any number of Dwelling Units in the same Multi-Family Dwelling. Where 
Delivery Service is provided using individual metering for each Dwelling Unit, Property Owner shall provide 
and identify Meter Sockets in a manner and at locations suitable to LP&L.  
  
Non-Residential Multi-Tenant Buildings  
LP&L provides Delivery Service through an individual Meter to each individual tenant space or through one 
Meter at each Point of Delivery for any number of individual tenant spaces in the same multi-tenant building. 
Property Owner shall provide a means, acceptable to LP&L, to electrically disconnect each individual tenant 
space and provide and identify Meter Sockets in a manner and at locations suitable to LP&L.  
  
  



 

Page | 43 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

Mixed Use Facilities  
For a location that contains Multi-Family Dwellings and non-residential tenants, LP&L provides Delivery 
Service to each Multi-Family Dwelling pursuant to paragraph above titled Multi-Family Dwellings and 
provides Delivery Service to non-residential tenants pursuant to paragraph above titled Non-Residential  

  
Mobile Homes  
LP&L provides Delivery Service through an individual Meter for individual mobile homes. For a mobile 
home park, Customer shall group and identify Meter Sockets for individual mobile homes in a manner and 
at locations suitable to LP&L.  
  
Delivery Service Provided Through Facilities Owned by Others  
LP&L has the option to provide Delivery Service to a new Customer through Delivery System facilities 
owned by an existing Customer, with the consent of the existing Customer. In such cases, the metered 
electrical usage registered on the existing Meter is reduced by an appropriate amount to recognize the metered 
electrical usage of the new Customer.  Under this method of service, the new Customer, the existing 
Customer and LP&L shall enter into an agreement at the discretion of the Director of Electric Utilities, setting 
forth the responsibilities of each party.  

5.2.C HOURS OF OPERATION 

LP&L’s normal hours of operation are 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM CPT on Monday – Friday, excluding holidays.  
LP&L recognizes the following holidays: New Year’s Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, Good Friday, 
Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after Thanksgiving, Christmas 
Eve, and Christmas Day.  LP&L’s Hours of Operation as identified herein are its Business Days. 
 
LP&L may establish additional holiday observances by posting the additional holiday observance on LP&L’s 
website no later than October 31 of the preceding calendar year. LP&L may expand its normal hours of 
operation at its discretion. Notwithstanding its designated hours of operation, LP&L shall ensure that 
personnel and other resources are available to process and complete service orders in compliance with 
Applicable Legal Authorities.  LP&L shall also ensure that personnel and other resources are reasonably 
available to respond to emergencies at all times. 

5.3 RATE SCHEDULES 

5.3.A APPLICABILITY 

This Delivery Service Tariff applies to Customers within LP&L’s certificated service area who have entered 
the competitive retail market and procure electricity through a Competitive Retailer. 

5.3.B DUAL BILLING 

LP&L will bill Customers through applicable Competitive Retailers.  LP&L will not bill Customers directly 
for Electric Power and Energy. 

5.3.C TERMS OF SERVICE 

5.3.C.1 Customer’s Installation. 
Customer assumes all responsibility on Customer’s side of the Point of Delivery and at the Point of 
Delivery, including without limitation, at its own expense, for installing and maintaining such 
protective devices as are recommended or required by the then current edition of the National 
Electrical Code or as may be necessary to protect Customer’s Installation, equipment or operations 
during abnormal, irregular, or interrupted Service conditions or the failure of all or a part of Service 
provided by LP&L.  Such protective devices include, but are not limited to, equipment necessary to 
limit voltage fluctuations, transients, or harmonics such that neither LP&L nor LP&L’s other 
Customers are adversely affected.  All wiring and other electrical equipment furnished by the 
Customer, including Customer’s Installation, will be installed, operated, and maintained by the 



 

Page | 44 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

Customer at all times in conformity with good electrical practice, applicable law and regulation, and 
with the requirements of the constituted authorities and this Delivery Service Tariff.  LP&L is not 
obligated to serve any equipment or any premises that has a detrimental effect on LP&L Facilities, the 
equipment or the equipment of Customers, or other Customers’ Installations.  Customer will use 
reasonable care not to damage metering equipment and related appurtenances.  Further, Customer 
cannot alter billing or settlement data from the metering equipment and/or related appurtenances.   
 
Adjustments and Complaints:  Any adjustments claimed by a Customer related to (i) the application 
of inaccurate rates or fees; (ii) inaccurate meter readings, (iii) meters or charges not corresponding to 
the Customer’s Premises; or (iv) charges otherwise in excess of correct charges, must be presented by 
Customer to LP&L, via the complaint process outlined below, or by Competitive Retailer to LP&L, 
via approved market processes, within six (6) months of the claimed Rate, fee or meter inaccuracy to 
be duly considered by LP&L. The requirement of timely presentation, as set forth above, shall not 
apply in instances wherein a Customer is billed for Service that is not received by Customer due to 
mistake of LP&L or where charges are found to be higher than authorized by this Tariff.  Pursuant to 
section 4.4.C.3, LP&L may not issue an invoice for under-billings for adjustments more than 150 days 
after the date the original invoice was issued or should have been issued.  For instances of overbilling, 
the Customer’s bill shall be corrected for the entire period of the overbilling. 
 
COMPLAINTS Retail Customer may submit written complaints about adjustments or Delivery 
Service to Lubbock Power and Light and may call Lubbock Power and Light to lodge complaints 
orally. Written complaints may be submitted to Lubbock Power and Light, Chief Customer Officer, P 
O Box 10541, Lubbock TX 79408 and oral complaints may be placed by calling 806-775-2509. 
Complaints regarding Energy Service will be directed to the Retail Customer’s Retailer. Lubbock 
Power and Light will work with Retailers as needed to help resolve Customer Complaints in a timely 
manner. 
 
Nothing contained in this Delivery Service Tariff shall be construed to require a person or entity 
located within the Service Territory to accept Service from LP&L. 

 
5.3.C.2 Continuous Service 
LP&L SHALL USE REASONABLE DILIGENCE TO PROVIDE CONTINUOUS SERVICE 
BUT LP&L DOES NOT GUARANTEE AGAINST IRREGULARITIES, INTERRUPTIONS, 
OR FLUCTUATING WAVE FORM OR FREQUENCY, IT BEING UNDERSTOOD THAT 
OCCASIONAL IRREGULARITIES, INTERRUPTIONS, AND FLUCTUATIONS MAY 
OCCUR. LP&L SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR DAMAGES OR INJURY, INCLUDING BUT 
NOT LIMITED TO CONSEQUENTIAL OR ECONOMIC LOSS DAMAGES, LOSS OF 
PROFITS, LOSS OF REVENUE, LOSS OF PRODUCTION CAPACITY, OR DIRECT OR 
INDIRECT DAMAGES OF ANY KIND FOR INJURIES TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY, 
OCCASIONED BY INTERRUPTION, FAILURE TO COMMENCE DELIVERY VOLTAGE, 
WAVE FORM OR FREQUENCY FLUCTUATIONS CAUSED BY AN ACT OF GOD OR 
THE PUBLIC ENEMY, A BREAKDOWN OF PLANTS, LINES OR EQUIPMENT, 
ACCIDENTS, FIRE, EXPLOSIONS, STRIKES, RIOTS, WAR, PANDEMICS, DELAY IN 
RECEIVING SHIPMENTS OR REQUIRED MATERIALS, ORDER OF ANY COURT OR 
JUDGE GRANTED IN BONA FIDE ADVERSE LEGAL PROCEEDINGS OR ACTION OR 
ANY ORDER BY ANY COMMISSION OR TRIBUNAL HAVING JURISDICTION; OR, 
WITHOUT LIMITATION BY THE PRECEDING ENUMERATION, ANY OTHER ACT OR 
THING DUE TO CAUSES BEYOND LP&L’S CONTROL, OR DUE TO THE NEGLIGENCE 
OF LP&L, ITS EMPLOYEES, OR CONTRACTORS, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT THAT 
THE DAMAGES ARE OCCASIONED BY THE GROSS NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL 
MISCONDUCT OF LP&L. 

 
  



 

Page | 45 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

5.3.C.3 Intentional Interruption of Service  
Notwithstanding anything provided herein, LP&L may, without notice and without liability to the 
Customer, interrupt Service to the Customer when, in LP&L’s sole judgment, the interruption of 
Service: 

 
a. will prevent or alleviate an emergency threatening to disrupt the operation of 

LP&L’s system, Facilities, or the applicable electrical grid;  
b. will lessen or remove possible danger to life or property;  
c. will aid in the restoration of Service; 
d. is required to make necessary repairs to or changes in the Facilities; or 
e. in the event of a national or local disaster, to protect public safety, or if required 

by any governmental or regulatory body with jurisdiction over LP&L, or if 
required by the applicable regional transmission operator, including the Electric 
Reliability Council of Texas (“ERCOT”). 
 

LP&L may, in the event of a national emergency or local disaster resulting in disruption of 
normal Service, in the public interest, interrupt Service to the Customer to provide necessary 
Service to civil defense or other emergency service agencies on a temporary basis until 
normal Service to the agencies can be restored. 
 
5.3.C.4 Disclaimer of Warranties. 
LP&L AND THE CITY OF LUBBOCK MAKE NO WARRANTIES WHATSOEVER 

WITH REGARD TO THE PROVISION OF ANY SERVICE AND DISCLAIM ANY 

AND ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT 

LIMITED TO WARRANTIES OF SERVICE, MERCHANTABILITY, AND FITNESS 

FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

5.3.D TERMS OF PAYMENT 

For Billing and Remittance to Competitive Retailers for Delivery Charges, refer to Section 4.4.D of this 
document. 

5.3.E TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Service supplied under this Tariff is subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Delivery Service 
Tariff as approved by the City Council of the City of Lubbock and on file with the City Secretary of the City 
of Lubbock. Customers and Competitive Retailers are further subject to LP&L’s Customer Protection Rules, 
as approved by the Electric Utility Board of the City of Lubbock. 

5.3.F TERRITORY 

 LP&L Service Territory, as provided in Chapter 2 of the Tariff for Competitive Retail Access 

5.3.G EFFECTIVE DATE 

For all Meters read by LP&L on or after October 1, 2023, and for which this Delivery Service Tariff is 
applicable, as provided herein.   



 

Page | 46 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

5.3.H RESIDENTIAL DELIVERY SYSTEM SERVICE 

APPLICABLE 

This schedule is applicable to Delivery Service for residential purposes (which may include a small amount 
of non-residential usage incidental to residential usage) of a permanent nature to Individual Private Dwellings 
(including their appurtenant structures) and to individually metered apartments when such Delivery Service 
is to one Point of Delivery and measured through one Meter and is not for shared or resale purposes. 
Residential Service is limited to one Individual Private Dwelling per platted parcel of land or postal delivery 
address.  
 
If a premise is primarily used for non-residential purposes, Delivery Service will be provided under the 
LP&L’s appropriate Secondary Service or Primary Service rate schedule.  
 
This schedule is not available for non-residential service, including but not limited to water wells, electric 
gates, barns, garages, boat docks, or recreational vehicle parks, or for structures on the platted parcel of land 
requiring a separate Meter. 
 

RATE 

Delivery System Charge: $0.05628  per kWh 

Transition Charge:  $0.00167  per kWh 

Franchise Fee: $0.00517 Per kWh 

 
CHARACTER OF SERVICE 

AC.  60 hertz.  Single-phase 120/240 volts.  Three-phase 240 volts where available on secondary.  
  



 

Page | 47 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

5.3.I SECONDARY SERVICE LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 10 kW 
DELIVERY SYSTEM SERVICE 

APPLICABLE 

This schedule is available to Customers requesting Delivery Service for non-Residential Purposes at 
Secondary Distribution Voltage levels with a peak demand less than or equal to 10 kW when such Delivery 
Service is to one Point of Delivery and measured through one Meter and is not for shared or resale purposes.  
 
LP&L will evaluate Customers’ demand once per year in October.  If a Customer’s demand exceeds 10kW 
at any time during that year, the Premises will be assigned to the Secondary Service Greater than 10kW until 
the next evaluation. 
 

RATE 

Delivery System Charge: $0.05378 per kWh 

Transition Charge: $0.00167 per kWh 

Franchise Fee: $0.00517 Per kWh 

 
CHARACTER OF SERVICE 

AC.  60 hertz.  Single-phase 120/240 volts.  Three-phase 240 volts where available on secondary. 
SECONDARY SERVICE GREATER THAN 10 kW  
DELIVERY SYSTEM SERVICE  

 

5.3.J SECONDARY SERVICE GREATER THAN 10 kW DELIVERY SYSTEM SERVICE 

APPLICABLE 

This schedule is available to Customers requesting Delivery Service for non-Residential Purposes at 
Secondary Distribution Voltage levels with a peak demand greater than 10 kW (with or without Distributed 
Generation) when such Delivery Service is to one Point of Delivery and measured through one Meter; except 
that, at LP&L’s option, locations where the Customer’s Electrical Installation or Premises has multiple 
connections to LP&L’s Delivery System, due to LP&L facility limitations or design  criteria, may be 
considered one Point of Delivery for billing purposes.  
 

RATE 

Delivery System Charge: $0.00947 Per kWh 

Delivery System Demand Charge: $11.32  per kW 

Transition Charge: $0.00167 per kWh 

Franchise Fee: $0.00517 Per kWh 

Demand charges for off-cycle Switches will be adjusted as necessary. 

 



 

Page | 48 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

DEMAND 

LP&L will furnish at its expense the necessary metering equipment to measure Customer’s kW demand for 
the greatest use during the month 
 

POWER FACTOR 

Applicable to Customers on this Rate Schedule with a peak demand of 200 kW or greater.  At all times, 
Customer’s Installation will maintain, at the Point of Delivery, a power factor of not less than 85% lagging.  
Where Customer fails to maintain a power factor of at least 85% lagging at the Point of Delivery, Customer 
shall install suitable capacitors or other equipment necessary to raise the overall power factor at the point of 
delivery to a satisfactory value.  Where such power factor correction equipment is used, Customer shall install 
a relay, switch or other regulating equipment for purposes of disconnecting or controlling the power factor 
correction equipment in order to prevent excessive voltage conditions on LP&L’s system. 
 
If a Customer continually fails to maintain, at the Point of Delivery, a power factor of at least 85%, LP&L 
may install the necessary equipment to maintain a minimum power factor of 85% and bill for the equipment 
and installation.  
 

CHARACTER OF SERVICE 

AC.  60 hertz.  Single-phase or three-phase, at one available standard voltage.  
  



 

Page | 49 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

5.3.K PRIMARY DELIVERY SYSTEM SERVICE 

APPLICABLE 

This schedule is available to Customers requesting Delivery Service for non-Residential Purposes at Primary 
Distribution Voltage levels when such Delivery Service is to one Point of Delivery and measured through 
one Meter, where Customer’s Installation has adequate capacity and suitable voltage is available adjacent to 
the Premises.  
 

RATE 

Delivery System Charge: $0.00789 Per kWh 

Delivery System Demand Charge: $9.28  per kW 

Transition Charge: $0.00167 per kWh 

Franchise Fee $0.00517 Per kWh 

Demand charges for off-cycle Switches will be adjusted as necessary. 

 
DEMAND 

LP&L will furnish, at its expense, the necessary metering equipment to measure the Customer’s kW demand 
for the greatest use during the month. 
 

POWER FACTOR 

Applicable to Customers on this Rate Schedule with a peak demand of 200 kW or greater.  At all times, 
Customer’s Installation will maintain, at the Point of Delivery, a power factor of not less than 85% lagging.  
Where Customer fails to maintain a power factor of at least 85% lagging at the Point of Delivery, Customer 
shall install suitable capacitors or other equipment necessary to raise the overall power factor at the point of 
delivery to a satisfactory value.  Where such power factor correction equipment is used, Customer shall install 
a relay, switch or other regulating equipment for purposes of disconnecting or controlling the power factor 
correction equipment in order to prevent excessive voltage conditions on LP&L’s system. 
 
If a Customer continually fails to maintain, at the Point of Delivery, a power factor of at least 85%, LP&L 
may install the necessary equipment to maintain a minimum power factor of 85% and bill the Customer for 
the equipment and installation. 

CHARACTER OF SERVICE 

AC.  60 hertz.  Single-phase or three-phase at LP&L’s available primary voltage.   



 

Page | 50 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

5.3.L PRIMARY SUBSTATION DELIVERY SERVICE 

APPLICABLE 

This schedule is available to Customers requesting Primary Substation Delivery Service for non-Residential 
Purposes at Primary Distribution Voltage levels when such Delivery Service is to one Point of Delivery and 
measured through one Meter, where Customer’s Installation has adequate capacity and suitable voltage is 
available adjacent to the Premises. 
 

RATE 

Delivery System Charge: $0.00116 Per kWh 

Delivery System Demand Charge:            $7.77 per kW 

Transition Charge: $0.00167 per kWh 

Franchise Fee: $0.00517 Per kWh 

Demand charges for off-cycle Switches will be adjusted as necessary. 

 
DEMAND 

LP&L will furnish at its expense the necessary metering equipment to measure the Customer’s kW demand 
of greatest use during the month. 
 

LOSS ADJUSTMENT 

When metering is installed on the secondary (Customer’s) side of any voltage transformation made at less 
than available primary voltage at the Point of Service, the Meter readings for billing purposes may be 
increased to include all transformation losses 
 

POWER FACTOR 

Applicable to Customers on this Rate Schedule with a peak demand of 200 kW or greater.  At all times, 
Customer’s Installation will maintain, at the Point of Delivery, a power factor of not less than 85% lagging.  
Where Customer fails to maintain a power factor of at least 85% lagging at the Point of Delivery, Customer 
shall install suitable capacitors or other equipment necessary to raise the overall power factor at the point of 
delivery to a satisfactory value.  Where such power factor correction equipment is used, Customer shall install 
a relay, switch or other regulating equipment for purposes of disconnecting or controlling the power factor 
correction equipment in order to prevent excessive voltage conditions on LP&L’s system. 
 
If a Customer continually fails to maintain, at the Point of Delivery, a power factor of at least 85%, LP&L 
may install the necessary equipment to maintain a minimum power factor of 85% and bill the Customer for 
the equipment and installation. 

 
CHARACTER OF SERVICE 

AC.  60 hertz.  Single-phase or three-phase at LP&L’s available primary voltage.   



 

Page | 51 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

5.3.M TRANSMISSION DELIVERY SYSTEM SERVICE 

APPLICABLE 

This schedule is available to Customers requesting Delivery Service for non-Residential Purposes at 
Transmission Voltage of 69kV or above for commercial purposes when all Service is supplied at one Point 
of Delivery and measured through one Meter, where Customer’s Installation has adequate capacity and 
suitable voltage is available adjacent to the Premises.  
 

RATE 

Delivery System Charge:  $0.00089 per kWh 

Delivery System Demand Charge: $6.26 per kW 

Transition Charge: $0.00167 per kWh 

Franchise Fee: $0.00517 Per kWh 

Demand charges for off-cycle Switches will be adjusted as necessary. 

 
DEMAND 

LP&L will furnish at its expense the necessary metering equipment to measure the Customer’s kW demand 
of greatest use during the month. 
 

LOSS ADJUSTMENT 

When metering is installed at any voltage less than the transmission voltage available at the Point of Service, 
the Meter readings for billing purposes may be increased to include losses. 
 

POWER FACTOR 

Applicable to Customers on this Rate Schedule with a peak demand of 200 kW or greater.  At all times, 
Customer’s Installation will maintain, at the Point of Delivery, a power factor of not less than 85% lagging.  
Where Customer fails to maintain a power factor of at least 85% lagging at the Point of Delivery, Customer 
shall install suitable capacitors or other equipment necessary to raise the overall power factor at the point of 
delivery to a satisfactory value.  Where such power factor correction equipment is used, Customer shall install 
a relay, switch or other regulating equipment for purposes of disconnecting or controlling the power factor 
correction equipment in order to prevent excessive voltage conditions on LP&L’s system. 
 
If a Customer continually fails to maintain, at the Point of Delivery, a power factor of at least 85%, LP&L 
may install the necessary equipment to maintain a minimum power factor of 85% and bill the Customer for 
the equipment and installation.  
 

CHARACTER OF SERVICE 

AC.  60 hertz.  Three-phase at LP&L’s available transmission voltage of approximately 69 kV or above.  

 
 

  



 

Page | 52 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

5.3.N STREET LIGHTING DELIVERY SERVICE 

APPLICABLE 

To municipal and State of Texas facilities for street lighting service where facilities of adequate capacity and 
suitable voltage are adjacent to the Point of Service. 
 

RATE 

Delivery System Charge: $0.09235 per kWh 

Transition Charge: $0. 00167 per kWh 

Formula: Bulb Watts÷1000 x bulb quantity x11.8 hours per night x days of service = TOTAL KWH x Rate 

 
PRORATING 

LP&L may prorate monthly fees according to policies and procedures adopted by the Director of Electric 
Utilities. 
 

CHARACTER OF SERVICE 

AC.  60 hertz.  Single-phase at available standard voltage at the Point of Delivery. 
 

CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 

LP&L will operate and maintain the street lighting system.   
 
 

  
Light Wattage     

Fluorescent 100W-F     

Light Emitting Diode 
  

030W-LED 
040W-LED 
045W-LED 
048W-LED 
050W-LED 
053W-LED 
057W-LED 
065W-LED 
070W-LED 
100W-LED 

110W-LED 
120W-LED 
140W-LED 
147W-LED 
150W-LED 
154W-LED 
160W-LED 
174W-LED 
175W-LED 
177W-LED 

185W-LED 
210W-LED 
219W-LED 
230W-LED 
240W-LED 
250W-LED 
274W-LED 
278W-LED 
400W-LED 
  

Metal Halide 150W-MH 
400W-MH 

    

Mercury Vapor 400W-MV     

Sodium 50W-LPS     



 

Page | 53 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

5.3.O DISCRETIONARY SERVICE CHARGES 

This section of this Tariff lists the Discretionary Service Charges for all Premises with any Meter. 
 
Competitive Retailer shall submit an order on behalf of Customer to perform the Discretionary Service, 
unless this Tariff permits Customer to directly request LP&L to perform the Discretionary Service or allows 
LP&L to initiate performance of the Discretionary Service. Competitive Retailer shall include the appropriate 
TX SET transaction in an order submitted to LP&L requesting performance of the Discretionary Service. 
 
LP&L shall complete performance of the Discretionary Service according to the applicable timeline in this 
Section. If LP&L is unable to complete performance of the Discretionary Service in compliance with the 
applicable timeline for any reason, including, but not limited to, an inability to successfully communicate 
with the Meter, it shall complete performance of the service in a timely manner. The term “timely” requires 
LP&L to complete performance of the service on the same day specified in the applicable timeline if weather, 
time of day, location of Premises, and other relevant factors permit. Otherwise, LP&L shall prioritize the 
completion of the service on the next AMS Operational Day. 
 
LP&L shall bill the appropriate Discretionary Service Charge to Competitive Retailer upon completion of 
the service, unless LP&L initiates performance of the Discretionary Service and bills the Customer directly. 
LP&L shall not apply any additional charges for its performance of the Discretionary Service, such as 
processing fees and copying fees. Charges designated “As Calculated” in this Section apply to Discretionary 
Services for which  the costs of performing such services vary, depending upon the circumstances of the 
service order and the requirements necessary to complete service performance. LP&L shall use the 
appropriate TX SET transaction for the Discretionary Service in an invoice submitted to Competitive 
Retailer. 

 

 

  



 

Page | 54 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

5.3.P UNIFORM DISCRETIONARY SERVICE CHARGES 

Charge 
No. 

Name and Description Amount 

Connection Charges 

 
(1) 

 
Move-In (Existing Service) 
 
This service initiates Delivery to Customer’s Point of Delivery. It is available only at 
Premises with an existing Standard Meter. It is not available if inspections, permits, or 
construction is required and not completed. 
 
LP&L shall complete performance of the service on the requested date, provided: (1) LP&L 
receives the order by 7:00 PM CPT on the requested date; and (2) the requested date is an 
AMS Operational Day. 
 
LP&L may treat an order received after 7:00 PM CPT on an AMS Operational Day, or on a 
day that is not an AMS Operational Day, as received by 7:00 PM CPT on the next AMS 
Operational Day. 
 
If the requested date is not an AMS Operational Day, LP&L shall complete performance of 
the service by the first AMS Operational Day following the requested date. 
 

         Standard (All Meters) 
 
 Priority (Standard  Meters) 
 

                                                                                 Priority (Non-standard Meters) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$0.00 
 

$0.00 
 

$75.00 
 
(2) 

 
Move-In ( New Service) 
This service initiates Delivery to Customer’s Point of Delivery upon the installation of a 
new Standard Meter or a new or existing Non-Standard Meter at the Premises. It is not 
available if inspections, permits, or construction (other than installation of the Meter) is 
required and not completed.  
 
LP&L shall complete performance of the service on the requested date, provided: (1) the 
requested date is a Business Day; (2) LP&L receives the order by 5:00 PM CPT on a 
Business Day; and (3) the order is received at least two Business Days prior to the 
requested date. 
 
LP&L may treat an order received after 5:00 PM CPT on a Business Day, or on a day that 
is not a Business Day, as received by 5:00 PM CPT on the next Business Day. 
 
If the order is received by the LP&L less than two Business Days prior to the requested 
date, LP&L shall complete performance of the service within two Business Days after the 
date the order is received. If the order is received at least two Business Days prior to the 
requested date but the requested date is not a Business Day, LP&L shall complete 
performance of the service by the first Business Day following the requested date. 
 

         Standard (All Meters) 
 
 Priority (Standard  Meters) 
 

                                                                                               Priority (Non-standard Meters) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$0.00 
 

$0.00 
 

$75.00 



 

Page | 55 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

Charge 
No. 

Name and Description Amount 

Disconnection Charges (All Meter Types) 

 
(3) 

 
Move-Out 
 
This service discontinues Delivery to Customer’s Point of Delivery. 
 
LP&L shall complete performance of the service on the requested date, provided: (1) LP&L 
receives the order by 7:00 PM CPT on the requested date; and (2) the requested date is an 
AMS Operational Day. 
 
LP&L may treat an order received after 7:00 PM CPT on an AMS Operational Day, or on a 
day that is not an AMS Operational Day, as received by 7:00 PM CPT on the next AMS 
Operational Day. 
 
If the requested date is not an AMS Operational Day, LP&L shall complete performance of 
the service by the first AMS Operational Day following the requested date. 
 

 
$0.00 

 
 

Charge 
included in 

the Move-In 
charge. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(4) Clearance Request 
 
This service de-energizes/re-energizes LP&L electrical facilities on Customer’s Premises 
before/after Customer or Customer’s contractor engages in activity near LP&L’s electrical 
facilities, or on or near Customer’s electrical facilities. 
 
Customer may directly submit an order to LP&L to obtain this clearance as authorized 
pursuant to Section 4.10, OUTAGE AND SERVICE REQUEST REPORTING. 
 
LP&L shall complete performance of the service on the requested clearance date, provided: 
(1) LP&L receives the order by 5:00 PM CPT on a Business Day; and (2) the order is 
received at least three Business Days prior to the requested clearance date. 
 
LP&L may treat an order received after 5:00 PM CPT on a Business Day, or on a day that 
is not a Business Day, as received by 5:00 PM CPT on the next Business Day. 
 
LP&L shall accommodate an order requesting clearance based on a mutual agreement with 
the requesting party (Residential or Non-Residential) to perform the service at charges 
calculated by LP&L if: (1) the requested clearance date is not a Business Day; (2) the 
LP&L receives the order less than three Business Days prior to the requested clearance 
date; or (3) the activities necessary for clearance cannot be safely performed on the 
requested clearance date. 
 
Three Business Days’ Notice  
 
Less Than Three Business Days’ Notice 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

$0.00 
 

$150.00 
 
 
 



 

Page | 56 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

Charge 
No. 

Name and Description Amount 

 
 

Disconnection/Reconnection for Non-Payment Charges (Standard Meter) 

 
(5) 

 
Disconnection for Non-Payment (DNP) 
This service discontinues Delivery to Customer’s Point of Delivery due to Customer’s non-
payment of charges billed by Competitive Retailer or LP&L. LP&L may also discontinue 
Delivery to Customer’s Point of Delivery due to Customer’s failure to fulfill obligations to  
LP&L pursuant to a contract, this Tariff, or other Applicable Legal Authorities. 
 
Unless a dangerous condition exists or the customer requests disconnection, LP&L shall  
not  discontinue  Delivery  to  Customer’s  Point  of Delivery due to non-payment: (1) 
before the requested date; (2) on a holiday or weekend, or the day immediately preceding a 
holiday or weekend, unless LP&L personnel are available to reconnect service on those 
days; or (3) if provisions in other Applicable Legal Authorities prohibit such 
disconnection. LP&L also shall not discontinue Delivery to a Customer’s Point of 
Delivery between the hours  of  5:00  PM  and  7:00  AM  CPT  due  to  non-payment,  
unless  a coordinated disconnection allowing the disconnection of service between these  
hours  is  arranged. When appropriate, the coordinated disconnection of service may occur 
between 5:00 PM and 7:00 AM CPT. 
 
LP&L shall not charge Competitive Retailer for performance of the service if LP&L 
initiates disconnection for non-payment. 

 
     

 
Disconnection at Meter 
Subject to the restrictions in this Tariff, Competitive Retailer may submit an order 
requesting LP&L to disconnect service to a Customer’s Point of Delivery due to non-
payment on either: (1) the date the order is received;  or (2) a specified future date. 
 
LP&L shall complete performance of a same-day service order within two hours of 
LP&L’s receipt of the order, provided LP&L receives the order by 3:00 PM CPT on a 
Business Day. If LP&L receives an order for same-day service after 3:00 PM CPT on a 
Business Day, or on a day that is not a Business Day, it shall complete performance of the 
service by 9:00 AM CPT on the next Business Day. 
 
LP&L shall complete performance of a future-dated service disconnection order by 9:00 
AM CPT on the requested date, provided: (1) LP&L receives the order by 11:59:59 PM 
CPT on the day preceding the requested date; and (2) the requested date is a Business Day. 
If LP&L receives an order for future-dated service in which the requested date is not a 
Business Day, LP&L shall complete performance of the service by 9:00 AM CPT on the 
first Business Day following the requested date. 

 
$30.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Page | 57 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

Charge 
No. 

Name and Description Amount 

 
(5) 
(cont’d) 

 
Disconnection at Premium Location (e.g., pole, weatherhead, secondary box) 
LP&L shall complete performance of the order within three Business Days of the requested 
date, provided: (1) the requested date is a Business Day; (2) LP&L receives the order by 
5:00 PM CPT on a Business Day; and (3) the order is received at least two Business Days 
before the requested date. 
 
If the requested date is not a Business Day, LP&L shall treat the next Business Day as the 
requested date. 
 
LP&L may treat an order received after 5:00 PM CPT on a Business Day, or on a day that 
is not a Business Day, as received by 5:00 PM CPT on the next Business Day. 
If the order is received by LP&L less than two Business Days prior to the requested date, 
LP&L shall complete performance of the service within four Business Days after the date 
the order is received. 

 
$30.00 

 
(6) 

 
Reconnection After Disconnection for Non-Payment of Charges (DNP) 
This service restarts Delivery to Customer’s Point of Delivery after discontinuance due to 
Customer’s non-payment of charges billed by Competitive Retailer or LP&L. 
 
For Premises where Competitive Retailer provides prepaid service to Customer, LP&L 
shall complete performance of the service within two hours of LP&L’s receipt of order. 
 
LP&L shall not charge Competitive Retailer for performance of the service if LP&L 
restarts Delivery after LP&L-initiated disconnection for non-payment. 
 
Reconnection at Meter 
 
LP&L shall complete performance of the service within two hours of LP&L’s receipt of 
order. 
 
Reconnection at Premium Location (e.g., pole, weatherhead, secondary box, etc.) 
 
LP&L shall complete performance of standard reconnection service on the date LP&L 
receives the order, provided LP&L receives the order by 2:00 PM CPT on a Business Day. 
 
If the order is received after 2:00 PM CPT on a Business Day, LP&L shall complete 
performance of the standard service on the same date if possible, but no later than the close 
of LP&L’s next Field Operational Day. 
 
LP&L shall treat an order for standard reconnection service received after 7:00 PM CPT, or 
on a day that is not a Business Day, as received at 8:00 AM CPT on the next Business Day. 
 
LP&L shall complete performance of same-day reconnection service on date LP&L 
receives the order, provided LP&L receives the order by 5:00 PM CPT on a Business Day. 
If the order is received by LP&L after 5:00 PM CPT on a Business Day, or on a day that is 
not a Business Day, LP&L shall complete performance of the service no later than the close 
of LP&L’s next Field Operational Day. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 

Page | 58 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

Charge 
No. 

Name and Description Amount 

(6) 
(cont’d) 

Absent exigent circumstances, including but not limited to damage to Customer’s 
Installation, LP&L shall use all reasonable efforts to reconnect service within 48 hours after 
receipt of an order for reconnection service. However, if this requirement results in the 
reconnection being performed on a day that is not a Business Day, the appropriate Weekend
or Holiday charge shall apply. 
 

i. Standard Reconnect 
 

ii. Same Day Reconnect 
 

iii. Weekend 
 

iv. Holiday 

 
 
 
 
 
 

$30.00 
 

$69.70 
 

$86.45 
 

$111.25 
 

Meter Testing Charge (All Meters) 

 
(7) 

 
This charge is for service to test Customer’s Meter in accordance with Section 4.7.D, 
METER TESTING. Customer may directly submit an order to LP&L to perform this 
service as authorized pursuant to Section 4.10, OUTAGE AND SERVICE REQUEST 
AND REPORTING. 
 
LP&L-Owned Meter 
 

a. First Meter test in last four years 
 

b. Meter found outside relevant accuracy standards 
 

c. All other 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$0.00 
 

$0.00 
 

$50.00 

 
(8) 

 
Meter Reading for the Purpose of a Standard Switch 
This service reads Customer’s Meter for the purpose of switching Customer’s Premise to a 
different Competitive Retailer when Retail Customer has not requested a self-selected 
switch. The service is performed in accordance with Section 4.3.D, CHANGING OF 
DESIGNATED COMPETITIVE RETAILER. 
 
LP&L shall complete performance of the service using an Actual Meter Reading to allow 
completion of the switch on the First Available Switch Date (FASD) received from the 
Registration Agent, provided: (1) LP&L receives the order by 7:00 PM CPT on an AMS 
Operational Day; and (2) the FASD is an AMS Operational Day. The FASD is day zero 
unless otherwise specified by the Registration Agent. 
 
LP&L may treat an order received after 7:00 PM CPT on an AMS Operational  Day, or  on 
a day that  is  not  an  AMS Operational  Day,  as received on the next AMS Operational 
Day.  
 
LP&L may use an Estimated Meter Reading to complete performance of the service if 
conditions preclude execution of an Actual Meter Reading. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

$0.00 



 

Page | 59 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

Charge 
No. 

Name and Description Amount 

 
(9) 

 
Meter Reading for the Purpose of a Self-Selected Switch 
This service reads Customer’s Meter on a date other than the Scheduled Meter Reading 
Date for the purpose of switching Retail Customer’s Premise to a different Competitive 
Retailer on a date certain. 
 
The service is performed in accordance with Section 4.3.D, CHANGING OF 
DESIGNATED COMPETITIVE RETAILER. A charge applies only when LP&L uses an 
Actual Meter Reading to perform the service. 
 
LP&L shall complete performance of the service on the requested date provided: (1) LP&L 
receives the order by 7:00 PM CPT on the requested date; and (2) the requested date is an 
AMS Operational Day. 
 
LP&L may treat an order received after 7:00 PM CPT on an AMS Operational Day, or on a 
day that is not an AMS Operational Day, as received on the next AMS Operational Day. 
 
If the requested date is not an AMS Operational Day, LP&L shall complete performance of 
the service by the first AMS Operational Day following the requested date. 
 
LP&L may use an Estimated Meter Reading to complete performance of the service if 
conditions preclude execution of an Actual Meter Reading. 
 

 
$0.00 

 
(10) 
 

 
Meter Reading for the Purpose of a Mass Transition 
 
This service provides a Meter Reading for each affected Customer for the purpose of a 
mass transition of the Customers to the applicable Provider(s) of Last Resort (POLR) or 
Voluntary Retail Electric Providers (who have volunteered to provide POLR service) (as 
applicable). LP&L shall charge the exiting Competitive Retailer for performance of the 
service. 
 

 
$0.00 

Non-Standard Meter Installation Charge 

 
(11) 

 
Non-Standard Metering Service One-Time Fee 
 
Applicable to a Customer receiving Standard Metering Service who chooses to begin
receiving Non-Standard Metering Service. 
 

 
$0.00 
 
 
 

Service Call Charge (All Meter Types) 

 
(12) 

 
This charge is for service that dispatches LP&L personnel to Customer’s Premises to
investigate an outage or other service-related problem. Customer may directly submit an
order to LP&L to perform this service as authorized pursuant to Section 4.10, OUTAGE
AND SERVICE REQUEST REPORTING. 
 
A charge for performance of this service applies only if LP&L completes its investigation
and determines the outage or other service-related problem is not caused by LP&L’s
equipment. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 60 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

Charge 
No. 

Name and Description Amount 

Business  Day  (8:00 AM - 5:00 PM, Monday – Friday,  CPT)  
 
Business Day (Other Hours) 
 
Weekend 
 
Holiday 

$50.00 
 
$75.00 
 
$75.00 
 
$75.00 
 

Tampering and Related Charges (All Meter Types) 

 
(13) 

 
Tampering  (minimum charge) 
 
This service investigates and corrects the unauthorized use of Delivery System or other 
Tampering with LP&L’s Meter or Metering Equipment, or the theft of electric service by 
any person at the Customer’s Premises. 
 
Tampering charges may include, but are not limited to, Delivery Charges, the cost of testing
the Meter, the cost of replacing and repairing a Meter and associated equipment (including 
the Meter seal), the cost of installing protective facilities or relocating the Meter, and all 
other costs associated with the investigation and correction of the unauthorized use. 
 

 
$200.00 

 
Additional 
Costs As 

Calculated 
 
 

 
(14) 

 
Broken Outer Meter Seal 
 
This service replaces a broken outer Meter seal. 
 

 
$0.00 

Denial of Access Charges (All Meters) 

 
(15) 
 

 
Inaccessible Meter 
 
This charge applies when LP&L personnel are unable to gain access to the Meter of a 
Critical Load Public Safety Customer or Critical Load Industrial Customer as a result of 
continued denial of access to the Meter. 
 

 
$0.00 

 
(16) 
 

 
Denial of Access to LP&L’s Delivery System 
 
This charge applies when Customer fails to provide access to Customer’s Premises and 
includes all costs incurred by LP&L to obtain such access. 
 

 
As 

Calculated 

Non-Standard Metering Service Recurring Fee 

 
(17) 

 
Non-Standard Metering Service Recurring Monthly Fee 
Applicable to a Customer receiving Non-Standard Metering Service. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
$24.56 



 

Page | 61 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

Charge 
No. 

Name and Description Amount 

Miscellaneous Charges 

 
(18) 

 
Miscellaneous Charges  
 
This charge may be made for miscellaneous and non-routine services performed at the
request of Customer but not covered specifically by any Rate or fee.  The charges will be the
reasonable costs incurred for performing such services including but not limited to labor,
materials, transportation, miscellaneous expenses and all applicable overheads for the
Service provided.  This also includes the reasonable costs incurred for performing the
necessary removal of any obstruction interfering with the provision of service to the
Customer. 
  

 
As 

Calculated 
 
 
 
 
 

Temporary Service 

 
(19) 

 
Temporary Service 
 
Applicable to a request to energize a Customer's temporary service connection to the Delivery
System during normal business hours. Such requests must be received by LP&L at least two
Business Days prior to the Competitive Retailer's requested date and shall be completed no
later than the requested date. 
 

 
$240.60 

 
 

 
 
 

Disconnection / Reconnection for Non-Payment of Charges (Non-Standard Meter) 

 
(20) 

 
Disconnection for Non-Payment (DNP) 
 
This service discontinues Delivery to Customer’s Point of Delivery due to Customer’s non-
payment of charges billed by Competitive Retailer or LP&L. LP&L may also discontinue 
Delivery to Customer’s Point of Delivery due to Customer’s failure to fulfill obligations to 
LP&L pursuant to a contract, this Tariff, or other Applicable Legal Authorities. 
 
Unless a dangerous condition exists, or the Customer requests disconnection, LP&L shall 
not discontinue Delivery to a Customer’s Point of Delivery due to non-payment: (1) before 
the requested date; (2) on a holiday or weekend, or the day immediately preceding a 
holiday or weekend, unless LP&L personnel are available to reconnect service on those 
days; or (3) if provisions in other Applicable Legal Authorities prohibit such disconnection. 
LP&L also shall not discontinue Delivery to Customer’s Point of Delivery between the 
hours of 5:00 PM CPT and 7:00 AM CPT due to non-payment, unless a coordinated 
disconnection allowing the disconnection of service between these hours is arranged. When 
appropriate, the coordinated disconnection of service may occur between 5:00 PM and 7:00 
AM CPT. 
 
LP&L shall complete performance of the service within three Business Days of the 
requested date, provided: (1) the requested date is a Business Day, (2) LP&L receives the 
order by 5:00 PM CPT on a Business Day, and (3) the order is received at least two 
Business Days prior to the requested date. 
 
If the requested date is not a Business Day, LP&L shall treat the next Business Day as the 
requested date. LP&L may treat an order received after 5:00 PM CPT on a Business Day, 
or on a day that is not a Business Day, as received by 5:00 PM CPT on the next Business 
Day. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 62 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

Charge 
No. 

Name and Description Amount 

 
If the order is received by LP&L less than two Business Days prior to the requested date, 
LP&L shall complete performance of the service within four Business Days after the date 
the order is received. 
 
LP&L shall not charge Competitive Retailer for performance of the service if LP&L 
initiates disconnection for non-payment. 
 
Disconnection at Meter 
 
Disconnection at Premium Location (e.g., pole, weatherhead, secondary box) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$30.00 

 
(21) 

 
Reconnection After Disconnection for Non-Payment of Charges (DNP) 
 
This service restarts Delivery at Customer’s Point of Delivery after discontinuance due to 
Customer’s non-payment of charges billed by Competitive Retailer or LP&L. 
 
LP&L shall complete performance of standard reconnection service on the date LP&L 
receives the order, provided LP&L receives the order by 2:00 PM CPT on a Business Day. 
 
If LP&L receives the order after 2:00 PM CPT on a Business Day, LP&L shall complete 
performance of the standard reconnection service on the date of receipt if possible, but no 
later than the close of LP&L’s next Field Operational Day. 
 
LP&L shall complete performance of same-day reconnection service on the date LP&L 
receives the order, provided LP&L receives the order by 5:00 PM CPT on a Business Day. 
If the order is received by LP&L after 5:00 PM CPT on a Business Day, or on a day that is 
not a Business Day, LP&L shall complete performance of the service no later than the close 
of LP&L’s next Field Operational Day. 
 
LP&L shall treat an order for reconnection service received after 7:00 PM CPT, or received 
on a Non-Business Day, as received at 8:00 AM CPT on the next Business Day. 
 
Absent exigent circumstances, including but not limited to damage to Customer’s 
Installation, LP&L shall use all reasonable efforts to reconnect service within 48 hours after 
receipt of an order for reconnection service.  
 
However, if this requirement results in reconnection being performed on a day that 
is not a Business Day, the appropriate Weekend or Holiday charge shall apply. 
 
LP&L shall not charge Competitive Retailer for performance of the service if 
LP&L restarts Delivery reconnection after LP&L-initiated disconnection for non-
payment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
$30.00 

 
 



 

Page | 63 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

Charge 
No. 

Name and Description Amount 

 
(22) 

 
Reconnection at Meter 
 

i. Standard Reconnect 
 

ii. Same Day Reconnect 
 

iii. Weekend 
 

iv. Holiday 
 

 
 
 

$30.00 
 

$69.70 
 

$86.45 
 

$111.25 

 
Reconnection at Premium Location (e.g., pole, weatherhead, secondary box) 

i. Standard Reconnect 
 

ii. Same Day Reconnect 
 

iii. Weekend 
 

iv. Holiday 

 
 

$30.00 
 

$69.70 
 

$131.80 
 

$162.40 
 

 
  



 

Page | 64 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

5.4 DISTRIBUTED GENERATION INTERCONNECTION POLICIES 

5.4.A  LP&L INTERCONNECTION GUIDELINES 
Steps to Interconnect Renewable Generation within the LP&L Certificated Area  
 

5.4.A.1  
A Customer seeking to install renewable generation at their residence or business will need to 
complete the Interconnection Agreement for distributed generation facilities (“Interconnection 
Agreement”), available on LP&L’s website. 
 

5.4.A.2  
After reviewing and signing the Interconnection Agreement, the customer returns the signed 
Interconnection Agreement to LP&L in person, by mail, or by email at: 

 
In Person: 
CoLU Customer Service 
1314 Ave K 
Lubbock, TX 79401 

By Mail: 
CoLU Customer Service 
Attn: Account Support 
P.O. Box 10541 
Lubbock, TX 79048-3541 

By Email: 
customerrelations@lpandl.com 

 
5.4.A.3  
After LP&L has approved and executed the Interconnection Agreement, an Authorization Letter will 
be sent to notify the customer that the Interconnection Agreement has been approved and authorizing 
the customer to proceed as follows: 
 
If the customer address is inside the city limits: 
a. The customer (or customer’s selected electrician) is required to obtain a building inspection 

permit prior to the installation of the distributed generation system. The building inspection permit 
may be obtained from the City of Lubbock Building Inspection Department at 1314 Avenue K or 
by calling (806) 775-2087. The customer (or customer’s selected electrician) will be required to 
provide a copy of the LP&L Authorization Letter to the Building Inspection Department. 
 

b. Upon completion of the installation of the distributed generation, the customer (or customer’s 
selected electrician) will request a final inspection from the City of Lubbock Building Inspection 
Department at 1314 Avenue K or by calling (806) 775-2087. 
 

c. Upon final inspection, LP&L will contact the customer within 7 to 14 business days to schedule 
an appointment to install the appropriate meter and establish the Distributed Generation Delivery 
System Service Rate on the customer’s account. 

 
If the customer address is outside the city limits: 
   
a. Upon completion of the installation of the renewable generation system, the customer shall notify 

LP&L that installation is complete and submit proof to LP&L that such installation was verified 
and validated by a licensed electrician.  LP&L will then contact the customer within 7 to 14 
business days to schedule an appointment to install the appropriate meter and establish the 
Distributed Generation Delivery System Service Rate on the customer’s account. 

 
After LP&L has approved and executed the Interconnection Agreement, an Authorization Letter will 
be sent to notify the customer that the Interconnection Agreement has been approved and authorizing 
the customer to proceed.  LP&L may charge Customer for costs associated with interconnection 
requests. 

  



 

Page | 65 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

5.5 CONSTRUCTION SERVICE CHARGES  

5.5.A AVAILABILITY  

Applicable to all Competitive Retailers and Customers requesting construction services by LP&L. 
  
The service charges listed below are in addition to any other charges made under LP&L's Delivery Service 
Tariff and will be applied for the appropriate condition described. Other services not covered by these 
standard conditions will be charged on the basis of an estimate for the job or LP&L's cost plus appropriate 
adders.  

5.5.B DISCRETIONARY CHARGES FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICE INCLUDE:  

SER057 Delivery System Facilities Relocation/Removal Charge  
Applicable to requests for relocation or removal of LP&L 
facilities at the request of and for the benefit of the requestor. 

As Calculated 

SER040 Delivery System Facilities Installation Charge  
Applicable to requests made for new electric service or 
upgrade in electric service for requests involving the 
installation, construction, or extension of Delivery System 
facilities. This includes all conductor, conduit, transformers, 
and any associated equipment.  
 
 
 

  
 

    As Calculated 

ODL003 Street Lighting Facilities Installation Charge 
Applicable to requests made for installation of residential 
street lights within Lubbock city limits pursuant to applicable 
City Ordinances.   
 
Inspection of Customer provided non-stock street lights 

 
$4,000 per light 

 
 

$100 per light 

SER0547 Additional Service Design Charge  
Applicable to requests to prepare iterative designs to provide 
service to a specific location where such iterations are at the 
request of the Customer for the Customer's sole benefit.  

 
As Calculated 

SER0458  Temporary Facilities Charge  
Applicable to requests made in conjunction with short-term 
construction projects.  
  
Install and remove single phase overhead service wires and 
transformer (up to 50kVA) on existing pole.   
 
All other temporary facilities installation and removal that 
require mobilization of line crews.  

 
 
 
 

      $1,000.00 
 

 
   As Calculated 

5.5.C GENERAL: DELIVERY SYSTEM FACILITIES  

LP&L is responsible for the construction, extension, upgrade, or alteration of Delivery System facilities 
necessary to connect Customer's Point of Delivery to LP&L's Delivery System.  LP&L makes extension of 
Delivery System facilities to Customer's electrical installation so as to minimize the cost of such extension. 
Extension is normally made at no cost to Customer except in those instances where the cost of the requested 



 

Page | 66 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

extension of LP&L's facilities is in excess of the standard allowances stated herein, or where the requested 
facilities are greater than the required facilities needed to serve the Customer’s load as determined by LP&L, 
or where the installation of non-standard facilities is requested. In these instances, a contribution in aid of 
construction (“CIAC”) is required from Customer for all extensions where the estimated cost of the extension 
is in excess of the standard allowances, the Customer has requested additional facilities above those required 
to provide service as determined by LP&L, or the Customer has requested installation of non-standard 
facilities. The cost of all facilities, equipment, and services that LP&L is to provide under this Delivery 
Service Tariff will constitute the components of the Delivery System facilities necessary to provide Delivery 
Service to Customer. These costs will be compared to the standard allowance to determine the amount of 
CIAC that will be recovered from the Customer, if any. At LP&L’s discretion, CIAC provided by the 
customer could be considered for a refund in the form of a billing credit over a specified timeframe.  Such 
consideration is usually intended for large construction projects and would be subject to load and demand 
thresholds within a specified timeframe. 

5.5.D STANDARD DELIVERY SYSTEM FACILITIES 

Except in those areas where Network Service is the existing or planned service in use, LP&L's standard 
Delivery System facilities consist of the overhead Delivery System facilities necessary to transport Electric 
Power and Energy from a single, single-phase or three- phase source to Customer at one Point of Delivery, 
with one standard LP&L Meter, at one of LP&L's available standard voltages.  In those areas where Network 
Service is the existing or planned service in use, LP&L’s standard Delivery System facilities consist of the 
facilities necessary to provide Network Service. 

5.5.E NON-STANDARD FACILITIES  

Except in those areas where Network Service is the existing or planned service in use, non-standard facilities 
include but are not limited to a two-way feed, automatic and manual transfer switches, service through more 
than one point of delivery, redundant facilities, facilities in excess of those normally required for service, 
poles other than wooden poles, or facilities necessary to provide service at a non-standard voltage. Non-
standard facilities also include underground facilities except in those locations where LP&L determines, for 
engineering or economic reasons, that underground facilities shall constitute standard facilities.  
  
In those areas where Network Service is the existing or planned service in use, Network Service is the only 
Delivery Service available.  
  
If Customer desires Delivery Service utilizing non-standard facilities, as described above, and not covered 
elsewhere in these Service Regulations, then LP&L may construct such facilities. If an entity requests LP&L 
to install non-standard facilities, then the projected additional cost of such non-standard facilities shall be 
paid by the requesting entity to LP&L prior to installation of such facilities. LP&L may, at its option, allow 
for the payment of the additional costs over a period of time.  
  
LP&L shall replace underground facilities with similar underground facilities except for subsurface 
transformers, which shall be replaced by surface pad-mounted transformers unless LP&L determines, based 
on engineering or economic reasons, that a replacement subsurface transformer is more appropriate.  
  
A Facility Service Agreement or Delivery Service Agreement may be required for the installation of Non-
Standard Facilities, to be negotiated between the Customer and LP&L.  The Director of Electric Utilities has 
delegated authority herein to negotiate and enter into such Facility Service Agreement or Delivery Service 
Agreement as he or she determines is in the best interest of LP&L’s ratepayers. 
 

  



 

Page | 67 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

5.5.F CUSTOMER'S ELECTRICAL INSTALLATION  
 
Customer's Electrical Installation must comply with the requirements set forth in this Delivery 
Service Tariff and all applicable LP&L installation standards, which are available upon request. 
 

5.5.G SPACE REQUIREMENTS  
Customer shall grant to or secure for LP&L, at Customer's expense, any rights-of-way or easements 
on property owned or controlled by Customer that are necessary for LP&L to install Delivery 
System facilities for the purpose of delivering Electric Power and Energy to the Customer. Such 
easement will be in a form acceptable to LP&L. 
  
With respect to distribution facilities, Customer shall provide any necessary rights-of-way on 
property not owned or controlled by Customer. If Customer is unable to secure for LP&L any 
necessary rights-of-way or easements on property not owned or controlled by Customer, Customer 
shall be responsible for the actual costs incurred by LP&L in obtaining and clearing such rights-of 
way or easements.  
  
Customer shall also provide, without cost to LP&L, Suitable Space for the installation of Delivery 
System facilities necessary to transport Electric Power and Energy to the Customer and for 
installation of metering facilities. In those areas where Network Service is the existing or planned 
service in use, then Customer shall provide, without cost to LP&L, the space required for the 
installation of the facilities required for double contingency underground service.  

5.5.H OVERHEAD DELIVERY SERVICE 

5.5.H.1 Standard Service Drop  
Except in those areas where Network Service is the existing or planned service in use, LP&L shall 
provide, install, and maintain Service Drop to the Point of Delivery approved by LP&L. Customer 
shall provide and install a point of attachment (such as a bracket, eye bolt, house knob, metal clevis, 
etc.) with adequate support that is acceptable to LP&L and meets all applicable codes.  
 
5.5.H.2 Service Entrance Conductor  
Customer's Service Entrance Conductors are terminated on the outside of the service head and will not 
be less than 24 inches or the minimum length required by City ordinance, whichever is greater. The 
connections between the Customer's Service Entrance Conductors and the LP&L's Service Drop 
conductors are made by LP&L.  
 
5.5.H.3 Connections at Point of Delivery  
LP&L makes connections of LP&L's conductors to Customer's conductors at the Point of Delivery. 
  

5.5.I UNDERGROUND DELIVERY SERVICE 

Underground service is provided to Customer under the following conditions:  
 

5.5.I.1 Location and routing of LP&L's Delivery System is determined by LP&L. 
  

5.5.I.2 Prior to beginning of construction, Customer provides easements at no cost to LP&L for 
the underground conductors, pad mount transformers and associated equipment. Typically, 
these are granted by way of plat submittals through the City of Lubbock before a new or 
re-plat is recorded.  Post plat recording, Customer shall execute a written easement 
agreement with LP&L in a form acceptable to LP&L.  The Director of Electric Utilities 
has the delegated authority to accept such written easements as provided by Resolution No. 
2021-R0051 by the City Council of the City of Lubbock dated February 9, 2021, and such 
other delegations as may be provided consistent with this provision. 

 



 

Page | 68 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

5.5.I.3 LP&L may extend its conductors to Customer's switchgear or service entrance enclosure 
when LP&L considers such conductors as being outside of building.  

 
5.5.I.4 Before the installation of LP&L's underground Delivery System facilities, Customer 

completes rough site grading, establishes final grade along the conductor route, and clears 
area of all obstructions. Any installation of obstructions (such as asphalt or concrete walk, 
driveway, street, alley, parking facilities, etc.) which interfere with the installation of LP&L 
facilities will be corrected by and at the expense of Customer. No change is made in the 
grade along the conductor route or easement without consent of LP&L. Any lowering or 
raising of electrical conductors or associated equipment required by any change in grade is 
at the expense of Customer, including necessary grade work.  

 
5.5.I.5 Competitive Retailer or Customer shall pay any amount due under this Rate Schedule, as 

applicable.  

5.5.J DELIVERY SERVICE FROM LP&L'S EXISTING UNDERGROUND DELIVERY SYSTEM  

In certain areas of the LP&L's Delivery System where substantial investments have been made in 
underground service facilities, such as Network Service, and overhead service extensions into these 
areas are impractical and would nullify the benefits of past investments, LP&L retains the right to 
limit Delivery Service to Customer from LP&L's existing underground Delivery System.  
  
In certain areas of LP&L’s Delivery System, including but not limited to portions of downtown 
Lubbock, LP&L provides Network Service from its underground service facilities. In those areas 
where Network Service is provided, the standard service is double contingency underground service.  
  
The phase and voltage of Delivery Service in areas served from LP&L's underground Delivery 
System may be limited to that which can be provided from existing facilities. 

5.5.K SERVICE LATERAL – SECONDARY VOLTAGE  

LP&L furnishes, installs and maintains the Service Lateral connecting LP&L's Delivery System to 
Customer's Point of Delivery for permanent residential single-phase service.  

  

5.5.L TRANSFORMER AND EQUIPMENT  

LP&L provides, installs, owns and maintains transformer(s) and equipment for Customers taking service at 
secondary voltage. Customer provides, without cost to LP&L, space on Customer's Premises suitable to 
LP&L for the installation, operation, and maintenance of transformers and other equipment required to 
provide Delivery Service to the Customer. Customer provides adequate and accessible pad space as 
determined by LP&L to allow transformer equipment maintenance and replacement. Required space for 
equipment considers any above ground construction or portion of a building which extends over the pad. 
Passageways adequate to accommodate trucks or other necessary lifting and hauling equipment are provided 
by Customer to allow replacement of transformers and other devices.  

5.5.M VAULT  

When a vault for LP&L's transformers, switchgear or other facilities is required on Customer's Premises, and 
location is acceptable to LP&L, Customer provides and installs the vault, at its cost, in accordance with LP&L 
specifications. If the vault is located inside or under Customer's building due to lack of any suitable space 
outside the building, Customer provides the necessary Raceway for LP&L's conductors so that such 
conductors are considered outside of building. LP&L installs in the vault, transformers and/or other facilities 
necessary to provide Delivery Service to the Customer. The Customer is responsible for shielding or limiting 
utilization of adjoining building sections as necessary to limit noise and electromagnetic emissions. The 
Customer is responsible for the cost of conducting studies and measurements to project or determine levels 



 

Page | 69 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

of emissions. Customer takes Delivery Service at the secondary terminals of LP&L transformers or other 
facilities located in the vault as specified by LP&L. Under any other conditions, Customer takes service 
outside the building.  

5.5.N METER 

All Meters used to measure the amount of Electric Power and Energy delivered by LP&L for use in the 
calculation of Delivery System Charges, are installed and maintained by LP&L. Meters shall be located 
outside the building. If the customer requires a meter location other than outside the building and LP&L 
approves such location, the customer shall install and own the electric service conductors from a point of 
delivery outside of the building (either secondary transformer terminals or service enclosure). All Meter 
transformers and transockets shall be furnished and owned by LP&L for these purposes. Where Customer 
requests the installation of an LP&L Meter other than LP&L's standard Meter, Customer pays the appropriate 
installation and monthly maintenance cost in accordance with the applicable rate schedule of this Delivery 
Service Tariff.  
  
LP&L may, at its option and at its expense, relocate any LP&L-owned or Non LP&L-Owned Meter. In case 
of a relocation made necessary due to inaccessibility, hazardous location, or dangerous conditions for which 
Customer is responsible, or in order to prevent a recurrence of unauthorized use of Delivery Service or 
tampering with equipment, Customer, or Customer's Competitive Retailer may be required to relocate 
Customer’s service facilities and LP&L facilities, including the Metering Equipment, to a location agreeable 
to LP&L at the Customer’s expense.  
  
Under no circumstance is any meter installation to be moved or relocated except as authorized by LP&L. 
 

5.5.O STANDARD FACILITY EXTENSIONS   

Extension of standard facilities to permanent Customers within LP&L's certificated area, where the estimated 
cost to extend facilities does not exceed the standard allowances stated herein, will be provided to Customers 
at no cost. The cost of the extension is calculated using the route of the new line, as determined by LP&L, 
from LP&L Delivery System facilities, which includes primary, secondary, and service drop for overhead 
facilities or Service Lateral for underground facilities, to the Point of Delivery. When two or more 
applications for Delivery Service from the same extension are received prior to starting construction of the 
extension, the maximum allowance is the sum of each individual applicant's standard allowance. Customer 
makes a one-time non-refundable CIAC for the cost of providing an extension in excess of the stated 
allowances.  
  
LP&L makes extension of electric service to Customer’s electrical installation so as to minimize the cost of 
such extension. Extension is normally made at no cost to Customer except in those instances where the 
requested extension of LP&L’s facilities is not economically justified or Customer requests facilities in 
excess of those required to provide service as determined by the LP&L. In those areas where Network Service 
is the existing or planned service in use, the extension of Network Service is made to Customer if Customer 
complies with the requirements for receiving Network Service described in this Delivery Service Tariff.  

5.5.P OVERHEAD EXTENSIONS   

LP&L makes extension of overhead electric service to permanent Customers if electric service desired by 
Customer is of the type and character of electric service which LP&L provides. The extension includes 
primary, secondary, and service drop to the point of delivery. The standard allowance for extension of service 
is determined using the estimated revenue from the new load over three years. When two or more applications 
for electric service from the same extension are received prior to starting construction of the line extension, 
the maximum allowance for the overhead extension includes the sum of the estimated revenue over three 
years from the new loads in those applications. The allowance will be applied to each customer based on 
percentage of total new load in the submitted applications.   Customer makes a one-time non-refundable 



 

Page | 70 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

CIAC for the cost of providing an extension in excess of standard allowance based upon an estimated cost of 
extension for the type of facility installed.  

5.5.Q UNDERGROUND EXTENSIONS   

Except in those areas where Network Service is the existing or planned service in use, LP&L makes extension 
of underground electric service to permanent Customers if electric service desired by Customer is of the type 
and character of electric service which LP&L provides.  The extension includes primary and secondary 
facilities to the point of delivery. The standard allowance for extension of service is determined using the 
estimated revenue from the new load over three years. When two or more applications for electric service 
from the same extension are received prior to starting construction of the line extension, the allowance for 
the extension includes the sum of the estimated revenue over three years from the new loads in those 
applications. The allowance will be applied to each customer based on percentage of total new load in the 
submitted applications. Customer makes a onetime non-refundable CIAC for the cost of providing an 
extension in excess of standard allowance based upon an estimated cost of extension for the type of facility 
installed.   

5.5.R STANDARD FACILITY EXTENSION:  EXTENSIONS CALCULATION OF CIAC FOR 
UNDERGROUND STANDARD FACILITY EXTENSIONS BEYOND STANDARD 
ALLOWANCE  

Customer will pay a CIAC amount to LP&L as determined by this Delivery Service Tariff, Discretionary 
Charge for Construction Service. 

5.5.S CALCULATION OF CIAC FOR OVERHEAD STANDARD FACILITY EXTENSIONS 
BEYOND STANDARD ALLOWANCE  

Customer will pay a CIAC amount to LP&L as determined per project.  Calculation will be based on 
projected load demand and estimated cost of extending overhead facilities for electric service.  

5.5.T CUSTOMER REQUESTED FACILITY UPGRADES  

In the case of upgrades to Delivery System facilities necessitated by Customer adding load in excess of 
existing Delivery System facility capacity, only the cost of the facility upgrades that are attributable to the 
Customer’s request will be included in calculating a CIAC.   

5.5.U UNUSED STANDARD ALLOWANCE  

Under no circumstance shall any unused standard allowance be paid or credited to the Customer or used to 
reduce the cost for installation of non-standard Delivery System facilities or non-standard street lighting 
facilities.  

5.5.V NON-STANDARD FACILITY DELIVERY SYSTEM EXTENSIONS  

If Customer desires Delivery System service that involves non-standard facilities as described in this Delivery 
Service Tariff, Customer must pay LP&L prior to LP&L’s construction of non-standard facilities the total 
estimated cost of all non-standard facilities less the cost of standard facilities to meet Customer's request.  
  
LP&L may terminate the provision of any Delivery Service utilizing non-standard facilities at the end of the 
term of the applicable Facility Extension Agreement or Discretionary Service Agreement, or in the absence 
of a Facility Extension Agreement or Discretionary Service Agreement, on reasonable notice to Customer 
and the Customer’s Competitive Retailer.  



 

Page | 71 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

5.5.W TEMPORARY DELIVERY SYSTEM FACILITIES  

Customer must pay LP&L prior to LP&L's constructing temporary Delivery System facilities an amount 
equal to the estimated cost of installing and removing the facilities, plus the estimated costs of materials to 
be used which are unsalvageable after removal of the installation, as set forth in Section 5.5.B  of this Delivery 
Service Tariff.  

5.5.X REMOVAL AND RELOCATION OF LP&L'S FACILITIES  

LP&L may remove or relocate LP&L facilities upon request.  The requesting entity pays the total cost of 
removing or relocating such facilities, unless LP&L deems such removal or relocation will benefit LP&L in 
terms of added revenue, improved system reliability or public safety.  

5.5.Y BILLING AND REMITTANCE 

Billing and Remittance for Construction Services will occur directly by and between LP&L and the 
Customer.  Payment for Construction Service must be paid in full prior to any commencement of 
construction. 

 

  



 

Page | 72 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN LP&L AND COMPETITIVE RETAILER REGARDING TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS OF ACCESS BY THE COMPETITIVE RETAILER TO THE DELIVERY SYSTEM OF 
LP&L TO PROVIDE ELECTRIC POWER AND ENERGY TO COMPETITIVE RETAILER’S RETAIL 
CUSTOMERS (ACCESS AGREEMENT). 
 
LP&L and Competitive Retailer hereby agree that their relationship regarding Access by Competitive Retailer to 
provide Electric Power and Energy to a Retail Customer will be governed by the terms and conditions that are set 
forth in LP&L Access Tariff approved, except for Chapters 2 and 5, by the Public Utility Commission of Texas 
(Commission). A copy of this Access Tariff may be obtained by contacting the Central Records Department of the 
Commission. 
 
I. Notices, bills, or payments required in LP&L’s Access Tariff will be delivered to the following addresses: 

 
FOR LP&L 

Legal Name:  

Mailing Address:  

Phone Number:  

Email Address  

Payment address: 
(electronic and postal) 

 

LP&L may change such contact information on written notice to Competitive Retailer. 
 
FOR COMPETITIVE RETAILER 

Legal Name:  

Mailing Address:  

Phone Number:  

Fax Number:  

Email Address  

Billing address: 
(electronic and postal) 

 

PUC Certificate Number: 
 

Competitive Retailer may change contact information on written notice to LP&L. 
 
 



 

Page | 73 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

Notices for late payments must be submitted to the following address for Competitive Retailer: 
 

 

Email Address:   

II.  DESIGNATION OF ENTITY PERFORMING BILLING  

IF A SINGLE CONSOLIDATED BILL WILL BE PROVIDED, IT WILL BE PROVIDED BY: 

_______ UTILITY or 

_______ UTILITY REPRESENTATIVE or 

_______ COMPETITIVE RETAILER AS UTILITY REPRESENTATIVE 
 
IF A SINGLE CONSOLIDATED BILL WILL NOT BE PROVIDED, CHARGES FOR TRANSMISSION AND 
DISTRIBUTION CHARGES WILL BE BILLED BY:   

_______ UTILITY or 

_______ UTILITY REPRESENTATIVE or 

_______ COMPETITIVE RETAILER AS UTILITY REPRESENTATIVE 

III. DESIGNATION OF CONTACT FOR REPORTING OF OUTAGES, INTERRUPTIONS, AND 
IRREGULARITIES 

Unless otherwise agreed to by Competitive Retailer and LP&L, Competitive Retailer will direct Retail Customers to 
call or contact LP&L to report outages, interruptions, and irregularities. Competitive Retailer will provide Retail 
Customer with the following toll-free number supplied by LP&L for purposes of such reporting: 
 

806-775-2509 
 

Alternatively, and only with the mutual consent of Competitive Retailer and LP&L, one of the following 
options can be selected. *If one of these options is selected, please place a check on the line beside the option 
selected. These options and attendant duties are discussed in pro-forma access tariff section 4.10.A. 
 
_______ Competitive Retailer will direct Retail Customers to call Competitive Retailer to report outages,  
 interruptions, and irregularities and will then electronically forward such information to LP&L. 
 
_______ Competitive Retailer will direct Retail Customers to call Competitive Retailer to report outages,  
 interruptions, and irregularities and will then forward such calls to LP&L at the    
 following toll-free number: 
 
 806-775-2509 
 
_______ Competitive Retailer will direct Retail Customers to call LP&L directly to report outages,  
 interruptions, and irregularities at the following toll-free number: 
 

 806-775-2509 



 

Page | 74 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

IV. DESIGNATION OF CONTACT FOR MAKING SERVICE REQUESTS 

Unless otherwise agreed to by Competitive Retailer and LP&L, Competitive Retailer will direct Retail 
Customers to call or contact LP&L directly to make service requests.  Competitive Retailer will provide 
Retail Customer with the following toll-free number supplied by LP&L for purposes of such reporting: 
 

806-775-2509 
 
Alternatively, and only with mutual consent, one of the following options can be selected. *If one of these 
options is selected, please place a check on the line beside the option selected. These options and attendant 
duties are discussed in pro-forma access tariff section 4.10.A. 
 
_______ Competitive Retailer will direct Retail Customers to call Competitive Retailer to report outages,  
 interruptions, and irregularities and will then forward such calls to LP&L at the following  
 toll-free number: 
 
 806-775-2509 

 
_______ Competitive Retailer will direct Retail Customers to call LP&L to report outages, interruptions,  
 and irregularities at the following toll-free number: 
 
 806-775-2509 

V. DESIGNATION OF CONTACT FOR BILLING INQUIRIES 

Competitive Retailer may direct Retail Customers to contact L&L for billing inquiries related to charges for 
Delivery Service. Competitive Retailer will provide Retail Customer with the following toll-free number for 
purposes of Delivery Service billing inquiries. 
 
806-775-2509 

VI. REPRESENTATIONS 

By signing this Agreement, Competitive Retailer represents and warrants all of the following: 
1. Competitive Retailer is authorized to sell Electric Power and Energy to Retail Customers in the State 

of Texas. 
2. Competitive Retailer has completed all flight testing, both with the applicable financial institutions 

and with the Electric Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT). 
3. Competitive Retailer agrees, when necessary, to submit EDI bank payments in the form and method 

prescribed by LP&L. 

VII. TERM 

The term of this Agreement will commence upon the date of execution by both Parties (the “Effective Date”). 
This Agreement will terminate upon mutual agreement of the Parties or upon the earlier of the date (a) the 
Competitive Retailer informs LP&L that it is no longer operating as a Competitive Retailer in LP&L’s service 
territory; (b) a new Access Agreement between the Parties hereto becomes effective; (c) Retail Electric 
Provider is no longer certified by the PUC as a retail electric provider in LP&L’s certificated service area; 
(d) Competitive Retailer has lost its municipal registration within the municipality, if applicable. 
 
Termination of this Agreement for any reason will not relieve LP&L or the Competitive Retailer of any 
obligation accrued or accruing prior to such termination. 
 
This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which is deemed an original but all 
constitute one and the same instrument. 
  



 

Page | 75 Effective Date 11/01/2024 

VIII. SIGNATURES 
 
 LP&L 
 

Print name:  

Legal signature:  

Date:  

 
 COMPETITIVE RETAILER 
 

Print name:  

Legal signature:  

Date:  

 






	Agenda
	1.03.__Executive Session Board Appts.
	4.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_8.5.2024 S Budget Work 1
	       ATT_8.6.2024 S Budget Work 2
	       ATT_8.7.2024 S Budget Work 3
	       ATT_8.13.2024
	5.01.__Budget Amendment 44
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 44
	5.01.1.__CEAP TDHCA to City of Lubbock
	       ATT_CEAP Resolution
	5.02.__Sale of Property at 19th Street & Avenue X
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Sales Contract 
	       ATT_Map_Metes and Bounds
	5.03.__ROW Deed, Lot 6, Block 13, Phyllis Wheatley
	       ATT_Resolution - Lot 6, Block 13, Phyllis Wheatly
	       ATT_Deed - Lot 6, Block 13, Phyllis Wheatly
	       ATT_GIS Map 
	5.04.__Freese & Nichols - NWTP
	       ATT_Resolution 17778
	       ATT_Amendment 1 Contract
	       ATT_Original Contract
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_CIP Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Project Detail
	5.05.__Kimley-Horn - Upland Ave. Segment 1
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract 18273
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	       ATT_Budget Detail - CIP 92510
	       ATT_CIP Project Detail
	5.06.__FY25 USGS Joint Funding Agmt
	       ATT_Resolution - Contract 18255, USGS
	       ATT_Contract - 18255 USGS Survey Funding Agmt
	5.07.__Mobotrex - Traffic Signal Components
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Purchase Order
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	CIP Detail
	8695 - FM 2641 Signals (1)
	8697 - US62 & MLK Signals (1)
	8698 - 19th_US62 Signals (1)

	8699 - SL88 Signals (1)

	5.08.__Amendment 1 HOME Agmt - CLHI
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Amendment 1 
	5.09.__Vintage PID 2024 Ordinance
	       ATT_Vintage PID Ordinance
	       ATT_Vintage PID Service Plan
	5.10.__Bell Farms PID Assessment
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	       ATT_Bell Farms PID 2024 Public Hearing Notice
	5.11.__Northwest Passage PID Assessment
	       ATT_Ordinance 
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	       ATT_Public Hearing Notice 
	5.12.__Upland Crossing PID Assessment
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	       ATT_Public Hearing Notice 
	5.13.__Upland Crossing 2 PID Assessment
	       ATT_Ordinance 
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	       ATT_Public Hearing Notice 
	5.14.__Upland Crossing 3 PID Assessment
	       ATT_Ordinance 
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	       ATT_Public Hearing Notice 
	5.15.__North Overton PID Assessment 
	       ATT_Ordinance 
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	       ATT_Public Hearing Notice 
	5.16.__Quincy Park PID Assessment
	       ATT_Ordinance 
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	       ATT_Public Hearing Notice 
	5.17.__Valencia PID Assessment
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	       ATT_Public Hearing Notice 
	5.18.__North Point PID Assessment
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	       ATT_Public Hearing Notice 
	5.19.__Willow Bend Villas PID Assessment
	       ATT_Ordinance 
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	       ATT_Public Hearing Notice 
	5.20.__LEDA Facade Grant - 1500 14th Street
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Support Documentation
	5.21.__LEDA Permittable Grant - 1500 14th Street
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Support Documentation
	5.22.__Amendment 1 - Juvenile Case Mgr Interlocal Agmt 
	       ATT_Resolution - Juvenile Case Manager
	       ATT_Amendment No. 1 -  Interlocal Agreement
	5.23.__Interlocal Agmt - LMSCU
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_LMSCU Agreement -  Resolution No. 2018-R0431
	       ATT_Memo - Hiighlights and Fiscal Review
	       ATT_Fiscal Review_Data Charts
	5.24.__Retiree Pistol Ownership Transfer 
	       ATT_Resolution-Retiree Pistol Ownership Transfer
	5.25.__ZC 1067-G
	       ATT_Ordinance 1067-G
	       ATT_Staff Report 1067-G
	       ATT_Documentation 1067-G
	5.26.__ZC 3303-D
	       ATT_Ordinance 3303-D
	       ATT_Staff Report 3303-D
	       ATT_Documentation 3303-D
	ADPC83C.tmp
	Council District 5
	Prior Board or Council Action
	Notification Summary
	Site Conditions and History
	Adjacent Property Development
	Current zoning: Industrial Park District (IP) Requested zoning: Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) Purpose Statements
	Attachments
	Staff Contacts


	5.27.__ZC 3506
	       ATT_Ordinance 3506
	       ATT_Staff Report 3506
	       ATT_Documentation 3506
	5.28.__ZC 3507
	       ATT_Ordinance 3507
	       ATT_Staff Report 3507
	       ATT_Documentation 3507
	Staff Report 3507-Ashley_VE Edit
	Case Information 3507
	3507_1locator
	3507_2imag
	3507_3zoning
	3507_4flup
	Photo's 3507
	Site
	Final Plat for Matador Plaza, Tract A
	Application 2.pdf
	Letter
	Letter of intent

	5.29.__ZC 3505
	       ATT_Ordinance 3505
	       ATT_Staff Report 3505
	       ATT_Documentation 3505
	Staff Report 3505-Ashley_VE Edit
	Case Information 3505
	3505_1locator
	3505_2imag
	3505_3zoning
	3505_4flup
	Photo's 3505 - Copy
	Site Plan
	Application.pdf

	5.30.__ARPA Agmt - Armstrong Mechanical Co., Inc.
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement 
	       ATT_Program Guidelines 
	5.31.__ARPA Agmt - Dale Bolles Plumbing, Inc.
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement
	       ATT_Program Guidelines 
	5.32.__ARPA Agmt - Precision Pros Plumbing
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Agreement 
	       ATT_Program Guidelines 
	5.33.__ARPA Agmt - Larcon Electric, L.C.
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Agreement 
	       ATT_Program Guidelines 
	5.34.__ARPA Agmt - Bruce Thornton Air Conditioning
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Agreement 
	       ATT_Program Guidelines 
	5.35.__ARPA Agmt - East Lubbock Resident Owned Business Initiative
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Amendment
	       ATT_Original Agreement 
	5.36.__Board Appointment
	       ATT_Civil Service Commission Appointment Resolution
	6.01.__Appt. of Richard Stewart as LFR Chief
	       ATT_Resolution - Appt. of Fire Chief Stewart
	6.02.__UDC Amendments
	       ATT_UDC Amendments Ordinance
	       ATT_Amendments 
	6.03.__Budget Ordinance
	       ATT_Budget Ordinance
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	       ATT_Exhibit C
	       ATT_Exhibit D
	       ATT_Exhibit E
	       ATT_Exhibit F
	       ATT_Exhibit G
	6.04.__Ratification
	       ATT_Ratification Resolution
	6.05.__Ordinance Setting the Tax Rate
	       ATT_Tax Rate Ordinance
	6.06.__Hotel Occupancy Tax Revenues
	       ATT_HM Resolution
	6.07.__System Delivery Rate/Tariff Schedule
	       ATT_Resolution - CC
	       ATT_Tariff
	       ATT_Resolution - EUB

